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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 25, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend existing Sole Source agreements with the vendors listed below in bold to
provide home visiting services to expectant women and newly parenting individuals, by increasing
the total price limitation by $5,088,194 from $4,657,387 to $9,745,581 and by extending the
completion dates from September 30, 2020 to September 30, 2022 effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 81% Federal Funds. 19% General Funds.

The contracts and subsequent amendments were approved by Governor and Council, as
indicated below.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Code

Location Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

G&C Date

(Item #)

Community Action^of
Belknap-Merrimack
Counties Inc.

177203-

B003
2 Industrial Park Drive

Concord, NH
$314,056 $0 $314,056

0: 06/20/18

(Item #27E)

A1: 09/18/19

(Item #27)

Community Action
Partnership of
Stratford County

177200-

8004

642 Central Avenue

Dover. NH
$492,727 $650,418 $1,143,145

O: 06/20/18

(Item #27E)

A1: 09/18/19

(Item #27)

Waypoint
177166-

8002

City of Manchester,
Hlllsborough,
Merrlmack, and

Rocklngham Counties

$2,309,438 $2,581,579 $4,891,017

0: 06/20/18

(Item #27E)

A1: 09/18/19

(Item #27)

The Family
Resource Center at

Gorham

162412-

8001
Grafton and Coos

County
$801,958 $969,183 $1,771,141

O: 06/20/18

(Item #27E)

A1: 09/18/19

(Item #27)

TLC Family
Resource Center

170625-

8001
109 Pleasant Street

Claremont, NH
$234,000 $365,500 $599,500

0:, 06/20/18

(Item #27E)

Central New

Hampshire VNA &
Hospice

1777244

-8002
780 North Main Street

Laconia, NH
$192,978 $226,416 $419,394

O: 06/20/18

(Item #27E)

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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VNA at HCS, Inc.
177274-

8002
312 Marlboro Street

Keene, NH
$312,230 295,098 $607,328

0; 06/20/18

(Item #27E)

Totals $4,657,387 $5,088,194 $9,745,581

"The amendment with the Community Action of Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.is currently pending and will be submitted
to a future G&C meeting.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contracts were originally approved as sole
source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.
Additionally, the vendors are the only vendors certified to provide the evidence based home
visiting model, 'Health Families America.' The vendors have been providing home visiting
services in their respective counties and have developed collaborative referral networks that
provide new mothers and their families with additional assistance programs in their community.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Home Visiting services to eligible
households utilizing the Maternal Infant Early Childhood Home Visiting model. Providing services
through this model along with permanent partners within each community, ensures an array of
services is available to assist with supporting and strengthening families in New Hampshire,
statewide.

Continuing home visiting services allows the Department to provide services to a total of
500 households through September 30, 2022.

The Contractors provide home visiting services to pregnant women and newly parenting
families with children up to the age of three (3). Nurses and family support workers visit families
in their homes with the capacity to conduct visits virtually to provide educational information,
depression and developmental screening, and connect families, as needed, with community
services such as prenatal care, employment programs and the New Hampshire Tobacco Helpline.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions of the original contracts, the
parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor
and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the
two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, many of the most
at risk New Hampshire families may not receive access to resources and family support and
strengthening services necessary to raise children who are physically, socially and emotionally
healthy, which can reduce juvenile delinquency, family violence and crime.
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Area sen/ed: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.870, FAIN #X10MC33595

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Tori A. ̂ibinette
Commissioner

7%e Department of Health and Human Servicet'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Home Vi»lting-HFA

05-96-90-902010-6896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU
OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, ACA HOME VISITING

FAIN » X10MC29490 and X10MC31156 & X10MC33696

CFDA #93.870 -100% Federal

Community Action BelKnap Merrlmack Countlei ♦ Vendor #177203-B003

Flacal Year Claaa/Account Claaa TWe Job Numtrer Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 60083200 $127,085.00 $0.00 $127,085.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083201 $127,085.00 $0.00 $127,085.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 60083203 $31,771.00 $0.00 $31,771.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083204 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs tbd $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal $285,941.00 $0.00 $285,941.00

Community Action Partnerahip of Strafford County - Vendor #177200-8004

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class THIe Job Numtrer Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 60083200 $188,512.00 $0.00 $188,512.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 60083201 $188,512.00 $0.00 $188,512.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 60083203 $47,128.00 $162,815.00 $236,643.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083204 $0.00 $257,087.00 $257,087.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs tbd $0.00 $64,272.00 $84,272.00

Subtotal $424,162.00 $614,174.00 S938.326.00

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class THIe Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 60083200 $271,404.00 $0.00 $271,404.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90063201 $271,404.00 SO.OO $271,404.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 60083201 $67,651.00 $203,553.00 $271,404.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 60063204 $0.00 $271,404.00 $271,404.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs tbd $0.00 $67,651.00 $67,851.00

Subtotal $610,669.00 $642,808.00 $1,163,467.00

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class THIe Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90063200 $278,463.00 $0.00 $276,493.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 60083201 $276,493.00 SO.OO $278,493.00

SFY 2021 102-600731 Contracts for Program Svcs 60083201 $66,623.00 $166,523.00 $268,146.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 60083204 $0.00 $268,146.00 S268.146.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs tbd $0.00 $67,036.00 $67,036.00

Subfotaf $626,609.00 $633,706.00 $1,160,314.00

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class THJe Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083200 $252,164.00 $0.00 $252,164.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 60083201 $252,164.00 SO.OO $252,164.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 60083201 $63,041.00 $205,105.00 $268,146.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 60083204 $0.00 $268,146.00 $268,146.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs tbd $0.00 S67.036.00 $67,038.00

Subtotal $667,369.00 $640,289.00 $1,107,658.00

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class THIe Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 60083200 S184.816.00 $0.00 $184,816.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083201 $184,816.00 $0.00 $164,816.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90063201 $46,204.00 $221,942.00 $268,146.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90063204 $0.00 $268,146.00 $268,146.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs tbd $0.00 $67,036.00 $67,036.00

Subtotal $416,836.00 $557,124.00 $972,960.00
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Home Vislting-HFA

Fitcal Year Clatt / Account Claaa Title Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083200 S8S.768.00 SO.OO S85,768.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083201 S85.768.00 SO.OO S8S.768.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083201 S21.442.00 S64.326.00 S85.768.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083204 SO.OO S85.768.00 S8S.766.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs tbd SO.OO S21.442.00 S21.442.00

Subtotal Sf92.978.00 S171.539.00 S364,614.00

The Femlly Reeource Center at Gorhem 'Cooe County • Vendor 0162412-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90063200 S148.927.00 SO.OO S146.927.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90063201 S146.927.00 $0.00 S146.927.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90063201 S36.732.00 $142,370.00 S179.102.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90063204 SO.OO S179.102.00 S179.102.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs tbd SO.OO S44.776.00 S44.776.00

Subtotal $330,586.00 $366,246.00 $696,834.00

The Family Reeouroe Center et Gorhem • Gnfton County • Vendor th 62412-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class THIe Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083200 S180.901.00 SO.OO Sie0.901.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083201 S180.901.00 SO.OO S160.901.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083201 S4S.225.00 S167.846.00 S213.071.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083204 SO.OO S213.071.00 S213.071.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs tbd SO.OO S53.268.00 $53,268.00

Subtotal S407.027.00 S434.186.00 $841,212.00

TLC Family Reeource Center • Vendor «n70626-B001

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class This Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Anwunt

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083200 $104,000.00 SO.OO S104.000.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083201 $104,000.00 SO.OO $104,000.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083201 $26,000.00 $78,000.00 $104,000.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90063204 SO.OO $104,000.00 $104,000.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs tbd SO.OO $26,000.00 $26,000.00

Subtotal $234.000.00 $208,000.00 $442,000.00

VNA at HCS, Inc. • Vendor n77274^02

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083200 S136.769.00 $0.00 $136,769.00

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083201 S138.769.00 SO.OO $138,769.00

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083201 $34,692.00 $104,077,00 $138,769.00

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Svcs 90083204 SO.OO $138,769.00 $138,769.00

SFY 2023 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Svcs tbd SO.OO $34,670.00 $34,670.00

Subfofaf S312.230.00 $277,518.00 $689,746.00

Total of AU 5899 S4,407,387.00 S4.U5.585.00 $8,552,972.00
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Horn* V1tKing>HFA

OS-96-92-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION

100% OTHER FUNDS (GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS)

FItcal Year Claaa 1 Account Claaa THIe Job Numtier

Current Modified

Budget

Increaae

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2020 102-500734 Contracta for Social Svs. 92056501 S28.11S.00 SO.OO S28.115.00

SFY2021 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2022 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2023 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SubtottI $28,115.00 $0.00 $28,115.00

Community Action Partn»rahlp of Strafford County Vtndor»177200-B004

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2020 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 S68.S75.00 SO.OO S66.S75.00

SFY 2021 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2022 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2023 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

Subtotml $66,675.00 $0.00 $68,676.00

Fiscal Year Class f Account Class THIe Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2020 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 S88.96S.00 SO.OO $68,965.00

SFY 2021 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2022 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2023 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 SO.OO SO.OO $0.00

Subrotaf S88.965.00 $0.00 $68,966.00

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2020 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 $32,175.00 SO.OO S32.175.00

SFY 2021 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2022 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2023 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

Subtotal $32,176.00 SO.OO $32,176.00

Vendor »162412-a001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class THJe JobNumtier

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2020 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 $32,170.00 SO.OO $32,170.00

SFY 2021 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92056501 SO.OO $0.00 SO.OO

SFY 2022 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

SFY 2023 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs. 92058501 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

Subtotal $32,170.00 $0.00 $32,170.00

TOTAL of AU 3382 $250,000.00 $0.00 250,000.00
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Home VieiUng-HFA

0&-9S-042-421010-29$80000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS; HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

100% General Funds

Waypoint- Merrlmach County Vendom77166-8002

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

8udflet

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2021 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 SO.OO $161,179.00 $181,179.00

SFY 2022 646-504004 General Funds for Other - 42106746 $0.00 $181,179.00 $181,179.00

SFY 2023 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $45,295.00 $45,295.00

Subtotal SO.OO $407,853.00 $407,850.00

VNA at HCS. Inc. - Vendor #177274-8002

Fiscal Year Class'Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

8udflet

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2021 645-604004 General Funds for Other 42106746 $0.00 $7,814.00 $7,814.00

SFY 2022 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42106746 $0.00 $7,814.00 $7,814.00

SFY 2023 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42106746 $0.00 $1,964.00 $1,964.00

Subfofa' SO.OO $17,682.00 $17,582.00

Community Action Partnershio of Strafford County Vertdor #177200-8004

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2021 646-604004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $60,563.00 $60,663.00

SFY 2022 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $60,563.00 $60,553.00

SFY 2023 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $15,138.00 $15,138.00

Subfofa' $0.00 $138,244.00 $138,244.00

Community Action 8elknap Merrimack Counties Vendor#177203-8003

Fiscal Year Class 'Account Class THIe Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2021 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 SO.OO $0.00

SFY 2022 646-604004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SFY 2023 646-604004 General Funds for Other 42105746 SO.OO $0.00 $0.00

Subfota' $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice - Vendor #177244-80<2

Fiscal Year Class' Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2021 646-604004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $24,391.00 $24,391.00

SFY 2022 646-604004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $24,391.00 $24,391.00

SFY 2023 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $6,098.00 $6,098.00

Subfota' $0.00 $54,880.00 $54,880.00

The Family Resource Center at Gorham - Coos County Vendor #162412-8001

Fiscal Year Class' Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2021 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

SFY 2022 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $25,000.00 $26,000.00

SFY 2023 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $6,250.00 $6,260.00

Subtotal $0.00 $58,250.00 $58,250.00

The Family Resource Center at Gorham • Graflon County Vendor #162412-8001

Fiscal Year Class'Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2021 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

SFY 2022 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $50,000.00 $60,000.00

SFY 2023 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $12,600.00 $12,500.00

Subfofa' $0.00 $112,500.00 $112,500.00

TLC Family Resource Center • Vendor #170626-8001

Fiscal Year Class'Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2021 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00

SFY 2022 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42105746 $0.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00

SFY 2023 646-504004 General Funds for Other 42106746 $0.00 $17,500.00 $17,500.00

Subfofa' $0.00 $157,500.00 $157,500.00

Tors' of AU 2958 $0.00 $942,809.00 $942,809.00

TOTALS: $4,857,387.00 $5,088,194.00 $9,745,581.00
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Home Visiting Services Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Home Visiting Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2")
is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Community Action Partnership of Stratford County
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 642 Central
Avenue, Dover, NH 03820.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20.2018 (Item #27E), as amended on September 18.2019. (Item #27), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and
In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions. Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,143,145.

3. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 1 Provisions Applicable to All Sen/ices. Subsection
1.5., to read:

1.5. The Contractor shall provide home visiting services to a minimum of 32 families per contract
year.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, Paragraph 2.2.4.,
to read:

2.2.4. Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential components of the HFA
Model are addressed in agency policies.

5. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2. by adding
Paragraph 2.2.6., to read:

2.2.6 Participate in Continuous Quality Improvement Projects and collaborative efforts to serve
families within designated catchment areas. The Contractor shall:

2.2.6.1. Ensure staff are available to provide relevant data as well as key data and metrics.
as requested by the Department.

2.2.6.2. Ensure staff are available to review data, discuss performance, learn from their
peers, and Identify action-steps that may improve client outcomes.

HpCommunity Actfon Partnership of Strafford County Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

6. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Subsection 3.5 to read:

3.5. Reserved.

7. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Subsection 3.6, to read

3.6. Reserved.

8. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4 Reporting and Deliverable Requirements, by adding
Subsection 4.8., to read:

4.8 The Contractor shall participate in sub-recipient monitoring activities, as coordinated by the
Department. The Contractor shall:

4.8.1 Provide fiscal documentation demonstrating that MIECHV funding Is utilized
solely to support activities under this contract, as requested by the Department.

4.8.2 Ensure expenses are reasonable, allowable and allocable per 45 CFR 75.

4.8.3. Provide documentation of funding utilization and reasonable expenses to the
Department upon request.

9. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5 Work Plan, Subsection 5.2. to read:

5.2. The Contractor shall submit a Work Plan, utilizing a template as provided by the
Department, that includes, but Is not limited to:

5.2.1. Activities.

5.2.2. Performance Measures (Outcomes).

5.2.3. Action Plan for Improvement.

10. Modify Exhibit A-2 Work Plan Template by deleting It In Its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit A-
2 Performance Measures, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2.
Subsection 2.3 to read:

2.3 General Funds from Parental Assistance Funds

12. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment Section 3. to
read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for allowable costs only In
accordance with Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-9 Budget - Amendment #2.

13. Modify Exhibit B-3 Budget by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit B-3 -
Amendment #2. which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

14. Add Exhibit B-5 Budget - Amendment #2.

15. Add Exhibit B-6 Budget - Amendment #2.

16. Add Exhibit 8-7 Budget - Amendment #2.

17. Add Exhibit B-8 Budget - Amendment #2.

18. Add Exhibit B-9 Budget - Amendment #2.

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Amendment U2 Contractor Initials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

Date

'^\\'b\w _
Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

I  I Name: r^ .• Ar^^ArViA).Name:
Trtle:

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Amendment #2

SS-2019-DPHS.05-HOMEV-07-A02 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/24/2a

Date Name:
Catherine Pines, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Amendment #2

SS-201S-DPHS-05-HOMEV-07-A02 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sendees
Home Visiting Services

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

1. Performance Measures

1.1. For all measures, consider services provided during State Fiscal year 2021 (July
1, 2020- June 30, 2021) in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services of this
Contract.

Performance Measure #1 fEFPS) '

HFA Best Practice Standard 7-4.D

Measure: 80% of women enrolled in the program received at least one Edinburgh Postnatal
Depression Scale screening by 3 months postpartum.

Goal: All post-partum women enrolled In HFA will receive this formal, validated screening for
depression at the optimal time.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of women that received an
Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale (EPOS) screening by 3 months postpartum.

Denominator-The total number of women in the program who reached 3 months post
partum during the reporting period and were enrolled prior to 3 months after the birth of
their baby.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-> View Reports (New)-^ Quarterly Reports HFA EPDS 3 months rev
[7/10/2019] Index child only

Performance Measure U1 (Retention^

HFA Best Practice Standard 3-4.A

Measure: Increase the percent of families who remain enrolled in HFA for at least 6 months
from FFY 2019 average (10/1/2018-9/30/2019) baseline.

Goal: Families stay connected and maintain involvement with HFA services.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of families that remained in HFA
services at least 6 months.

Denominator- The number of families who received a first home visit during the period
10/1/2019-9/30/2020:

Quarter 1 lO/i/2019- 12/31/2019
Quarter 2 1/1/2020-3/31/2020
Quarter 3 4/1/2020 - 6/30/2020
Quarter 4 7/1/2020-9/30/2020.

Data Source: ETO: Reports View Reports (New) Quarterly Reports -> HFA Retention
Summary (Current) (Baseline is determined by performance in the prior fiscal year.)

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

2^

Performance Measure #3

HFA Best Practice Standard 6-6.B

Measure; 90% of target children with a positive screen for developmental delays (scoring
below the "cutoff on the ASQ-3) receive services in a timely manner. Children
already receiving developmental services should not be screened.

Goal; All children served who are determined to be at risk for developmental delays, and are
not already receiving developmental services, will receive a referral for further evaluation
or services. (If a family declines a referral this should be documented in the family's file
and the Family Support Specialist shall continue efforts to advocate for accessing
developmental services.)

Definition: Numerator: Number of children enrolled in home visiting who a) received

individualized developmental support from a home visitor; b) were referred to early
intervention services and received an evaluation within 45 days; OR c) were referred to
other community services who received services within 30 days (and met the conditions
specified in the denominator.)

Denominator; Total number of children enrolled in HFA with positive screens (scoring
below the cutoff) for developmental delays, measured using the ASQ-3.

Data Source; ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (New)-^ Quarterly Reports-^ HFA Child Development
Screenings (Current)

Performance Measure #4

HFA Standard 12-1.B

Measure; All direct service staff receive a minimum of 75% of required weekly individual

supervision according to the HFA Standards.

Goal; Service providers receive ongoing, effective supervision so they are able to develop realistic and
effective plans to empower families.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of direct service staff who received

V  75% of required weekly individual supervision for a minimum of 1.5 hours for full-time
(.75 to 1.0 FTE) and 1 hour for part-time staff (from .25 - .75 FTE).

Denominator- The number of direct service staff/home visitors employed in the HFA
Program during quarter.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (New)^ Quarterly Reports-^ Staff Supervision Rev [6-
22-2018]

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendor Initials
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Exhibit BO Budget - AJMndmenl ft

Ntw Hantpshlr* Oeptrtmgnt o( Headh and Human Sarvlces
CentrMtar lUtiM Cenunurnty Action Pannenhip ot Slraflotd County

Budget RtgiMtt ler Home Vltlting (HFA); SS-2O1>4)PHS-e$-HO»EV.«7-A0}

Budget Ptfiod: 2021 (Ocistier 1, 2020 - June 20. 2021|-Fedcr*l Fundi

.Contractor Shara /.Match:.; 'XyFundad.tiy DHttS contract aharo-

Uria tuim.-

■Total Program Coat,
. Olroct' flndlroct..- t.Toul x'\--..%-Dir#ctv - Indifdct -.ToiaU f >^w.Oiroct<i.-<<.u'--<v.r-<'lndlrect -.n .• . rlOtals..,*;.

1, Total Satary/Wages M9.&5a.00 149.558.00 149,558.00 149.558.00
2. Etnptoyeo Beneflla
3

29.912.00 29.912.00 29.912.00 29.912.00
. ConsuSsnta 1.170.00 1.170.00 1,170.00 1.170.00

4. Equipfnent:
Rental
Repair and Maintenance
Ptjfchaae/Oepreciation

5. Supplies:
Educationat 510.00 510.00 510.00 510.00

Lab
Pharmacy

Office 1.800.00 1.600.00 1.800.00 1.600.00
6. Travel 8.060.00 8.060.00 6.060.00 8.060.00
7. Occupancy 4,000.00 4.000.00 4,000.00 4.000-00
6. Ctarent Expenses

Teiepttooe 6.000.00 6.000.00 6.000.00 6.000.00
Postafle
S

125.00 125.00 125.00 125-00

Uiaqiptiona 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00
Audit and Legal 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00

150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00

Board Expensea
9. Softvrare
10. Marketing/Communications 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00

II. SlaK Edtxatioo and Training 1.500.00 1.500.00 1,500.00 t.SOO.OO
12. Sutocontracta/Aflreements
13. Other (S|)edfic details maixi^iiory):
Indirecl (16.9%> 34.668.00 34,666.00 34.668.00 34.668.00

TOTAL 205,255.00 34,686.00 239,943.00 205,255.00 34.668.00 239,943.00
Indirect As A Percent e( Dinci 1«.9«

Ccmcnwiiiy Action Pertnership ot Sirafloid County
SS-?Ot9-OPHS.05-HOMeV4}7-A02
EsNM B-3 Budget • Amendment *2
Page I el t

Centraeier Iniliel:

U3.M



Exhlbli .Amendmtot <2

New Hampshire Department of Health artO Human Services
Contnctor rxim Community A<tion Pannenhip of Smnerd County

Budget Rtguest for; Home Vithine (KFA): S$.201S.O(>HS-0S4fOUEV-07-A02

Budget Period; SPY 2021 (July 1, 2020-June 30, 2031)-General Funds

Line Item

1 ■ Total SalaryfWapes
2. Employee Bertefils
3. Consuliants

4. Equipment:

Rental

- - Total Program Cost
Direct. .Indirect.' .Toul-

38.400.00

7.280.00
36,400.00

7,280.00

: ContractorShare / Mate

Direct. ...-si. t. . Indirect-.- WTotali

i-^'., f- Funded by OHHS.contract tare

-Directt ir,.esTlndirect-.>^
36.400.00

7.280.00

irTotal

36.400.00

7.280.00

Repair and Mainlenance

Purchase/Oepreciailon
5." Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy
Medical

Office

100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

1,714.00 1,714.00 1.714.00 1.714.00
6. Travel 1,100.00 1.100.00 1.100.00 1,100.00
7. Occupartcy

8. Current Expenses
1.500.00 1.500.00 1,500.00 1.500.00

Telephone 1.080.00 1.080.00 1,080.00 1,080.00
Postaqe

Sutiscriptions

Audil and Legal
Insurance
Board Expenses

75.00 75.00 75.00

9. Software

10. Marfcetng/Communlcations 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00
11. Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Aoreemenis
13. Other (specilic details maixlaioiy):

2,500.00 2.500.00 2,500.00 2.500.00

Indirecl (16.9%) 8,754.00 8.754.00 8.754.00 8.754.00

TOTAL 51,799.00 8,754.00 60,553.00 51,799.00 8,754.00 60,553.00
Indirecl As A Percent of Direct

Cenunurwy Action Pennership d SireflsrO County

SS-2019-DPHS-OS-HOMEV47-A02

EjihiW BSBudget-Amendment S2
Pege t of I

ConlrocJor Iratiels.

Date



Exhibit B-< B«/d9«i • Anwndmtnt *2

Nbw Hampihira Departmant ol Htaiih and Human Sarvicas
Centnctor ntm« Community Action Partnonhip ol Stnflerd County

Butfaot RoqtMSI lor Hoiim Vlcitir^ (HFA); S»^tS.OPHS^-MOMEV4r^7

eud«ot Period; 2022 (July t. M2t - Juno M. 2022)-Foaor>l Funds

'Contractor, Shara / ̂atchi<
Utia Ram

■ Total Proflfim Coaf;
Oiract Indlract' <- .Totalv -^r.. ->Diract'> a: Indiracti/s^.v <ATota( <

-••.vci,-n;i,v%iP"ndadiby DHHS. contract Bhara;;

-•«A«Dlract'5r--,wr'..->««^lndifaet -TotaU-.;.

1, Totat Sotary/Wages 1U.4S9.00 tS3.4S9.00 I53.4&9.00 $ 153,459.00
2. Etnploy^ Banatita 3S.36S.00 36,365.00 38.365.00 38.365.00
3. Consuiiania 1.170.00 1.170.00 1.170.00 1.170.00

4. Ettuipment:

Rental

Repaif and Maintenance

Purchase/Oepretiation
5. Supp6e»:

Educalicnal 510.00 510.00 510.00 510.00

Lab

Pharmacy
Medical

Otnce 2.O87.O0 2.0S7.00 2.087.00 2.067.00

6. Travel 8,060.00 6.060.00 8.06000 6.060.00
7. Occupancy 4.000.00 4.000.00 4.000.00 4.000.00

6. Current Expenses

Telephone 6.000.00 6.000.00 6.000 00 6.000.00

Postage
S

150.00 ISO.OO 150.00 150.00

ubscriptions 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00

Audit artd Legal 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00

Insurance 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00

Board Expenses
SoRwara

10. Marltelino/Comrminicaliorts 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00

11. Staff £ducatlon and Trafewg 3.500.00 3.500.00 3.500.00 3.500.00

12. Suttcontracis/Agreemenls
13. Other <siH.iolic ueiads maiKlaiory}:

Indrect <16.9%) 37.166.00 37.166 00 37.166.00 37.166.00

TOTAL 219.921.00 37,166.00 257.067.00 219.921.00 37.166.00 257,087.00

Irtdlreet As A Ptresm ol Oirtci 16.9%

ComoMniiy AeBdn Partnership el Snflare County
S$-201 »-OPHS4>6-HOMEva7,A02

Eidiitd 64 Budeet • Amendmeni *2
Page 1 ol I

Ceraraeter Initials

IIIH



Eihlbn B-7 Oud0«l • ArMndnwnl It

N>w Hampshlr* Dtpatiment of Httfth and Human Sarvicaa
CeMractof nanw Community Action Ponnorvhtp of Slrafford County

Budgnt lor Horn* Visiting (Hf A): SS-»1$-OPHS-OS-HOWEV47^I

Budgol Period: SPY M7I (July 1. 2071-Juno 30. 2022)-C«wnl Funds

.Contractor. Shara/.Match v,,". fifc.v-Fundod by.OHH^ contract
Una rtam-

.. . Total Program Coat.

DIract- Indlract' .-Toul.- .? DIract V Indlract aotal/ \Dlracts--;- V ■•>>-.v-.lndlract<
Total SalarylWagea 37.128.00 37.128.00 37.128.00 37.128.00

2. Employaa Banafds 9,282.00 g.282.00 9.282.00 9.282.00
3. Consullants
4. Equipment:

Rental

Repair end Matnienance
Pureftase/Depceciailon

5. Suppiea:
Educational 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Lab

Pharmacy
Medical
Office 134.00 134.00 134.00 134.00

6. Trovd 1.100.00 1.100.00 1.100.00 1.100.00
7. Occupancy 1.900.00 1,500.00 1.500.00 1.500.00
8. Currenl Expensea

Telephone 1.080.00 1,080.00 1.080.00 1.080.00
Poatage
Subscriptloos
Audit end Legal
InsurafKe 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00

Board Expenses
9. Sofiware
10. MarfceHnQ/Communicalions
11. Staff Education and Training 1.400.00 1.400.00 1.400.00 1.400.00
12. Subconiracls/AgreefTtenls
13. Other(si>eciltc(tt>taiisinaiKiaiory):
Indirect (16.9%) 8.754.00 8.754.00 8,754.00 8.754.00

TOTAL 51,799.00 8.754.00 60.553.00 51.799.00 8,754.00 60,553.00
btdiraet As A Ptresnt of Oitaci 16.9%

Communrty Aclien PannmsHp af Snflert) County
SS-20I9-OPHS-05-HOMEV4)7.AO}
EsXsbd a-? Budgsl • smsndtneM n
Psgs I of 1
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Enhibtl B-t Bwdgal • Amendnwnl tl

Ntw Kimpthir* 0«partm*m of Htalth and Human Sarvlcn
Contnctsr n*m« Cemmumty A«Uon Partncnhip ot Smflord County

Roquni tor. Homo VltUlno (HFA): SS.M194)PHS-M4tOUEV4rwk02

BudffOt PorioO; (Juty I. MIt-Soplombof 30. 2012)^o0or«l Fundt

Lina Itam.

.Total Program Coal

.DIract , .... .Indliact •Total-. • Dlroct.r

Contraclor.Shara / Match w*

fUK' T.lndlrect.:-. ■ 1.-. .Toul.

■ Fundad,by,DHHS contract ahara.

t Directly n-iirKtiract-c- .Total

Total SalaryAiVages 38,670.00 38.670.00 38.670.00 $ 38.670.00

2. Empioyaa Baoafiia 0.475.00 9.475.00 9.475.00 9.475.00

3. ConsuBatas 260.00 260.00 260.00 260.00

Equipmenl:
Rental

Repair and Maintenance
Purchaae/Oeprectatlon

5. Supplies:
Educational 100.00 100.00

tab

Pharmacy

Medical

Offlce 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00

6. Travel 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00

Occupancy 1.000.00 1.000.00 1.000.00 1,000.00

8. Currenl Expenaes

Telephone
Postage
S

1.505.00

40.00

t.505.00 1.505.00

40.00 40.00

1.505.00

40.00

ubscfiptiortt
Audit and Legal

Insurance

500.00

65.00

40.00

500.00 500.00

65.00

40.00 40 00

500.00

40.00

Ooard Expenses

9. Software

10. Maritetlno/Commutacalions
11. Staff Education and Traiiwg

12. Subcooifacls/Aoreefitenls

50.00

875.00

50.00 50.00

875.00 875.00

50.00

875.00

13. Other (specilic ueiails maiKiaioiy):

indirect (16.9%)

TOTAL

9.292.00 9.292.00 9.292.00

54,980.00 9.292.00 84.272.00 54.980.00 9.292.00

9.292-00

64,272.00

Indirael A* A P«ft*ni o( Diraet IS.9«

CorrununityAetian Parmerenipol Siranera Cnunty
$$-»l»-OPHS4)5-HOHEV-07-AO}

E;tniM B-8 BuOg*! • Anwndmam f2
Pigi 1 of 1
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EiMM Bvd9«l • AfTwndnwm *7

N*w Htmpshir* Oeptrunent of Htaltb and Human StrvicM
CetHnetO' ntm* CammwUty Aeiioa P«ftn«nl\tp ol Stratford County

eud««l RomtMt for Horn* Vlahing (HFA}: SS-MIS-OPHS-eS-HOMEV-Or-AOl

Budgal P«rtod; SFY 7021 (July 1. 1022>Stpl»mb«t M. TOll'GafMnI Funds

• ToU> Program dost; Contraclor.Shara Fundad;by:OHHS contract ahara

Unoitem' .Diroct.^-;- .^Indiract'>- ,-Toui^-

Aatchrr-

.Indirect.: t-.v -Tolafr«'w'j"t

r's-X-.

aOir*ctr^*;yi>.,.^v^.^lndlrMt -iToUl .V

1. Total Salaty/Wages 9,469.00 9.469.00 9.469.00 9,469.00

2. Employoa Benefits 2,309.00 2.309.00 2.309.00 2.309.00
3. ConsuRanis

4. Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Mrtnlenance

Purcttase/Oeprecialion
5. Supplies:

Educaiiortal 25.00 25.00 25.00 26.00

Lab

Pharmacy
Medical

Office 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00

6. Travel 250.00 250.00 250.00

7. Occupancy 375.00 375.00 375.00

6. Currerd Expenses
Tlephone 270.00 270.00 270.00 270.00

Po«aae

SubScripUons
Audil ar>d Legal
Insurance 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00

Board Expenses
9. Software

10. Marfcetina/Communications

11. Staff Education and TraWfifl 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00

12. SubcontraclsfAoreements
13. Other (spvolic ttuiails itiaiKl3i<jiy):

indirect (16.9H) 2.185.00 2.185.00 2.185.00 2.185.00

TOTAL 12.953.00 2.185.00 15.138.00 12,953.00 2,185.00 15,138.00

IndbMt A* A P«re«nl d Direct 16.9%

Community Action PtrmctiNp ol SVaflord County

SS-201S-DPHS-OS-HOMEV4>7-Aa2

Eiiiibll B.9 Budget • Amcndmoni t2
Pago 1 of I

Coniraeter Initiah'
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. WiMiam M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New
Hampshire on May 25, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been
received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 65583

Certificate Number: 0004881688

as

TH

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Alan Brown . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 18 , 2019_. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _8etsey Andrews Parker. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County to enter into contracts or
agreements with the Stale.

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts witjj^he State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Signature of Sleeted Officer
Name:Alan Brown

Title:Vice Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMrOOTYYVY)

08/05/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
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To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

IfslDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements u- #
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of Deceniber 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responslbilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standerds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Partnership of Stratford County as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming.an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June
24, 2020, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

June 24, 2020
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORP COUNTY

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable.

Contributions receivable

Tax credits receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Security deposits
Property, net of accumulated depreciation
Other noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2019

$  1,068,744

1,525,775

68,100

19,510
12,570

2.694,699

5,350

4,815,150
27,500

4,848,000

2018

749,630

1,106,724
63.800

250,000

13,420
58,266

2.241.840

5,350

3.827,963
27,500

3,860,813

$  7,542,699 $ 6.102.653

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demand note payable
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences

Refundable advances

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

105,432
455,276

193,430
84,272

491.025
4,955

1.334.390

2.566,846

3,901,236

3,330.373
311,090

3.641,463

165,432

408,959

161,566

94,084

415,335
79,421

1,324,797

2.814,690

4.139,487

1.307.042
656.124

1.963,166

$  7,542,699 $ 6.102,653

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHtP OF STRAFFOF^D COUNTY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest
Fundraising

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Without Donor

Restrictions

8.385.228

2,026.319
9,385

492,204

699.583
335

25.334

11,638.388

585.065

With Donor

Restrictions

240.031

240.031

(585,065)

Total

$  8.385,228

2,026,319
9,385

732,235

699,583

335

25.334

11.878.419

Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions 12,223.453 (345,034) 11.878.419

EXPENSES

Program services
Child services

Community services

Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization
Workforce development

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE NONCASH

CONTRIBUTION

NONCASH CONTRIBUTION

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

4.467.961
1.084.934

2,382.868

310.583

1.894.803
134.487

10.275,636

834.730
93,752

11,204,118

1,019.335

1.003.996

2.023,331

1.307,042

(345.034)

(345,034)

656.124

4.467,961
1.084,934

2,382.868

310,583
1,894.803
134.487

10.275.636

834,730
93.752

11.204.118

674.301

1.003,996

1,678,297

1,963,166

$  3.330.373 $ 311-.090 $ 3.641.463

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest
Fundralsing

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Without Donor

Restrictions

7,846,142

1,773,136

25,109

189,972

645.330

2,582
34,146

10,516,417

8.466

With Donor

Restrictions

228,410

228,410

(8.466)

Total

7,846,142

1,773,136

25,109

418,382

645,330

2,582
34,146

10,744,827

Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services

Child services

Community services

Energy assistance

Housing
Weatherization
Workforce development

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundralsing

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

10.524,883

3,890,640
861,420

2,746.649

514,700

1,610,027
135,528

9,758,964

956,693

70.343

10,786,000

(261,117)

1,568,159

219,944

219.944

436,180

10,744,827

3,890,640

861,420

2,746,649

514,700

1,610,027
135,528

9,758,964

956,693

70,343

10,786,000

(41.173)

2,004,339

$  1,307,042 $ 656,124 $ 1,963,166

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2019

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Donated property and equipment

Property and equipment financed by long term debt

See Notes to Financial Statements

$  1,003.996 $

2018

$  1,678,297 $ (41,173)

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 175,101 115,671

Donated property and equipment (1,003,996) -

Decrease (increase) in assets:

Accounts receivable (419,051) (12,263)

Contributions receivable (4,300) 52,000

Tax credits receivable 250,000 (78,000)

Inventory (6.090) (1,888)

Prepaid expenses 45,696 (48,657)

Other noncurrent assets - (15,000)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable 46,317 191,377

Accrued payroll and related taxes 31,864 24,118

Accrued compensated absences (9.812) (6,881)

Refundable advances 75,690 23,959

Other current liabilities (74,466) 58,632

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 785,250 261,895

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment (158,292) (80,315)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (158,292) (80,315)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Return of deposit on building - 200.000'
Cash paid for debt issuance costs - (53,184)

Payments made on long-term debt (247,844) -

Net borrowings on demand note payable (60,000) 60,055

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (307,844) 206,871

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 319,114 388,451

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 749,630 361,179

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  1,068,744 $ 749,630

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest $  160,999 $ 40,830

$  2.867.874



Intermediate Management

Workforce Total Program (Aliocation) and

tion Development Services Pools General Fundraisina Total

99 $  78,252 $  3,072,050 $  106,649 $ 441,704 $  ■ 36,580 $ 3,656,983

74 5.911 229,667 8,416 48,879 2,813 289,775

36 9,765 279,645 7,497 22,254 4,853 314,249

31 1,499 3,858,562 . - 3,858,562

00 . 695,644 • - 3,939 699,583

10 819 308,036 17,231 93,118 4,995 423,380

23 1,607 501,634 25,407 30.977 1,768 559,786

39 24,103 548,781 {439,922} 28,681 1,649 139,189

59 1,478 58,642 132,983 12,568 134 204,327

72 5,753 149,238 (12,262) 17,018 517 154,511

59 1,128 111,988 11,349 15,137 207 138,681

22 195 133,297 5,029 21,668 2,385 ■ 162,379

07 2,320 105,145 - 69,956 - 175,101

52 1,158 116,547 (23,504) 10,948 148 104,139

40 118 32,031 76 3,336 18,958 54,401

77 192 16,762 267 11,129 252 28,410

29 189 36,550 10,224 4,190 - 50.964

39 . 10,439 150,560 2,156 - 163:155

_ 945 - 945

_ 2,969 _ - - 2,969
- 8,009 - 66 14,554 22,629

03 $  134,487 $ 10.275,636 $ $ 834,730 $. 93,752 $ 11.204,118



Intermediate Management

Workforce Total Program (Allocation) And

ation Develooment Services Pools General Fundraisina Total

728 $  70,677 $  2,790,212 $  126,143 $ 518,114 $ 27,189 $ 3,461,658

909 6,251 239,281 9,926 41,023 2,119 292,349

943 8,774 244,440 11,689 32,291 3,107 291,527

818 10,302 4,067,975 _ 4,067,975

- - 638,320 2,345 • 4,665 645,330

774 719 382,682 18,196 67,945 228 469,051

061 3,153 275,608 34,905 14,984 1,412 326,909

392 25,418 455,160 (384,847) 57,802 2,159 130,274

27 1,210 18,050 118,877 24,103 7,575 168,605

762 3,735 132,169 (3,880) 18,286 439 147,014

899 1,203 112,376 14,743 12,239 190 139,548

750 - 85,649 327 44,322 1,299 131.597

. 2,320 94,150 - 21,521 - 115,671

339 1,339 107,678 (12,541) 11,221 978 107.336

297 150 12,172 52 4,210 5,060 21,494

218 179 16,099 307 5,290 31 21,727

030 98 73.591 63,582 - 1,314 138,487

080 _ 6,043 - 35,506 - 41,549
_ _ - 44,219 - 44,219

- 7,309 176 3,617 12,578 23,680

027 $  135,528 $  9,758,964 $ $ 956,693 $ 70,343 $ 10,786,000



PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the'provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be,without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and professionalism.

In addition to its administrative office located in Dover, the Agency maintains its
outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington, Milton, Rochester,
Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal, state, county and
local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities, foundation and
charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business donations, and
donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite board of
directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit and non
profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is responsible
for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the causes and
conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and community
outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The Agency
administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000 people
annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
of the United States.



Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958-210, Financial Statements of Not-For-
Profit Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958-210, the Agency is required to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
following net asset classifications:

I

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases In net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statement of activities.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Agency had net assets without donor and
with donor restrictions.

Refundable Advarices

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and
recognized as revenue in the period in which the related sen/ices are performed
or expenditures are incurred.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized
as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Accounting Standard Codification No. 825. "Financial instruments." requires the
Agency to disclose estimated fair value for its financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of cash, accounts receivable, inventory, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Inventory

Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed
value, using the flrst-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or. if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows;

Buildings and improvements 15-40 years
Furniture, equipment and machinery 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 - 7 years

Depreciation expense aggregated $175,101 and $115,671 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liability of $84,272 and $94,084 at December 31.
2019 and 2018. respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

Income Taxes

The Agency Is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740. "Accounting for Income Taxes",
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency's tax position taken on its information returns for the years
2016 through 2019 and has concluded that no additional provision for income
taxes is necessary in the Agency's financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

11



Revenue Recognition Policy

The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
support and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of these
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Agency expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
services. Cost incurred to obtain a contract will be expensed as Incurred when
the amortization period is less than a year.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Advertising Expenses

The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $12,558
and $22,000, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
amounted to $2,156 and $719, respectively and have been included with interest
expense in the statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
financing costs have been included as a reduction of the long term debt (See
Note 9).

In-kind Donations

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental
space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in
the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation
was determined to be $177,259 and $255,313 for the years ended December 31.
2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of
these services was determined to be $33,857 and $150,442 for the years ended
December 31. 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $397,292
and $91,175, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2019. For the year
ended December 31, 2018, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $181,461 and $58,114, respectively.
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Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line item. Such allocations have
been determined by management on an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expense

Salaries and benefits

Occupancy

Depreciation

All other expenses

IVIethod of allocation

Time and effort

Square footage/revenues

Square footage

Approved indirect rate

NOTE 2. PROPERTY

NOTE 3.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, property consisted of the following:

2019 2018

Land, buildings and improvements $5,039,871 $3,993,017

Furniture, equipment and machinery 600,526 562,450

Vehicles 327.137 249.779

— Total 5,967,534 4,805.246

Less accumulated depreciation 1.152.384 977.283

Net property J 3.827.963

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Agency's financial assets as of December 31, 2019
and 2018:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:
Cash $ 1,068,744 ■  $ 749,630

Accounts receivable 1,525,775 1,106,724

Contributions receivable 68,100 63,800

Tax credits receivable - 250.000

Total financial assets 2,662,619 2.170,154

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Board designated funds 307.315 307.315

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 2 355.304 S 1 862.839
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The Agency's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts.

NOTE 4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are w/ritten off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December 31,
2019 and 2018. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

NOTE 5. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by
donors but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
contributions receivable has been recorded. Total unconditional promises to give
were as follows at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Within one year
In two to five years

$  38.057 $ 28,300
30.043 35.500

S  68.100 8 63.800

NOTE 6. TAX CREDIT PROGRAM
The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority's Tax Credit
Program allows New Hampshire businesses to contribute to not-for-profit
community, housing and economic development projects and receive a 75%
New Hampshire state tax credit that can be applied against New Hampshire
business profits, business enterprise and insurance premium taxes. Through this
Tax Credit Program, the Agency did not recognize any revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2019. For the year ended December 31. 2018, the Agency
recognized contribution revenue of $78,000. The total cumulative contribution
revenue raised to date is $250,000 as of December 31, 2019. At December 31,
2019, the Agency had no tax credits receivable. At December 31, 2018, the
Agency had tax credits receivable of $250,000.

NOTE 7. PLEDGED ASSETS

As described in Note 8. all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Note 9, the
building of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency's mortgage note
payable agreement.
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NOTE 8. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$250,000. The note is payable upon demand, but in the absence of demand, is
due in September 2020. Interest is stated at the prime rate plus 1% which
resulted in an interest rate of 5.75% and 6.50% at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The note is collateralized by all the assets of the Agency.

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at December 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

4.90% mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings
Bank with interest only payments for 36 months
followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months for the first ten years. In 2028
principal and interest payments will adjust to
1.50% above the highest five-year Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston. The mortgage note payable
is collateralized by the building and leases and
rents of 577 Central Ave.

5.00% mortgage payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund of interest only payments
for 36 months followed by principal and interest
payments for 264 months. The mortgage note
payable is collateralized by the building and leases
and rents of 577 Centra! Ave.

2019 2018

$2,143,096 $2,347,874

474.778 520.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing cost

2,617,874
(51.028)

2.867.874
(53.184)

Total long term debt

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

$
18,343
75,657

79.448
83,430

2.360.996

Total $2.617.874

15



NOTE 10. NET ASSETS

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of
the following:

2019 2018

Summer Meals $  11,914 $  51,621

Building Campaign 27,891 488,385

Security deposits 51,584 32,145

Whole Family 163.738 -

Revolving loan fund - 52,736

Fuel assistance 33,995 23,566

Weatherization 3,434 7,671

Coordinated entry 8,147 -

Holiday baskets 3,985 -

Food pantry 2,521 -

Special events 3.881

Total £  311.090 $  656.124

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, net assets without donor restrictions consisted
of the following:

2019 2018

Undesignated $ 3,023,058 $ 999,727
Board designated 307.315 307.315,

Total net assets without donor restrictions $ 3.330.373

NOTE 11. LEASE COIVUVHTMENTS

Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various leases. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, the annual lease/rent expense for the leased facilities was $111,043 and
$117,534, respectively. Certain equipment is leased by the Agency under the
terms of various leases.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2020 $ 64,073
2021 19.633
2022 15,697

2023 1

2024 1

Total S 99.405
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NOTE 12. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantially
all employees. Employee contributions to the Plan are made at predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, the Agency provides a matching
contribution equal to 25% of the employee's contribution up to 5% of the
employee's compensation. Effective April 1, 2016, the Agency Instituted an auto
enrollment feature mandating a minimum 1% employee contribution; however,
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enrollment. Employer matching
contributions for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled $28,408
and $21,727, respectively.

note 13. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Agency receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, approximately
81% and 90%, respectively, of the Agency's total revenue was received from
federal and state governments. If a significant reduction in the level of support
were to occur, it would have a significant effect on the Agency's programs and
activities.

NOTE 14. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balances In excess of $250,000.

NOTE 15. CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of Decerhber 31, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 16. NONCASH CONTRIBUTION

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Agency received land and
property as a contribution. The contribution has been recorded at the fair value of
the land and property, totaling $1,003,996. Additionally, the Agency received
$130,000 from the contributor, resulting in a total contribution of $1,133,996.
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NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Agency's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Agency's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and. in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it
more challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Agency,
particularly over the near to medium term.

The Agency has remained proactive with its current funding sources, as well as
programs being made available during the COVID-19 pandemic. Prior to
issuance of the audit report, the Agency was able to secure a loan from the
Payroll Protection Program (PPP) offered under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act. The Agency received loan proceeds in the
amount of $97,500. The PPP may be up to 100% forgivable if the funds are used
for certain expenses as specified by the program.

If the Agency does not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP
loan is payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of
payments for the first six months. The Agency intends to use the proceeds for
purposes consistent with the PPP. While the Agency currently believes that its
use of the loan proceeds will meet the conditions for forgiveness of the loan, we
cannot assure you that the Agency will be eligible for forgiveness of the loan, in
whole or in part.

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 24.
2020, the date the December 31, 2019 financial statements were available for
issuance.
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rS NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

:3tion 4300-ZZZ $  117,993

:ation

nation

4300-ZZZ

At-RisH After School Care Centers

94,466
94.387 168,855

ershtp None 397.292

$  704.140

1h and Human Services

th and Human Services

irvices

Dover Housing Authority

City of Dover
City of Rochester

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731

Community Partners

27.802
51,356

$  30,662

79,158

55.255

52,224
434

$  217,733

2016-0003

2016-0003

28,290
28.612 56.902

56.902

f Energy & Community Services 01 -02-02-024010-7706-074-500587 164.711

$  164,711

irvj Adult services

th and Human Services,

010-048-7872-512-0352

05-95-48-48010-78720000-512-500352

2,720

19,394 $ 22.114

th and Human Services. DPH,

' Children, Youth and Families

' Children, Youth and Families

f Energy & Planning
f Energy & Planning

Children, Youth and Families

Children, Youth and Families

05-95-90-902010-5896

05-095-042-421010-29730000-102-500734-42107306

OS-09S-04$.450010-61460000-S02-50089M2106603

13-DHHS-BWW-CSP-05

01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

05-95-045-450010-714800000-102-500731

01CH996002 & 01HP000702

05-095-042-421010-29680000-102-500734-42106802

05-095-042-421010-29660000-102-500734-42106603

162,321
94.698

2.234.148
180,189

184.436

9,557

257.019

2,414,335

357,287

3,752,019

624

35.836

$ 7.033,227

$ 8.176,713

$ 1,609.636



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Agency.

v..

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4. FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported
commodities received and disbursed.

in the Schedule at the fair value of the

NOTE 5. SUBRECIPIENTS

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County had no subrecipients for the
year ended December 31, 2019.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNFRSHIP OF STRAFFORH COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmenf
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2019
and 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, and

related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June
24, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its corhpliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Stendards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

tu

June 24, 2020
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY AnTinN PARTNERSHIP OF

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County s compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2019. Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' ResponsibiUtv ■ a »■
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of Stratford County complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance -
Management of Community Action Partnership of Stratford County is responsible for
establishing and nhaintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Partnership of Strafford County s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
f0(jeral program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in interna
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internahcontrol over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intern^
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

June 24, 2020
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County were prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are
reported.

3. No instances of noncompiiance material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

/

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Intema! Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported.

5 The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Conimunity
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516(a) are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major were: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program, CFDA 93.568, and U.S. Department of
Agriculture. Child Nutrition Cluster, CFDA, 10.555 (Natior^l School
and CFDA, 10.559 (Summer Food Service Program for Children). NON-FEDERAL.
Eversource Energy Service Company, Home Energy Assistance Program.

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

B. FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
' AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNFRSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2019

A. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

2018-001 General Ledger Close and Adjusting Journal Entries

Condition: A significant quantity of adjusting journal entries were provided by the
Organization during the audit. Significant adjusting entries related to the following
areas: cash, accrued payroll, pledges receivable and property. The adjusting entries
were provided by management, ̂nd in certain cases, Identified by the auditor.

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure all required month and
year end journal entries are being recorded in a timely and accurate manner.

Current status: The recommendation was adopted during 2019.

2018-002 Monthly Reconciliations

Condition: Various statement of financial position accounts were not being reconciled to
their subsidiary ledgers on a monthly basis.

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure all monthly
reconciliations are being performed.

Current status: The recommendation was adopted during 2019.
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PAULA GYURCSAN

SUMMAR Y.

M.Ed. in school counseling from Plymouth State University (GPA 4.0), certified
guidance counselor (k-12), four courses in parent education, excellent communication
skills, group & individual counseling, Experience in program management & supervision
of staff of 6. Graduated Cum Laude from UNH (BA in English with minors in French
and Social Work). Basic language skills in French; intermediate Flungarian. Member of
Chi Sigma Iota and Golden Key Honor Society. CPR/First Aid certified. Personal note:
I spent the school year of 2012-13 living in Hungary.

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Program Manager/Supervisor: Healthy Families America & Comprehensive Family
Supports & Services offered through Community Action Partnership of Stratford
County (Sept. 24, 2018 - currently). Supervise 6 staff, monthly reporting, program
outreach, program management, budget management, work collaboratively with area &
state partners, increased program capacity, gaining a new position.
Lead Home Visitor: Comprehensive Family Supports & Services offered through
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (Oct. 2, 2017 - Sept.23, 2018 )
develop goals with families to increase knowledge in areas of parenting education, life
skills, early childhood education, medical resources and communication and mental
health & substance misuse support resources. Processed referrals, biweekly meeting with
DCYF staff, mentor new staff

Home Visitor: Early Head Start offered through Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County (Nov. 17, 2015 - Sept 29, 2017) 1 work with 9 families who have
children ranging in age from 4 months to age three. I do weekly home visits using a
curriculum called "Parents as Teachers." I also run a weekly socialization group for
families to attend. 1 counsel families on nutrition and health initiatives. I work
collaboratively with Early Support Services, the Reach program, DCYF & local health
providers, mentor UNH early childhood education interns, complete fuel assistance
applications.

Para: Strafford Learning Center (Oct. 5, 2015 - Dec. 10, 2015) I worked at the HOPE
Program as a one-on-one with a student with Autism. I worked as part of a team with
one teacher and three other paras. We worked with all the children at different limes. I
used discrete trials to educate.

Guidance Counselor:. Webster Elementary School (March 25 2015 - June 19 2015,
long-term substitute). I provided individual and group counseling, classroom guidance,
and 504 case management three days per week.



Substitute Teacher, Rochester, NH school systems: Jan. 2014 — Sept. 2015; 2009- 2011
Working primarily in elementar>' schools, jobs ranging from covering para-educators as a
one-on-one with autistic and downs children, to covering classroom teachers; worked
with hearing-impaired children, cl^ildren in behavioral programs and in special education.

Parent Aide: Employed tlirough Child & Family Services (Jan. 2015 - May 23, 2015).
Supervised home visits that are court-ordered by DCYF, collaborated with DCYF to
develop family treatment plan.

Homemaker: 2001-2008: Implemented speech exercise programs and behavior plans
for child with developmental delay.

Case Worker, State of NH (DHHS), Rochester, NH (1999-2001)
Worked for the Division of Family Assistance where I managed a large caseload;
intervievved clients and determined eligibility for public assistance including Food
Stamps and Medicaid; processed mail and phone calls from clients; made referrals to
collateral agencies; worked in collaboration with Division of Child Support, Division of
Elderly & Adult Services, and the Division of Youth and Family Services, issued benefit
payments in a timely manner.

English Teacher, Budapest, Hungary: 1998-1999
Gave private, weekly English instruction to middle school students and taught adult
classes.

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE:

Public Health Network Mental Health Work Group: March 2018 - Dec. 2018 (group
dissolved)
Homeless Center for Center for Strafford County: 2015 — 2016.
Answer the phone, complete resident logs and enforce house rules.

St Mary Church, Rochester, NH: 2008-present
Religious education teacher, folk group and volunteering with church programs

EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE:

-Trauma-informed care

- Training in Infant Mental Health
-Training in Reflective Supervision
-Parents as Teachers

-Trainings on the effects of substance misuse & trauma on children
-Training on treating Selective Mutism
-HFA Core Trainings & Implementation Training
-Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH -2010-2014

♦Earned M.Ed., K-12 School Counseling Certification
♦Internship experience at Gilford High School (Aug. 2013 — Dec. 2013



*Iniemship experience at McCielland Elementary School (Aug. 2013 - Dec.
2013) -Consulted with Occupational therapist, physical therapist, other
professionals to develop lEP programs for students.
*Practicum at Dover Middle School

-University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
*B.A. in English, with minors in French and Social Work

REFERENCES: Available upon request



ELENA V. ENGLE, MPA

-'iEpUGATI^'iTV;^ • •
Master of Public Administration December, 2006
Troy University, Troy Alabama: Florida Region

Bachelor of Arts in Sociology December, 2000
University of Central Florida: Orlando, Florida

•  Strong knowledge of the Head Start Performance Standards, Early Learning Outcomes Framework,
Head Start Act, Uniform Guidance, Best Practice Standards for Healthy Families America.
Experience with federal grant writing/grant management.
Demonstrated experience writing successfully state funded proposals.
Experience successfully overseeing multiple agencies through an accreditation; The Council on
Accreditation (COA), Praesidium, Inc., and Healthy Families America (HFA).
Experience developing, analyzing and managing budgets.
Leadership experience in government and non-profit spanning across 16 years.
Former member of Toastmasters International.

Strong computer skills in Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Excel)
Experience utilizing multiple databases for tracking and analyzing client data, financial data in
government, non-profit and the banking field.

v: rv'-v- ■:
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County- Dover, NH September, 2014 - Present
Child and Family Services Director October. 2018 - Present

•  Responsible for the administration and oversight of the Head Start, Home Visiting, Child Care and
Food & Nutrition Programs for the agency.

•  Develops, analyzes, manages program grants, contracts and budgets (approximately $3.4
million/annually).

•  Develops and implements new programming as funding becomes available.
•  Direct supervision of all Program Managers.

Contracts & Data Quality Manager September, 2014-September. 2018

•  Managed grants, contracts, accreditations and data for state and federally funded programs.
•  Oversaw the ongoing monitoring, self-assessments and annual program improvement plans.
•  Developed, analyzed and managed program budgets and non-federal match requirements for Head

Start and state funded Home Visiting programs (approximately $3.8 million/annually).

City of Rochester - Rochester, NH November, 2012 - August, 2014
Community Development Specialist

•  Developed investments for the Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) across
public services, housing, economic development and facilities/infrastructure projects.

•  Monitored and reported on sub-grantee compliance with the U.S. Dept. of HUD regulations.
•  Developed and managed the annual CDBG program budget.



The New York Foundling - New York, NY February, 2008 - June, 2012
Policy Coordinator (Remote Position) Augitst, 20JI - June, 2012

•  Developed policies and procedures based on criteria of oversight agencies/funders and accreditors.
•  Analyzed outcome data reports to drive policy and procedure development.
•  Created an agency resource guide encompassing all agency, city and state child welfare policies,

procedures, resources and applicable forms.

Director of Continuous Quality Improvement February, 2008-August, 2011

•  Oversaw the Continuous Quality Improvement Department and all agency QA/QI Initiatives.
•  Analyzed program outcome data used to identify trends and develop program/system improvements.
•  Coordinated ongoing re-accreditation efforts with the Council on Accreditation and Praesidium, Inc.

Orange County Government - Orlando, FL. July, 2002 - January', 2008
All positions were promotions within the Division of Youth and Family Services
Monitoring and Evaluation Coordinator February, 2007-January, 2008

•  Established internal controls to monitor compliance with contracts, policies and standards.
•  Analyzed program outcomes and outputs using the Balanced Quality Scorecard Report.
•  Coordinated the Division's re-accreditation efforts with the Council on Accreditation.

Residential Youth Care Supervisor August, 2006 - February2007

•  Coordinated all medical care for 84 foster care youth with local medical facilities and Medicaid.
•  Provided oversight of the foster care medication clinics and psycholropic medication management.
•  Trained all staff and monitored staff compliance with Medication Administration

Senior Children's Services Counselor/Supervisor August, 2005 -July, 2006

•  Trained and supervised direct care staff and oversaw care of youth in an 84-bed foster care program.
•  Coordinated with local schools on youth's educational goals and individual plans.
•  Supervised family visitations with foster care youth and family members.

Lead Case Manager July, 2002-JuIy. 2005

•  Completed screenings, needs assessments and service plans for a 30-foster care youth caseload.
•  Coordinated foster care services with the Florida Department of Children & Families, Orange

County Family Court System, the Department of Juvenile Justice and the Orange County Schools.
•  Attended treatment team meetings, educational conferences and court hearings for foster care youth.

Safchouse of Seminole - Sanford, FL November, 2000-0ctober, 2001

Victim and Child Advocate

•  Conducted screenings through the safety hotline for placement of women and children in the shelter.
•  Conducted intake assessments and provided referrals to victims and their children.
•  Facilitated the women's and children's support groups in the shelter.



Deirdre Siede

Professional Summary

Seasoned Home Visitor skilled in providing support, parent education and referral to at risk, low income families
and children. Services provided include promotion of healthy attachment and development, developmental
screenings for children, screenings and referrals for substance issues, depression and domestic violence.

Practiced in intakes and family needs assessments

Parenting skills educator

Ability to maintain accurate client records

Able to manage client crises

Able to participate in multidisciplinary team approach

Abie to work independently and as a member of a team

Aware of legal and ethical standards

Excellent relationship building skills

Extensive experience with low income and homeless populations

Child abuse prevention

Case Management skills

Motivational Interviewing

CPR and First Aid certified

Parents as Teachers curriculum certified

Experience

Healthy Families America Home Visitor 01/2012-current

Community Action Partnership of Strafford Count)', Dover, NH

Healthy Beginnings Home Visitor 03/1999-12/201 1

The HUB Family Resource Center, Dover, NH

Family Support Worker 07/1988-03/1999

Child Health Services, Manchester, NH

Education

Welis College, Aurora, NY

BA Sociology



Elizabeth Hannagan

Work Experience

Elizabeth's Nanny Co-Op
Dover/Rochester

February 2017 to Present

Provide small group early care for not more than 4 children ages 2-6 years.

• Provide out-of-schcol time programming in client homes or at my home.

• Provide light housekeeping or other in-home supports as needed to bolster family and community.
Strafford YMCA - SOP Site-Director; Camp Cocheco Site Director; Coney Pine Camp & Family

Behavior Analyst Tech
Providence Seivice Corporation

August 2013 to Present

Transform, execute and maintain a tailored behavioral, social and functional life skill acquisition plan

for youths diagnosed with autism spectrum disorders (ASD)

• Data collection through physical interaction and observation during skill acquisition and reports back
for progress, analysis and necessary adjustments

• Provides crisis management, positive support behavior, community integration and problem solving
skills to several youths ages 2-18 with ASD

substitute teacher

Sau 61 Regional School District - Farmington, NH

February 2012 to Present

in the classroom and as a 1-1 aid in the elementary and middle schools.

Director

Dover/Rochester

February 2013 to November 2016

Provide out-of-school time programming at partner school site & on-site for school-aged children, dally.

• Supervise.& direct supporting teaching staff in providing care, lesson & activity planning and
implementation, designing programming curriculum, and understanding & implementing behavior
plans

and site plans.

• Acts as liaison between YMCA, staff, students & families, and the larger community.

• Participate in necessary trainings, professional development and coursework to maintain state
certification requirements and comply with site licensing guidelines.

• Extend programming to summer out-of-school time for both state licensed and unlicensed day
camps.



Dondero PEAK Site-Director

Cofnmunity Child Care Center - PoitsmoLith, NH

August 2012 to May 2013

Provide out-of-school time programming at partner school site for 35-40 school-aged children, daily.
14 Main St. East Rochester NH 03868 • (603) 923-0315 • Hannagans4@gmail.com

• Supervise & direct supporting teaching staff in providing care, lesson & activity planning and
implementation, designing programming curriculum, and understanding & implementing behavior
plans

and site plans.

• Acts as liaison between CCCC, staff, students & families, Dondero School site & Portsmouth School
District, and the larger community.

• Participate in necessary trainings, professional development and coursework to maintain state
certification requirements and comply with site licensing guidelines.

Camp Halfmoon Assistant Director
YMCA Allard Center - Goffstown, NH

May 2012 to September 2012

Responsible for the supervision of camp staff including. Unit Leaders, counselors. Quarter Moon
counselors, EMT/Nurse

O Provide coverage for ail assigned staff in their absence, using substitute staff and or current staff
•Responsible for staffing schedules and daily break schedules
• Provided evaluations for assigned staff mid way through camp and at the conclusion of camp.
• Assist Camp Director with conducting proper disciplinary procedures for all assigned staff
• Attend, participate and assist In all pre-camp staff trainings, weekly staff meetings, and Family
Nights

0 Assist with daily opening and closing ceremonies, adhering to YMCA camp norms, standards, singing,

announcements and camper/staff recognition

• Monitor, supervise campers and ensure their safety and security at all times
0 Provide direction and guidance for staff in the day to day logistics involving programming, when time

allows actively participate with campers and staff
• Conduct proper disciplinary procedures for campers, according to YMCA and Camp standards as
needed

• Aid Camp Director in all aspects of record keeping.
• Help to develop creative ways to promote character development.
• Work with campers and staff to keep camp clean and comply with all safety policies

Primary Kindergarten classroom teacher
Prince George's County Schools - Upper Marlboro, MD
August 2010 to August 2011

Worked towards certification requirements by teaching Kindergarten under the Resident Teacher
Certificate.

• Worked with a paraprofessional.

Metropolitan Human Services District - Peer Support Specialist
NOLA



July 2009 to September 2009

Offered a wide-range of peer-to-peer support mechanisms designed to enhance the ability of the
mental

& behavioral health system to respond to & exceed expectations of consumers, by providing &
advocating for effective recovery based services.

• Offered on-site assistance for agency consumers In emergency & non-emergency cases.

• Served as a consumer advocate & provided consumer information to a diverse audience - including
techniques of how to identify & combat negative self-talk and fears.
• Utilized & teach problem solving techniques with individuals and groups.
• Assisted consumers in developing social skills through self-advocacy & the use of Human Experience

Language to combat stigma in order to enhance hiring prospects for these individuals
0 Encouraged consumers to regain control over their own lives & over their own recovery process by
assisting with the articulation of personal goals for recovery St determining the objectives they need to

take in order to reach those recovery goals.

• Informed consumers about community/natural supports & how to utilize these in the recovery
process.

• Role modeled competency in recovery St support ongoing coping skills development by teaching &
modeling effective coping techniques & self-help strategies, combined with self-directed recovery tools

14 Main St. East Rochester NH 03868 • (603) 923-0315 • Hannagans4@gmail.com

& mutually supportive peer mentor relationships.
0 Taught & role modeled the value of every individuals recovery experience by leading & teaching
consumers how to facilitate Recovery Dialogues.

• Assisted non-consumer staff in identifying program environments that are conducive to recovery;
lend

personal & unique Insight into mental Illness, support systems St what makes recovery possible.

Tutor ( NOLA + MD )
Elizabeth Egan Tutoring Services

June 2009 to September 2009

Tutor for 1-6 clients (currently) of various ages, comprehension levels, and with a wide range of diverse

backgrounds, needs, and services provided.

O.P.E.N

January 2009 to June 2009

Created documents to enhance infrastructure of summer cyber camp St CCRA technology assessment.

0 Conducted outreach & partnership assessment at 3 Central City schools & with existing & potential
community partners, organizations, & funders.

0 Coordinated technology assessment of CCRA, made specific suggestions for improvements.
0 Coordinated and posted on-going content updates for the eblast (template creation), CCRA and NPN

Websites.



Mission Coordinator

O.P.E.N

July 2008 to June 2009

Coordinated household associated with Mission

• Coordinated & implemented household improvements, remodeling, & installations
• Managed Whole Foods Market relationship bringing whole, organic food products to low income Bt
transitional peoples.

14 Main St. East Rochester NH 03868 • (603) 923-0315 • Hannagans4@gmail.com

• Managed project & executive administration to move towards possible incorporation as non-profit.

Recruitment Coordinator

City Year New Hampshire - Stratham, NH
August 2007 to July 2008

Provided Direct Support to the Recruitment Manager as co-implementer of the site recruitment plan.
• Created £< supported new capacity building initiatives, such as the "Gap Year Alternatives Fair held
in two locations & coinciding with the National Open House initiative.
• Administered programs to fully leverage the site In contributing towards recruitment goals - "Fill Your

Boots", community-based outreach, & created and implemented training workshops for the corps, etc.

• Participated in the screening, interviewing, & evaluation of candidates for Corps Member positions.

Client Services Coordinator

Sexual Assault Support Services - Portsmouth, NH
October 2006 to July 2007

Provided volunteer coordination & assisted Director of Client Services with all aspects of the Client
Service program.

• Participated in the coordination & provision of agency support groups; developed/reevaluated
trainings - special projects.

Paraoptometric Technician
Dr. Dexter's Vision Center - Keene. NH

March 2005 to October 2006

Assisted Optometrists in patient care: pre-appointment work ups, taking patient histories, performing
Initial tests, up-keep of technical equipment, inventory & product acquisitions, medical record
maintenance, scheduling appointments, dispensing contact lenses, filing, & cleaning/care of all rooms
associated with patient care.

• Managed professional development process & held responsible for knowledge of new products &
Optometric pathology as well as assisting with marketing, office administration, & other human
resources.

Institute Manager

Rose Institute - Cambridge, MA

May 2002 to August 2002

Provided Administrative support for practitioner, while learning to teach basic biomechanics & yoga.



• Answered phones, scheduled & managed appointments; provided client care; developed &
implemented

grassroots marketing campaign in Cambridge St Somerville areas to generate enrollment &
registration;

tracked effectiveness of advertising methods; & cared for the office, yoga studio. St garden.

Youth Enrichment Services ■ Boston. MA

November 2001 to March 2002

Prepared & implemented ski lessons to children who had never skied before St volunteered 3+hours
per

week in the ski St snowboard shop, maintaining & fitting children for skis & boots.
• Acted as a positive role model & promoted the Importance of outdoor activities In developmental
process.

mentor

Tobin Community Center • Boston, MA

September 1999 to December 1999

Boston, MA ) Sept 1999 - Dec 1999

• Volunteered to work with children ages 6-12 working to develop vital reading skills. Assisted with
homework & served as a mentor.

Education

Granite State College - Rochester, NH

September 2014

Early Childhood Introduction Course ECE
Manchester Community College - Manchester. NH
September 2012

Certification

NH Community College

July 2012

Bachelor of Science In Anthropology / Cooperative Work Experience In
Anthropology / Cooperative Work Experience
Northeastern University • Boston, MA

March 2004

Skills

Nanny. Babysitter, Babysitting. Child Care. Childcare Provider



Cree-Ann Jones, BSW

Objective: To overall help others by working towards improving their quality of
life.

Skills & Abilities: - Able to help improve the quality of lives for others through advocacy, hard
work, and dedication towards the clients being served. - Methodical worker, who works well
with making sure all work gets completed by assigned deadline date, possessing excellent time
management skills. - Excellent ability to multitask, pay attention to detail & be organized. -
Excellent verbal and written communication skills. - Proficient in utilizing Microsoft Word,
PowerPoint, and Excel. - Patience, attentiveness, clear communication skills, positive attitude,
ability to handle stressful situations and/or crisis, ability to remain goal-oriented, willingness to
learn, and adapts well to change.

Accomplishments:

• Adults Needs and Strengths Assessment (ANSA) certified
• Crisis Prevention Intervention (CPl) certified

• Motivational Interviewing certified

•  Illness Management & Recovery (IMR) certified
•  Both Youth & Adult Mental Health First Aid

Certified 2018 & 2019

• Medicare Specialist Certification/SHIP Counselor

Education: Great Bay Community College (08/2008 - 06/2009) Major: Liberal Arts CPA:
3.5

*250+ hour Internship at Franklin Regional Hospital in New Hampshire from January 2012
to April 2012.

Transferred to Plymouth State University (08/2009 - 05/2012) Major:.Social Work
with a concentration in Health Services GPA: 2.9 *GradU3ted in Msy 2012.

Employment History:

Community Partners/ScrviceLink Resource Center (Rochester & Dover, NH
Offices) NPI #: 1184031742

Title: Case. Manager/CFI Specialist/Medicare Specialist/ Resource Center Specialist
(03/15/2017 through the present)



Responsibilities: - Refer & link clients & their families too local resources - Overseeing
a caseload of 100+ clients - Intake clients into Choices for Independence (CFI)

Accessing New Heights regularly to prevent benefits from lapsing & follow up &
monitor the application status. Complete case management assessments & care plans -

Enroll clients into Medicare D prescription and Advantage plans - Assist clients with
applying for disability benefits through the Social Security Administration

Liberty Mutual - Group Insurance

Title: Short-Term Complex Disability Claims Manager

(05/31/2016-01/10/2017)

Responsibilities: conducted investigations to determine whether or not to accept liability. •
Document claim system and files on actions taken. Established future action plan and case
direction. Identify, calculate, communicate and followed up on payments. Respond to various
written and telephone inquiries with regard to benefit eligibility, approval/denial

determinations, status and continuation or closure of benefits. Communication with claimants,
employers and various medical professionals to gather information regarding ongoing
management of the short-term benefits.

Community Partners/ServiceLink Resource Center (Rochester & Dover, NH Offices) NPI #:

1184031742

Title: Case Manager/ Resource Center Speciatist/CFI Specialist (08/31/2015 -
05/20/2016)

Title: Adult Sen/ices Case Manager/Functional Support Specialist (03/25/2013-
08/31/2015)

Responsibilities: - Work with severely mentally ill clients - Discharge planning - Secure housing
for homeless clients - Medication monitoring & observations - Crisis stabilization with clients -
Complete annual documentation & treatment plans - Referral & linking clients to local resources
- Overseeing a caseload of 100+ clients - Enroll clients in Choices for Independence (CFI) -
Secure housing for homeless clients - Access New Heights regularly to prevent benefits from
lapsing & investigate application status - Complete case management assessments & care plans -
Enroll clients in Medicare plans - Assist clients with applying for disability benefits through the
Social Securit>' Administration - Link clients to both inpatient and outpatient substance abuse
treatment facilities.



Beth A. Ctarke

Education: BS Business Administration

College of Charleston

Charleston SC 29406

Diploma Advanced Therapeutic Massage

Summa Cum Laude

Miller-Motte Technical College

North Charleston 29405

Experience:

Community Action Partnership, Dover NH

Prog

December 1999

June 2004

August 2013-present

am Assistant

Assistant to Child and Family Services Director

Fiscal liaison

Purchasing agent for Programming

Assist Management and staff with travel

Data entry, maintain in kind records

Handle incoming calls and mail

Create and distribute newsletters and documents as needed for the Center

Summer Feeding Program June 2014-August 2014

Data entry, maintain in kind records

Logistics for travel and serve times for Summer Feeding Program
Adjust and maintain accurate numbers for actual and projected number of meals served
Supervise employees and assure they are performing at optimum level
Assist the Program Coordinator with any duties she needs completed

Integrated Massage and Family Wellness, Dover NH

Licensed Massage Therapist

•  Perform Manual Therapy

•  Market to target market

•  Documentation and implementation of procedures

June 2013-Present

Elements Therapeutic Spa, Portsmouth NH

Licensed Massage Therapist

•  Perform Manual Therapy

November 2011- 2013



•  Communicate with clients to provide superior service

•  Documentation of procedures

Miller-Motte technical College, North Charleston, SC January 2005-October 2010

Instructor/Clinic Supervisor

•  Facilitate student learning for multi age groupings in the area of therapeutic massage, medical assisting,
surgical technology, and health information technology.

•  Create lesson plans and tests in line with the course syllabus
•  Managing students and resolving classroom conflict.
•  Prepare students for internship and dealing with the public.
•  Manage the school's internal spa.

•  Resolve customer complaints.

•  Reconcile daily revenue.

•  Coordinate scheduling for students and clients.

•  Coordinate events for community outreach.

•  Increase student retention.

OS! (Outsourcing Solutions Inc.), North Charleston, SC August 1998- October 2004

Hire and train employees for the fraud initiative and repetitive debt initiatives.
Organize and distribute training materials for the client (AT&T).
Quality Assurance, monitor calls and provide proper feedback to employees.
Maintain good working communication between company and Client (AT&T).
Create new working parameters for fraud and repetitive debt Initiatives.
Resolve AT&T customer disputes and claims.

Improve accounts receivable for the client.

Annual reviews for employees.

Additional training and Accolades: Medical terminology proficient, Microsoft Office proficient. Pacific University
trained. Silver Key Honor Society Alumni



Taylor Damato

Objective

BSW graduate with aspirations to work in child welfare and social services. Received my BSW in
August of 2019 and want experience in the field while working on obtaining my master's degree.

Education

•  East Stroudsburg University, East Stroudsburg, PA

•  Bachelor's Degree I August 2019

•  Major in Social Work

•  Major CPA 3.6

•  Overall CPA 3.1

• Will be attending The University of New Hampshire beginning the fall of 2020 enrolled in the
online Master of Social Work program

Experience

August 2015 - May 2019
Reference Assistant | Kemp Library | East Stroudsburg University

•  Assist students, faculty, and community members in finding books and references they
need.

Summer of 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019

Customer Service Representative | Mr. Rooter Plumbing | Patchogue. NY

•  Take phone calls and schedule appointments. Along with basic office work of scanning,
filing, and use of computer software's such as Microsoft and excel.

August 2018 - May 2019

Intern | Pennsylvania Treatment and Healing | Stroudsburg, PA

•  Co-facilitate the After-School Evening Group and the Intensive Adolescent Group. Helped
plan and prepare group topics. Examined and read case files. Interacted with clients and
participated in group discussions. Sat in on new employee training and restraint training.

September 2019- Jan 17, 2020

Night Counselor | Transitional Services Long Island | Smithtown. NY

•  Support and assist residents, who meet the criteria of severely and persistently mentally
ill, in a twenty-four-hour supervised living program. Assist with training in daily living skills,



social/recreational activities and medication monitoring. Redirect and help residents utilize
coping skills in times of behavioral crisis. Look after the overall v\/ell-being of all residents.

Skills and Abilities

Leadership skills
Works well with teams and groups
Basic skills with Microsoft, excel. PowerPoint

Communication Skills

First Aid Certified

Organizational Skills

Academic Achievement
•  Dean's List Pali 2017

•  Dean's List Spring 2019
•  Crisis Intervention Class Training/ Certified

r
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Vicki Senter, RN, BSN, CLC

Education:

•  Associate Degree In Accounting. Nashua Community College, Nashua, NH.
•  Associate Degree in Nursing. New Hampshire Technical Institute, Concord, NH.
•  Bachelor Degree in Nursing. Franklin Pierce University, Portsmouth, NH.

Nursing Employment History:

Strafford County Community Action Partnerships, Dover, NH July, 2013 to Current
Health Coordinator for Head Start, Early Head Start, Healthy Families of America, and Home
Visiting of New Hampshire

•  Administer health screenings to all Head Start students.

• Write Individual Healthcare Plans for students when medically necessary.

•  Visit clients in their homes to provide nursing support during pregnancy and promote child
growth and development.

•  Provide lactation support to clients as needed.

•  Provide CPR/AED/Flrst Aid Instruction to staff and clients.

Farmington High School, SAU 61, Farmington, NH July, 2009 to June, 2013
Registered Nurse and 504 Coordinator

•  Care for a population of 430 students and staff, with an average of 62 visits per day.
•  Responsible for the smooth operation of the nurse's office Including budget preparation,

record keeping, statistical data reports, and State of New Hampshire reporting.
• Maintain and distribute 504 plans for 21 students and facilitate meetings.

Wah-Tut-Cah Scout Reservation, Northwood, NH July, 2007 to August, 2011
Registered Nurse

•  Cared for an average of 200 overnight campers of a Boy Scouts of America summer camp.
•  Responsibilities Included camper and staff medical care, medication distribution, assisting

with camper registration, record keeping, and the cleanliness of the Health Lodge.

Franklin High School, Franklin, NH July, 2006 to June, 2009
Registered Nurse

•  Cared for a population of 430 students and staff.
•  Responsible for nurse's office operations Including budget preparation, record keeping, and

statistical data reports.



Skills:

Registered Nurse, Licensed in State of New Hampshire
Certified Lactation Counselor, certified by the Academy of Lactation Policy and Practice.
Heartsaver CPR/AED/First Aid Instructor, American Heart Association certified.
Certified Infant Massage Educator, Prepared Childbirth Educators, Inc.
Microsoft and Excel Software, experienced.

Child Plus Software, experienced.
PROMIS Computer Software, experienced.
ETO Computer Software, experienced.
First Responder Certified, National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians.



Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Paula Gyurcsan Home Visiting Manager 50,066 50% $25,033

Elena Engle Child and Family Services
Director

70,013 11% 7,876

Deirdre Siede Home Visitor 29,344 100% 29.344

Elizabeth Hannagan Home Visitor 38,189 100% 38,189

Cree-Ann Jones Home Visitor-FRS 38,189 ' 100% 38,189

Beth Clarke Program Assistant 32,209 5% 1,695

Taylor Damato Outreach and Enrollment

Coordinator

36,067 5% 1,803

Vicki Senter Health Services Coordinator 49,525 15% 7,429

CEO and Finance Director are paid completely from the indirect cost rate.



Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Vacant Home Visiting Supervisor 36,400 100% 36,400

CEO and Finance Director are paid completely from the Indirect cost rate.



New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Servlcee
Home VisWng Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Hunwn Services

Amendment #2 to the Home Visiting Services Contract

Thie 2- Amendment to the Home Visaing
is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department ̂
sr ^
business at 464 Chestnut Street. Manchester. NH 03101.

t /me "rnntract"^ aooroved by the Governor and Executive CouncilWHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the ^ 2019 (Item #27). the Contractor agreed to

In consideration of certain sums specific, and ^

rscoSof«toTupport^
NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and nnutual covenaM conditions contained
Tn the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows.

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
September 30, 2022.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read.
$4,891,017.

3. Modtfy Exhibit A. Scope of Se^oes, Section 1 Provisions Applicable to All Services, Subsection
1.5., to read: • , ... .

1.5, The Contractor shall provide home visiting services to a minimum of families as outlined
t>elow per contract year:

1.5.1 City of Manchester = 39 families per year
1.5.2 Hillsborough County = 27 families per year
1.5.3 Merrimack County = 19 families per year

1.5.4 Rockingham County = 27 families per year ^
4. liflodify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, Paragraph 2. ,

2 2?'^ Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential components of the HFA
Model are addressed in agency policies.

5. Modify Exhibit A. scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, by adding
Paragraph 2.2.6.. to read: « »

2 2 6 Participate in Continuous Quality Improvement Projeds and, cjoteborative efforts to servefamiiies within designated catchment areas. The Contractor shall.

2 2 61 Ensure staff are available to provide relevant data as well as key data a^ metncs,
as requested by the Department. Y '

AmendmeniW Conlractor Initials
Waypoint D 1 of 5 1^3*®
SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV.02-A02 Pafl® ̂  ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Vlslttng Services

2 2 6 2 Ensure staff are available to review data, discuss performance, learn from their
peers and identify action-steps that may improve client outcomes.

6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Subsection 3.5 to read:
3 5. Reserved. . ^ ̂  ̂ m

7. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Subsectron 3.6, to read

8. Modify Exhibit A, scope of Senrices, Section 4 Reporting and Deliverable Requirements, by adding
Subsection 4.8., to read: k».

4 8 The Contractor shall participate in sub-recipient monitoring actwities, as coordinated by
Department. The Contractor shall:

4 8 2 Ensure expenses are reasonable, allowable and allocable per 45 CFR 75.
4,8.3. Provide documentation of funding utilization and reasonable expenses to the

Department upon request.

9 Modify Exhibit A, scope of Services, Section SWork.Plan, Subsection 5.2. to read:
5 2. The Contractor shall submit a Work Plan, utilizing a template as provided by

Department, that includes, but is not limited to.
5.2.1. Activities.

5.2.2. Performance Measures (Outcomes).
5 2 3 Action Plan for Improvement.

11, Modify Exhibit B . Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2,
Subsection 2.3 to read:

2 3 General Funds from Parental Assistance Funds » o .■ q
12, Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3,

rddd*

Amendments ConWrXorlnlUeleWaypoini DaleALU^OJ.
SS.2019.DPHS-D5-HOiylEV-02-A02 ^=9® ^»' '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

17. Add

IB. Add

19. Add

20. Add

21. Add

22. Add

23. Add

24. Add

25. Add

28. Add

27. Add

Exhibit B-

Exhibit 8-

Exhibit B

Exhibit B

Exhibit B-

Exhibit B-

Exhibit B-

ExhiWt 8-

Exhibit B-

Exhibit B

Exhibit B

14 Budget

15 Budget

■16 Budget

-17 Budget

-18 Budget
-19 Budget

20 Budget

-21 Budget

-22 Budget

-23 Budget
-24 Budget

. Amendment #2.

- Amendment #2.

- Amendment #2.
-Amendment #2.

- Amendment #2.

- Amendment #2.

- Amendment #2.
- Amendment #2.

- Amendment #2.
- Amendment #2.

- Amendment #2.

Waypolnl
SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOME\/-02-A02

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services -

Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, me parties have set their hands as of the date mitten below,

II
Datl

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

N^Vi ^
Title:

Date

Wa^int

Name: ^
Title;(J^,^^^,^ !

Waypoint

cc 'jn-io.nPM.«%-f\?>-HOMEV-02-A02

Amendmenr #2
(

Page 4 of 5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homo Visiting Services

The preceding Amendment, having been
execution.

reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/17/20

Date
Name:
Title: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

, nerehy certify lha, the f-golng approved hy .he
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on. v

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date
Name:

Title;

Waypolnt

CQ.om O-nPH.S-05-HOME\/'02-A02

Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen-iees
Home Visiting Sen'ices

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

1  Performance Measures

Contract.

Performance Measure fEFDS)
HFA Best Practice Standflrd 7-4.D

Measure- 80% of women enrolled in .he program received a. leas, one Edinburgh Postnatal
Depression Scale.screening by 3 months postpartiim.

pnt-nllpH in HFA will receive this formal, validated screening foiGoal: All post-partum women eniolled in lUA
depression at tiie optimal time.

Numerator- Oflhose in the denoininatoi-, .he number of women .lit., received an
Edinbiugh Postnatal Dep.cssion Scale (EPDS) scieening by 3 months postp.aitum.
Denominator-The total number of women in the program who reacted ̂  0°,''"
partum during the reporting period and were enrolled prior to 3 motrths afte, the btrth
their baby.

Data Sourcei ETO: Reports 4 View Reports (New) 4 Quarterly Reports ̂  HFA .EPOS 3 months rev
[7/10/20J 9j Index child only

Deilnilidn:

Performance Measiire.#2 fRctcntioiQ
HFA Pp-st Practice Standard 3-4.A

enrolled in HFA for at least 6 mouths
Measure: Increase the percent

from FEY 2019 average (10/1/2018-9/30/2019) basciuic.

Goal: Families slay connected and. maintain involvement with HFA services.

Dennitiom- N.imerator- Of those in the denominator, the mnnber of families that remained in HFA
services at. least 6 nionlhs.

Denominator- The ttumber of families who received a first home visit during the period
10/1/2019-9/30/2020;

Quarter i 10/1/201.9- 12/31/2019
Quarter 2 .1/1/2020—3/31/2020
Quarters 4/1/2020-6/30/2020
Quarter 4 7/1/2020- 9/30/2020.

Data sonrce: ETO: Reports 4 View Reports (New) 4 Quarterly Reports 4 HFA Retentiott■Sumthary (Cwreitl) (Baseline is determined by performance in the prior .fiscal year.)
Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendor InitialsWaypoint

SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-02-Ab2 Page 1 of 2 Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sers'iees
Home Visiting Sen^ices performance Measures

PciformapfoMeasure #3

ftPA Bcsi^ Practice Standard 6-6.B

already receiving developmental sei-viccs should not be scieened.

«.,d Who«'«™-

developmental services.)

specified in the denominator.)

Denominator: Total number of child, en enrolled in positive sc eens (scoring
below the cutoff) for developmental delays, measured using the ASQ-3.

S«.: jm r»„ O""' «"
Screenings {Current)

Pp.i formancp IVieasiirc #4 ■

"HFA Standard 12-1 .B

Measnre: All direct service staff receive a .nininunn of;75% of rc,nired Weekly individual
^  aupei-vision according to the HFA Standards.

(5oal: Se,vice pioviders receive ongoing,, effective supervision so they are able to develop realistic and
effective plans to empower families.

(.75 to ,1.0 PTE) and 1 hour for parl-lunc staff (fiom .25 - .75 h I L-J.
Denominator- The number of di,ect se.yicc staff/home visitcs employed in the HFA
Piograni during quarter.

Data Sou,-ce: ETO: Repoids..^ View Reports (New)^ Quarterly Repcds^ Staff Supervision Rev [6-
22-2618]

Waypolnt

SS-2019-DrHS-05-HOM.fV-02-A02

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendor Initials JjJ}
Page 2 of 2. DaieM^



ExTiibii BJ. Budget Amendment • 2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BddeifPfogmm Name: Weypeini (HBUboro)

Budeet Request far. Hame Vbiting

Budget Peitod: July 1. 2«0 -June 2021 (SFY »21)
' '.^'ftindea bv DHHS.contraet

Osn:ncior.»t>ie'' Matcti Total-
.Toul i>iocfaim.Cest., - indlreet-- •;Ojreet-T-T ,—Teuj---■^-Indlreet;'''—  _ -Olrea~

"hcfemental
ratal'^lOoAl (nerctnetita C- -j-'FiTiidt-:^^olrea 13S,072.00

nied tU.072.COlaemmer.tal 40.823.00136.O72.0CUne Item. «0,923.00ia6.C72.00 14.000.004a823.00Total SHa: 14.COO.0040.823.00 S:
14:000.00

14.0CO.00
:3. CMttuttams

Eauicineni
Rantal
Rep»f Hid Mefntenanse

BOO.OOPuretiast/Oe 690.03
S. Suaedea: soooo

eoo
Educational
Lab

748.00749J)0
10.077.00749.0CMedical 10fl7T.00748 I7ia9.0010.077.00DMce 17AB9.C010.07

6.. Travel •.7.588 3.000.00
. Ocsupann ipoaoo

100.003.00000CunemE*pei^ loaoo2.00C
100.00Tdeebene

10000

1.662.30
Subaed 1.662O0

LadSl 1662.00Al3dd
1.68

Insurance
750.00Baare EvDenies 750.00
600.00750JOSohwara eoojo

ia UaHtaiinalCenimunicail SOOiX)
11, Siall Pgucrton and Treininti 1.500.00
12. SubcoryjaeialAereeniero 1.500.00

40.324JQ13. fwier /madfe daiaii mandMOfy>: 524.001^.00
1.S00

40324.00□ues/A 40.324.00 26S.146.0040324X0 I SIndlreel 227.822X0 %
266.146X040324.00.1 i227.622.00

TOTAL

• Indirect As A Percent ol Oireet
17.7*

VV^celcii
SS-2019-DPHS-C5-HOMEV-02-A02
Extilbil 63. Budget Amandnieni» 2
Page i ef i

Ccneactw inidds

iKllni



&4. BudgM Amndment $, 2

N«w Hampshire Department of Health and
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BiddtrfPmflrim Name: WareoWtt tUanehasJerJ,

Budgtl Reaut*« 'en MomeVtotUng

Budgelt^rted; Ju»y1.»» - Jure JO, M21 (SFY WH) funded bv OHMS acmrattsrefe.

—  —TdOl"

:Flxed

Cscnncter snam t Match-
at-Toal Prastaa 5 Olnci- -TOttfB'Indtrect-:k 'DifectiTcplal locrerumul

•rpifw;- -•'•rr—mdrtc;
l-oA-gm^al- — -F°*^

>73.323.00FixedIhcreinental 173323.00
30.637.00

173.323.0C 30J37.00Urtel»«i fl.SOO.OO173.323.00
30 637.00 9.W0.001. Tetai SalsyAVieel 30.637.00 S
9.500.002- Emdwte Beref.lt 9.500.00

Canxultans

Eouipnw.U
3 •

Renttl

UalrienanstReeait S3S.n
Purehaae/Dtcreeiste S3S.00

535.00Sx-oelier 53SOO S
£duca50(ia1

Lab 576.00
576.00Phanrao 4.219.00

576.00 4219.00Medical >4.46400576.00
4.219.00 14.464.00Olfica

4 219.00
14.404.00S. Travel 3.287.0014.464.00

S.2B7.00
7. Ocopaney 73.00

3.2STPQ 73.00Currenl Eaereea 3.287.00
73;[«

73J30
Pottao* 1.927J0

1.927.00S-j&*cr

1.927.00AuAandlenM
1.927JM

Ir.xunnea 1.000.00
1.000.00Beard Exsen^ 4.100.00

1.000J>0 4.100.00Schware 1.000.00
lOOXOMatkedrwCemmwtolo!

4.100M
n. si»» PaL-ei-jon and Tf» 867.00

867.0012. 4itl" '-""^^'^ereeniettlx 26.696.002<.a9S.CC
13- pjief taaedfisdanga'reiidicnrt 867.00

29696.00
887.00

DuM/Accred.ia^ 26.896 271.404J)026.996.00244.S06.00
Indirect

271.404.0026996A0244.S08A0
TOTAL

Indirect Aa A Percent o< Direct

Wayooint
SS-2019.OPHS«S-HOMeV^a-A02
.cyMbl'tM. Budget Amendment 9 2'
Page'.t ot t

Cormeter Inltitta



fitfiiWt 6-8. Bud9»t Am«ndwet« • 2

aidderfProSf*™ Name: WiypoW (M«rf1n«»ck)

BuagetRwatfor: Hom.VI*m«8 .F«*n1Fui»d*

BudB«t Pertwt July l. W2« - Juc- »#. 2021 (SFY 2021J Puwitd ky PHHS cBimait
•Conlfaew.ShicW .>!3^ TbOlMtnct'

Tfi»i Pmqqm Cast:-. Tetai
;• Fotd, -;bidireet

InEterierttw* -—"fTonl

■ffeed!
173.259JJ0Olrte* tnerunenai 173259.00 20.029.00in^i9en*.al 30.029.00573259X0Line Uen 7.000.00173.259.00 7.000.0026.029.001- TM»l SsWfvM^S" 26.029.W 7.000.00Benentt 7.000.00

3. COfHuOsflW
TOfneni:

Rental
Ree^ and Unnienanea 360.00

360.00Oiifrneie/Daofeealien
36aC0Supcltes: 300.00

EducaUonal
460X0Lab

460.00
Pharma S.451.0Q

S.4S1.00Medicaj 7X33.00480.09 £.451.00
5.451.00 7.333.W 2X41.00Travel 7.333.00 2641,00 60.00

60.002.641.00CuTsnl 2X41.00 60X0Telephone 60.00
Potraae
SuBaoteoont
AudiandUoal
Inwrance Tsaoo

780.00eoara ftiea 4.<OOXO
4.590.03760.00Softwsra 780X0 4.£xaoo1C, ■UawelinoiCP'h>n''"^'-'°''* 4;500.00

51. St»« P*:eati«i«i«na Training 9oaoo
000X02 Subeenvarta/fcojeernenB 39.353.0039.353.009oaoo> Odter l«weifk»^rngna*rrt 900X0 39.353.0039.353X0Dues/AccreeittS®!! 258.146X039,353.08228.793X0 3

tnAred
2U.146.00

228.733X0
TOTAL

Indireel At A Pereens.ol.Oiraei

WaypeW. _SS.2619-0PHSXS-HOWSV-02-AS2
Extibil B-9. Bue^Afn®"*"'®"?* 2
Page 1 of 1
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Exhibit B-12. Budget AmmdmeM • 3

New HampsWr# Depanmem of HeaWi and Human Servlca*
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BiddirfPro^n tome: Weypotat (RocUnghem)

Budget Rnueit (or Hmm VtittMa

Budget Period: Juty 1. • J""* "•

Line Kern

3. CorttuKams

5. Supodee:
gd

Taud StofyWeqee

Emete»ee BeneWs

Eau-'ement:

Rental

Raneif end tfeinien

Pieeneae/Oepftoatten

- •'■Dheet "
Inerrmettal

uatte^

Pttafmacv

Medical

7. Oceuaeney
a. Current Ecoeneee

Teleanone

Peatsge
S-Asotetierj
Aief I jrtd Lecel

Bvpeneea
a. Seltnate
10. MaiVeiinclCommunteetiens

■ ■■ 'Stefl Bduerien andTralning
12. SuPeontragttlAOfeement.1
ta. outer teoeeillceeieiameMMionrt:
Pues/AesredHatlan
Indlreg —

TOTAL
'mdireet AaAPereeMolDlreet

by DWS cowrael titart
ractorShare/Match "Con

TotaTProoon Cos: —Total—Inrilreet
:Fl>ed

-Oireel—■
thereniWoa]

Total—bunreet"^rOheet"
Inersmena]

Totalmdire^
■.Hxed' 14848.068.00

33.396.0C148 33.396.00148.006.00 8 s.ooaoo33.398.00 8.O30.W33.398.00 8
o.ooaoo9^.00

900.00soaoo
900.03

900.00

800.00
800.00

11AS2.00800.00 11.652.00500.00 12.007.0011ASLC0 12.007.00t1.683.00
12-007.00 I 812.O07.0C 3.019.003.010.00

100.K3.010.00 100.003O10.00
loaoo

100.00

1.433.001.493.00
1.493.00

1 492.00
1.736.00

1.738.00
4.836.001.738.00 4 638.001 738.00

4.636.004.S3S.OO

1.S00.M1.500.00
40.130.001 800.00 4Q.130.00

1 £00.00 S
40.13CXIO43.1

2(8.148U»40.130wM>229.016.00
268.140.0040.130.00228.018.00

17A*

Camraetor Inidto

SB.2019-DPHS^H0MEV-<a-^
■ExKbiltLlS. BudgW Amend(ne."ii • 2

• Pigel ol 1



Exhibit 9-".*. Budo*t Maeotfment »I

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE EtUOGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

StddeUPrognm Name: WirpokU {MtfrtmMlc)

Budget Requeit tor. Home VWting - General Fund*

Budget Period: . June ja. 2on (SFY lOItJ •  'JmwigdbvDHMScomactslwe ' —
CottRactorStote/ Teal— - tocueeie 'txl praqran Cost - Ortct— • looi—-•-^tndirett

'F»*e'd" -
. a t—r'^Tcai* Ineiemeniubiduect

InercrrienU)
• ' tJ1.<00.00<lnaeffienal 12t.*00.MRaed-
121.4M.00Line Item 1S.ieQ.M

121.400.00
ie.ie6.oo1. TetalSal*^ le.tasxo

Bencm

3. Consultants
Ea-Jicmefit:

Rental

Receir and Mar.lenance
240.00Purentse/Depreeam 24a.M

240.004. Suopees; 240.00
Eeueswnal

Lab
320.M

320.MPnarmacr
3.634.00

320.00 3.634.00Usdicai
323.M

3.634.00
4.8M.M

3.634tn 4.090.00otrce

4.a90.M6. Travel 4.e90.M 1.760.00
1.760.00Oca eeney

40.M
1.760.00 4a.M6. Current mtptnses

1.760J»
40.00Tetesnsnc

40.00
Pestage
fiubscnetiOfis

Audt and Lagal

nsurance
S20.M

000.00
52a.MBoani Expensee

420.00 3.000.M9.. Sefiwre

10. nm»Bi:f»n<Cem.Tj;nieations
11. StaflEriueationanaTfalcan'
12. snaei»ntiag''4«;'»»mMit»

420J0

.OOCJXI
3.003.00

SOO.M
soaM

26.469.0028.$S9.M13. Offer(seednedetaasmaadawv) 600.M
630J»

26 459.00OuestAseredtaSen 26.669.00
181,179.00264«9.001S4.S90MIndOcet

181.179J026.St9.OD1S4J90.00
TOTAL

17.2S
Indirect A* A Percent ot Direct

Waypblnt
.SS-2019.WHSO5.HOllEV.tB-4B2-

&d-^l B-14, Budget ArnendmentF 2'
Page ! of 1

Centnciorin)^'.
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Exhibit e-ti. Sudgtt Anttndment > 2

N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

HW<rt.ftPfnffr»m W«me: W»yp6inl (HUUboro)

Budget Rbqueit'bR Hem Visiting

Budget Pertoe: July 1. 2021 - June »,'2022 (SFY »22) unded b'/:(»iHS eentraa
Shirt .'.UMh'" t . * -intllrecf -" ""-'Total-r -. ToolPfoaratn.Ces- TOBI-"Usl lect FixedKrettr .-Inoemenai

Dintr. -••FSxsd- 1M.07t00Incretnental 138.072.00*Gxtd.-Insntnentsl 40023.00

U.OOOJX)
136.072.C0UnsJten 40.123.00136.072.00

1. Tntal SslyWV/acei 40.B23J)3 14.000.0040.033.00 $
14.000^0BenelitsBmalovee

14.000.00
ConMur.n

4. .Eouistnent:

RentsI

and Maintenance
600.00pvrehase/Dtsredaeon 800.00

eoaooStroaOes
BOOOO

Educaiienai

Lab
740.00

Phannacy 740.00
io.on.oo

749.00uedlcM 10.C77.00
749.00 17,SS«.0010.077J!0OtSee 17.S89.00
077

17.58900Travel 17.SSS.00 3.000.00
7. OcD

100.00
3.000.00 100.00Cunent oenses

3.000.00
100.00Teleoiwne

-.00.06
P3»

1&52.00
Subsoipeen* 1,682.30

1662X10LecH4u<it
1.662.00

ntteance
7S0.0C

Board Exowet 750.00
BOO.OO

7SQ.00 600X0Safivrtre
7S0X0

ia Us^iinnlCamnKaMealiens aooxo
900X0

11. StiffEdueadgnandTreroig
1.500.00

40.324.00
12. Scbcenweg/Aaraemenls

40 324.003.. omer tsoeeWe deaiti tiia«ai»y): 1.S00.00
1.630X0 J

S
40.324.00DueMACCrtdltiOW 4032

269.146.0040X24.00227.922X0 1 9
268.146X040J227.822X0

TOTAL

Indirect Aa A Percent of CHrect

Way^m
SS-201»-DPHS.C5-HOMeVXa-A02.

.Exhfctt BilS. BudserAfnendffirtPt'
Page 1 el.1

Contractor InitiaU



Exhibit B-1S. Subset «bfnend-Mnl • 2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM'FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD-

BddtdPreerem Name: Waypdm (Uaoeheeter)

Budget Request for:. Heche Vtstdng

Biud^ Pedod: July t. Mil • June JO. »a {SFT »") 4 jjurtded by DHHS dOCtrect Share
ConyaeierSMcet suteti ■ - -e- TsBl

. .Totil RtoQram.ct imiiRc:'Direct:'Btat: Itidireelcorrect ruedincremaitalIndthic:■—Direct -Fixed- -tncrementaJ 173.mwFlau! 1T3P23.00Incceiseotal 30,637.00t73.323.00Lineliem 30J37t73 323JX) 500.001. Taial SalacN^W.'acet 30.637.00 esoaoo30.637.00
Cmelcrree Berefa S.500M9.500.00
Censuttam
EauiamenO

Rental
Repair mm Mamttnance

535.00Pun^jtemeomdaiion 53S.00
SiSXK5. .SuppSet: S35.WEdueabenal

Laa
576.00Phamiacv 576.00

OtflJO578.CCMedkal 4218.00576.00 14.464.004.219.00OtTce U.4&4.C04.219.00
14,464.00S. Travel 14.484.00 3287.003287.00

73,00237.00CorreM Expeniet 73.003.287.00
73.00eteBftc 73.00

aee
1.927.00SuMcri 1.927.00

Lecal 1.927.00AuB:!
1.927.00

Msumnee
•■.000.00
4.100.00

neeiBoard 1.DOO.C9
1.0Q02QSoflwan 4.100.001.000JM

10. Mar»ejne/Conwmjnlca:kni 4.10020
4.tw.oa11. Staff Eduea5on and Trairinc

B87.C012. Subear.gactsrAcrtemer-a 667.00
28.8962013 Oder ftoeoflc data** rnaneaiaryl 28.896.00BS7JH

387.00
28.89620D-jearAcefearulien 28.896.00

2712«2e«20liKlreei 244308.00 5
271.4042026286.00 t244.508.00TOTAL

Indirect A» A Percent el Oiieet
112*

Waypocit
SS-2aiM>PH&O5-HOMEWa-A02
ExWba B-16. Btrdoet ^endmense 2
Paoa-iPfV •

ContractorMbab >^i 7



EjdilMt B-17. Budget Amendment« 2

New Hempshire Department of Healtft attd Human Servfcw
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BlddcrfPregrim Miine: Weypeinl (Uerrttnee*)

Budget ftegoeet for Home tAottlng • FedemI Fund*

Bud^Pelted: Jidyi.20« .jufieM.»22(Sriri«D ecnt?act sRure

• • CotaroetorSlBfe'/Motefi Tool
--Ofceet——
tneresneaal F»ed

amC TetilToai Mlreei' -Otreet---
lodrfctt FtzEd t73.2S9O0Diieet faistmeesl t7aj£9.e0RizdIncremenut 26.02«.00

173.2S9.0O 26,029.00une.Itetn'
17a.2S9.C0 T.OOOJQ

26.029.00 7000.00
26,029.00

TOOOJOO2. EmptoveeBenera
s, Corttifltsnt*

Eauiomenc

Rente!

Rcoiir I'M Lter.ienence
360.00

Purehtse/OtpfeeSBgn 380.00

6 Bupoaee-- 300.00
380.00

Eeueetienif

Lab *60.00

5.4S1.00
4SO.OOPhamacv

4KO.OO S.4S1.00Medtoal
480d0

S.4S1.00 7.333.00OtSce 5.451.00
7.333X0Travel 7X33.W 2.841.00

2A41.Q0Oeeuotncy 60.00
2.841.00 86006 Curtem Exaentee 2X41.00

60.00Ttlepnone
80X0

Psttaoe

fiuM

legalAua.1

bfurenee
7a6W

780.00BaardEoeftM* 4.600.00
760.00 4 moo6 SefSnre

760J»
;6 MeHtelina'Cuti'irvjffceaoni 4.500.W

4.600X0
. swi Eduezdenagdjwms 9CO.OO

12. Subeertraei^reeirefia 39.3S3.9039X53.00idttarrt: 900X913. Omerfe
39.353.00Ouee/AeerraM^ 39X53XO 2661460039XS3.002Z6793X0 Srarecl
268.146X039XS3X022679600

TOTAL

Indlmet A» A Pereent of Oimet

C««ae>x imtiats.5
Wiyc^-t
8^201e-oPHSos^ouEv-oa^
emiWi B-17. Budo*: AmendmeRt • 2
Page 1 of I
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Budgtt Ameodmtni« 2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BklderfPfegraffl M«me; W»vpo5ni lH«nlm»€k>

BudaetRequesl'w^ Home Vtaltlng •CeiwralFvnei'

B*id9« Period; July 1.M21 - June M. »I2(SFY2022) —■>jL..iP>inae9BvPHHSco<wract
. - . :;cc«irasiof Shtretmm Ton 'i,ToPl.Pto<»«0'°^Cott tadlreet-- - "OiMM-;- -- Teal— InoiiDlTeei rToa!.'- - .FuKd, tnmmental- —tntfireei;"-.Oireet 'InshriMrol 121.400.00

Fbted 12t.400.0CIncfeme.iul 1S.ISB.00i2i.«oaooLinehern 18.1K.OO121.4O0.0C
1. Total SHrvWeocs 18.186.001S.1B6.0C

P.nalBvee Befietis
Contulans

4. Eeuiomern;
Rental

MainiananesResad
240.QOPufcneta/DeoreqailP" 240.00

240.MS. SuoeVei 240.00Educate^
Lab

320.00
Pnatmacv 320.00

3634.00320.00 a.S34.W
320.00 4.6BO.OO3.634.C0Olte 4690.003.63460 4.890X06. Travel 4690.00 vTsaoo

Oceuoanev 1.760X0
40.00

1.780.00a. CurreiM ECT>en»M 40.001.760.00 i
40.00Telaohonc

40.00
Paetaet
SubscngbeM
Audi: and Laqa)
Inturanea

529.00
Board 520.00

3.000X0520.M9, SolbvaK 3.000X0520X0
10. MaiHednoComrnurtcabaot 3.000.00

3.000.00
It. SaltEducadona.idT 603.00
12. SithgnngaaarAQfeemenu 600.00

28.589.0026689.00600X013. Other (apeone^^ 600.00
Ouei/Accretiiytien 26689.00 nsso1812668S.D0taidrtel 1S4690X0 i

1S1.179.0028681S4690.00 STOTAL 17J*
Indirect As A Pareant oj Direei

waybOM
SS^IWJPHS-OS.HOMEV-02.^-
eOiRiil MS. Budget Ameftdmetil ♦ 2
Pa'ga 1 el i
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EiMbit B-19, Buds*t Aintndmcnt < 2

New Hampshire Oepartmerrt o1 Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BWdertPraento Mitne: VrtypoJnt (RoekJnjhim)

Budgtt Request'for Hmm VbKiAfl

'SuCgetPkrted: July 1. 2021 - June SO. 2022 (SFY 2022)

"TeHTPreiram

tJne.fcem'-s

br DHKS eOA.VM
Coniraet»f Sft»re r^fcuteh

.-I- -

• R*edinertmental
148.01

1 '.TOBi-^IncireciDirect'
■tnalreetDirect hvLieiiKaiUI 148.086.00

FoedIncrernenzal 33.396.W148.066.00 U.^OC148.066.00 g.ooaoo33.396.001 Total SjiaivlWaoes
2. Emslovee Beneto

fi.0CO.OO33.396.W 9.000.00
g.ooojiQ

ConfiUllantJ
Eoulp

RentiM
Reoar^MMaWeninM
PiccfiMeiDeofeemion 900.00900.00

5. SupbTiw
Educatienal
LS&

SOO.OO
SOO.OO

11.852.00500.00 J
11.S52.00 i s
12.007.00 a

nA52500.00
11.652.00

12.007.00ortics 1i007.00
ravel 12.007.OC 3.010.00

3.010.007- Oecupiriev
8. Curreni £ire«nte«

Teieonorfe

100.003.010.00
100.00

100.003.010.00
100.00

Poataqa
1.493.00Su&tclaucrj

A'jtft and Laasl
1.493.00

1.493.00
1.493.00

inauranca
1.736.00Board 1.736.00
4.63S.OO1:736.00

4.636.00
4.636.00SoRware 1.736.00

4.638.0010. MarXelinerComiTTiailcetio''*
11. 'Saif EdiiealtooandTrjvS 1.SOO.OOgacarAg 1.SOO.OOSuoeoi

40.130.0040:130.001X Ottier (enaetfte o«i^ "Bnawp
Ouei/Acc.*edi!aiian

1.SOO.OO
40.130.OT

1.500.00
40.130.00 SSTTSIoSiSSInoM.01SAOIndirect 228

4ai30.0622a.01BA0
TOTAL 17A*

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

VVaypobit
SS.201^DPHS435-HOMEV<2-AC2

^19, Budget Amendtneni #. 2
Page 1 of 1
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ExhlMi Budget Amendment» 2

New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and
COMPLETE ONE BUOGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERfOD

BMdufProgmm Neme: Weypoinl (Mnuborol

Budget Reguest for: Home VteMing

Budget Period: Jo»yt.202J -Segten^M. 2WIISFY —.'Ttmeed by ohhs cantract ekire
.CentTJetof.snete IV V _ — Total.- • oire« . if.dbeet

.incueirienol ' ^--Pbted -
- JfotalProgranv.to - 'Toietinoatet

.Vuid.;
roifw^-

'hcretnenal'
r—Ttcalttotrett. 34.018.00DMtt ;

34.010.00_ . . -.Flore.laeitmenlal - 10.3)1.00
34.018.00 S 10331.00Line Item 3.S00.M34.01S.OC
10.23100 3SOO.OO1. TealSaWvrtS'egte 10331.00
3.SOO.OOBencfn

3.500.00
ConaiRsnts

Eeuipme^
Rental

MtinttnanceReoae 150.00
150.MPurchate/OepredaW

ISOOO 3S. SuMlies; 1&0.00
EdueaiiQRSI

Ub 187.00
187.00Phamasy 2.519.00

2519.00187.00 SHsecal 4,398.00187DO
4598.00

Otflee 2519.C0
4.3GSJXTravel 750.004.396JO 750.00Oecupew 25.00

25.00
8. Current E*pen»e4 750.00

25.00Telepnone
2S.W

PeU»Q« 416X0
416.00Subttriptrsra

416.00AudH and Legal 416.04
njurarrce 188.00

188X4Beard Etnerset 200.00
2O0X0188X0SoRvrart 188

2)0.00ia u«rviiiwcemfmirecilto« 200.00
11. SafIEauadgn»£Tfjmja 375X0

375.00fiubeongaen/Axftefn 1O.06l.Q010.081.00375,00 SOetads mandsldQ^13.0»>er(tpe< 375.00
10.061X0 STR&ooDueslAcereeitaw iSSSTSr *StSrBii

Indirect
sflBsSffl

56.(85X0 1 8
TOTAL

IrWIrect As A Percent of Direct

WayMnt •
85-20197DPHS-05-KOMS1A02.AIJ2
e*r;WlEi-20, So3atlAmefW»m^,e2
Page 1 0(1
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Exhibit Budget Amendmefit * 3

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.
COMPtETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BidderfProgratn Nttne: W«ypoi« (llenehwief)

'BuifgetRtq^tfor Home Vbitirvg

Budget Peried; Julyl.IttM .Seglwnbw J9.3«2(SFY Il«a> - . •« "-fgndECibv.aHHStdriaaa ehare - •
enuaeiuf SMce r>Uieh - —.ToBlindirectlOtieei; --rognenCos'>ioia - •—Tool— Ttadu-BCt;Direa"^

-.Ineresnerjal
Ftedt-jTooI- tnetemnoulinditeei rf=t*ed7

= .bierametol
43.23000

DMilte'm.'

43.330.00fized-
7.658.0043.330t» 7.659.0043.330.00 2375.00

Taiai Sattryft'recet 7.65933 2375^7358.00
2. Emate^e BenefUs 2.375.00

2,375.00
X Conudtams

Enu-omefic

Rerul
ftedaif end Meintenenee

134.00Pueehete/Oesreaeti* 134.00

134.005. Supelie*: 1J4,W
Educatlanal

Lib
144.00

Pnemiaev 144.00
1.055.00

144 1,05530

3.61600

MsAesl
144 3315.00

055Olflee 1.055.00
nvel 3.615.00 £22.00

622.00OceuoenCY
16.00

16.00Cuffe.v fcxpenies 622.00 S
16J0Telepnens

16.00
pOTtsoe

402.00SuMerlptlens 462.00

Lecal 462.00Audi
482JX>

iRturanee
250.00

Board 250.00
1.025.00

250JO i 1.02500Software
2SOJO

;.025J>010. Uerketina/Cemrm; 1.025.00
11. .Staff EducaijooaifiTfwrwg

217.W
12, Riiheeir.ifaea/AOieemenS 217.00

6.72A0P6.724.0015 Other f«»ociaeeelei»nendataeY) 217.00
217.

6.724.00DuM/Acoednaon 6 724JO 7.651
Mdrect

ItISSTjo6.724.0061.127.00
TOTAL

Indirect Aa A Pereem of Oiretl

Waypeint
SS-2019-6PHS435.HOMEVdB-A02 ,
Sdiibit B-21. Budget Amendnieiit • 2 •
Page loft
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Exhiba («2, Butfgtl Am«Bdni»nl 11

New Hampshire Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BlddeffPr»Br»n« Name: WiypoW {M«fTim»ek)

BudBet'R^utarf*' ftomaVhlbng - FeOenl Fuf>d»

Budset farted: Jiity 1.1821 • fiiptembw M. lOD (SPf 200)
■Tool yregnm cos

T  ■ FubOcccemracter.Share r.Uaien —Totatndtreet*"•Olrcct-T*
iimrn^n)

TealiRdnR'Obeet- Rfsed-TOOl'»^''Irmreel

_ ..lotremeottl -
fTixed 43.3-.5.00bifrcmehtal *3315.00Bxed. S.207.00UneUetn:- 43315.00 6.S07J3043.3lS.0C 1.T50J1C6.$07;001- Teal SelnvrWxw 17SO.OQ630730

i. Effiptey^faieiia 1.750.00
1.750.00

3. Censulana
SEouiyneiii:

Re.tsa.
a^lf and Mawtenanc*

90.00PuTChase/Depredsm 90.00
90.005. Susoees: 9030

Educaeenal
U»

120.00
120.00Phamiaev

1363.00
IIO.MMedteal 1.363.00120.00 1.632.001.363.00OTee 136330

Travd 1332X0 66C.QQ
E6C.OOOccuparwy 15.00

£60.00 15X0a. cwrem Exsenaea 00 s
15.00Teleannne

15.00 %
Petws
Subtencuent
Au&land
Hwranc*

195X10
Bsars 195.00

1:125.00195X0 1.125.50SefiMara
195.00MJfKeiino'Cflmmij^eaiona 1125X0

1.12530 5
5II. S'.*!lEeocanoflaodTreinaig

225.0012. fiuacofgraaa'Acteenigni* 225.00
9.640.0013. o*ar (leeolicaeada rhancatary) 9.64000225.00 5

225
9.84030 tDiiea/Aesred'.uilor

Indirect "
9.840.W

9.840.00H.19^.M
67X37X0 I i9,640X057.197X0 6

TOTAL

Indirtcl Af A Percent of Direct

VVaypistM
SS-2019.0PHSXS410MEV-32-A02;
EahiW 5^22. Budget Amendmem » 2
Pege 1 ofi

Cemclsr MhiBll
%ja^iMBit J2_22.



Exhibit B-23. Budgtt Amendment f 2

New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
COPilPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BlddtrfPregram Hime: Weypobtl (MerrtmAee)

Budget Reeueet for. Home Vleitins . Cenemi Fimds

Budget Period: Jtjty 1.2022 - ̂ ptember M. 2022 (SFV 2022}
♦Tota wogtam.co -V-0»reet:r -^--indirect T '-po''

.  .'ineremenial • - FUed • ,
Total•jinairect"—— OireelT^

lne;ereentil
Totaf—indircei—-iDlreet

_, Insremcfital
Fued 20.350.00

Fixed 30^.00
4.S56.00Unctbxn .30,350.00

4.506X0
4.566.0030J50i)C

t. Total SataivWeoei
2. gnoiwee Benelia

4.565.00

Comuttatus
4. Equiptnenc

Rental
fteoeir ana liajmeoanee
PumnetalPeatecietled 60.00eaoo

60SS. Subobea
E

fio.oo
dueabenAl

Lab
50.00Pharmacy 50X0

609.00
1X02.00

50.00Medieal 906.90SOJX
609X0Office IX02XO906.00

1X02.00B. Travel 1X02X0 i 440.00
taco

. Occucaney 440X0
10X05. Zurrent ExDenae* 443.00440X0 S

19X0Telefitonc
10.00

Poeu

Subscrfodona
Audh and Legal
Inauranee

130.00Board Expenaei moo
750.00130.00SotTivere 7SO.OO1JO-00

10. WarltetirarCatrmuriieaaene 750X0750.001. <i»g gdueafior. and T.-ainlno
I50.K12. suKftneieai menn 159.00

5.645.00lie oetaas (nsnaaio>y 150X0 6.545X0Lteri
150.00

Dues/Aepedi»tien 6.643.O05.645X0 SSSxSrnrpoSESRSUidracl
Uiiixo n6.545X938.647.05 I

TOTAL t7XN
Indirect Aa A Perteoi of Okeet

Waypdnt
S^2019.DPHS-C5^OI.;e/-02-Ain

" EtfiBi: B-23. Budget A.T.en®neni • 2
Page t af t
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Exhibit B^i*. Budget AmendnwRt f 2

New Hampshire Departmem of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM.FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bldd«riPfegr»m mmf. Weypelnl JRetUhghun}

Budget Requeet f»r Hame VJeWng

BiidBBt Period: Ju»r 1. 2022 -September JO.-2022 (SFY 2023)
t—. Pundea By DHHS eamragt-ware- •

Centrset^Share/
. —Total-Total program.cost f •-tndtmet-'Dire:TealTT* Indirect

-• - .Foid?'
—Oirect—

tttmmef.a
letM Fl>edtnoreet

•Ebi'd.
Incretnsntal

Ltcjemenol 37.022.00
Line Item. 37.O22.0O 8.34S.00

a.3«s.oo37.022X0
2S0. Tctal Salaiv/waoea 346 2J5aOO8.346.W

2. Emgleyee Benet.la 2XS0.00 I S
2.2SO.OO

Coiuultants

Egieoirenu

Renud
if and htainlenance

lase/Deofeeiatiwi 223.00
22S.00

225.00
225.00

Edueeiienal

Lab

125.00Pnarmaev 123.00

2.913.00

3,002.00

2.913.00siedical 125.00

2.913.00

3.002.00

125.C0
3.002.003»ce

2.91X00
a. Travel 3.002.00

75X00Oceuaancv 753.00

25.00
25.00B. CufteiK Expenaea 753.00

25X0
753X0

25.K
THeohone

Pperace

Subscfbllana

Audit and Lecel

LnMirane*

Beard Expanxes

373X0
373.00

373.00
37100

434.W

1.159.00
434.00

1.159X0434.00

1.169.00
Seftvore

434.W

1.159.0010. MervetinQiCemnxgvcalPtis
11. Staff Eduealtei end Traln.n
12. g-*vv<eirMa/Aere«tnenli 375.00

375.00
13; fiinar tiaeeHie delaia inanOHory) 10.03100375.00 10.033.00

375.00
r»»«i^mr»dilaliBt>

Indirea.

10.033.0010.033X0
iSloJXMStxoToo »

DOlOXS7.004.00TOTAL
IndlrMt Aa A Percent of Diract

Waysoint
•sS-2019-0PKSri»S-HOf/ev-02-^
emtbh ̂ 24. BodgelArteodfnenl.d 2
Page 1 ef!

Contraaer biitMs



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretav of Sate of lire Stale of New Hanrpshirc, do hereby certify that WAYPOINT is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact btrsiness in New Hampshire on September 25, 1914. I further eertrfy that
all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as thrs office rs
concerned.

Business ID: 62585

Ccrlificate Number: 0004898322

y
lUu

©

7>i

•%»

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

die Seal ofllic Slate of New Hampshire,

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Sccretar>' of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, __KENNETH SHELDON. Board Chair . do hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agei^cy; cannot be contract signatory)

1, 1 am a duly elected Officer of WAYPOINT, ■
(Agency Name)

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 12/4/18_
(Date)

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters Into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the ^PRESIDENT AND CEO.
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected PRESIDENT/CEO ^
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 6 day of August . 2020 ,

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

NH DHHS. Office of Business Operations July 1.2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vole Without Seal



/XCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YTYY)

06/29/2020

L^RT,PICATEISISSUEPASAMATTEK0F,NFyj.AnON0^^^
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CbK..n.M..n^uuu.A. ,, unM ,U1IAL linipm n. a-hi >>>.

HaL .0 .he Crtmoata holder In ll.u o. su.A ,n.o.e..n.W.
PRODUCiiH

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Slreet

Manchester

NAME (603) 645-4331FAX

(803) 669-3218PHONB tAtt. No)

anlcKlln®crossaoency-com

NAICV
1NSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NH 03101

INSURED

VV^ypoint

Po Box 448

Manchester
NH 03105

Andrea Nicklin

INSURER Ain ^
Philadelphia Indemnlty lns Co

—If

.  n Granite Stale Health Care and Human Services Sell-
INSURED P »

.MfiiiBFR c: Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America
INSURER D :

INSURER R:

16056

31194

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: TOniE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCtES OF 'NSUF^NCeUSTEO BELOW DOCUMENT WITH RESPECTTOVWICHTKIS
INDICATED. NOTmHS^DlNGANYREQUIRE^^^^^^^
ExSSnS and CONDITIONS OF SUCH ^ '

REVISION NUMBER:

psLievfeXP LIMITS
rMtiKOOfrVYYI MMJPOLICY NUMBERmm

LTR
1.000.000TYPE OF INSURANCE WVDINSfi

FACH OCCURRENCE
DAMACEIUHbHItUCOMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

i CLAIMS-MADE 1 Xl OCCUl
100.000X PRFMISES lEa occurrtnMl
5.000

MED EXP (Any ona porton)
1.000.000

07/01/2021 pgRSONAL&ADV INJURY07/01/2020PHPK2151359
2,000,000

GENERALAGGREGATE
2,000.000GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APf^lES PEfl

□
PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO

POLICY □
OTHER;

PRO
JECT

1,000,000X Employee BenefitsLOG

combined Single LIMIT
F

1,000,000X a Bccldani
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

^ ANY AUTO
BODILY INJURY (FMf p#f«or»)

BODILY INJURY (P«r «eW«nll
PRSpEftTV oamaCI:

07/01/202107/01/2020PHPK2151341SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

er kcWbt
S 5,000Medical payments

4,000.000
EACH OCCURRENCE

X 4.000.000UMBRELLA LiAB

EXCESSUAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE
07/01/202107/01/2020 AGGREGATEPHUB728723

X
X RETENTIONsl^®^ peR

STATUTE
OTH
ERXDEO

WORKERS COMPEN SA1 ION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y I N
ANY PKOPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE | m
OFFICERAtEMBER EXCLUDED? j
(M»nd»t«»yinNH)
Ifyt»»,desCjtbBundai _ ,
kfecroiPTION OF OPERAI lONS Mlow

1,000,000
C.L EACH ACCIDENT02/01/202102/01/2020HCHS20200000242 1.000,000
E.L, DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEENIA

1,000.000
E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT

500,000

5,000
Limit

Deductible04/01/202104/01/2020Fidelity & Forgery 105912196

OEsLpmONOFOPERATIONSfLOCATIONSfVEHICLS (ACORD 101, Addll.dO.1 R.n...V» ScN.dol.. m^y h. MUCd.d IT I, ...,ut,.d)
DhTs" ate Of NH, Division for Children. Youth 6 Families are tistod as addlUonal .sureds v.,h respects to .he CGL as per wrU.cn contract.

CANCELLATION
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Melanson
ACCOUNTANTS • AUDITORS

Heath

121 River Front Drive

Manchester, NH 03102

.  (603)669-6130
mctansonheath.com

independent AUDITORS'REPORT Addiiion.l OHi...

Nashua. NH

Andover; MA

f ̂  . . Greenfield, MATo the Board of Trustees EiisWoith. me
Waypoint

Report on the Financial Statements

we have audited the accompanying, consolidated financial sVloir^ntthe
comprise the consolidated .statement of financial position as of December 31,
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for yea
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible.for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted mth
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and ̂ aintenance o
Internal control rele.vant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statem-ehts based
on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards V
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of t
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit o obtai
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are ree ro.
material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on th.e

d ornudgment, including the assessment of the risks of materiaI misstatemen of he
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity s preparation



fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opiniom
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above ^
material respects, the financial position of Waypoint as of December 31, 2019, and the
changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

we have previously audited Waypolnfs 2018 consolidated financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our
report dated March 26, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
prLented herein as of and for the year ended December 31,2018 ,s consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
statements as a whole, the Consolidated Schedules of Operating Expenses for 2019 and 2018
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such Information is the responsibiluy of "^^"^Sement and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other ̂ ^^rds" ej ̂
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been sub ected to tf^e
Lditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such f ,
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additiona
procedures in accordance with auditing.standards generally accepted in the United States o
Lerica. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.



other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

^nourestsofitscompiiancewithcertainprovisionsoflaws,reguabo^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^

internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

May 26, 2020



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2019

(with comparative totals as of December 31, 2018)

2019

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Investments

Beneficial interest held in trusts

Property and equipment, net

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities;

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other liabilities

Bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities

Bonds payable, net of current portion
Deferred loans - NHHFA

Interest rate swap agreements

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Without Donor.

Restrictions

177,479

1,260,930

79,161

145,979

1,663.549

15,894.841

6.460,382

22.355,223

$  24,018,772

139,382

646,070

66,628

150,000

1,002,080

3,915,000

1,250.000

1.072,580

7,239,660

16.779,112

With Donor

Restrictions

2019

Total

2018

Total

16.779,112

$  24,018,772

2,992,179
1,837.101

4,829,280

$  177,479
1,260,930

79,161

145,979

1,663,549

18,887,020

1,837,101

6.460,382

27.184,503

1.078,577

714,112

60,000

192,744

2,045.433

16,140,394

1,679.591
6.358,505

'24,178,490

S  4,829.280 $ 28.848,052 $ 26,223,923

4,829,280

4,829,280

$  139,382
646.070

66,628

150,000

1.002.080

3,915,000

1,250,000

1.072.580

7.239,660

16.779.112

4,829,280

21,608.392

217,685

564.736

67,299

140,000

989,720

4.065,000

1.250,000

885,525

7,190,245

14.373,688

4,659,990

19.033,678

$  4.829,280 9 28.848,052 $^26^223^92^

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

I

'  Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31,2018)

2019

Withoul Donor

Rcslrlclions

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Support:

Government grants

Contributions

In-kind contributions ;
Income from special events, net

Revenue:

Service fees

Other

Net assets released from restriction:
Program releases
Endowment releases

Endowment transfer to support operations

Total Support and Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Program services
Management and general ^
Eundraising

Total Operating Expenses

Change in net assets before
non-operating items

NON-OPERATING ITEMS:

Invcslmerit income (loss)

Unrealircd gain (loss) on interest rale swap
Change in beneficial interest
Interest income

Endowment transfer to support operations

Total Non-Operating items

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as restated (NOTE 19)
Net Assets, End of Year

5,186,143

426,853

87,864

With Donor

Restrictions

2019

Total

5  16,056

869,431

S  5,502,499
1,296,284

87,864

487,018

2018
Total

$  5,401,404

1,722,592

94,633

369,175

5,524,270

65,971

•

5,524,270

65,971

5,422,960

64,715

1,194,247

74,751

627,685

(1,194,247)

(74,751)
627.685 661.375

13,975,102 (383,511) 13,591,591 13,736,854

12,086,191

1,308,438

517,402

-

12,086.191

1,308,438

517.402

11,550,792

1,380,172

427,546

13,912,031
. 13,912,031 13,358,510

63,071 (383.511) (320.440) 378,344

2,985,010

(187,054)

1,851

(627,685)

395,291

157,510

3,380,301.

(187,054)
157,510

1,851

(627,685)

(1,006,030)
176,817

(188,315)
1,608

(661.375)

2,172,122

2,235,193

14,543,919

16,779,112

552,801

169,290

4,659,990

2,724,923

2,404,483

19,203.909

(1.677.295)

(1.298,951)

20,332.629

5  4,829,280 5  21,608,392 5  19,033.678

The accompanyinB notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
{with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Personnel expense:

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll related costs
Mileage reimbursement
Contracted services

Subtotal personnel expense

Accounting

Assistance to individuals
Communications

Conferences, conventions, meetjngs
Depreciation
In-kind contributions

Insurance

Interest

Legal
Membership dues
Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Printing and publications
Rental and equipment maintenance
Supplies
Travel

Total Functional Expenses

Program

Sen'ices

6,901,838
886,121
861,733

425,994

527,006

9,602,692

716,800
139,255
48,489

326,931
88,014

65,690

251,532

22,789

30,221

543,136

29,318
89,746
80,964

50,614

$  12,086,191

Management

and General

814,197
84,083
72,205

931

74,153

1,045,569

31,699

8,358
5,949

39,920

9,585

67,874

20.671

1,916

14,869

29,481

2,803
24,229
3,366

2,149

1,308,438

Pundraising

340,669

24,372
27,088

199

54,573

446,901

4,741

3,600

2,597

3,152
1,959

■  13,070

29,732

6,542
5,099

9;

$  517,402

2019

Total

8,056,704
994,576

961,026

427,124

655,732
11,095,162

31,699
716,800
152,354

58,038

366,851
88,014

77,872

319,406

20,671

27,857

47,049

585,687

61,853

120,517

89,429

52,772

S  13.912,031

- ■ • 2018"

Total

7,780,410
827,827

834,465

445,083

662,720
10,550,505

28,700
718,608

166,740
56,018

334,662

94,633

74,104

317,772
3,949

29,992

40,193
548,507

91,540

122,782
115,040

64,765

$  13,358,510

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change In net assets'
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities;

Depreciation

Contributions restricted for endowment

Realized (gain) loss on investments
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments

Change in beneficial Interest in trusts
Change in interest rate swap

Inclusion of new:entity in consolidated financial statements
Changes in operating assets and liabliities:
Accounts receivable I

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Invesdng Activities:
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Contributions restricted for endowment

Payment of long-term debt

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities

Net Change In Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

•  Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Interest paid

2019

2,404,483

2018

(1.298,951)

366,851 334.662

-
(16,717)

(129,565) (136,619)

(2,805,664) 1,688,070

(157,510) 188,315

187,055 (176,817)

20,085 -

(546,818) 170,636

(19,161) (20,000)

46,765 48,802

(78,303) 122,018

81,334 (101,766)

(671) (1,763)

(631,119) 799,870

(511,347) (693,481)

699,950 631,845

(318,582) (426,805)

(129,979) (488,441)

16,717

(140,000) (140,000)

(140,000) (123,283)

(901,098) 188,146

1,078,577 890,431

177,479 S  1,078,577

319,406 317,772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7



WAYPOINT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

1. Organization

Waypoint (the Orgamzation) is a nonprofit organization founded in 1850 that
currently aids more than 20,000 individuals, statewide, through an array of social
services.'

I

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, and can be grouped into the
following categories:

Eorfy Childhood - Family Support & Education Serulces ,f„„„.hen
Over4 sbo parents received education and support to improve parenting strengthen
families,' prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy developmen
children. Over 500 young children starting life at a disadvantage received cribcal
services,to ensure a good beginning and to optimize their chance for life-long succes .
Some of the programs focused on early childhood include:

Early Support and Services - Early Support and Services provides family-centered
support and therapies to infants and toddlers who have developmental
disabilities, delays or are at risk of developmental delays. Services work to
optimize babies' cognitive, physical, emotional and social development, and
chance for success. Services are provided In the child's natural environment
(home, day care, playground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services - A number of different prevention programs are offered
in the home during those critical early years of a child's life. A spectrum of services
includes support to new mothers and those struggling to parent; services fo

■  children with chronic health conditions; prenatal services for babies being born at
a disadvantage into low-income families; and programs
early parent/child relationships and promote optimal early childhood devo.
opment. Services are provided by nurses, social workers, developmental
specialists, occupational therapists, health educators, and home visitors.

Adoption - A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has been forming
families through adoption since 1914. The Organization's adoption professionals
provide home studies and adoption services for families looking to adopt and
provide counselling and support to birthparents who are considering the adoption
option.



Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs
The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal g^ernment
and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services for children, =dole^ems
and young adults. Programs are delivered in the home, schools, or common, y, and
include mental health counseling and substance abuse treatment as we I as a
complex system of family stabilization and preservation programs, child protection
services, and services for at-risk youth. Some of the programs include:

Foster core - The Organization works with the State of New Hampshire in placing
children who have been rescued from dangerous home environments, into safe
stable, loving homes. The Organization recruits and supports foster families and
works to facilitate permanencv for each child.

Home Based Services - The Organization has a number of programs provided in the
family home that are designed to help families who are struggling through da y
life - where children are at risk: Services work to thwart domestic violence, rebuild
families, and to improve family functioning. The Organization empowers families
with the skills and resources they need to provide for their children and become
self-sufficient.

Runaway and Homeless Youth Services

The Organization is the sole provider of services for runaway and homeless youth n
Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services features outreach to at-risk
youth that includes survival aid on the streets and basic needs fulfillment at the drop-
in center, as well as crisis intervention, educational and vocational advocacy, hous g,
and case management. The Organization also provides behavioral health and
substance use counseling where needed. The Organization works ^tems
police, and other agencies in addressing the needs of New Hampshire s homeless
youth.

Senior Care and Independent Living

The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic illness or disability to live
It Lme safely and whh dignity, and to maintain quality of life. Under t e title o Home
Care services are delivered by homemakers, companions, personal care service
providers, and LNAs. The Organization's caregivers go to client homes to ̂ elp tvH
everything from cooking and cleaning to personal hygiene, medication reminders
mobility, travel to appointments; paying bills, help with daily tasks,
communication with family members.

Other Programs

Camp Spauldmg - Since 1921, Camp Spauiding has helped campers from ail types
of backgrounds enjoy the benefits of a traditional, resident camp experience^ In
2015 the organization formed a partnership with the YMCA of Greater Nashua
whereby the Organization will own the camp and the YMCA will handle daily



operations and summer programming. This collaboration
camp history, an exceptional facility, strong community support, and the expertise
of two premier New Hampshire nonprofit organizations.

The New Hampshire Children's Lobby- Established in 1971,.the New Hampshire
Children's Lobby is the advocacy wing of Child and Family Services. The program
mission is to improve the lives of children and families through legislative, judicial,
r  pub polfcy initiatives. This combination of advocacy and direct service
pracre unipuely positions the Organization to serve the best interest of New
Hampshire children.

The Children's Place and Parent Education Center - The Children's Place and
Parent Education Center (TCP) in Concord, NH is a 501(c)(3) organization
incorporated in 1978 to provide both educational and social programs and
services to strengthen and enrich the lives of families with children, two months
through six years old.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Change in Accounting Principle

ASU 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and 2018-08 Contributions
Received and Contributions Made

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standards Update
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), as amended, and ASU No. 2018-08 Wot/or
Profit Entities- Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Receive^t^u!^t,onsZl tropic 60SI as management believes these standards improve
the usefulness and understandability of the Organization's financial reporting.

ASU 2014-09 and 2018-08 have been implemented in 2019, and the presentation in these
Zo°dated financial statements has been adjusted accordingly. Analysis of various
provisions of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the Organuation
Cognizes revenue, and therefore no changes to the previously issued audited consolidated
financial statements (presented in these consolidated financial
financial information) were required on a retrospective basis. The P^^enta ion
disclosures of revenue have been enhanced in accordance with the new standards.

ASU 2016-01 Equity Investments

in 2019 the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards BoardStandards update (ASU) 2015 01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10):
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which relates
to the accounting.for equity investments, financial liabilities under the fair value option,
and the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial instrument .

10



Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include Waypoint, Child and Family Realty
corporation and The Children's Place and Parent Education Center commonly
controlled organizations. All inter-organization transactions have been eliminated.
Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-yearluLadzed'comparative Information In total, but not by net asset class. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the ^"1^ States o
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunc ion wdh the^udPed
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, from which
the sumrharized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
Inths or less and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term
purposes are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and Nuid
financial instruments invested for long-term purposes, including endowments
are perpetual in nature, are excluded from this definition.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is basedr^odcal'experlence, an assessment of economic condition^
subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable.

Contributions Receivable

unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within year are
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be
collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present va ue
LchnLuer incorporating risk-adiusted discount rates designed to reflect t e
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In
amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions is based
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Contributions receivable are written off when deeme
uncollectable. Management has determined that contributions receivable are fully
collectable, therefore no allowance has been recorded.

11



Investments

investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Net investment return/(loss) is reported m e
Consolidated Statement of Activities and consists of interest and dividend income,
realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment expenses.

The Organization maintains pooled investment, accounts for Its restricted
endowment. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the individual
endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each endowment to
the total market value of the pooled investment accounts, as adjusted for additions
to or deductions from those accounts.

Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The beneficial
interest in trusts is reported at Its fair value, which is estimated as the fair value of the
underlying trust assets. Distributions of income from trust assets are restricted as o
use and are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions until expended
in accordance with restrictions. The value of the beneficial Interest in the trusts is
adjusted annually for the change in its estimated fair value. Those changes in value
are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. The assets in the trusts
will never be distributed to the Organization.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and
at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method ov.er the e.stimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 50
years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gam or
loss is included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and
repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
expensed. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from
use and eventual disposition. When considered Impaired, an impairment loss is
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were
no indicators of asset impairment in 2019 or 2018.

12



Interest-Rate Swap

An interest-rate swap is utilized to mitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payabie. The
related liability is reported at fair value in the Consoiidated Statement of Financia
Position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the Consolidated Statement of
Activities.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions^ The Board
has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for a board-
designated endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain
grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in
nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events
specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the dono? stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity while
permitting the Organization to expend the income generated by the assets in
accordance with the provisions of additional donor-imposed stipulations or a
Board approved spending policy. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, o
both.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an
unconditional promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is receive .
Conditional promises to give - that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier and a right of return - are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been met. The Organization records special events revenue equal to the fair
value of direct benefits to donors, and contribution income for the excess received when
the event takes place.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and
grants which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/ or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or
grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported
as refundable advances in the Statement of Financial Position.

13



Revenues derived from providing program services, including facility rentals, are
recognized as the services are provided. Revenue related to facility rentals is recognized
when the performance obligation of providing the space is satisfied. Program services fees
paid in advance are deferred to the period to which they relate. All other amounts paid in
advance are deferred to the period in which the underlying event or rental takes p ace^
Due to the nature and timing of the performance and/or transfer of services, certa
contract liabiiities at December 31 of each year are recognized in tfie following year.

Donated 5er\/ices and In-Kind Contributions

volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services
administration, and fundraising and development activities; ^
consolidated financial statements do not reflect the value of
services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by GeneraUy
Accepted Accounting Principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value the
date of donation. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective
values of the services received.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

FunctlonaiAllocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities,
Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detai
expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services beneHted.

Measure of Operations

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including
changes in net assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities
consist of those items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and
services and include the Organization's annual endowment transfer to suppor
operations. Non-operating activities are limited to resources outside of those
programs and services and are comprised of non-recurring gains and losses on sales
and dispositions, investment income, changes in the value of beneficial interests
interest rate swaps.

Income Taxes

Waypoint and the Children's Place and Parent Education Center have been recognized
by the internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income
internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as organizations described in IRC Section

14



501(c)(3) qualify for charitable contribution deductions, and have been determined
not to be private foundations. Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt from
federal income tax under Section SOl(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organization described in Section 501(cl(25).

Each entity Is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax (Form 990} with the IRS. In addition, each is subject to income tax on net income
that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to their exempt P^rpos^'n
2019 and 2018, Waypoint was not subject to unrelated business income tax and did
not file, an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form.990-T) with the
IRS.

fst/mates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Generahy
Accepted Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions that ^
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of '
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and he reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may

■ differ from those estimates, and those differences could be material.

Financial instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash accounts with financial
institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
Insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accoun^^
Credit risk associated with accounts and contributions receivable is considered to be
limited due to high historical collection rates, investments are exposed to various risks
such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of nsk associated with
certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes he
values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could
materially affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Although the fair values of investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-
to-year basis, the Investment Committee believes that the investment policies an
guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the Organization.

Fair \/alue Measurements and Disclosures

certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regard ess of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another vaiuatjon
technique, inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or iiabiiity, including assumptions
about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs
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that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or
iab Iity ba ed on market data obtained from sources independent of the report,ng
"ntitv Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect 'be reportmg entit/s own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability based on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes
the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable fonthe asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and
market-corroborated inputs.

/.eve/ 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, in these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

in some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might
be categorized within different ievels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair valu
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire .
Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires
judgment taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. T
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency
o1 the Isset and does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality,
risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because
they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. However, Level
inputs are not available for certain assets and liabilities that the Organization is
required to measure at fair vaiue (for example, unconditional contributions receivab
and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's consoiidated financial
statements are;

.  initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment assets and
unconditional promises to give.

.  Recurring measurement of endowment investments (Note 6) - Level 1.

.  Recurring measurement of beneficial interests in trusts (Note 7) - Level 3.
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•  Recurring measurement of line of credit (Note 9) Level 2.
.  Recurring measurement of bonds payable and interest rate swap (Note 10) -

Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of deferred loans (Note 11) - Level 2.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and contributions
receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued payroll and related liabilities,
and other liabilities approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Leases

in February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ^5^ 2°16 0
Leases The ASU requires all leases with lease terms more than 12 months be
"ZyM a right of use asset and lease liability on the Statement of Financial
Position at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be classified as either finance
leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for the pattern of expense
ecoBlion in the Statement of Activities. This ASU will be effective for the
organization for the year ending December 31, 2021. The O^nizahon's cur endy n
the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the
statements.
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the date of the
Statement of Financial Position, are comprised of the following at December 31,

Financial assets at year end; ^ 177,479
Cash and cash equivalents 1,260,930
Accounts receivable, net 79,161
Contributions receivable 18,887,020
Investments 1.837.101

Beneficial interest held in trusts
22,241,691

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used within one year; ^
Net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets with purpose restrictions to be met in less than a year - (538,689)
Donor-restrlcled endowment subject to spending policy rate (4.00K) 4,192,451
and appropriation '

15.894,841
Board-designated endowment

Less: Board-designated endowment annual spending (563.860) 15.330,981
policy rate (4.00%) '

19 523 432Less total amounts not available to be used within one year f—«

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures 2.718,259
over the next year

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by
the Board to function as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is
restricted for specific purposes. The portion of endowment funds that are perpetua
in nature are not available for general expenditure.

Board-designated endowment Is subject to an annual spending rate as de^mlned by
the Board. Although there Is no intention to spend from hoard-designated
endowment (other than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the
Board's annual budget approval and appropriation), these amounts could he ma
available if necessary.

As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization aLso has a $1,500,000
revolving line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.
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4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019
2018

Receivable Allo^vance Net Allowance £Jcl
■  U1 t 5 - S 678,502 $ 379.362 S - ^ 379,362

Total $  1.263,230 $ (2.300) $ 1.260.930 5 718.012 $ (3.900) $ 714^112

5. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at year end relate primarily to prepaid insurance and contracts.

6. Investments

investments at fair value consist of mutual funds totaling $18,887 020 and
~0394 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. During 019 the
Organization recognized $2,935,229 of net gains and losses on investments. Of tha
amount, $2,935,229 was recognized on investments of equity secunti
December 31, 2019.

Under the terms of the Organization's line of credit agreement (Note 9), the
organization has agreed not to pledge these investments as security on any other
debt.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of
investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or
appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees for
2019 was 4.25% of the average fair market value of all investments over the previous
twelve quarters.

AS discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organization is
required to report its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based
on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Organization s valuation
techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments measured
at quoted prices in active markets for identical investments as of the December 31
2019 Level 2 is for investments measured using inputs such as quoted prices for
similar assets, quoted prices for the identical asset in inactive markets, and for
investments measured at net asset value that can he redeemed m the
3 is for investments measured using inputs that are unohservahie, and is used in
situations for which there is little, if any, market activity for the investment.
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The Organization uses the following ways to determine the fair vaiue of its
investments:

Mutual funds: Determined by the published value per unit at the end of the
last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.

f

7. Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The organization is the soie beneficiary of three funds that are administered by the
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). income from the funds is
assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital improvements to the
crrJtp The fund resolution provides that distributions from the funds can be made at
the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the fair market value of the funds which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, was
$858,994 and $800,624, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder trusts.
The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts. The fair value
of these beneficial interests is determined by applying the Organization s percentage
interest to the fair value of the trust assets as reported by the trustee.

Percentage

Trust Interest 2019 2018

Greenleaf 100% $ 384,004 $ 350,806
Spaulding 100% 332,956 297,837
Cogswell 50% 261,147 230^
Total 5 978,107 S 878,967

Beneficial interest held in trusts is reported at fair value, which is
present value of expected future cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed
Note 2, the valuation technique used by the Organization is a Level 3 measure because
there are no observable market transactions.
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2019 2018

1,114,949 $  1,114,949

8,862,063 8,335,089

843,251 796,686

107,581 107,581

377,333 285,372

5,415 38,870

11,310,592 10,678,547

(4.850,210) (4,320,042)

6.460,382 S  6,358,505

8. Property, Equipment, and Depreciation

Property and equipment is comprised of the following at December 31, 2019 and
2018:

Land and land improvements

Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Vehicles

Software

Construction in progress

Subtotal

Less accumulated depreciation

Total

9. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank. The
line of credit expired on June 30, 2019 and was extended through June 30, 2020. The
line is secured by a first lien on accounts receivable, double "^Sative pledge OM
investments of the borrower, and carries a variable rate of interest at the Wall Street
Journal prime rate (4.75% at December 31, 2019), adjusted" daily. At December 31,
2019, the balance on this line of credit was $529.

10. Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (the
"Authority") sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services s ,
series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization to refund it
Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain improvements to the Organization s
facilities The Series 2007 Bonds were issued with a variable interest rate determined
on a weekTbasis. Prior to issuing the Bonds, the Organization entered into a—^
rate swap agreement (the "Swap Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the Connte
party") for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with th .
Series 2007 Bonds. The interest rate.swap agreement requires the Organization to pay
the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange, the Counterparty will pay the
Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based on the 67% of one month
LIBOR Counterparty payments to the Organization were intended "offset
Organization payments of variable rate interest to bond holders. Counterparty credit
worthiness and market variability can impact the variable
the Organization, with the potential of increasing Organization interest payments. As
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3 result the cost of'the interest rate swap for 2019 and 2018 is added to interest
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature m
2038 and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap in the Cotisolidated
Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any, m the fair va^e of the
swap in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For example, ̂ -"8
vear holding period, the annually calculated value of the swap will be reported as an
I!set if Merest rates increase above those in effect on the date of the. swap wa
entered Into (and as an unrealized gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities)
which will generally be Indicative that the net fixed rate the Organization is Paving o
the swap is below market expectations of rates during the rernaining °f t ̂
swap. The swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Console
dated Statement of Activities) If interest rates decrease below those in effect on the
date the swap was entered Into, which will generally be indicative that the net fixe
rate the Organization is paying on the swap is above market expectations o ra es
during the remaining term of the swap. The annual accounting adjustments of value
changes in the swap transaction are non-cash recognition requirements, the net
effect of which will be zero at the end of the bond's 30-year term. At '
2019 and 2018 the Organization recorded the swap liability position of 51|072.580
and $885 S2S, respectively. During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the creditattg of the counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which
triggLd a mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in whole and a temporary
conversion of one-hundred percent of the principal amount to a bank purchase mod^
under the terms of said letter of credit reimbursement agreement. Since it beca

■ evident that the credit markets would not soon return to normalcy, the Organization
e^^cted to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate
mode This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in which the Series 200
Zds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68% of the sum of t e
adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The bank purchase mode
^omr^ienced on fuly 31, 2009 and expired on July 31, 2014; however, the expira ion
date was extended by the Counterparty and the Organization had the 0P'»ri "
convert back to the weekly rate mode. The Series 2007 Bond
Organization to comply with certain financial covenants. As of December 31, 2019,
the Organization was in compliance with these covenants.
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The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned bonds
payable:

Year Amount

2020 $  150,000

2021 150,000

2022 165,000

2023 175,000

2024 180,000

Thereafter 3.235,000

Total $  4.065,000

11. Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance
2005 The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the payment of
LteLt and due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located ,n Dover,
New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance
2007 The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the payment
TeLt and" due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located in
Manchester, New Hampshire.

12. Endowment Funds

The organization's endowment consists of various individuai "
varietv of purposes. Endowment includes both donor-restricted funds and funds
a  ■ tori h« the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by

-• r rrr::
funds including funds designated by the Board of Trustees o
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Board-designated Endowment

As of December 31, 2019, the Board of Trustees had designated $15,894,841 of netass^wZut donor restnctions as a general endowment fund to support the mission
of the Organization.
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Donor-designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date for donor-restricted perpetua
endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result o
this Interpretation, the Organization classifies as perpetually restricted net assets
la) the ordinal value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the
in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time
the accumulation is added. The remaining portion of the
fund that is not classified as perpetually restricted is classified as net assets with donor
restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization
In a marner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accor-
dance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in ̂ ^ "6
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment fund .
(1) the duration and preservation of the various funds. (2) the purposes o e ono
restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect
of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and he ,
appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Organization, and (7) the
Organization's investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

The Organization considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less
than the sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts donated o
the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are required to be maintained in
perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The
organization complies with UPMIFA and has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spendmg
from underwater funds in accordance with prudent measures under the law.
The Organization had no underwater endowment funds at December 31, 2019.

investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a total
return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance the principa
of the fund and, at the same time, provide a dependable source of support for curren
operations and programs. The withdrawal from the fund in support °f
operations is expected to remain a constant percentage of the total fund, adjusted
ne\A/ gifts to the fund.

in recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification Is
sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation rates are
cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achjved through
Asset allocation parameters have been developed for various funds within the
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structure, based on investmerrt objectives, liquidity need.s, and time horizon for
intended use.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed
^n a toXln basis, net of management fees and transaction costs. TotaI re urn ,
defined as dividend or interest income plus realized and unrealized capital
appreciation or depreciation at fair market vaiue.

Spending Policy

The organization's spending policy rate in 2019 was 4.25% of the Bverage total
endowment vaiue over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin,
includes interest and dividends paid out to the Organization.

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of 33
changes in endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2019
follows: w,.i.i....,ii...a..i»..

"sST Si — 'SS - S
i  ■ s «=.». t s

CMO., I700.000I
ApproptiftOon* 'fOf" •ndowrr^iH l62>./4J)
Tempcrarv »ppropriailor> l« 53B S89 • 53B,C89
piuptuf-reJlricWdnetiHtls (518.6801 • 335201 305.^91 3.1B0.301
,„.c„™n,ln.o™,».. , nrtr ! 77..™. S .,67M£. S_W2iiZl. "."'"i'"''-
Eodowrreniren»«!t$. e«lDfy«af S_ 15.89 ,8 ' i—

13. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restriction are comprised of the following at December 31,
2019 2018

<  RR4 271 $ 366,244 .Undesignated net assets 14,007,444
Board designated endowment

1-Q^al $ 16.779,112 $ 14.373,688
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Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at December 31,
2019 and 2018;

20182019

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Camp

Child abuse prevention

Family counseling
Family resource center

Homecare

Human trafficking

IT and other projects
Teen and youth

Endowment:

Accumulated earnings restricted by donors for:
General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Original gift restricted by donors for:
General operations

Camp operations .

Other purposes

Total restricted endowment

Not subject to spending policy or appropriation:
Beneficial interest in trusts

Total

71,265 $ 113,699
98,265

9,398

34,569

111,587
10,000

108,522

95,083

538,689

176,893

198,902

398,289

774,084

133,407

548,988

997,011

1,679,406

2,453,490

1,837,101

153,836

14,160

92,430
30,000

208,891

234,433

847,449

131,716

92,896

228,932

453,544

133,407

548,988

997,011

1,679,406

2,132,950

1,679,591

S  4,829,280 $ 4,659,990
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Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified
by the donors as follows for the year ended December 31, 2019:

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Camp

Child abuse prevention

Family counseling

Family resource center

Homecare

Human trafficking

IT and other projects

Teen and youth

Restricted-purpose spendlng-rate

distributions and appropriations:

General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Total

$ 119,417

150,071

41.834

2,211

295,499

50,000

312,866

222,349

1,194,247

11,268

27,789

35,694

74,751

$  1,268,998

14. Assistance to Individuals

The $716:800 in "Assistance to individuals" (see Consolidated Statement of Functional
Expenses') is comprised of the following (rounded to the nearest thousand):

Payment to parents of foster children
Housing assistance to youth at risk of homelessness
Gift cards provided to families during holiday season
Food for at risk youth

Other assistance such as medical, childcare,
transportation, and family activities

Total

$ 302

144

59

25

186

$ 716

15. Functionalized Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are
attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses
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rpouire allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
llnratpd include clerical IT and administration, which are allocated to program

programs and supporting services.

16. Defined Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Planall aiioibie emoloyees may immediately make elective

. Hi
17. Operating Leases

respectively.

18. Related Party Transactions

The organization procures a portion of their legal ̂ ^H^'Ta!d°of o'™ The

ended December 31, 2019, the total legal expense from related parties was $15,6 .

19. Prior Period Restatement

Reainnina net assets for 2019 have been increased by $170,231 to include the assets

have not been restated.

20. Concentration of Risk
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dependent upon the economic health of that area and of the State of New Hampshire.
An economic downturn could cause a decrease in grants that coincides with an
increase in demand for the Organization's services.

21. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 26, 2020, the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

The COVID-19 outbreak In the United States (and across the globe) has resulted In
economic uncertainties. The disruption is expected to be temporary, but there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration and scope. The extent of the impact of
COVID-19 on our operational and financial performance will depend on certain
developments, including the.duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on our
individuals served, employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be
predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact our man lal
condition or results of operations Is uncertain. In response to the
19 has had on our Organization, a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan was
applied for, and $1,741,500 received on April 24, 2020.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Sal3r1e>4nd wtges

Emptoy*®
P«'/retl relsKd cosu

Milea{e f*lr:6un*nienc

Cenracted aeMces

Accmednc

Asslsta.xi a indviduals

Ccrmruriutiofs

Csflfe/encti, eomreftUsns.

meetinc*
Depredation

l.vldnd eonttibutiont

lnaurar\ce

Interest

legal
Merr^enhip dues

Miscellaneous

Occusancy

Mnting and ptifcHcatiOfiS

Rental end ecuipnient

iraintenance

Supplies

Travel

Total

Eairily

Counseling

S  592,£83 S

iS.lZl

SS.62S

4317

ia066

57

4.233

1,430

8.403

4.078

13,973

17326)

5,699

128.712)

SS358

136S

(€921
19,530

3.779

Teen

end

Youth

811378

123,479

9SJ90

37.961

S3.0S4

231.226

37.260

S.540

130.051

45.647

U.053

39,926

1.S30

3,212

191,947

4,042

14,221

32,348

22J1S

Cteld Abuse

Treawent

ft Family

Strengthening

S  1,797,236

255,330

23U36

230,943

e5j74

355,852

37.355

4.913

49,246

42,367

21,357

81.848

2.425 •

3.536

163,147

3324

28.534

19,132

3,192

Child

Abuse

RrevCiTtlon

1365.113

224,471

195,964

66.254

133,533

nS.078

35,008

8,887

44,442

17,108

73,863

8,235

8,736

101,733

13,568

26,300

13.321

14,803

Carly

imen/enticn

5  359.348

31,759
42373

2US4

25.490

8

5,136

868

8,408

3,377

13,974

385

2,618

1U23

1.556

4j3e

1,185

851

574,853 5 1,891.710 5 3.423,407 S 2.668.407 S 535.729 S

Adoptions

and

Pregnancy Child Sunvtter • Total

Hnmeeare rniinseling Advocacy Camp Pioeram

1,758,468 5  88432 5  121.616 5  7,144 5 6.901.831

198472 11.097 3,730 • 1.221 886.121

220,779 9.016 9.631 629 881.733

63,078 1,726 203 S3 425.994

25,769 6,713 5486 174,591 527,006

7,614 . 6455 716,800

15,498 1.949 1413 453 139,255

9,187 350 16487 272 48/439

8,408 4,804 2,402 70,762 326.931

88.014

7.044 703 760 • 210 65,690

13.974 7,985 3.993 1,996 251,532

2426 . •

3.466 170 767 112 22.789

33.253 6486 234 658 30.221

6480 3.105 3.915 1,628 543,136

5,734 1,020 951 158 29,318

1U73 2.754 1.414 756 89.746

3.297 502 574 75 80,964

112 438 424 50.614

;  2,394.726 5  154.938 5  174.314 5  266.107 $ 12.086.191

Menac'tnent

and

General

814,197

84.083

72.205

931

74.153

31.699

Futtdralslnt

S  340,669

24.372

27,088

199

54,573

8JS8

5,949

39,920

9,585

67.874

20,671

1.916

14,809

29,481

2,803

24.229

3.366

Z.149

4,741

3.600

2J97

3,152

1,959

13,070

29.732

6,542

5,099

9

2019

Total

8,056,704

994476

961,026

427,124

655.732

31.699

716400

152.354

58.038

366451

88.014

77472

319,406

20,671

-27457

47449

S8S.S87

6I453

120.517

89,429

52,772

1.303,438 5 517.402 5 13.912.031

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

AdOpdOftt

Treamwnt Child and Management

2018
Earrdly

Toiim^lir*

S Fanilv Abuse Early Pregnancy ChUd Summer . Toal ar>d

Youth Strenethenine Prevenden Ir■tervemion Hameeare Caunsellne Advocscv Camp Proeram Gerteral Ftndralslne Total

SalariUftndwit«j
Employee benefis
Payroil related cases
hOeate rcimbunement
Cofffiscted ser-rlCM

S  a66.270 S 940.297 5  1.571.CSO. S  X43S411 S 344.092 5  xe49.913 5  8X328 5  118431 5  6,728 5 6,614.360 5  849.923 S  316.127 S 7,780.410
827,827

39.799 135.622 190.979 181,757 33,660 144,054 12.964 X8S3 897 742416 66.141

5$.967 100.911 173.279 16X282 37.294 19642S 7.437 9,278 521 743,794

S.6G0 8U89 249406 66.137 18.647 59.274 X294 69 156 442.792 413

28.809 43.507 95,385 165,055 20455 23.246 9.429 2412 17X937 560,035
28,700

6,553 poc.'aC>
28,700

A£COurOrt
5.06a 190.798 353485 133.826 34I8 10471 7,494 718400

8.249

718,608

Communlcadons 3.a93 38.575 81,973 33,808 4.980 16.451 1.998 XSi2 584 148444

Conferences, awventipni,
mee!in(t

Oepreciatian
3,681 2,815 19,919 1444 X649 3 1.957 1 34,183 19433 2402 56418

7.672
1.510

118.639
61,077

84425
27,625

40,542 7.570 7.670 4,383 2,191 644S3 298,245
.  90,2U

36,417
3,4M 1400 94.633

5.681 11.048 17.880 15,802 3.22a 6477 711 775 168 6X370

Interest 13.902 39.721 8X429 73.485 13.^ 13.903 7.944 3,972 X986 250.245 67,527
3.949 . 3,949

Utii
MernfcersMp dues
Miscellaneous

0»upancy
f^ntlnf and pufalicitioM

1.531
1,687

45,179
2,831

1,258
8.518

1.224
6.725

140492

7.241
3,475

113.318

8

X0S2
10.107

6466

5481
27.452

3

648

3422

502
174

3497

3

232

5.889

28.132
24.352

495.619

7447
13.167

4X188

3413
X674

11,700

29.992

40.193
548,507

9.092 14,541 12,070 3.003 12.054 435 X220 672 55.968 1X656 2X916 9X540

Renal and equipment
malntenarxe

Supplies
Travel

5.310
10.878

15.574

26.700
3046S
21431

27,270
17,739
14.225

5.186
3489

939

6493
1X408

3.233

2460
654

134

X43S

719

147

823

71

464

95.167
94,685
6X265

25486
17.700

3.144

X029
X656

356

12X782
115440

64.765

5  711.821 V S 1J68.075 5  3.084.373 5  2420.762 5 509.267 5  X196.563 5  145418 5  151434 S  263.179 S 11450.792 5  1430,172 5  427446 S 13,358410

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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Borja Alvarez de Toledo, Wl.Ed.

464 Chestnut St, Wlatichostor, NH. 03105/ 603-782-6442
alvar0zdetoledob@waypo!ntnh.org

Professional Profile

.  A .iBasoned leader wllh tirore Iharr 18 years of senior level non-profit management experience.
^trnnn Iruslness acumen witti emphasis on developing processes to ensure the alignment of

■ Sv oSons ™d outcomes with a strength based approach to leadership developmerrt
. ■ cSoraXeTeS using systemic and strategic framework in program development, supe,vision

and conflict resolution.

Professional Experience

Waypoint, formerly Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
Mandiester, NH

.  ReTpfrt^^ifowam planning and development, irrsuring that Waypoint meets the community

. Mvfnce the public profile of Waypoint by developing innovaWe approaches and building productive
roinfinn<;hicj*5 with aovornment, rogional and national constituoncios.

.  Acts as advisor to the Board of Directors and maintains relationships with the regional Boards
:  of hnanclal planning, sustainabllily and oversight of Waypoirjt s assets

Wnrk with DeveloDment staff and Board of Directors to design and Implement a» fundralsing
' Sites Indud^gSvalion and solicitation of Key individaals, foundations and corporahons

Riverside Community Care 2009- 2013
Dedham, MA

model to leadership development.

The Guidance Center, Inc. ^998.20Q9
Cambridge, MA

2007 - 2009

.  Hired Mally'arDt^^^ Intensive homo-based family program and through successive

Private Practice In Psychotherapy and Clinical Consultation
Madrid. Spain



Univcrsidad Poiitific(a do Comillas
Madrid, Spain 1991 - 1998

'^Adjunct Faculty

•  Taught graduate level courses in Family and Couples Therapy program
•  Practlciim program supervisor; Supervised first year Master's Degree students through live

supervision in the treatment of multi-problem families.

Contro Mddico-Psicopedagdglco
Madrid, Spain 1994 -1997

'-Clinical Coordlnator/DlrQCtor of Training.
•  Member of a mulli-disclplinary team Oiat provided assessment and treatment to families victims of

terrorism and had developed Post Traumatic Stress Disorder.

ITAD {Institute for Alcohol and Drug Treatment),
Madrid, Spain r 1991- 1994

~ Senior Drug and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Alcohol Program
•' Provided evaluation and treatment for chemically dependent adults and their families.
- Senior Family Therapist, Couples and Family Thorapy Program
• Worked as a family therapist in the ©valuation and treatment of adolescents and families.

Charles River Health Management
Boston, MA 1989 - 1991

~ Senior Family Therapist, Home Based Family Treatment Program.

Education

Graduate Certificate of Business

University of Massachusetts, Lowell, 2000.
Master's Degree In Education
Counseling Psychology Program. Boston University, 1989.
B.A. In Clinical Psychology
Universidad Pontiiicia de Comillas, Madrid, Spain. 1988

Publications

2009 Ayers.S & Alvarez do Toledo, B. Community Based Mental Heaiih with Children and Families. In A.
R. Roberts (Ed.) .Social Worker's Desk Reference {2"" ed.),New York; Oxford University Press, 2009

2006 Topical Discussion: Advancing Community-Based Clinical Practice and Research: Learning in the
Field. Presented at the 19''' Annual Research Conference: A System of Care for Children's Mental
Health: Expanding the Research Base, February 2006, Tampa, FL.

2001 Lyman, D.R.; Slegel, R.; Alvarez de Toledo, B.; Ayers, S.; MIkuia, J. How to be little and sflU think
big: Creating a grass roots, ovidenco based system of care. Symposium presented at the 14*''
Annual Research Conference in Children's Mental Health, Research and Training Center for
Children's Mental Health, February 2001, Tampa, FL.

2006 Lyman, D.R., B. Alvaiez de Toledo, The Ecology of intensive community based intervention. In
LIghtburn, A., P. Sessions. Handbook of Communily Based Clinical Practice. Oxford University
Press, 2006, England.

2001 Lyman. D.R.. B. Alvarez de Toledo (2001) Risk factors and treatment outcomes in a strategic
intensive family program, in Newman, .C, C. Llberton, K. Kujash and R. Friedman, (Eds.) A System
of Care for Children's Mental Health: Expanding the Research Base (2002), pp. 55-58. Research
and Training Center for Children's Mental Health, University of South Florida, Tampa, FL.

1994-98 Research papers and professional presentations in peer reviewed journals In Spain

Languages
\

Fluent in Spanish, French and Italian.



COLLEEN Wl. IVES
2605 Elm Street • Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

(603) 630-8239 •

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

and individuals.

professional experience

community-based services.

O^emtetan a" of program delivery incMing; fiscal and personnel management, puallty assurance and
program development

and affordable housing sectors.

best practices,

throughout New England.

locations in 9 states, analyzing threats ana , ,nd taupht introductory and upper level

career note: Concurrent with —ing en^^^^ ®^«,^nester and Portsmouth, New Hampshire,
psychology and sociology q^lEEN M. IVES • Page 2 • cives2605@gmail.com



services.

SnrbudgS. Hsid complete performance management authority as well as autonomy to engage rn private

. taeSf w credibility of nnancial reporting and reduced headcount by Implementing state of
the ail technology with expertise of retained IT consultant.

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR
sendees for Independent Living, Vocational

Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program.

MaSd^pSonal staff of 8 to deliver services that included 15 statewide rehabilitative suppod groups, career
counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises in State and Federal '^'^"^.'"9®-

.: iss
and human services and employment arenas.

EDUCATION

Doctorate in Human and Organizational Systems
Master of Arts in Human Development

Fielding Graduate University, Santa Barbara, California

Master of Arts/CAGS in Rehabilitation Counseling
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and Philosophy
Assumption College, Worcester, Massachusetts



Gina Corey Peirante, C.P.A.

Core Skills:

.  Policies and ' Stteamlining

Integration ' Procedures accounting
Internal Controls ' Budget processes
Audit" Preparation and
Preparation Analysis

Work.Experieiice:

ih, Teamwork. Ine. 2013-2019 Lowell, Massachusetts
Director of Fiuaucc and Accounting

Renorting to the CFO, manage staff in the accounting department and eoordmalmg
annual budget for $90 million agency providing housing. WIG, Energy and Child Care
Services to low-income individuals
' Pieoare agency cost allocations
•  Ensure compliance with agency's 150 federal, state and private contracts
•  Prepare agency budgets and analyze financial results
•  Analyze.and improve accounting processes and fiscal conbols thioughout the

•  Oversees the financial management of the organization and monitoring of
oreanizational performance and fiscal controls

•  Coordinate Annual Audit and review Accounting Pronouncements for
applicability

M;.h..lFReillv.PC 2006-2013 Haverbill, Massachusetts

Ptaned and managed the audit process for several non-public compaiiies and not-
for-profit organizations including the Northern Essex Community College
Foundatiou. ARC of Northeast Haverhill and Simple Living, toe.

• Worked with clients to help improve efficiencies and establish accounting

• ftepared tax returns for individuals and non-public and not-for-profit corporations



Page 2
Gina Corey Ferranle, C.P.A.

n;,H.lP.nninment Corporation 1987-1992 Acton. Massachusetts

S  Di.,,., —
•  A^^ldllmcnts inlsmal to Digital in prepatatioia fot theoulaitle aoditora

p,„n„.n,,DXADnDnen,ent 1985-1987 Burlington. Massachusetts
Director of Accouuting

' Managed the monthly/quarterly closing process
' Prepared financial statements (B/S, P&L, & Cash flows)

: sSaCSliS".""-!"—
_  T 1 ooa 1 Qfi^ hdiami, Florida

Pyder Systems. Inc. 19o4-iyoD
Manager of Accounting -
• Managed the raonthly/quaj terly closing process
•  Prepared financial statements (B/S, P&L. & Cash flows)
•  Performed analytical analysis
•  Prepared the quarterly and year-end audit schedules

)rir.p. Wflterhouse 1981-1984 Miami, Floiida

•  Planned, and managed the audit process for several nou-public companies
including the Miami Dolphins, and area construction companies

•  Prepared tax returns for individuals and small corporaUons during the busy

Education:

Florida International Vnivei-sity
Masters of Science in Taxation

TTniversily nfMiami
BBAAccounting

Systems: Abila Fund Accounting. Office (Word. Excel. PowerPomt). Outlook.
QuickBooks, Profx
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New HampshlFe Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Servieee

Slate of New Han^shlre
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Home Visiting Services Contract

Thb 2*^ Amendment to the Home VisHIng Services contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #2")
Is by and between the State of New Kampshba, Department of Health end Human Services (herelna^r
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Family Resource Center at Gort^m (hereinafter
referred to as 'the Contractor"), a nonprofit, corporation with a ptace of business at 123 Main Street,
Qorham.NH 03581.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20,2018 (Item #27E), as amended on September 18,2019, (Item #27). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Gerteral Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants end conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30,2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,771,141.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 1 Provisions Applicable to All Senrices, Subsection
1.5., to read:

1.5. The Contractor shaD provide home visiting services to a minimum of temilies as outlined
below per contract year

1.5.1 Coos County s 25 families per year

1.5.2 Grafton County ° 20 families per year

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, Paragraph 2.2.4.,
to read:

2.2.4. Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential components of the HFA
Model are addressed In agency policies.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, by adding
Paragraph 2.2.6., to read:

2.2.6 Participate In Continuous Quality Improvement Projects and coUaboratlve efforts to serve
families within designated catchment areas. The Contractor shall:

2.2.6.1. Endure staff are available to provide relevant data as well as key data and metrics,
as requested by the Department.

The Family Rosourco Center at Gofham Amendment #2 . Contrador Inltiala

SS.2019.DPHS-06-HOMEV-03-A02 Pa8e1of4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

2.2.6.2. Ensure staff are available to review data, discuss performance, learn from fneir
peers, and identify action-steps that may improve client outcomes.

6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Subsection 3.5 to read:

3.5. Reserved.

7. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Subsection 3.6, to read

3.6. Reserved.

8. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4 Reporting and Deliverable Requirements, by adding
Subsection 4.8., to read:

4.8 The Contractor shall participate in sub-recipient monitoring activities, as coordinated by the
Department. The Contractor shall:

4.8.1 Provide fiscal documentation demonstrating that MIECHV funding is utilized
solely to support activities under this contract, as requested by the Department.

4.8.2 Ensure expenses are reasonable, allowable and allocable per 45 CFR 75.

4.8.3. Provide documentation of funding utilization and reasonable expenses to the
Department upon request.

9. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5 Work Plan, Subsection 5.2. to read:

5.2. The Contractor shall submit a Work Plan, utilizing a template as provided by the
Department, that includes, but is not limited to:

5.2.1. Activities.

5.2.2. Performance Measures (Outcomes).

5.2.3. Action Plan for Improvement.

10. Modify Exhibit A-2 Work Plan Template by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit A-
2 Performance Measures, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2,
Subsection 2.3 to read:

2.3 General Funds from Parental Assistance Funds

12. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for allowable costs only in
accordance virith Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-18 Budget - Amendment #2.

13. Modify Exhibit B-3 Budget by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit B-3 -
Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

14. Modify Exhibit B-6 Budget by deleting It in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit B-6 -
Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

15. Add Exhibit B-9 Budget - Amendment #2.

16. Add Exhibit B-10 Budget - Amendment #2.

17. Add Exhibit B-11 Budget-Amendment #2.

.  -1%The Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019.DPHS-05-HOMEV-03-A02 Page 2 of 5 Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

18. Add Exhibit B-12 Budget - Amendment #2.

19. Add Exhibit B-13 Budget - Amendment #2.

20. Add Exhibit B-14 Budget - Amendment #2.

21. Add Exhibit B-15 Budget - Amendment #2:

22. Add Exhibit B-16 Budget - Amendment #2.

23. Add Exhibit B-17 Budget - Amendment #2.

24. Add Exhibit B-18 Budget-Amendment#2.

pPj
The Family Resource Center at Gortiam Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-03-A02 Page 3 of 5 Date.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment U2
remain in fuD force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemorand Executive
Counci) approval

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

ortl" iLkdiTIt/
Title:

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

8-10-2020

Date Name: Patricia Stolte

Title: Executive Director

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment #2

SS-2019-0PHS-05-HOMEVOSA02 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

08/17/20

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name:
ntle: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Th« Family Resouree Canter at Goitiam Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

1. Performance Measures

1.1. For all measures, consider services provided during State Fiscal year 2021 (July
1, 2020- June 30, 2021) in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services of this
Contract.

Performance Measure #1 fEPDSl

HFA Best Practice Standard 7-4.D

Measure: 80% of women enrolled in the program received at least one Edinburgh Postnatal
Depression Scale screening by 3 months postpartum.

Goal: All post-paitum women enrolled in HFA will receive this formal, validated screening for
depression at the optimal time.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of women that received an

Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale (EPDS) screening by 3 months postpartum.

Denominator-The total number of women in the program who reached 3 months post
partum during the reporting period and were enrolled prior to 3 months after the birth of
their baby.

Data Source: ETO: Reports View Reports (New) Quarterly Reports HFA EPDS 3 months rev
[7/10/2019] Index child only

Performance Measure #2 fRetentionl

HFA Best Practice Standard 3-4.A

Measure: Increase the percent of families who remain enrolled in HFA for at least 6 months

from FFY 2019 average (10/1/2018-9/30/2019) baseline.

Goal: Families stay connected and maintain involvement with HFA services.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of families that remained in HFA

services at least 6 months.

Denominator- The number of families who received a first home visit during the period
10/1/2019-9/30/2020:

Quarter 1 10/1/2019- 12/31/2019
Quarter 2 1/1/2020-3/31/2020
Quarter 3 4/1/2020 - 6/30/2020
Quarter 4 7/1/2020 - 9/30/2020.

Data Source: ETO: Reports'^ View Reports (New) Quarterly Reports'^ HFA Retention
Summary (Current) (Baseline is determined by performance in the prior fiscal year.)

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Exhibit A-2 Pefformance Measures Vendor inttlals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

Performance Measure #3

HFA Best Practice Standard 6-6.B

Measure: 90% of target children with a positive screen for developmental delays (scoring
below the "cutoff* on the ASQ-3) receive services in a timely manner. Children
already receiving developmental services should not be screened.

Goal: At) children served who are determined to be at risk for developmental delays, and are
not already receiving developmental services, will receive a referral for further evaluation
or services. (If a family declines a referral this should be documented in the family*s file
and the Family Support Specialist shall continue efforts to advocate for accessing
developmental services.)

Definition: Numerator: Number of children enrolled in home visiting who a) received
individualized developmental support from a home visitor; b) were referred to early
intervention services and received an evaluation within 45 days; OR c) were referred to
other community services who received services within 30 days (and met the conditions
specified in the denominator.)

Denominator: Total number of children enrolled in HFA with positive screens (scoring
below the cutoff) for developmental delays, measured using the ASQ-3.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (New)-^ Quarterly Reports-^ HFA Child Development
Screenings (Current)

Performance Measure #4

HFA Standard 12-1.B

Measure: All direct service staff receive a minimum of 75% of required weekly individual
supervision according to the HFA Standards.

Goal: Service providers receive ongoing, effective supervision so they are able to develop realistic and
effective plans to empower families.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of direct service staff who received
75% of required weekly individual supervision for a minimum of 1.5 hours for full-time
(.75 to 1.0 FTE) and 1 hour for part-lime staff (from .25 - .75 FTE).

Denominator- The number of direct service staff/home visitors employed in the HFA
Program during quarter.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (New)-> Quarterly Reports-^ Staff Supervision Rev [6-
22-2018]

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendor Initials PS
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M. QgCB*! AnMndmM •}

Now Htmpihlrt Dtptnment of HMith «nct Humon Sorvktt

Contnetarnua* Ftnlly Ittourca C*nl«rC«f>i*ffl

SwdgMRa^UMltor. Haaltny FtirOiat Af»«>te«<SnRen)

Bu«g«P«M: Ociabaf 1.2070 mrowoA Am* 30.2021

esaBSS=s=B9S3Sia CantoMBor Ohai* 7 BMctiMsaaensesssaaesv FtMOaO Oy DHHO aaotnat aBMfassKssnsxaaaB

^ V I
—T ij ■ ■ 1 -tMlraat

inStir. LdYSmiSSaSX-^ "Si^-rr ■.totair^m
1. TCUIO—>Y«WlG«» 9  140.00000 1 9  140.000 00 9  140.000.00 9  140.0HW2. Ci^Oiiiifeafnte 1  37.790B1 9 9  37.7M.91 - 9  37.7M91 9  37.7MOI
3 CanMMfiti •  MOW 9 9  900 00 9  HOW
*. equtamtm; 9 9 i

Rhwi 9 i 9 1 9
R*o«ir aM MiMtnanei 9 9 9 1
PuroiaM/Dranoatan 9 9 9

9. SweoMt; 9 9 9 1
9 1 9 9
9 9 9 9

PMnnae* 1 9 J 9
Madiat i 9 % 9

9  MOOO 9 9  MOW 1  600 00
S. 2nv«i 9  seooco 9 9  9.0WW 9  SOWW 9  5Hew
7. Ocogtncr 9  ̂90000 9 9  4.M0W 9  4.BH.W 9  4.aoa.w
B. Cunont Eb«r»m 9 9 9

Talawwx 9  1.000 M 9 1  1.00000 9  1.W0W 9  1.W0.W
RealiM i
SoOaeieaani % 9 9
AuMMLtMl 9
Munnea t  t.moo 9 9  ' 1.M0.M 9  1.M0W 9  1.H0M
BoM £«•)»•« s 9 9 9

0. Puftwfa t 9 9 i
10, UarkMnaCocmunleaMyx 9  lOOOOO i 9  1.DWW 9  I.OWW
11. SMS FAattai tnd Tnninn 9  t.MOW 9 9  1.M0CI0 9  IMOW
13. aalcnraactWAoiaaiiwnu % 1 9 9  ' - 9
13, 0»i*r(moKMUMmar<oa-«iv). 9 9 9 9
F8NH annual IM 9  MM 9 9  MM 9  MOO 9  MM
PrMlna 9  40000 9 9  400W 9  4WW 9  4MW
AttMn / Indvaei Fa« tpr FRC 9 9 19.370 0» 9  19.370 00 9 9 19.370 00 9  19 370.09

9 itjroxB 1  213.071X0 9 i i 9  193,700.91 i 10i76.H 9  213X71W

33>«0,1« 213.071X0

Th* fmr*f Rvmwc* C—af>Co«1t»B>(G<ifton)
8S-MI»-OPKS-054KMEV-0>A02
UiM M. BuOgM AmnttiMM #2
Pf 1 efl

Conncer Mfbii
g-| 6-2X1



EAieil B-e. BwdgelAflwndmert «

N»w H«mp*hlf« Dspwtnwnt of Htkttii tnd Hutnin firtvicM

CaniTtst»f<MiM nn FtmihrR«*oumC*flt*rCamam

Budo«( fen HulOiv FmdIMm Amtfk* (Ce«« 1

BudpM ParIM; Ociobtr t. 2020 Ihraugh iuna M. 7021

sssessesBsiccuiv—2r-.=S2SZ»Essa csBSSsnsssasasassaTow raal:, ■. jaaa sssasssssssssssssi CtoMraetM Man 7 Itaadtl=:...=sto::inr33sssi ■  II i iF ^atVUaa«AMahawr-r-T-wrr-

LlM>^ ..._ '.J r;^ssf:T7~^v. r' 71lO»adlcrT : thXrort, ";- ■ ■ '.1Wil7---a
r'* '. inrodf. .-., f rns^bii . ,*!ssy <ssp~i

1. Tom taUntWMM t  14,40000 1— T- 1  14,40000 1 r"" i  i4.4u.oo 1
2. toJjw— BwttOls S  10000 t S  10000 1  iMM 9  100 00
). CoAMianu 1 t 9
4, Ettiweoant 9

itanW 1 s 1
R*Mir and Uanlananea 1 % t 9
PaUm<^o>iB—n t  Wi* i t  94777 1  34777 9  >4777

S OaMBn: 1 t 1 i 1
EdueadenM i • 1 9 1

UO 1 » 1 9 t
PIMfmacv ( > 1 1 $ 9
MMiCal 1 t $ 9
OOte* 1  MODO t I  90000 1  900.00 S  SOOOQ

1. Tr**«l t  0 000 CO 1 1  500D0O 1  9000 00 i  i.6o6od
7. OtewnCY t  soooo 1 1  900 CO 9  900 00 1  900 00
■ Cumm LiBtmw » 1 9 9

TWaMiw S  20000 1  20000 1  70000 i  iOd.6o
PWtaO. i « 1 %

•uoaeneeen* t 1 9 f

Audi) and UM >  riAU t  7&000 9  790.00 5  7M00
Intunnea 1 t 1
Saard fisanada I t 1 9

1. OaWiKtta i I 1 1
ID Mat^aiBBiCwwwaaaaena 1 1 1

11. Btaft Educaacn and Tninne »  MOOO »  50000 9  900 00 1  90000

10. OMrtiMOAcoeu'inanaaunt: 1 ! 9
annual raa i  9000 9  90 00 9  9000 %  5000

1  Udio t 1  30000 9  300 00 1  30000
atffim 1 indirad Faa tor frc i t  2J72.73 i  ii7l.Vi 9 \  lih.Ji 1  2772.73

WAL t  33.7aJ7 •  z.zn.77 1  29.000.00 1 1 1  n,JX7Ji A 1  ilTooio

Th« F■!% RMcucca C«ffl«r «l CoMiam
8S-}01M)PHS-OS-KOMEV-«3-AO2

^9, BudQel AmnAnoM 92
Pig* loll

Contnctx Iniiiato



Bydgil Amendmeil #2

N*w Mmpshir* D»p«tni«nt of Health and Human Strvlcte

CentncWrnMna Th* FAtntfir C«iatrGortuin

Budgal Haqunl loC IhilWiy FamMt AnMrtet (Can )

Dy<qrt Parted: July I. 2021 tnreugh Juna 20. 2022

. _l

1

1

1

!

1  . ... ,

rr-saOiiaati- . itedSaar— :— ^
1 ' flmuManlL' lat^f 1

l~' lOidOartr.J.'.'' "" ' "^TWalrT"1
i  1 Wv—uMat 1 fii-japsatrr""— — — >Twa>i—

1. Total DalrtiftWacaa 1  ia48000 8 r  14.^.66' 1  ̂ 8 T  i^;4a«J.W i  i4.490.m
2. tffemiaa Bana^ t  loom 1 8  lOom 8  imm 8  imm

3. ConouRant* 1 1

a. toutoAent 8 1 8

RafOal 1 8

Raoair and Uavaananea i
PuftrtaaaCaaraoaioe I  347.27 8 8  347J7 I  iefif 8  >4727

6. Oiieeaaa' 8 8 8

EduCMenti 1 1 8

Lib 8  . $

Pwnmct 8 8

Madcal 1 $ 8 8

Omea 8  6oem 8 8  9mm 8  60000 8  600 00

0. Travel 8  90000Q 8 8  ».omm 8  9.mom 8  smoro

7. OeesMncv t  90000 i 8  90000 8  Mom 8  U6M
8. Cunani fiaawiai i 8 %

Tewhen I  3oom 8 8  2mm 8  3mm 1  2000Q

PoMaoa 8 i 1

fiaeameon 1 8 8

AudnaMUert •  7MU i 1  7UU 1  )U.da 8  7Mm
Hiaraeea • * t 8

Board Cjrtamai J t 8

0. SeftMf* 8 i s 8 8

10. MafMnoTCemrnadcaWn* 8 8 1

11. nail EAxaam and Traaana 8  900 00 a 8  9mm 8  sm.m 8  MOm

13. BuetanaaqaiAcfaainanta 8 8 8 8

13. OnarilMCtKcKlatsmsnMlorr): 8 8 $ 8 8

FSNN amuBi laa i i 1  idU 8  M.m 8  90.m

Prtnlne •  amoo 8 8  3mm 8  3mm 8  jm.m
Attran' tndiraei Fa* let FRO 8 8  2J7a.73 8  2.272.73 8 8  2J7Z73 8  2^73 71

TOTAL 8  ixjtn 8  u.emm i 1 i i  11.727^ i  lifiii 1  U.M.U
"SJB!®hidhert Aa A ̂taacd cd DOeet' 3.870.76

TYw Fcnay Raieme CeeMr M (Sortitm
Sa>20l»OPHS-06-H0MEy-«M02

&<MM B-10. eudoal AnMntowd 12
Paea t el I

CenndwMMttIS



Eintil E^ll. Bud0«l AcanOnM e

Ntw Hwnpstiira Department of Health and Human Servtcea

Centneter nam* Th» Ftmlty n«*ewrc* Cinlvr Gartum

BudoM Raqtietl for. HMRny FimMe* Ajncnc* (Coe«|

Bwee*) Pwled: .^hr 1. »»thnwgit Jum M. 2023

Cf^ssc:
1
t.^'jaSewwiAri—u—l_i?RSe^..— .ir^C

1. Tem BMnrrwacM »  1M.OOOOO a t— iU.U6.oo T- lid.faUU a 130.000 00
2. a  5SUdDa i a 23 000 00 a 36U6U a 33 00000

> Canturt>«R» $  toooo a a 100 00 i 100 00 a 100 00

t. EewTMnt i ♦ a . a a a
Rvfeal i a I a I
AM*r «M ManMnanee 1 a \ a I
fwtswoaeww* • i I i

5. lui^ai: 9 a a a i a

EeucaMnal 1 a a i a

Lae 1 » I 1 a a

PMrsMcr t a a a a a

KaOicei 1 a a a a a
Odtot •  100 00 i i 100 00 1— lUU I 10000

S. Traral 1  3 OOOOO a 1 300000 i 3.000 00 a  2.000 00
7. OeKmttei 1  350000 » i 3 900.00 a 3.900 00 i  liUOQ
a. Cunant ExeaitM* a i a a i i- .

Ta*»t*iofa a  tooooo a 1 I.OOOOO i" 1,000 00 a 1.000.00
RsaMa i a a .

Sueaer«ee*» a a a 1 i
' Audi and leeal a i • a .

titmnca a  1.900 00 a a i U6U a 1.90000 f 1.500 00
Board Enamaa f i a i .

9. Ooftima i a a a
•

t1. BtiSEdicaaonand TranM i  1.370 00 f i 1,370 00 i 137000 1,370.00
<3. 6uP<e>ilrinarAaraoiiio«iti a 1 a a . a 1
13. OetarliMoOcoeuttrandstent; a a a a !
FSNH annuM Im -- a  woo a a uu 1  uu a WOO

mwv • a  woo a a woo i WOO a 90.00

A«Mn« MIraei Fao for FRC i 10.252 00 a 10292 00 a . a  1673700 a 107«300
i  Ulii&U 1 iajt2.M i ifiliiU i 1 i - i 1UJM.CJ a  liT'z.eo 1 170.102,00

Miraet Aa A Rofeare el Dtreet (0.0% a 3.e7&.^i -r- U.S46.I6i 170.102.00

Th* Fvniy ReieiBca Centtr at Ooffiam
aS.20ie>0(>H3«5-HOMEV-0>A02

EmM 8-11, fiudeti Ametttnvii <2
Paa« leT 1

Cciwaetsr laeifti
f£
^'10 'lo



Eifibe H2. Budget Amenetw# #2

Mew HimpBhlre Odpartmoni of HoolUt anO Human Sgnrlcag

CefltrecternuBe The Ferettif Reeeuree CenterGerntni

Budget Hnueit (or Heetthir Fimlliee Amertce {Cent)

Budget Peded:Mr 1.3022 mreugh BegtemOer 30.3031

b;-—...p-.-.Tg.—.. -.v ' —a ri-.-i-Tihrtwtatm.w-tr.ftTetrt P»pdw otiea,^»zjr3^-gf 'isflBr >.l Lf'J.l'jL''.itir'.',TCMi>aMleFiaite/Heliau , i-rt^tr 9'V ■' 19 dqpse;--.-.:.-^:jPundH>gCWMacdR9mmelwwi ■■-.-■ l -a

ifcSiisn. • ^v: . L—jiiw"idei*51^.^ Lli/5ieSimiinwL—-. SbS4^..:^. r-^2air33 l-£J<tidtine5maM m i.-£L .fSSil
t  Tatel BAeriinveuee 1  3 020 00 9 9  i^.bo i 9 T  5W;M 9  362000
t. tiiUuiee BeneiRe t  2400 i 9  2900 1  23 00 9  2400
3 Censvleots « *
4. Cdutonwnt • * i 9

Rerut • i 9 t 9
Heaee end MAntenenee 1 9 $ t i

•  00 IB * >  «.?• 9  00.70 9  90.70
4. Beectm- f 1 9 9

Educefonet 9 9 9
Uh i i 9 I
Pnermecr t 1 t i 9
Midcet 1 1 t 9 1

1  129 00 1 9  12400 9  12400 9  17.400
9. Tnvel »  179000 » 1  1.290 00 9  1.25000 1  1.24000
1. Ocduciede •  12400 1 1  12400 9  12400 9  125.00
9. Cununt bdemei 1 1

TeleWwie •  50 00 t 1  50.00 9  50.00 1  50.00
PeMae 1 t
BuMotsMni 1 9 i 1
Audit end lega 4  13900 t 9  174O0 9  17S.66 9  179.00
biMrenee * % 9 t
Beerd leeenm t t 9 9 f

9. Oeltww f 1 1
to. MsMniCenmnlcmen* i 9 i

It. BteWEiawwnendTrmng 1  12400 » 9  12500 t  129.00 1  12900
13. BtACMAim/i'neeiniiti » 1 9 t 9
ta. OndfliBeoaeeeaMRUMttoryF 1 9 1 t $

I
1

z

i
u.

•  1200 1 9  12.00 9  12.00 9  12 00
t  6004 i 9  0004 i  U.IM 9  60 04

AAHfi / Mnet Fee tef FRO t i  UiAi 9  400.19 9 9  9«0.l« 9  900.16
T6tAL i  iUiM i 1  LUdU 1 i i  lUiM 1  Ultl 9  1.29&U

T>t» FuTitir RiMurce Center el Gertiem
e3-20t«-0PHS4&.HaUEV'O>A02
EitttI B-12. Sudgtl AMnAnert *2
Peg* tort

ConAifler Wkelt P8
,8'iO'Zo



E«l*« B-13, Bud»rl Anwndmetll #2

N«w Himpthin D«paitm«m of HMtth tftd Humm Scrvlcn

C«ntnet«f mn* thcFtrnHy Rnowrca Canur CMtum

Bwdgrt for Httltfty TamlUoo (Coot)

Qudoot Ptrtod: Ju^ 1.2022 tnrovgn Sop^mbor 30. 2022

OiiifyWow
oroo Bonofttt

-srms1. Tom

^^5
3

S.TMOO t
. CMoamnst 25«

Roortr•no Wontananca

pMt»vwo^croq<«cn

3. 6owi*w:

eaufiwmr

Ptannaey

MKM

"555
1

T. OcawncT
50000

575 of
500 00

5. CMtionlllip»ni5"
4)500

Pntag*'
aMtetipaew*

AuoatMuSr
mto _37S^ 37500

Bn«rtEia>n»«

0. OafMrw*

10. Mait»»noCgT¥iw>Jc»5ona

12. >gbcp»ffitM*Qr—Ulna

13, OBwr<»oeqKO«t«il»m»naalo>vt
F^H annual tM

Y5wi7K5ee7aeTw7HC~
TCKT

12 55 1235

40,7M^ T
4.070 55
i!«m

4.07055

ulma T
4.070.55

inOlract'Aa A Patcam •< Olrvcl'
aA.W^d T ajiViiA I i

33.540.10 r
"CTTOT

"WTT 44.770.00

TTia FamOip Rateurea CaMar at Gettiam

KS-30t»OPHS4>5-H0MEV-0»^

BAM M3,8gdo«t AmanOmem 02
Paga (oft

CocmoorMtala£8_
MH'Zo



Exhibit_B-14, Amendment # 2

N*w Hampthir* Dapartmant of Haalth and Human Servtcaa

CoRtraeter iwn* Th« FunOy R«»oore« C«nt«r Goriiatn

Sudgal Raquatt ler. HMRtiy Fml»M AiTMrtct (Gnflon)

Budgat Period: October 1.2020 through June 30,2021

jc. ..-;PundedbyOHH8conlf»clehir*'':'". '

-••v.

\ v-W-, -
mniritemS-i
1. TotdSoteryftVefloe'
2. Emalavee Benefit*
3, ConeuWanti

Ecuiofnent:

Renlel

Reoeir erd Melrtlanenw
PuftfoefOeorediOon

Supclleo:
EducsOonel

Leb

Pnennicy

Medleel

Office

o! Trtri
7. Ocagencv

a. Curreirt Eibeneeo
Teleohofte
Poetoce

SubecftpOone

JmdB end Legel

InsuranM

Boifd E:qeneee

9. Soituvare

to. MarteBna/Comnmnleattcne
11. 8B« Edutato end TteWita
12. Subcontfeta/Aoreemenle
13. Other (soedSe fleWtt fnenOetof)'):
FSNH innual fee

Printing

Admin I Indirect Fee (or FRC
'  totaL

'j.1^01rect|
•'^iKeremeiiteii^-'^rr-'* IFbedp^

"31JX)0J3 !»'

1300.00

2joaoo

7.000.00
1.000.00

200.00

1.500,00

IJOO.OO

1.S00.00

To^

2o5!

sTolil . "'y,-

r-^

e.54S.4S

i.Ui.U

31.200.53 2.660.00

1300.00

2J)00.00

7.000.00
1.000.00

200.n

1.500.00

1.000.00

1.500.00

30.00

300.00
4,545.45

$335$3T 2.000.M ■mw

, j|n6fement«l;'-VV. --
29.6d6?3'^

1300.00

2,000.00
7.000.00
1.000.00

200.00

1.500.00

1.000.00
1.500.00

U66.t6
3375.75

300.00

4i.4UiS T
4.545.45 i
4.MU5T"r

26.666!g3
704.02

1.200.00

2.000.00
7.000.00
1.000.00

1.SOO.OO

1300.00
1500.0Q

"503?

4549.45
TSWCT
SO.000.00

Indiract Ae A Percent of Dlreet

The Fairdly Reeoorce CenMr m Gortiem
3S-2019-OPHS<t541OMEV-0J^
txAlbtt e-I4. Mandireat ^ t
Pegclofl

r

ne. ^[2£>



t>M4D-lS, BudgM Anwidn»eni#2

New Hampihtft Otpartnwtt of HMlth and Human Sarvtcas

CefltrsctMAan nw FtmMy RsteumCenurOemica

Owriom Requeetlarr HMtUiy FimlMi AimriM (Graftonl

euagMPeried; iv)y i.ZOnihrouan Jun«}0.»22

1—i.LJ.f.u.j—

1

j

1

i-a.T'i.,ja^.-c^JFimdeU>rOHaiawi»—4ihiii_ , i

-  .. !n^L-, ■ 1  1^71 ■ '.i liraSSbL . 'fsarv C
1. TcUltd^Wegt* 1  ».ooo» a 1  ' ' a a  imOiT a  ».000.99
•' 0vnKiB 9  70403 4 a  704<B a  704 02 a  704.03
i. Conumm i a

* Eew*pmr« » f a

RtnW S \ 1 a 1

R«Mlf MMMMiMnenea s a a
PirmMOMoeonon t  IXOOO 1 a  ii4id66 a  1.300 00 a  130000

9 awiphit: s 4 1 a
EoucMenel 1 i 9

Uti a I 4 9

iturmecr i a a a

Mlflitll f 1 9 a a

Offlee 1  3^00000 > a  3.000 00 1  3.000 00 a  2 00000
9 Travel i  700000 1 a  7.000 00 a  700000 a  700000

7. Oceueencr 1  1.00000 t a  1.000.00 1  1000.00 a  i.i66.U
1. Cunewfieewiii i 1 a 4 1

Tetfceiene 1  70000 t a  30000 a  30000 a  30000

Peitooe i 1
» a a a 1

AuMMUOil a  1.900.00 t a  1.900.00 4  tiU.Ao I  1,90000
Innicwiea s 1 a a

aeMElMMM i a I a
9. OorieOT f 4 a p a

to. Met>eue»CcmKi«cHen» a  1000.00 1 a  100000 a  1 ooo.Do a  1.00000
t1. flnfl GOucasan M TiaeM a  1.900 00 i a  1JOOCD a  i.&oc.oo a  1.900.00
ti. lk<»<n»iU>«a*areeBunli a 4 i  - . a a a

tl. omar(»eot<o«-jumar>Mio<sir i i a a 1 4
F8MM ■mial lee a  9000 a a  90.DO a  90 00 1  90 00
Rnmtic a  90000 4 a  900 00 a  900.00 a  OMOO
A«net 1 Mirect Fee far FRC 4 a  4 949.49 a  4.949.49 a a  4 949 49 i  4 94i44

1  41.414iJ i  4.4«i«i 1  UiUJd 1 1 4 i  UMiii 1  4.44iiJ a  tAfiOOM

7>it F«nit|r R«t0iim CmUr m Cerium
BS-TOiV-DPHMVHOMEV-OMlS
EtfiM tS, Burigcl Anendmcnm
P««e1on

CenSMDrlnaui*

?-lO'2o



audgttAmeittiienl <3

BBSS RSSi
05^ BBSS inSiS fsa05 itdlLkM

SSinwia^ 1*0.000 CO I1. Totli 140.000 00140.000 00 14O.C00.00
3. EffieleyM ar.rso >i37.T&001 I 37.7M)BI 97.7SOf1
3. CennAnti 90000

Now HtfflpsMro Dtpartmonl of Hotldi and Human Sorvleaa

CafWaetornaaa T)m Family R«»«wmC«nUrOertum

BuOOM AaowMl (OR HaaKby F«miD«« Amtrlea (CraA«n|

BudgMPtftod: My 1.3031 mreugn June JO. 3032

iOOOb'
4. Eowppitw:

a. Bupoaai;

Eflncawi

Ptiaimoer'

TrmI
900 00 100

Oceupmcy

Cun»nie«P4nni

900000 i.m(A
4.9oaoa 4,900.00

^Mapa
TooffW 1,00000 1,000 00

BuOtcripaotH

AuOtntiauoT

BeafO E>B4n*4*
1JOOOO i,9COOO

to. Wlrtieno^qTTTWICrtoni

11. B»g EJuc—an tnd TfWiQ'
t3

1,000 00 1.000 00

1,500 00 100 1,50000
._lli*fi»wai1*gi4»»Ba«wa

13. O»w(ij>q»C0et»»i«TUPB«ie«v|:

F8MH«)«MI1m iOoO 50 CO
Pnrex

A
400 00 400 00 4W06

WWiTfiwrad F— icr FWC
Total

la^To.oa lajTooo

31Xe71J»
lajToi

211
hiaiwct A* A IHwanl W CMtoq'

"ii375IiT 1«J.7M.«1 lajja.ea ,071.00

Tnnr 33,040.19 213,071.00

Tha FcffBy RatouM CMtr M CoMiatn
8S-20tMIPKS-e9-H(3UEV4tVAa2

£046* B-ia, Budoti Amen*iW «3
Pso* 1 eft

Carftwaerlfah2S_



E>^■M 6-17. fiuagM AMfttiMtn n

Now Hampthlro OtportmonI of Haaith and Human Sarvlcaa

Cofltraetornana Th* Family Ratourca Canitr Corham

BatdQat Raquaat for Haaichy FtaiHIat Araarlea (CriRan)

Budgal Ptriad: July «. 2077 through SaplamBar 30,2027
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE FAMILY RESOURCE

CENTER AT GORHAM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April

03, 1997. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this ofi^lce is concerned.

Business ID; 270161

Certificate Number: 0004916605

B&.

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of May A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Linda Lamirande. hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of The Family Resource Center at Gorham.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 17 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patricia Stolte, Executive Director,

is duly authorized on behalf of The Family Resource Center at Gorham to enter into contracts or agreements with
the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person{s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

i.Dated: August 10, 2020
Signalure of Elected Officer
Name: Linda Lamirande

Title: President, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20



A.CORO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

08/05/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

PO Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Falfley Kenneally
(603)293-2791 (603) 293-7188

ADDRESS- fairleylgesinsurance.net
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC >

INSURER A Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

Family Resource Center at Gorham

123 Main Street

Gorham NH 03581

INSURER B Travelers Property Casualty Co of America 25674

INSURERC

INSURER D

INSURERS

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20-21 REVISION NUMBER:

itiSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAYBE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFf'
(MM/DO/YYYYI

XDDC
'USD

SUBR POLICY EXP
(MWOO/YYYYITYPE OP INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DALWGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurreneel

MAC3793560-14 05/10/2020 05/10/2021

MED EXP (Any one P»r»Ofi)

PERSONAL 8 AOV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY

uifwi I Arrucor

LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMPlOP AGG

AbMol Oaycare.lncAnoPA

1,000.000

100.000

5,000

1,000.000

3,000.000

3,000.000

S 1,000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYAUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accidenil

BODILY INJURY (Per oeaon)

OWNED'

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NONOWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accMent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eceklenil

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH (XCURRENCE
1,000.000

UMB113778406 05/10/2020 05/10/2021
AGGREGATE

1,000.000

RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yes. dea^M urxJer
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

6JUB4N33995320 01/01/2020 01/01/2021
E-L. EACH ACCIDENT

500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500.000

Professional Llabliiiy
MAC3793560-14 05/10/2020 05/10/2021 per occurrence

aggregate

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarha Schedule, may be attached if more apace la required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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To the Board of Directors stuahiam

Family Resource Center at Gorham
Gorham, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Family Resource Center at
Gorham (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities,
cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our. responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the organization's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Family Resource Center at Gorham as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flo\ws for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements: Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated October 4, 2019, on our consideration of Family Resource Center at Gorham's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

October 4, 2019

North Conway, New Hampshire



FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Certificates of deposit

Grants, receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment

Total

Less: accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investments

Agency deposits - cash

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Agency deposits
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

1,115,526

$  1,189,573

2019 2018

$  414,332 $ 238,341

81,893 80,127

417,558 251,249

15,149 9,441

928,932 579,158

74,932 74,932

51,575 51,575

126,507 126,507

(95,385) (90,919)

31,122 35,588

207,279 209,058

22,240 22,226

229,519 231,284

$  1,189,573 $ 846,030

$  7,144 $ ' 8,890

35,014 28,856

22,240 22,226

9,649 14,799

74,047 74,771

902,278 550,100

213,248 221,159

771,259

846,030

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants $  1,635,790 $  - :$  1,635,790

Medicaid 574,200 - 574,200

Donations 60,168 - 60,168

Agency rents 36,602 - 36,602

Investment income - 547 547

Other income 13,043 - 13,043

Interest income 2,406 - 2,406

Net unrealized investment loss - (4,780) (4,780)

Net realized investment gain - 1,322 1,322
Net assets released from restrictions 5,000 (5,000) -

Total revenues, support and net
assets released from restrictions 2,327,209 (7,911) 2,319:298

EXPENSES

Program services 1,772,364 . - 1,772,364
Management and general 202,667 - 202,667

Total expenses 1,975,031 - 1,975,031

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 352,178 (7,911) 344,267

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 550,100 221,159 771,259

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 902,278 213,248 $ 1,115,526

See Notes to Financial Statements
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pamily AT GQRHAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants

Medicaid

Donations

Agency rents

Investment income

Other income

Interest income

Net unrealized investment loss

Net realized investment gain

Total revenues and support

EXPENSES

Program services
Management and general

Total expenses

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

1,242,118

172,738

39,023

37,205

1,560

370

With Donor

Restrictions

1,493.014

1,222,386
156,483

1,378,869

114,145

435,955

5,000

1,034

(7,607)
11,475

9,902

9,902

211,257

550,100 $ 221,159 $

Total

1.242,118

'172,738
44,023

37,205

1,034

1,560

370

•  (7,607)
11,475

1,502,916

1,222,386
156,483

1,378,869

124,047

647,212

771,259

See Notes to Financial Statements



FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in net assets $  344,267 $  124,047

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities; •

Unrealized loss on investments 4,780 7,607

Realized gains on investments (1,322) (11,475)

Depreciation 4,466 5,574

(Increase) decrease in assets: ,-
Grants receivable (166,309) (67,349)

Prepaid expenses (5,708) 1,107

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (1,746) (3,487)

Accrued expenses 6,158 (1.576)

Agency deposits 14 (3,357)

Refundable advances (5,150) (14,461)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 179,450 36,630

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the sale of investments 390,324 55,979

Purchase of investments and certificates of deposit (393,769) (57,554)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,445) (1.575)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 176,005 35,055

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 260,567 225,512

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  436,572 $  260,567

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Personnel Costs

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes

Employee benefits

Travel

Program activities

Conferences and meetings

Contractors and consultants

Food and supplies

Heat and utilities

Telephone, internet, fax and cable

Rent

Accounting fees

Training

Maintenance, cleaning and inspections

Small equipment

Liability insurance

Technology

Advertising

Student transportation

Printing
Depreciation

Payroll processing service
Property insurance

Postage and shipping

Bank charges
Other

Program

Services

1,121,186

79,700

112,243

144,838

86,905

28,584

29,997

28,946

19,620

17,985

15,025

12,003

13,283

9,714

11,486

10,134

7,404

7,560

6,567

3,573

995

742

3,874

Management

and

General

$  136,380

.  11,909

22,322

1,531

1,125

5,445

1,663

1,931

1,033

117

2,154

176

2,429

470

1,060

7,774

204

283

893

2,896

405

158

309

Total

1,257,566

91,609

134,565

146,369

88,030

34,029

31,660

30,877

20,653

18,102

15,025

14,157

13,459

12,143

11,956

11,194

7,774

7,608

7,560

6,850

4,466

2,896

1,400

900

309

3,874

Total $  1,772,364 202,667 $ 1,975,031

See Notes to Financial Statements



FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

Personnel Costs

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits

Program activities

Travel

Food and supplies
Heat and utilities

Telephone, internet, fax and cable
Accounting fees
Contractors and consultants

Small equipment

Conferences and meetings
Liability insurance
Rent

Maintenance, cleaning and inspections
Depreciation

Printing
Student transportation

Advertising
Training
Technology
Payroll processing service
Property insurance
Postage and shipping
Bank charges

Program

Services

769,290

57,002

96,469

90,579

80,917

19,748

18,039

12,014

10,550

10,027

8.441

9,578

8,166

6,027

4.459

4,885

5,185

3,071

3,526

2,216

1,078

1,119

Management
and

General Total

$ 105,510

7,818

12,161

530

793

949

2,288

12,852

1,449

925

1,704

1,506

1,115

373

1,468

369

1,672

2,445

360

7

189

874,800

64,820

108,630

90,579

81,447

20,541

18,988

14,302

12,852

11,999

10,952

10,145

9,578

8,166

7,533

5,574

5,258

5,185

4,539

3,895

3,888

2,445

. 1.438
1,126

189

Total $  1,222,386 156,483 $  1,378,869

See Notes to Financial Statements



FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Family Resource Center at Gorham (the Resource Center) is a .voluntary, not-for-
profit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292)
and organized exclusively for tax exempt charitable and educational purposes. The
principal activity of the Resource Center is to deliver programming that works to build
healthier families and stronger communities. These programs remove obstacles to
healthy family function and development, providing access to social and educational
services to at-risk and underserved North Country populations. Primary programs include:

Home visiting programs that deliver evidence based early child development and
parenting 'support curricula which empowers parents and gives them the
motivations and skills to improve parenting and foster healthy family dynamics;

Afterschool programs that support the academic, social and emotional
developmental needs of students in grades K-8;

An IRS sanctioned Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) program that provides
free tax preparation services to community members in need maximizing income
tax refunds;

A Substance Misuse program that utilizes peer support for recovery and family
reunification.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Resource Center have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Resource
Center to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary
objectives of the Resource Center. These net assets may be used at the discretion of
the Resource Center's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Resource Center or by passage of time.
Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the
funds be maintained in perpetuity.



Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
xestrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of

activities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and liquid investments with
maturity dates of less than three months. The carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial
instruments.

Investments

Investments are accounted for according to Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
958-320 Not For Profit Entities - Investments - Debt and Equity Securities. Under
ASC 958-320, investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair
values and all investments in debt securities are valued at their fair values in the

statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change
in net assets. Fair values of investments are based on quoted prices in active markets
for identical investments.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost if purchased and at fair value if donated.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets as follows:

Furniture and equipment 5 -15 years
Leasehold improvements 20 years

The Resource Center's policy is to capitalize all assets over $2,500 with an expected life of
one year or longer. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts,
along with the related depreciation allowance, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as increases in net assets without donor restrictions

or net assets with donor restrictions depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor or time restrictions. A purpose restriction permits the Resource Center to use
donated assets as specified for a particular purpose. Net assets restricted in perpetuity
are those that are required to be permanently maintained, but income from such
investments may be used for specified purposes. All donor restricted support is reported
as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction.
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When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished), net assets are.reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Contributed Services

From time to time, the Resource Center receives donated services in carrying out the
mission and fundraising activities of the Resource Center. Such donations do not
meet the criteria for recognition under ASC 958 and accordingly no amounts are
reflected in the financial statements for those services.

Functional Ailocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the program services and
supporting activities benefited. Such allocations have been determined by management on
an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expense Method of allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Occupancy Square footage/revenues

Depreciation Square footage

All other expenses Direct assignment

Refundable Advances

The Resource Center records grant/contract revenue as a refundable advance until it
is expended for the purpose of the grant/contract, at which time it is recognized as
revenue.

Income Taxes

The Resource Center is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Resource Center qualifies for the charitable
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation.

Management has evaluated the Resource Center's tax positions and concluded that the
Resource Center has maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax
positions that would require adjustment to the financial statements. With few exceptions,
the Resource Center is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the United
States Federal or State tax authorities prior to 2015.
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Leased Facilities

The Resource Center leases its current facility from the Town of Gorham. In lieu of rent,
the Resource Center is responsible for the cost of repairs and maintenance, insurance,
utilities and rubbish removal. The lease was for a 20 year period and expired on May 19,
2018. The lease continues under the same terms on a month to month basis.

The Resource Center in turn sublets space in the facility to other nonprofit and
cornmunity agencies at an average rate of approximately $10 - $16 per square foot. All
participating organizations must provide services to a client base that is at least 66% low
and moderate income.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable from various public and other nonprofit organizations at June 30, 2019
and 2018 were considered fully collectable and therefore no provisions for bad debts
have been made in these financial statements.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Reclassificatlons

Certain amounts, in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current year financial
statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic No. 820-10, Fair Value Measurement, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market based measurement, not an entity specific measurement, and requires expanded
disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820-10, the

Resource Center may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements.
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as
follows;

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices in
active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting
date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other valuation
methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or liability
including assumptions regarding risk.
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At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Resource Center's investments were all classified as Level
1 and were based on fair value.

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level withi(i the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at
fair value. There have been no changes-in the methodologies used at June 30, 2019 and
2018.

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the Resource Center
at year end.

The preceding method may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Resource
Center believes its valuation method is appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the

reporting date.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) -
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about
liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information
provided about expenses and investment return. The Resource Center has adjusted the
presentation of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to
all periods presented.
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AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents the Resource Center's financial assets as of June 30, 2019 and
2018;

Financial assets at year-end:

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Grants receivable

Investments

Agency deposits - cash

.  Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Less net assets with purpose and time
restrictions to be met in less than a year

Amount board designated for
long-term maintenance

Agency deposits - cash

Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2019

414,332

81,893

417,558

207,279

22.240

$

21,654

22.240

257.142

2018

238,341

80,127

251,249

209,058
22.226

$ 1,143,302 $ 801,001

$  213,248 $ 221,159

(5,000)

19,244

22.226

257.629

$  886.160 $ 543.372

The Resource Center's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 90 days of
operating expenses (approximately $500,000). As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is
invested in short-term investments, including money market accounts.

INVESTMENTS

Investments held in the form of mutual funds at Bank of America are stated at fair value.

Realized gains and losses are determined on the specific identification method. Gains
and losses (realized and unrealized) are reported in the statement of activities as
increases or decreases to net assets without donor restrictions, except for those
investments for which their use is restricted. Information on investments at June 30, 2019

and 2018 is presented as follows:
Excess

Year Investment Cost

Market

Value

of Market

Over

Cost

2019 Bank of America $197,027 $207,279 $10,252
2018 Bank of America $194,026 $209,058 $15,032

Investment

Income

$4,721

$5,405 .
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4. AGENCY DEPOSITS

The Resource Center served as a fiscal agent for the Androscoggin Valley Community
Partners (formerly the Berlin Area Healthcare Consortium), a collaborative effort of area
health and social services agencies intended to provide health related education,
information and communications to the communities of Berlin and Gorham. The amounts

held on behalf of the consortium as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $22,240 and
$22,226, respectively. During August of 2019, the money was returned and the fiscal
agent relationship ended.

5. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
In April 2013, the Resource Center entered into a revolving line of credit agreement with a
bank. The revolving line of credit agreement provides for maximum borrowings up to
$75,000 and is collateralized by a certificate of deposit held at the same bank. The
revolving line of credit and the certificate of deposit both renew every six months. At June
30, 2019 and 2018, the interest rate on the revolving line of credit was stated at the
bank's prime rate of 5.20% and 3.20%, respectively. There were no balances outstanding
as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.

6. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK ■ CASH

The Resource Center maintains cash balances that, at times, may exceed federally
insured limits. The cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per bank at June 30, 2019 and 2018. The Resource
Center has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to
any significant risk with these accounts. Cash balances in excess of FDIC insured limits
amounted to $211,709 at June 30, 2019. Cash balances did not exceed FDIC insured
limits at June 30, 2018.

7. NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

Time Restrictions:

Contributions $ - $ 5,000
Restrictions in Perpetuity:

Endowment 213.248 216.159

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 213.248 $ 221.159

Net assets without donor restrictions for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
are as follows:

2019 2018

Undesignated $ 880,624 $ 530,856
Board designated 21.654 19.244

Total net assets without donor restrictions $ 902.278 S 550.100

15



Net assets released from donor restrictions are as follows;

2019 2018

Satisfaction of Time Restrictions:

Contributions $ 5.000 |

Total net assets released $ 5.000 $

a. NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS - BOARD DESIGNATED

By vote of the Board of Directors, funds have been designated for long term building
maintenance. Unrestricted net assets designated by the board was $21,654 and $19,244
at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

9. ENDOWMENT FUND

In 2007, the Resource Center established a permanent endowment fund for the
organization with the intent of accumulating donations and interest earnings of one million
dollars. Per the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292-B:4), 7% of the fair market
value of the endowment fund, calculated on the basis of fair market value determined at
least quarterly and averaged over a period of not less than three years may be
appropriated for operating account expenditures. No distributions were taken during the
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the FASB ASC (ASC 958-205 and subsections)
intends to improve the quality of consistency of financial reporting of endowments held by
not-for-profit organizations. This Topic provides guidance on classifying the net assets
associated with donor-restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are subject
to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA). New Hampshire has adopted UPMIFA. The Topic also requires additional
financial statement disclosures on endowments and related net assets.

The Resource Center has followed an investment and spending policy to ensure a total
return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve the principal of the fund and at
the same time, provide a dependable source of support to help build healthier families
and stronger communities.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, the Resource Center only invests
the fund in cash and mutual funds. The Resource Center has taken a risk adverse

approach to managing the endowment fund in order to mitigate financial market risk such
as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility, which could substantially impact the
fair value of the endowment fund at any given time.
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Fund activity for June 30, 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

Activity
Balances for the Balances

as of Year Ended as of

June 30. 2018 June 30. 2019 June 30. 2019

Permanent gifts $  175,809 $ $  175,809

Investment earnings 48.741 4.721 53,462

Realized gain 51,337 1,322 52,659

Transfer to unrestricted (41,590) - (41,590)
Investment expense (33,170) (4,174) (37,344)
Unrealized gain, (loss) 15.032 ■ (4.780) 10.252

S  216.159 $  (2.911) $  213.248

Activity
Balances for the Balances

as of Year Ended as of

June 30. 2017 June 30. 2018 June 30. 2018

Permanent gifts $  175,809 $ $  175,809

Investment earnings 43,336 5,405 48,741

Realized gain 39,862 11,475 51,337

Transfer to unrestricted (41,590) - (41,590)
Investment expense (28,799) (4,371) (33,170)

22.639 (7.607) 15.032

$  211.257 4.902 $  216.159

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the estimates
inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non recognized subsequent
events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the
statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has evaluated
subsequent events through October 4, 2019, the date the June 30. 2019 financial
statements were available for issuance.
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTFR AT fiORHAM

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

PASS

THROUGH

GRANTOR

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

U.S. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed through State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Division of Children, Youth and Families
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program
Promoting Safe and Stable Families
Social Services Block Grant

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

93.645

93.556

93.667

93.558

93.558

42106802

42107306

42106603

45030206

45030353

8.979

41,306

154.881

72.839
131.439

204,278

Maternal & Child Health Services Block Grant for States 93.994 90004009 11,025

MATERNAL, INFANT AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING CLUSTER
Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 93.870
Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 93.870

Division of Behavioral Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Opioid STR 93.788
Opioid STR 93.788

05-95-90-902010-5896

05-95-90-902010-5896

05-95-92-920510-7040

05-95-92-920510-2559

146,901
176,092

322,993

195,743

132.686

328.429

Passed through Easter Seals
MEDICAID CLUSTER

Medical Assistance Program

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Passed through State of New Hampshire Department of Education
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers

Total U.S. Department of Education

Total expenditures of federal awards

93.778

84.287

84.287

None

20190037

20190011

300

$  1.072,191

S  141,895
186,031

$  327.926

S  1,400,117

NOTE A - BASIS.OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of Family Resource
Center at Gorham under programs of the^ federal government for the year ended June 30. 2019. The information in this Schedule is
presented In accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Family Resource Center at Gorham, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of Family Resource Center.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the
cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, where in certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made In the normal course of business to amounts reported
as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE C - INDIRECT COST RATE

Family Resource Center at Gorham has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.
Note, based upon US Department of Education regulations, the State of New Hampshire has limited the indirect cost rale of the Twenty-
first Century Community Learning Centers program to 4.4%.
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Family Resource Center at Gorham
Gorham, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Family Resource Center at Gorham (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the
related statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 4, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Family Resource
Center at Gorham's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
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not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Family Resource Center at Gorham's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement

amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for ariy other
purpose.

October 4, 2019

North Conway, New Hampshire
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Family Resource Center at Gorham
Gorham, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Family Resource Center at Gorham's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Family Resource Center at Gorham's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2019. Family Resource Center at Gorham's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibilitv

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Family Respurce Center at
Gorham's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Family Resource Center at Gorham's compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Family
Resource Center at Gorham's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Family Resource Center at Gorham complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Family Resource Center at Gorham is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Family
Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent,- or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over comp/zance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance!

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

October 4, 2019

North Conway, New Hampshire
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of
Family Resource Center at Gorham.,

2. No. significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance v/ith Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Family
Resource Center at Gorham, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required hy Uniform Guidance.
No material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Family
Resource Center at Gorham expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal
programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Education;
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers, CFDA - 84.287, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood
Home Visiting Grant, CFDA - 93.870

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Family Resource Center at Gorham was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None
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Patricia Stolte

Professional Skills

ADMiNism/vnvE '
Over thirty-five years' experience in positions requiring administrative responsibility and
problem solving abilities including; nonprofit agencies, marketing departments and human
setA'ice programs:

• Knowledge of all aspects of operational, financial and compliance for non-profit and for-

profit businesses

•  Responsible for managing resources, developing annual budgets, monitoring and managing
budgets and overseeing contracts and compliance with DWHS.

•  Supervision and leadership for multiple non-profit programs with 50+ staff members

•  Program design and implementation

• Development; grant writing, annual appeals and donor program implementation

•  Human Resources creating policies dc procedures, job descriptions, orientation and training
for several agencies

•  Initiated Strategic Planning process and Board Development within agencies

•  Agency delegate for several state conferences, involved in coordination of all aspects of
annual events, fundraising projects and marketing campaigns

•  Facility and building management for several site locations

•  Volunteer management, recruitment and recognition

Fiscal Managem ent

• Managing agency budget of S2+million with multiple program budgets

•  Budget management of 3 ,programs with reporting to Board of Directors and agency CEO
overseeing SI.3million budget

•  Budget management of advertising campaigns from SSOOk to %6 million for businesses

•  Proposals for funding to state, federal and local governments for annual contracts

•  Fiscal management of annual grants from NH Charitable Trust and other foundations.

SkilI^;

• Work collaboratively with board members, staff and colleagues

•  Create partnerships within the community to combine and extend resources

•  Possess solid presentation, communication and organizational skills

• Knowledge of Microsoft Office, graphics programs and social media



PROFESSION/VL EXPERIENCE:

The Family Resource Center,
Gorham NH - Executive Director August 2015 to present

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc., Berlin. NH - August 2004 to August 2015
Sen'iceLink Resource Center Director - 2004 to 2006

TCCAP Division Director - 2006 to 2015

Mountain View Grand Resort

Whitefield, NH Public Relations Director

Berlin Main Street Program

Berlin, NH Executive Director

-January 2003 tojuly 2004

November 1997 to January 2003

Zale Corporation/Karten's
Dallas/New Bedford, MA - Marketing Manager
1991 to 1997

Pierce-Cote Advertising Agency
Oster\'ille, MA — PR & Media Manager
1989 to 1991

Shreve, Crump & Low,
Boston - Marketing Director - 1984 to 1989

Wolfe Publishing, Pittsford NY - Advertising Sales Representative - 1984

Education &TR/V1N1NG

State University of New York at Fredonia, BA in Mass Communications & Business
Monroe Community College, Rochester, New York, Associates in Business Administration
Brighton High School, Rochester, New York

Volunteer Engagement - past & present

•  Involved on area non-profit boards, community groups and projects with organizations

such as Coos Country Health Serx'ices, Androscoggin Valley Home Care, AV Economic
Recover)' Committee, Head Start Board of Advisors, The Main Street Program and
Androscoggin Valley Hospital Wellness Committee

• Member of NH Wellness & Prevention Council, Leadership NH North Country, Statewide

Coalition of Aging Scrx'ices, the Planning Committee for NH State Conference on Aging,
the Coos County Coalition for Families & Children, The Endowment for Health Planning

Committee and the Androscoggin Valley Community Partners



RESUME Ron Flnl

WORK HISTORY

1999-present Finance Manager, The Family Resource Center at Gorhani.
2014-2019 Computer Support Educator, Hillside Elementary School

2013-2013 Staff Accountant at Androscoggin Valley Hospital

2010-2016 Software Systems Educator, Androscoggin Valley Hospital
2008-2014 Volunteer at the Androscoggin Valley Hospital

1980-2008 Business Technology/Education Chairperson

1975-2008 Self-employed Disc Jockey for Rockin' Ron's Music

1980-1983 G.E.D. Instructor, General Adult Education, Berlin

1971 -1975 Manpower, Adult Job Training Instructor, Berlin

EDUCATION

1965-1967 Northampton Commercial College-, Northampton, Massachusetts; Majored in
Accounting/Business Management; Diploma

1967-1969 Western Kentucky University; Bowling Green, Kentucky; Majored in Accounting,

Business Administration, Business Education; BS. Minor in Economics.

1969-Present Various Professional Development courses, and other activities.

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

•  Server on the Gorham (GRS) School Board.

•  Established and manage the Rotating Arts Program at the Androscoggin Valley Hospital.

•  Role in organizing the Androscoggin Valley Hospital Recycling Program.

•  A volunteer at the Androscoggin Valley Hospital.

•  Volunteer for a variety of charitable organizations, community projects, and people/families in

need. Holy family Church: Past member of Finance Committee (4 years), Parish Council {3
years) and member or chair of many fund raising committees.

•  Gorham Knight of Columbus: Active member for over 25 years

•  Big Brother/Big Sister

COMPUTER SKILLS

•  Have been giving instruction on computers and computer software since 1980.

•  Have knowledge on the following software application: Sage Accounting (Once known as
Peachtree Accounting), Various Windows applications (including XP, Vista, Windows 7,
Windows 10), Quicken, Microsoft Word (all versions), Microsoft Publisher (all versions),

Microsoft Access Power Point, Google Docs-Sheets-Slide, and many other application/utilities
software packages.

AWARDS RECEIVED

•  Volunteer of the Year from the Androscoggin Valley Hospital

•  /f/n'g/j/o///ie Kcy//-from the local Gorham council.

•  First place in slate Council Bulletin Competition.

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

•  Gorham Teachers' Association, past Vice-President 1970, member from 1969 to June 2008.

•  National Education Association, life member from 1969.

REFERENCES: Upon Request



RESUME

NAOMI LEVESQUE

EDUCATION B.S. Environmental Science and Wildlife Studies, Graduated June 2012
Granite State College, Berlin, NH
GPA 3.91/4.0 summa cum laude

EMPLOYMENT THE FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

Organization Manager - HR/IT/Staff Support 05/2019-present

Assistant Program Director 02/2016 - 05/2019

Site Director 09/2014 -02/2016

Interim Program Director 11/2013 -09/2014

Site Director 09/2009 - 11 /2013

Group Leader and Administrative Assistant 11/2005-09/2009

The Family Resource Center- Project Youth. Gorham. NH.

•  Human Resources and Information Technology
> Coordinate onboarding and completion of all paperwork; manage employee files
> Ensure Federal and State MR compliance; address employee HR matters
> Assist with FRC employee policy updates and adherence
> Configure and issue all employee technology
> Research, procure and launch new technology; ensure security compliance
> Manage Google Suite, primary website and phone system portal
> Record Board Meeting minutes, manage room bookings, answer phones, greet

clients, super\'ise special projects staff
•  Leadership of the Project Youth Afterschool and Summer Programs

> Programs hosted in five schools ser\'ing @180 students in grades K-8
> Provide quality, hands-on staff development and support for @25 staff
> Knowledge of and compliance with NH DHHS Childcare Licensing Standards
> Manage budgets
> Strengthen and expand community partnerships and relationships
> Maintain database

> Surveys and data collection, tabulation and analysis
> Direct leadership of K-2 elementary and middle school grades 6-8 programs

o Delivering services to 35-55 students including homework help
o Training staff to create and implement scaffolded lesson plans linking to

NH Common Core Standards

o Lead health and nutrition, environmental science and STEM curriculums
"o Monthly activity calendars and newsletters, pamphlets, permission forms
o  Preparation of daily USDA approved snack menus and serving
o  Event planning and implementation; fundraising
o  Partnership development with local companies and organizations
o Coordinate with Site Directors and school day staff for consistent practices

> Prepare and facilitate age appropriate enrichment curriculum/activities for staff and
grades K-8 students

•  Interim Director duties not listed above

> Management of funding from Federal, State, local and small grants
> Co-write two NH 21 CCLC grants and fulfillment of the terms there-in
> Completion of required annual reports in relation to funding and program goals
> Projecting and balancing budgets
> Performing background checks and employee hiring forms

•  Administrative Assistant duties not listed above

> Creation of client accounts in QuickBooks; billing/payments
> Conversion to new billing luanagement database



CREDENTIALS/

CERTIFICATIONS

> NHDHHS Child Care Web Billing
> Managing files, answering phones, verbal and written communication, registration

forms and document creation with Microsoft Office Programs, press releases;
support for Program Director, Site Directors and Group Leaders

♦ NH DHHS Aflerschool Professional Development Credential- Afterschool Direct Service
Level 6

♦ First Aid/CPR/AED-June 18, 2019 (expires 06/202!)

♦ NH 4-H Shooting Sports Leader.Class II Archery Instructor- May 22, 2011-present
♦ Project WILD and WET/WILD Aquatic Instructor since 2010 (updated May 2016)
♦ Stream Safari Instructor since May 2016
♦ New Hampshire Coverts Cooperator since 2012
♦ Project Learning Tree Instructor since 2009
♦ Courage to Care Instructor- December 14, 201 1-2019
♦ Leadership North Country alumni- 2010-201 1

VOLUNTEER

EXPERIENCE

Cit)'of Berlin Planning Board Member 2016-present
o Review and understand materials

o Communicate professionally with Board Members and members of the public
o Utilize connections to facilitate student presentations on local matters
Ammonobsuc Chapter of NH Audubon Board member and Secretary 2011-present
o Mailing list maintenance and management of bulk mailings
o Communication with the public

o Record meeting minutes, prepare annual report and present to the public
o Co-leader of family friendly bird walks
NH Volunteer River Assessment Program participant 2012-2019

o Ability to follow specific protocols and accurate completion of paperwork
Committee member and Secretary for The Medallion Opera House 2011-2016
o Recorded meeting minutes and prepared documents for the committee
o Assisted with event planning and implementation

Loki Clan Wolf Refuge in Chatum, NH 2005-2013

o Monthly newsletters, coordination with printer, bulk mailings
o  Some website management and associated coding
Lake Umbagog Wildlife Refuge in Errol, NH 2007-2009
o Database cataloguing of office resource materials, pamphlet updates, greeting patrons

SKILLS ♦ Office Management
♦ Microsoft Office Excel, Word, Publisher, PowerPoint

♦ Collaboration and Communication

♦ Community Involvement
♦  Leadership
♦  Budget Management
♦ Grant Writing
♦  Education
♦  Event Planning

Public Speaking

Fundraising
Confidentiality

Leadership
Research.

Strategizing
Taking Initiative

Self-driven to Succeed



Lucie A Remillard

RESUME

Summary of Qualifications
Highly skilled and dedicated professional offering a 20-year background in office management,
sales, outreach, marketing, new business and account management. A community outreach
coordinator, networking in communities and chamber of commerce throughout New Hampshire.

Areas of Experience
Community Outreach, Contract Negotiations, Office Operations, Office Management
Sales & Marketing Contract/Pricing Client Communication

Staff & Team Leadership Financial Reports Strategic Planning
Property Management Negotiation Recruit & Support

Work Experience

Family Resource Center - Gorham, NH
January, 2020 to Present

Administration Manager - Involved in office operations, policy & certificate review for
compliance, renewal and audits. Work with ED, bid preparation, and purchasing. Responsible for
facilities & satellite site management, supervising maintenance personnel & building repairs.
Manage multiple projects and agency operations as needed.

CASA of NH - Manchester, NH

May, 2016 to November, 20 i 9

North Country Community Outreach Coordinator - the Outreach Coordinator is responsible for
outreach, recruitment, and building relationships with volunteers & community groups in Coos,
Graflon & Belknap counties. This includes group presentations, advocate interviews, chamber of
commerce, city & town involvement. Outreach Coordinator is.building partnerships and maintaining
interaction with community stakeholders and residents; distributing outreach and marketing
materials; attending community and city-wide meetings, and representing CASA of NH as essential
to promote awareness. Also included are daily follow-up on the CASA's administrative tasks,
volunteer inquires, and to secure training locations.

Provider Financial - ENH Power, Auburn, ME
September 9, 2013 - December 31, 2015

Communitj' Outreach Worker - Building relationships in New Hampshire that would increase
residential and commercial accounts. Identify non-profit agencies for a community partner program
to raise funding and financial contribution; volunteer and remain active in several NH Chamber of
Commerce; communicate and promote company enrollment; attend home, industry, business & trade
shows throughout New Hampshire, Maine & Mass; educate yet promote company awareness and
benefits; maintain strong community relationships with area business owners, political
representatives and non-profit agencies.



Lucie-A Rcmlllard RESUME - p2

Re/Max Northern Edge / Callus & Green Realtors, Berlin, NH
License Real Estate Broker with New Hampshire since 1997
Realtor - Broker Associate; G & G - Office Manager

List, market, manage and sell residential & commercial real estate in Northern New Hampshire.
Work closely with clients, brokers, title companies, attorneys, mortgage agents to secure contracts
and transfer of properties. Recognized as a competitive industry leader within a highly volatile
market, 1 generated over $200K in sales commission and achieved '"high seller" status for several
consecutive years. Maintain a solid network of business, industry and community contacts. Design,
market, and advertise promotional flyers, mailers and letters targeting prospective clients. Recruited
and trained office staff and real estate sales agents.

Home Sweet Apartments & Realty, Berlin, NH
1990 - 2003 (Owner/Broker - sold business in 2003)
Property Manager & Real Estate Sales Broker - Property, management firm specializing in sales
and rental. Business grew from 4 units to over 600 rental management units within 3 years. Recruited
and supervised a professional staff of ten employees and numerous sub-contractors. Directed rental
operations which included tenant screening, contract negotiations, rent collections, advertising, and
general property maintenance. Maintained business accounting for each property, complete operating
statements, cash journals, income and expense reports, secure competitive insurance rates and ensure
all properties met or exceeded state, local and federal housing codes.

Education, Licensure & Board Member

Springfield College - St. Johnsbury, Vt - Human Services - Completion IP of Bachelor's Degree
Granite State College - Human Ser\'ices
Licensed Real Estate Broker

NH Board of Realtors

NH Landlord Association

Councilor - City of Berlin
Board Member - Planning Board - Accounts & Claims - Traffic & Safety - Budget



The Family Resource Center at Gorham

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Patricia Stolte Executive Director* $72,000 0  , 0

Ron Fini Finance Manager* $40,000 0 0

Naomi Levesque HR/IT Manager* $34,760 0 0

Lucie Remillard Office Manager* $36,000 0 0

*10% indirect helps hind administrative staff salaries



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Home Visiting Services Contract

This 1®' Amendment to the Home Visiting Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") ,
is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and TLC Family Resource Center, (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 109 Pleasant Street, Ciaremont, NH
03743.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20. 2018 (Item #27E), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions,' Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$599,500.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 1 Provisions Applicable to All Services, Subsection,
1.5., to read:

1.5. The Contractor shall provide home visiting services in Sullivan County to a minimum of 15
families per contract year.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, Paragraph 2.2.4.,
to read:

2.2.4. Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential components of the HFA
Model are addressed in agency policies.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, by adding
Paragraph 2.2.6., to read:

2.2.6 Participate in Continuous Quality Improvement Projects and collaborative efforts to serve
families within designated catchment areas. The Contractor shall:

2.2.6.1. Ensure staff are available to provide relevant data as well as key data and metrics,
as requested by the Department.

2.2.6.2. Ensure staff are available to review data, discuss performance, learn from their

TLC Family Resource Cenler
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-06-A01 Page 1 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

peers, and identify action-steps that may improve client outcomes.

6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 3 Staffing Requirements. Subsection 3.5 to read;

3.5. Reserved.

7. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Subsection 3.6, to read

3.6. Reserved.

8. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 4 Reporting and Deliverable Requirements, by adding
Subsection 4.8., to read:

4.8 The Contractor shall participate in sub-recipient monitoring activities, as coordinated by the
Department. The Contractor shall:

4.8.1 Provide fiscal documentation demonstrating that MIECHV funding is utilized
solely to support activities under this contract, as requested by the Department.

4.8.2 Ensure expenses are reasonable, allowable and allocable per 45 CFR 75.

4.8.3. Provide documentation of funding utilization and reasonable expenses to the
Department upon request.

9. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5 Work Plan, Subsection 5.2. to read:

5.2. The Contractor shall submit a Work Plan, utilizing a template as provided by the
Department, that includes, but is not limited to:

5.2.1. Activities.

5.2.2. ' Performance Measures (Outcomes).

5.2.3. Action Plan for Improvement.

10. Modify Exhibit A-2 Work Plan Template by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit A-
2 Performance Measures, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to read:

1. This Contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to supporting funding for
this project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in. the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 93.870 (https://www.cfda.gov). U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) and General
Funds from Parental Assistance Funds.

12. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3. to read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reirribursement basis for allowable costs only in
accordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit 8-8 - Amendment #1.

13. Modify Exhibit B-3, Budget by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit B-3 Budget-
Amendment'#1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

14. Add Exhibit B-4 Budget-Amendment #1.

15. Add Exhibit B-5 Budget - Amendment #1.

16. Add Exhibit B-6 Budget - Amendment #1.

17. Add Exhibit B-7 Budget-Amendment#!

18. Add Exhibit B-8 Budget-Amendment#!

TLC Family Resource Center
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services i

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices

Date Name:
Title.

TLC Family Resource Center

Date Name: SlCL^J^/cfy^
Title:

TLC Family Resource Cenlef
Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/24/20

Date Name:

Title: Catherine Pines, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

TLC Family Resource Center
Amendment #1

SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-06-A01 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Sen ices

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

1. Performance Measures

1.1. For all measures, consider services provided during State Fiscal year 2021 (July
1, 2020- June 30, 2021) in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services of this
Contract.

Performance Measure #1 (EPDSI

HFA Best Practice Standard 7-4.D

Measure: 80% of women enrolled In the program received at least one Edinburgh Postnatal
Depression Scale screening by 3 months postpartum.

Goal: All post-partum women enrolled in HFA will receive this formal, validated screening for
depression at the optimal time.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of women that received an
Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale (EPOS) screening by 3 months postpartum.

Denominator-The total number of women in the program who reached 3 months post
partum during the reporting period and were enrolled prior to 3 months after the birth of
their baby.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (New) ̂  Quarterly Reports-^ HFA EPDS 3 months rev
[7/10/2019] Index child only

Performance Measure #2 (Rctcntionl

HFA Best Practice Standard 3-4.A

Measure: Increase the percent of families who remain enrolled in HFA for at least 6 months
from FFY 2019 average (10/1/2018-9/30/2019) baseline.

Goal: Families stay connected and maintain involvement with HFA services.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of families that remained in HFA
services at least 6 months,

Denominator- The number of families who received a first home visit during the period
10/1/2019-9/30/2020;

Quarter 1 10/1/2019- 12/31/2019
Quarter: 1/1/2020-3/31/2020
Quarter 3 4/1/2020 - 6/30/2020
Quarter 4 7/1/2020-9/30/2020.

Data Source: ETO: Reports View Reports (New) Quarterly Reports HFA Retention
Summary (Current) (Baseline is determined by performance in the prior fiscal year.)

TLC Family Resource Center
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen ices
Home Visiting Sen ices

Exhibit A-2 Ferformance Measures

Performance Mcasui'c #3

HFA Best Practice Standard 6-6.B

Measure: 90% of target children with a positive screen for developmental delays (scoring
below the "cutoff on the ASQ-3) receive scn'iccs in a timely manner. Children
already receiving developmental services should not be screened.

Coal: All children served who are determined to be at risk for developmental delays, and are
not already receiving developmental services, will receive a referral for further evaluation
or services. (If a family declines a referral this should be documented in the family's file
and the Family Support Specialist shall continue efforts to advocate for accessing
developmental services.)

Definition: Numerator: Number of children enrolled in home visiting who a) received
individualized developmental support from a home visitor; b) were referred to early
intervention services and received an evaluation within 45 days; OR c) were referred to
other community services who received services within 30 days (and met the conditions
specified in the denominator.)

Denominator: Total number of children eru olled in HFA with positive screens (scoring
below the cutoff) for developmental delays, measured using the ASQ-3.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (New)^ Quarterly Reports-^ HFA Child Development
Screenings (Current)

Performance Measure #4

UFA Standard 12-1.B

Measure: All direct service staff receive n minimum of 75% of required weekly individual
supervision according to the HFA Standards.

Goal: Service providers receive ongoing, effeciive supervision so they are able to develop realistic and
effective plans to empower families.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of direct service staff who received
75% of required weekly individual supervision for a minimum of 1.5 hours for full-time
(.75 to 1.0 FTE) and 1 hour for part-time staff (from .25 - .75 FfE).

Denominator- The number of direct service staff/home visitors employed in the HFA
Program during quarter.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (New)-^ Quarterly Reports-^ Staff Supervision Rev [6-
22-2018]

TLC Family Resource Center
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ExMbK Budjet - Amendment »t

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Centractor name TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Request (or Home Visillng Mew Hampshire - Hcaltny Families Amcric

Butlgct Pcrtod; Oetebci 1. 2020 - June M, 2021

Une.ttem'S

;ir. Total Program Cost a t-tit -1. .V Contractor Share / Match'e.vr.-' iSr -. Funded by.OHHS, contract sharei^c- j
v.-- v.: Direct-t.*., • 'rlndirect-'-*- ;-Total ■- .St Direct indirect"""- y..»- tTotal ^Ditect £-"•1.-.Indirect..- •••Total .y-h.-'. {

1. Total SalsrvAMaaes S 86.077.00 S 8.711.00 S 94.788.00 S 8.711.00 S 8.711.00 6 88,077.00 S s 86.077.00
2. Employee Benefits S 17.923.00 $ 1,742.00 s 19,665.00 $ 1,742.00 S 1.742.00 s 17,923.00 $ s 17.923.00

3. Considtants s. 5 % - S S - s - $ - S s •

4. Eqiripment: $ $ s S S $ s $ s

Rental $ $ s $ $ s $ s s

Reoair and Maintenance s $ s $ 6 s s s s

Purchase/Depreciation 5 S s % 6 s s $ s

5. Supplies: $ s s s S $ s 6 s
Ediicatiortal $ s s s S 6 $ $ 6

Lab s s s 6 $ 5 s $ s

Pharmacy $ s s 6 S 5 s S 6

Medical $ s $ $ $ S s S $

Office $ $ s S S 6 $ $ 6

6. Travel $ s s S s S $ S S

7. Occupancy $ % $ S s 5 $ 5

8. Cunant Expenses $ s s S 5 s 5 $ $

Telephone s 5 s $ $ S S $

Postage s s s s s s S $  . $

Subscriptions s $ $ s s 5 S S S

Audit and Legal s $ $ s s S s $ s

Insurance s $ $ s s 6 $ $ s

Board Expenses $ j $ $ $ $ $ $

9. Sofhyare s s $ s $ 6 s s $

10. Mariceting/Communicatiofts $ $ 5 s 6 6 s $ s

11. Staff Education and Training J $ $ $ 6 S $ s s

12. Subcontracts/Agreements s $ $ $ 6 S s s $

13. Other (specific details mandatory): s s $ s 6 S s s s
$ s $ $ 6 S $ s $

$ $ s $ $ S s s $

$ • s s - $ 6 • S - s
-

s s
-

TOTAL s 104,000.00 5  10.463.00 $ 114,463.00 5 $ 10,463.00 6 10,453.00 $ 104,000.00 s s 104,000.00
inulreei As A Percent el Direct

TLC FamBy Reseutee Ceraei
SS-231»OPHS-0S-H0MEV>-0&A01
ExNM B-3. Budget Amendment *1
Pege 1 o! I

Comneor Initiais
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ExtAit B-4 Bu«}et • Araendmefll S1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Caitmeter nime TLC ramitv Rrseurr* Center

Budget Request (or dome Vitking New Hartipsnlrc ■ HeeRhy FsmUlet Americ

Budget Period: Juty >■ - June 30, 202 ■ GENERAL FUNDING

Total Program.Cost j. " I-' S.f'.-r" •' ' r Contractor Share/iMatch'... ir.' ; ^Funded by DHHS <»ntract Share
r Direct . " ..Indirect .. Total - . >■ -f, Direct-.- '  Indirect-C- ■  --n Total - -  •'" Direct - . • k-'-' 'Indirect-kv.-- t.'iijr Total - . - .i

$ 31,099.00 S $ 31.099.00 S s S 5 31.099.00 S s 31,099.00

S 5.512.00 s S 5.512.00 s $ $ S 5.512.00 $ s 5,512.00

$ . 5 s - $ $ $ S • S s -

S . S s - $ $ s s
-

s $
•

Rental $ •  323.00 $ s 323.00 $ s s s 323.00 s 5 323.00

Reoar and Maintenance s . S $ - $ s « $
-

$ S
-

Purchase/Depredation $ -- 700U» $ i 700.00 $ s $ s 700.00 s S

$ . s s . s 5 $ $ • s s
•

s 1.300.00 s s 1,300.00 s 5 5 $ 1.300.00 s s 1,300.00

$ . 5 $ - % 5 S s
-

$ $

$ $ 5 s S 5 $ s s

$ . 5 5 - s $ 5 5 •
$ s

•

Office s 1.270.00 S S 1.270.00 s s  ■ S s 1,270.00 s s 1.270.00

s 2.153.00 $ - s 2.153.00 s $ S s 2,153.00 s
-

s

$ S 8,840.00 s 8.840.00 s S s
-

$ 8.840.00 s

s . $ . s - $ 5 S s • s
-

$
-

s 1,727.00 s $ 1,727,00 $ s s 1.727.00 s $ 1.727.00

s . s $ . $ S $ $
-

s s

s $ . 5 • 5 $ 5 $ s
-

s
-

s s 2.240.00 S 2.240.00 $ $ S $ s 2.240.00 5 2,240.00

s 5 1,170.00 S 1,170.00 s s S s s 1.170.00 5 1,170.00

Board Expenses s - s - $ - s $ $
-

s
-

5
•

$ 2,887.00 $ s 2.887.00 s s S s 2.887.00 $ S 2.887.00

s 500.00 s s 500.00 $ $ $ s 500.00 $ $ 500.00

11. Staff Education and Trainina s 4.043.00 5 s 4.043.00 s 5 S $ 4,043.00 s S 4.043.00

12. Subcontracis/Aareements s S s - s S $ s •
s s

•

13. Other (speafic details marKlaior>'): $ . S s - s 5 $ s
-

s s
-

Ememencv funds for family assistanca s 2.000.00 $ s 2.000.00 s 5 S s 2.000.00 s s

HFA Affiliation fees $ 1.836.00 % s 1,838.00 $ $ $ 1 5 1.836.00 5 s 1.836.00

HFA Accredidation costs $ 2.400.00 $ - 5 2.400.00 $ S $ 5 2,400.00 s
-

5

TOTAL $ 57,750.00 S 12.250.00 5 70,000.00 $ s $ $ 57,750.00 $ 12,250.00 S 70,000.00

htdireet As A Percent al Direct

TLC FamBy Resotece Center
SS-2Ot9-OPHSK)5-t1OM0/-Ce^l
ExNM B-«. Budget Amenemem si
Page i af1

Centractar Inftitfs



ExNUt Budget - Ajnendtneffl *1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Centnctar lume TLC Family Resource Center

Budget Regucsl for; Home VlsUng New Hamestiir* - HeaKny Famlies Amertc

Budget Period; July 1. 2021 • June SO, 2022

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

TLC Psrrdly Resource Cemer
SS-ZOtftOPHS-OS-HOMEV-Ofr^t

EddM B-S. Budget Amendment *1
Pege 1 of 1

.  . w. .Total Program Cost .. '1. ' ij,-. -s,,.,._.iContractor Share / Match 7" .-.i-,: fFonded by DHKS.contract share ,r- 1

Direct ;• - M Indirect ̂ .JJ- -• Total.r - • t' ryiDirect';-*.. = - •.-.u.lndifectiv4J.'> .X. -Totalv.t 'A • wi Direct'-' •—r •: .■Crlndirect.A^.-n-

S  B6.077.00 S  8.711.00 $  94,788.00 5  8,711.00 8  8.711.00 8  86,077.00 8 8  86.077.00

S  17.923.00 i  1.742.00 S  19,665.00 S  1.742.00 8  1,742.00 8  17,923.00 8

S % $ i $ 8 8 8 $

$ $ $ i $ 8 8 8 $

s S 5 % 8 8 8 8 8

s S $ $ 8 8 $ 8 8

Purchase/Depreciation s $ $ 5 8 $ 8 8 8

s $ s s 8 8 8 8

s $ 5 $ 8 8 $ 8

$ $ $ t 8 5 $ s 8

$ s $ i 8 5 8 8 S

$ 5 $ 8 8 8 8 5

Office $ S 5 s 8 $ S 5 8

s s S  - ' s 8 S 8 $

s $ 5 s 8 8 S 8

s s $ s 8 8 $ 8 8

s s s s 8 8 8 8

$ s 5 $ $ 8 $ 8 8

s s j 5 8 8 8 8 8

s s $ s 8 8 8 8 $

s s $ s 8 S 8 8 8

s $ s s i $ $

$ s $ $ 8 8 8 8 S

$ s $ s 8 5 8 8 8

5 s $ 5 8 8 S 8 $

$ $ $ S 8 8 8 8 8

13. Omer fspetafic details mandatory): s s $ s 8 8 8 S 8

s $ $ s 8 8 8 $ 8

$ s s s 8 8 S 8 S

s s 5 s 8 8 8 8 $

TOTAL s  IDA,000.00 s  10,453.00 5  114,453.00 $ 8  10,453.00 8  10,453.00 8  104,000.00 8

Contractor Inliais



ExhU Budsct - Amendmefli si

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contnctor name TLC Family Rrs»urtr Ctnicr

Budget Request for Home visKIng Mew lUmotnire • Healtny Fanilllet Amerlc

Budget Period; July 1. 2021 - June 30. 2022 GENERAL FUNDING

i. n-L " - Total Program Cost "• -...i.l c  '.1 ..Contractor Share/.Match ' .. FundedjbyDHHScontractshare .r.-'- -C.-V -i

Line itefii'^--<*''Arr.'r--. .'1.'' , : -l Direct • --T 7 indirect • - ¥ • -.Total ' f ■  -- -Direct - • •  ' Indirect'' -- .- Total i'.»- • Direct • .. '11 ■'Indirect Total..<:\< '■'i

1. Total Salarv/Wagas s 31,099.00 5 s 31.099.00 5 S S s 31.069.00 $ 5 31.099.00
2. Employee Benefits s 5.512.00 5 s 5.512.00 5 S 5 S  5.512.00 $ $ 5.512.00
3. Consiitanis S . $ s - $ s S S s $ -

A. EquipmenL' s . $ s - S s $ 5 $ S -

Rental s 323.00 $ s 323.00 $ 5 s S  323.00 $ i 323.00

Repair and Maintenance $ . $ s - 5 5 $ $ $ S -

Purchase/Depreciatjon s 700.00 $ s 7M.00 5 S 5 5  700.00 s S 700-00

5. Supplies; s . $ s - 5 .5 S 5 s $ .

Educational $ 1.300.00 S s 1.300.00 5 S S  1,300.00 s S 1,300.00

Lab s - S s • 5 S $ $ $

Pharmacy $ s s 5 % 5 s s s
Medical s - $ s • 5 $ 5 s s $ -

OfSce $ 1.270.00 5 s 1.270.00 $ 5 S  1.270.00 s $ 1.270.00

8. Travel s 2.153.00 % - 5 2.153.00 S 5 5 S  2.153.00 s - $ 2,153.00
7. Occupancy s • S e,840X)0 5 8.840.00 S $ S 5 8.840.00 $ 8.840.00
8. Cixrent Expenses s . % - 5 - S 5 5 5 - s -

Telephone s 1.727,00 5 S 1.727.00 S $ S  1.727.00 S s 1.727.00
Postage s - % s - 5 $ 5 s 5 s -

Subscriptions s S - $ - 5 5 $ 5 $ • s •

Audit and Legai s S 2.240.00 s 2.240.00 S S S s 5 2.240.00 $ 2.240.00
Insurance $ S 1.170.00 5 1,170.00 5 5 S s S 1.170.00 s 1.170.00
Boerd Expenses s . 5 - s - $ $ 5 $ - s -

9. Software $ 2.887.00 $ s 2,887.00 $ S $ 5 2,887.00 S s 2.887.00
10. Markediyg/Commurtications s 500.00 $ s 500.00 $ S 5 S 500.00 5 s 500.00

11. Staff Education and Training $ 4,043.00 J 5 4.043.00 S S % S 4,043.00 5 $ 4,043.00
12. Subcontracts/Aflreemenis % . % s - $ S % s - 5 5 -

13. Other (specific details mandatory}: s . $ s . $ S % s - 5 $ -

Emergency funds tor family assistance 5 2,000.00 $ 5 2.000.00 S S 5 s 2,000.00 S $ 2,000.00
HFA AfRliBtion fees s 1.836.00 5 % 1.836.00 J $ 5 s 1.838.00 $ $ 1.836.00

HFAAccredldation costs s 2.400.00 5 • 5 2.400.00 $ 5 s s 2.400.00 $ - 5 2.400.00
TOTAL $ 57,750.00 $ 12,250X0 5 70,000.00 $ 5 S i 57,750.00 S 12,250.00 5 70,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

TLC FemSy Resource Center
SS-201dOF>KS-05-H0MEV-0S-A£l1
EMtbl 64. Budget Amendment st
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initlat



E;inl&lt B-7 Budget - AmendmeK *1

^New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Centractornxmi 1LC Kxmily Hessu'C Center

Budget Request for ttonw VtsKlr>9 New Hxmpstiire • Hextthy Fxmilies Amcctc

Budget Pcrtod: My t, 7022 ■ Seplerntwr 30, 2023

V  . ' i . Total Program.Cost 4^."' ;; '.<".'-ContractorShare/Match VI \ _
V.
. - Funded by DHHS contract share if-..v.'j n

UneltemV • 1 Direct r'v;' *fndirect?"" • i ■Total . ~ .t u Direct-..-'" - - ■- Indirect.-iv;''- - i_ Total • Direct-- Nvlndirect Totali

1. Total SalacyAVaoes $ 21,519.00 S 2.192.00 $ 23,711.00 S  2.192.00 s 2.192.00 s 21.519.00 S 3  21,519.00
2. Emplovee Benelils i 4.481.00 $ 438.00 S 4.919.00 &  438.00 s 438.00 S  4,481.00 s 3  4.481.00

3. Consultants $ . s $ • $ S s s s S

A. Equipment: s s s S 6 6 s $ 3

Rental s s s S S S % s 3

Repair and Maintenance s $ s 5 s s $ s 3

Purchase/Depredation $ S s $ s s s s 3

5. Suodles; s s s s s 5 s s 3

Educational s s $ S S S $ s 3

Lab s 5 6 6 s s $ s 3

PhafTTtacy s s S $ $ s s $ $

Medical 5 s S $ s s 3 s 3

Office S s 6 $ t s $ s 3

6. Travel S s S s s s $ s 3

7. Occupancy S S S $ i s  • - $ 3 $

8. Cun-ent Expenses s $ S $ % s S 3 3

Telephone s s s s s s $ 3 3

Posiaqe $ $ $ s s s S 3 3

Subscriptions s s s $ $ s $ 3 3

Audit and Leqal s s $ s ) s $ 3 3

Insurance s s s $ s s $ 3 3

Btjard Expenses s s s $ 5 s $ 3 3

9. Software s $ S s i s S 3 3

10. Martteting/Communicalions s s s s s 5 5 3 3

11. Staff Education and Training $ $ s $ 5 s S 3 3

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements s $ s s 6 s $ 3 5

13. Other (speatic details martoaiory): $ s s s S s S 3 3

» $ s s s s S 3 3

$ $ s $ $ s S S S
s - s - s - $ s 6 -

S - S 5

TOTAL s 26,000.00 $ 2,630.00 $ 28,630.00 s S  2,630.00 $ 2,630.00 $ 26,000.00 3 3  26,000.00
Indirect Aa A Percent o( Direct

Tl£ Femly Resource Center
SS-201»-DPHS-0S-HOME>AC»AO1
Exnice &7, Budget A/nertdrnent et
Pege 1 el 1

Contrsetsr IrJIlals

.skziz^



Einfeit B-8 Budgei • Amensni«nt si

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CORtraeter name TUC Famly fteteurcc Cenier

Budget Request for Honte Visfltng New HampslWc - Healthy FanUles Amertc

Budget PerM: Jiriy 1.103} ■ Scpl 10. 2021 GENERAL FUNCMNG

WiV^Tolal Program Cost "'v— 1 I-V''-~ (•■:-.,"ivContractorShare/Match''«-yK*r5-; ' ■+. *J * , Ponded by.DHHS contraa share j.l-vV.yAii H
AtOirecfH^iO". Indirect'" ''- >- ;7- ..-wToUI.-l'L.- , .« Direct I"/*; .indireet. 'Totali.'-*.?. t.Direcf-i' '■!- ' "' Indirect

S 7,774.75 S % 7.T74.75 4 4 4 4  7,774.75 4 4  7,774.75

i 1.378.00 $ S 1.378.00 4 4 4 4  1.378.00 $

i . s 4 - 4 4 4 4 4 4

s . $ 4 - 4 4 4 4 $ 4

s 80.75 s 4 80.75 4 4 4 4  80.75 4

s . $ 4 . 4 4 4 4 4 4

$ 175.00 $ 4 175.00 4 4 4 4  175.00 4 4  175.00

s . 5 4 - 4 4 4 $ 4 4

$ 325.00 $ 4 325.00 4 4 4 4  325.00 4

s 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 $

S 4 4 4 4 4 4

$ . $ 4 - 4 4 4 4 $ 4

Office $ 317.50 S 4 317.50 4 4 4 4  317.50 $

s 538.75 5 - 4 538.25 4 4 4 4  538.25 4 -

$ S 2.210.00 4 2,210.00 4 4 4 4 2.210.00

$ . 5 • 4 - 4 4 4 4 4 ■ 4

s 431.75 S 4 A31.75 4 4 4  431.75 4

4 5 S 4 4 4 4 4

$ $ . 4 - 4 4 4 4 4
-

4

i S 560.00 4 560.00 4 4 4 4 4 560.00 4  560.00

s s 292.50 4 292.50 4 4 4

t . $ 4 • 4 4 4
-

4 4

s 721.75 s 4 721.75 4 4 4 4 721.75 4

s 125.00 $ 4 125.00 4 4 4 4 125.00 4

s 1.010.75 s 4 1,010.75 4 4 4 4 1.010.75 S

s . $ 4 - 4 4 4 4
-

4 4

13 Oiher (specific details mandaiory): s . $ 4 - 4 4 4 4
-

4 4

4 500.00 5 4 500.00 4 4 4 4 500.00 4

HFA AffiDeiion fees $ 459.00 5 4 459,00 4 4 4 4 459.00 4

HFA Accredidation costs s 800.00 S - 4 600.00 4 4 5 4 4

TOTAL $ 14,437.50 5 3,062.50 4 17,500.00 4 4 4 4 14,437.50 4

lAdltecl As A Pcrtent of Olceci

TLC Family Resource Center
SS-201»OPKS4&HOMSV-06-A01
ExMM M. Budget Airiendmem «1
Page 1 ol i

Centraaef Inliab



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner Secretary of State of the State of New Mampshirc, do hereby certify that TLC.FAMILY RESOURCE

CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Cor|)oration registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Januar>' 14, 2004. I

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretaiy of Stale's offiec have been received and is in good standing as

far as this oHlce is concerned.

Business ID: 461338

Certificate Number: 0004854544

%

la.

(k

IN TESTIMONY WHEREGE,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 24th dav of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secreiar>' of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Jane VanBremen . hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv/Officer of TLC Family Resource Center .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on August 19 , 2020 ' . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present
and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Stephanie Slavton. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of TLC Familv Resource Center to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Sig^tdfe of Elected Officer
I^rrie: Jane VanBremen
Title: Secretary

•  . /y

Rev. 03/24/20



j\CORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

6/22/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endor$ement(s).

PRODUCER

Clark - Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606
Keene NH 03431

CONTACT
NAMP-

PHONE
.tA/c.jio,.ex
E.MAIL
ADDRESS:

e A y

V 603-352-2121 ia/c. noI: 603-357-8491

csr24admin@clark-mortenson.com

INSURER(SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Company

INSURED

TLC Family Resource Center
P.O. Box 1098

Ciaremont NH 03743

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURERD

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 387925987 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

1NSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

X5BU
iNSn

SUBR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
/MM/DD/YYYY1

POLICY EXP
(MM/DO/YYYY) LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

E 1 X 1 OCCUR

PHPK21-172e9 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE S 2,000.000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRFMISFS (Ffl occurrencel S 100.000

MED EXP (Any one person) S 5,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $2,000,000

GEf

X

rL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 1 S'eCT I 1 LOG
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $4,000,000

S

A AU1

X

OMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

PHPK2147299 7/1/2020 7/1/2021
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa accident) ^ 1 000 000
BODILY INJURY (Per person), $

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

X

X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) S

PROPERTY DAMAGE
/Per acddentl

$

$

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

>

EACH OCCURRENCE $

AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTIONS $

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

1 PER I I OTH-
1 STATUTE 1 1 ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S

E-L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $

A Directors and Officers
EPLI

PHSD1562975 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 1 000 000 1,000.000
1.000.000 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached 11 more space is required)

Professional Liability Coverage is included in the Commercial Package Policy with limits of $2,000,000 each professional incident and $4,000,000 aggregate.

NH Dept of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-6504

]

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2014/01} The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



tic FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
109 Pleasant St. Claremont, NH 03743 603.542.1848 877.287.7144

Mission Statement

To Promote the Optimal Health and Development of
Children and Families

in

Sullivan & Lower Grafton Counties.

Updated 12/14/15
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LAWRENCE E. REED, CPA, PC
Professional Coirporation

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Member of American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TLC Family Resource Center, Inc.
(a nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of TLC Family Resource Center, Inc. as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

December 20, 2019
Chester, VT

Vermont License No. 1039



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

TLC FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

June 30, 2019

{With Memorandum Totals for June 30, 2018)

June 30, 2019

As of

June 30, 2018

Without Donor With Donor Totals

Restrictions Restrictions ,  Total (Memorandum)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 246.676 $ 43,592 $290,268 $ 257,423

Accounts receivable 179,958 - 179,958 54,807

Grants receivable - - - 20,000

Security deposit 1,350 - 1,350 1,350

Equipment and furniture 98,822 - 98,822 88,469

Accumulated depreciation (63,548) - (63,548) (54.113)

TOTAL ASSETS $ 463,258 $ 43,592 $506,850 $ 367,936

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses $ 34,685 $ - $ 34,685 $ 27,723

Accounts payable 4,022 - 4,022 2,268

Fiscal sponsor funds 6,271 - 6,271 6,750

TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,978 - 44,978 36,741

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 418,280 - 418,280 249,885

With donor restrictions - 43,592 43,592 81,310

TOTAL NET ASSETS 418,280 43,592 461,872 331,195

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

NET ASSETS $ 463,258 $ 43,592 $506,850 $ 367,936

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

TLC FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

Year Ended June 30, 2019

(With Memorandum Totals for June 30, 2018)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Year Ended

June 30, 2018

Without Donor With Donor Totals

Restrictions Restrictions Total (Memorandum)

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Governmental support $  499,355 $ $  499,355 $ 457,159

Program fees 300,515 - 300,515 104,912

Foundations and trusts 103,665 100,545 204,210 270,300

Contributions 58,859 16,171 75,030 48,821

Special events:

Gross event revenue 28,979 - 28,979 41,120

Less cost of events {7.050) - (7,050) (9,061)

Net special events revenue 21,929 - 21,929 32,059

Facility sublease income 10,579 - 10,579 9,423

Sales of donated goods - - - 2,576

Net assets released

from restrictions 154,434 (154,434) - -

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 1,149,336 (37,718) 1,111,618 925,250

EXPENSES '

Program services

Comprehensive Family Support 367,825 - 367,825 277,899

Recovery Coaching 166,181 - 166,181 16,274

Healthy Families 134,471 - 134,471 165,249

PREP 75,469 - 75,469 80,434

Parent Aide 55,402 - 55,402 59,777

Rural Outright 6,538 - 6,538 9,721

805,886 - 805,886 609,354

Fundraising 42,514 - 42,514 30,690

Management and general 132,541 - 132,541 102,409

TOTAL EXPENSES 980,941 . 980,941 742,453

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 168,395 (37,718) 130,677 182,797

Net assets at Beginning of Year 249,885 81,310 331,195 148.398

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  418,280 $  43,592 $ 461,872 $ 331,195

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

TLC FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

Year Ended June 30, 2019

(With Memorandum Totals for June 30, 2018)

Program Services

Year Ended

June 30, 2018

Total All

Services

Mgt. &

General

Fund-

raising Total

Family

Support

Recovery

Coaching

Heathy

Families PREP

Parent

Aide

Rural

Outright

Totals

(Memorandum)

Salaries and wages $ 643,696 $ 105,339 $ 32,900 $ 505,457 $ 246,145 $ 97,642 $ 88,718 $35,528 $37,424 $ $  491,821

Occupancy 71,108 - 1,797 69,311 27,851 20,695 11,102 5,356 4,307 42,897

Program expenses 67,839 5,542 2,538 59,759 25,481 20,530 7,185 3,623 930 2,010 53,828

Payroll taxes 47,204 7,181 2,513 37,510 18,075 7,252 6,575 2,792 2,816 - 36,182

Professional fees 33,327 - 1,087 32,240 12,137 3,023 4,645 10,543 1,892 - 30,145

Advertising & marketing 21,457 59 547 20,851 4,689 4.644 1,445 5,863 549 3,661 15,079

Employee benefits 26,728 10,576 642 15,510 7,610 2,062 3,052 1,512 1,274 • 19,598

Mileage reimbursement 19,442 2,022 9 17,411 8,516 2,236 1,922 270 4,314 153 17,469

Training & dev. 17,342 - - 17,342 4,176 2,530 4,601 5,926 18 91 13,564

Telephone 9,952 - 160 9,792 4,263 2,420 1,785 765 559 - 5,239

Depreciation 9,434 1,627 - 7,807 3,802 1,508 1,370 549 578 - 7,837

Insurance 7,301 - 195 7,106 3,518 690 1,594 738 566 - 5,718

Printing 4,263 28 90 4,145 1,233 907 361 916 130 598 2,115

Vehicle expense 1,026 - - 1,026 - - - 1,026 - - -

Postage 822 167 36 619 329 42 116 62 45 25 961

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 980,941 $ 132,541 $42,514

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ 805,886 $ 367,825 $ 166,181 $ 134,471 $75,469 $55,402 $ 6,538 $  742,453



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

TLC FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

Year Ended June 30, 2019

(With Memorandum Totals for June 30, 2018)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

Year Ended

June 30, 2018

Totals

Total (Memorandum)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1

Change in net assets $ 168,395 $ (37,718) $130,677 $  182,797

Adjustments to reconcile change in net
assets to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Depreciation 9,435 - 9,;t35 7,837

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable (125,151) - (125,151) (969)

Grants receivable - 20,000 20,000 (20,000)

Security deposits - - - (1,350)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,754 - 1,754 (1,503)

Accrued expenses 6,962 - 6,962 3,994

Fiscal sponsor funds (479) - (479) (9,134)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)

BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 60,916 (17,718) 43,198 161,672

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Eouloment purchases (10,353) - (10,353) (25,666)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)

BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (10,353) - (10,353) (25,666)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 50,563 (17,718) 32,845 136,006

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 196,113 61,310 257,423 121,417

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 246,676 $ 43,592 $290,268 $  257,423

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TLC FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.
June 30, 2019

ORGANIZATION

TLC Family Resource Center. Inc., (the "Center") Is a non-profit organization established in 2004 for the
purpose of promoting the physical and emotional health and safety of women and families expecting infants
or with young children. The Center serves individuals in New Hampshire's Sullivan and lower Grafton
counties. Approximately 45% of the Center's revenue and support comes from governmental financial
assistance, 27% from program services, and 28% from contributions and fundraising activities.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Standards Adoption

During 2019, the Center adopted Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) and retrospectively applied to the 2018 financial statements and related notes, which were
relabeled or reclassified to conform with the ASU. The adoption of FASB ASU No. 2016-14 did not
impact the Center's 2018 financial position or net assets.

Under FASB ASU No. 2016-14:

The previous three category classification of net assets is replaced with a simplified model that
combines temporarily restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net
assets with donor restrictions." Unrestricted net assets are now called "net assets without donor
restrictions".

New disclosures highlight restrictions on the use of resources that make otherwise liquid assets
unavailable for meeting near-term financial requirements.

Both natural and functional classifications of expenses are reported in the same place; as such,
statements of functional expenses are now included in the financial statements rather than
separately reported as supplemental information.

New or revised disclosures in the financial statement are Note 1 - Financial Statement Basis of
Presentation, Note 2 - Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets and the addition of statements of
functional expenses for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Financial Statement Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Center have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,
reporting information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Center. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Center's management and the Board
of Trustees.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TLC FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.
June 30,2019

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some of the restrictions may be temporary in nature and will be met by
actions taken by the Center or by the passage of time. Other restrictions may be perpetual in nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated that the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with restrictions. When a restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished.
net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statements of activities.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In July 2018, FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The ASU
was issued to clarify and improve the accounting guidance for contributions received and
contributions made and is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Center
is evaluating the impact FASB ASU No. 2018-08 will have on its financial statements and
disclosures.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or
less at the date of purchase.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect on outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to eamings
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual
accounts. Balances stilt outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are
written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are composed of balances granted to the Center but not yet paid as a result of grantor
stipulations, with respect to either the passage of time or actions required to be completed by the Center,
not yet fulfilled. Management has evaluated the likelihood of the Center completing the required stipulations
and believes that they be met and balances will be paid.
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Property and Eauipment

Property, equipment, and Improvements are stated at costs on the date acquired. Donations of property
and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair value. The Center capitalizes all durable
goods costing greater than $500. Property, equipment, and improvements are depreciated over the
estimated useful life using the straight-line method which include 5 years for equipment, 7 years for
furniture, 15 years for landscaping, 20 years for boilers and 39 years for building cost and improvements.
Major maintenance activities are capitalized if they extend the life of the property or equipment.
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $9,434.

Revenue Recognition. Contributions and Promises to Give

The Center's fees for programs and services provided are recognized when earned, which is within the time
period covered by the services or program. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are
reported at fair value at the date the promise is received. If gifts are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets, the gifts are reported in net assets with donor restrictions. The Center
has received no contributions with donor restrictions that are perpetual in nature.

Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and
gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire land, buildings and equipment are
reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations as to how long-lived assets must
be maintained, satisfactions of donor restrictions are reported when the land, buildings or
equipment are acquired and placed in service. The Center has received no gifts of long-lived assets.
Unconditional promises to give are recorded as pledges receivable and revenue in the fiscal year
the pledges are made at their fair value.

Unconditional promises to give are recorded as pledges receivable and revenue in the fiscal year
the pledges are made at their fair value. Unconditional promises are those for which verifiable
evidence exists that a legally binding promise to give has been made.

Program Fees

The Center earns program fees related to services provided to children and families. During the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2019 programs fees totaled $300,515, of which $202,927 was funded through federal and
state programs and $97,588 was funded through Medicaid reimbursements.

Federal and State Grant Revenues

The Center receives federal and state grant awards for various programs. These awards are generally
granted in exchange for specific services to be provided by the Center. Revenue is recognized as the award
expenditures are incurred for awards received and expended in the same year. Total federal and state grant
revenues recognized during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 was $499,355.
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In-Kind Contributions

Contributions of services are recognized as revenue and expense at fair value when received if the services
require specialized skills, are provided by individuals or entities possessing those skills, and would typically
need to be purchased if not donated. Contributions of program supplies and other goods are recorded as
revenue and expense at fair value upon receipt when there is an objective and reasonable basis upon
which to value the in-kind contributions. These contributions are an integral part of the Center's activities.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in the statements of activities and functional expenses. In addition to the allocation of direct cost to
programs and supporting services, certain costs have been allocated indirectly based on an analysis of
personnel time related to these programs and supporting services. Certain prior year amounts have
been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentation. These reclassifications had
no effect on the reported changes in net assets

Income Taxes

The Center is a not-for-profit organization as described under Section 501{c){3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is exempt from federal income taxes on income related to the fulfillment of the Center's
mission. Accordingly, ho provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying
financial statements. The Center's Forms 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the
years ending June 30, 2019, 2018 and 201.7 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after they were filed. In accordance with FASB ASC 740-10, the Center is under the opinion that there
are no unsustainable positions that have been taken in regards to Federal or State income tax reporting
requirements. Accordingly, management is not aware of any unrecognized tax benefits or liabilities that
should be recognized in the accompanying statements

Advertising Costs: The Center uses advertising to promote its programs and to fill positions. The
costs of advertising are expensed as incurred. During the year ended June 30, 2019 advertising
costs totaled $27,558.

Subseauent Events

Management considered subsequent events after June 30, 2019 through December 20, 2019, the date
when the financial statements were available to be issued. The Center concluded that no material events or
transactions occurred subsequent to June 30, 2019. that provided additional evidence about conditions that
existed at June 30, 2019, or after, requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.
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June 30, 2019

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Center regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Center considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities, general and administrative services
undertaken to support those ongoing activities, and scheduled principal payments on debt to be general
expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months,
the Center operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

At June 30, 2019 the following financial assets could readily be available within one year of the
statement of financial position date to meet general expenditures:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $290,268
Accounts receivable 179,958

Total financial assets $470,226

3. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Center has a bank line of credit in the amount of $80,000 which was renewed in March 2019.
The bank holds a security interest in all the assets of the Center. The terms of the credit line
include monthly payments of interest, based on the New York Prime rate adjusted monthly, and full
payment of the outstanding balance for a minimum period of 30 days each year. As of June 30,
2019, the outstanding balance was $0.

4. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Center receives funds under various state and federal programs. Under the terms of these
programs, the Center is required to expend the funds within the designated period for purposes
specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures of the funds are found not in compliance with the
proposal, the Center may be required to return those funds to the grantor. As of June 30, 2019,
there were no known disallowed expenditures and, therefore, no provision has been made for this
contingency.
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TLC FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.
June 30,2019

5. GRANTS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Center is awarded cost reimbursement grants by various agencies. Revenues associated with
these grants are recorded as the associated expenses are incurred. Receivables are considered
impaired if full principal payments are not received in accordance with the contractual terms. It is
the Center's policy to charge off uncollectible receivables when management determines the
receivable will not be collected. Grants and accounts receivable totaling $179,958 as of June 30,
2019 are composed of the following balances and are deemed by management to be fully
collectible;

Accounts receivable $ 67,721
County funding 5,000
State cost reimbursements 107.237

S179.958

6. SUPPORT FROM GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

The Center receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state governments. A
significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the
Center's ability to continue its programs and activities.

7. RESTRICTIONS ON ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets totaling $43,592 as of June 30, 2019 are related to Recovery
Coaching, Family Support and Rural Outright programs and equipment upgrades.

a. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Center is
required to disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. As of June 30,
2019 the Center has no financial instruments subject to the disclosure requirements. Cash and
cash equivalents, grants and accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, advances
refundable, and fiscal agency funds are reported in the statement of financial position approximate
fair values because of the short maturities of those instruments or because of the fixed rate of
interest required to be paid.

9. PENSION PLAN

Effective January 1, 2019, the Center established a Simple IRA Retirement Plan for which All
employees are eligible to participate in the Plan. Under the Plan, the Center provides a matching
contribution equal to the amount contributed by the employee up to 2% of the employee's
compensation. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan on the next entry date following the
date of their employment. The Center contributed a total of $5,765 during the year ended June 30,
2019.
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10. FISCAL SPONSOR FUNDS

The Center has administered several grant agreements to serve as a fiscal sponsor for a local
initiative. Under these agreements the Center receives the funds to be administered and charges
an administration fee for their work. No new agreements were contracted during fiscal 2019. The
remaining liability related to prior agreements as of June 30, 2019 is $6,271.

11. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Center leases its primary facility under a fiscal year-to-year lease agreement signed on
December 1, 2011, which provides for twelve-month renewal periods based on a stipulated
monthly rental payment plus utilities and a real estate tax escalation clause. This lease was
extended for another fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 at a monthly rent payment of $1,900, for a
lease commitment of $22,800.

On July 1, 2019 The Center entered into a lease agreement for office space for the Recovery
Coaching program. The lease is a one year term with monthly rental payments of $1,418, for a
lease commitment of $17,016

Facility lease payments for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $39,816

The Center entered into a photocopier lease agreement on October 14, 2018 for a term of 48
months at $192 per month. Total lease payments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 totaled
$1,728.

The Center entered into a leasing arrangement for a client database management program and
related support in January 2019 at a cost of $11,962 per year for seven years. Total lease
payments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $6,382.

Future minimum lease payments for the four leases are as follows:

Fiscal 2020 $54,076
Fiscal 2021 14.266

Fiscal 2022 14,266

Fiscal 2023 12,538

Fiscal 2024 11,962
Thereafter 16,962

The Center entered into a sublease agreement for a portion of their primary space on October 1,
2016. The sublease payments are $500 per month, plus reimbursement of utilities costs, with the
agreement ending June 30, 2017. The agreement was renewed on a month-to-month basis as of
July 1, 2017. The total sub-lease income plus utilities reimbursement received for the year ended
June 30, 2019 was $10,579.
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Dr. Diane Edwards

Work Phone: 603.542.1848 Email; Diane@TLCfamilyRC.org

• Academic Research

■  Faculty Advising

•  Course Development/Instruction

Areas of Expertise

Program Development

StaffSupervision

Compliance/Licensing

Grant Proposals

Project Management/Admin

Fiscal Management

Key Skills Assessment

Leadership - Direct and manage teams to successfully achieve organizational goals and foster collaboration.

Professional Experience

2019- PRESENTTLC Family Resource Center of Quality, Claremont, New Hampshire
Family Support Team Manager

•  Direct and supervised the Family Support Team consisting of Intake Coordinators, Community Health Nurse,
Mental Health Clinician and educators.

•  Oversee all components of the Family Support Services including Health Families America, Comprehensive Family
Support Services (including home visiting), Child Health Support Services (Parent Aide Program), Miss Kendra,
community parent support groups, arid other parent education and support programs as may be developed.

•  Implement and support best practices for service delivery, staffing, and professional development.
■  Report to the Executive Director for developing and monitoring TLC's Family Support Services and growth.
■  Collaborate with the Division of Children Youth and Families and oversee DCYF contracts.
■  Serve on various committees, including the Adverse Childhood Experience Response Team.
•  Make public presentations on the work of TLC Family Resource Center.

■  Collaborate with school personnel and peers for the purpose of implementing and maintaining service and
community embedded programming.

Claremont School District, Claremont. New Hampshire 2017- 2019
Director of Preschool

•  Directed and supervised the special education coordinator, early childhood special educators, paraprofessionals,
support service providers, and the administrative assistant.

■  Developed program handbooks and brochures for families and staff, developed program marketing materials.
■  Implemented and supported best practices for sei*vice delivery, staffing, and professional development.
•  Reported to the Director of Special Education for developing and monitoring preschool's services and growth.
■  Steered and coordinated grant projects, including identifying, applying and documenting outcomes.
•  Steered and coordinated curriculum selection and implementation according to the program's action plan, district

and state requirements.
•  Contributed to district-level discussions to align screening tools and assessments utilized in preschool with

kindergarten (Brigance and ASQ-2SE), and data collection to assess the impact of preschool.
•  Collaborated with community partners for community outreach, including student teachers, weekly programing,

monthly newsletters and annual report.
•  Facilitated professional development, conducted weekly staff meetings, attended administrative team meetings,

supervised teachers on Alt 4 plans, participated in leadership team meetings and presented to the school board as
needed.
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Colby-Sawyer College, New London, New Hampshire 2013 - 2017
Director, Teacher Education & Windy Hill Laboratory School
■  Directed and supervised 8 teachers and twenty-four student workers and substitute teachers per semester and

manage a wide scope of financial responsibilities.
Coordinated licensing operations and ensure compliance with the state's licensing and accreditation standards.
Steered and coordinated all research and projects, as well as related documentation.
Compiled Title 11 reports for the teacher education program and supervise program compliance.
Placed and mentored teacher-education candidates.

Recommend students for teacher certification.

Taught a variety of courses aligned with certification standards, and model best practices.
Associate Professor

•  Developed and instructed educational courses, "Exceptional Students," "Literacy Education." "Foundations of
Education," "introduction to Early Childhood Education," Atypical Development and Behavior 1," Student
Teaching," "Health Safety and Nutrition for Young Children," "Language and Creative Arts Birth-S," and "Early
Childhood Internships," "Integrated Practicum 1 and 11," and "Student Teaching Internship."

■  Key participant in the review process and curriculum conversion for student's major and minor coursework.
■  Collaborated with social sciences and education faculty.
•  Advised students in the early childhood development program.
•  Represented the institution on State early childhood committees, collaborate with 2-year institutions to develop

program to program articulation agreements, and collaborate with community partners for service-learning
projects.

■  Created child development talking points/career paths for admissions, provide tours and participate in
recruitment activities.

■  Networked with local and regional agencies to develop partnerships for internship placements. ^

Eastern New Mexico University, Portales, New Mexico 2008 - 2012
Director, Child Development Laboratory School
■  Directed 2 master teachers, sixteen student workers and substitute teachers per semester, while managing

financial responsibilities, such as budget, billing, payroll and monthly food claims compilation.
■  Coordinated licensing operations, and ensured compliance with the state's licensing and standards, as well as the

compliance for the kitchen guidelines, state food program requirements and high-quality rating standards.
•  Led and coordinated all research and projects, and managed child and parent administration.
Associate Professor with Tenure

■  Garnered subject matter expertise on key educational courses for early childhood education, including "Practicum
in Early Childhood Education," "Quality Early Education for All" (completely online), "Health, Safety and
Nutrition," (completely online), "Curriculum Development and Implementation 1," "Curriculum Development and
Implementation 11." (hybrid), and "Family and Community Collaboration (hybrid).

■  Developed teacher license guide to assist early childhood education students, and coached licensure candidates.
•  Converted traditional courses to online versions, resulting in a significant increase in attendance, and created

other online courses to prepare students for competency exams.

Lake Sumter Community College, Leesburg, Florida 2005 - 2008
Senior Manager, Educator Preparation Institute, Teacher Certification Program
•  Developed a competency-based certification program for students with four-year college degrees seeking career

changes, as well as for students seeking a K-12 teaching position, including online professional development for
practicing teachers seeking recertification.

o  Accomplished through a contract attained from grant funding.
Awarded with the president's "innovation" award for successful program development and expansion.
Collaborated with the Dean of Arts and Sciences to develop an infrastructure for new programs, to create job
descriptions, and oversee the faculty and budget and write grants.
Obtained training related to mandates and certification, and alternative course delivery options.
Networked with various departments to ensure optimal service delivery to students.

Faculty/Manager, Early Childhood Education 2004 - 2008
Developed associate science and applied science degree programs in early childhood education with specialty
options in childcare management and pre-school curriculum.
Conceptualized and instructed courses, while managing and promoting new programs to childcare providers.
Liaised with adjunct ECE faculty and collaborated with children's community organizations.
Trained childcare providers and networked and assisted with developing articulation agreements and credit
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Salem State College, Salem, Massachusetts 2001 - 2004
Director, Advancing the Field of Early Care & Education
•  Led a three-year project, contracted by the MA Department of Education, focused on advancing the educational

level of practitioners (PK-3) who did not complete their education.
o  Developed and managed a variety of services in collaboration with college administration and

faculty, community agencies and state regulatory agencies.
■  Advised students with a variety of learning needs, oversaw the budget, published a bi-monthly online newsletter,

and reported program activities at state-wide conferences.
•  Wrote grant proposals, researched new course development, scripted and produced a video demonstrating the

history and success of the program, and assisted with meeting accreditation requirements.

National Coalition for Educational & Cultural Programs, Stoneham, Massachusetts 1991 - 2004

Founder/President
■  As a non-profit agency, earned recognition as a professional development provider, an agency that granted early

childhood continuing education units and a provider ofscholarships.
•  Developed numerous courses, including instructor teacher education, recruitment and training, grant writing,

long range business planning, fiscal development, and establishing business partners.
■  Networked within the community to market services, spearheaded the collaboration with Reading Rainbow,

resulting in co-sponsorship for a TV program, "Words that Cook! Parenting with Children's Books."
■  Created and provided professional training and mentoring for staff, focused on consensus building and conflict

resolution, and established a series of distant education early childhood courses, "Preschool Curriculum,"
"Behavior Management," "Creating Learning Environments," "Supervision and Staff Development," "Time
Management and Goal Setting," and "Children with Special Needs."

Salem State College, North Shore Community College, Danvers, Massachusetts 1989 - 2004
Visiting Lecturer

•  Instructed graduate and undergraduate-level courses on a continuous basis, utilizing administrative and
educational technology during traditional semesters and intensive sessions.

Training & Education

Doctor of Education, Leadership in Higher Education Administration,
University of Massachusetts, Boston, MA (2004)

[nfant/Toddler Development Specialist Certificate, University of Central Florida, Orlando, PL (2007)
Master of Arts, Education, Lesley University, Cambridge, MA (1987)

Bachelor of Arts, English, Merrimack College, North Andover, ma (1981)

Healthy Families America- Parent Survey for Community Outreach Core and Supervisors' Training (2019);
Foundations for Family Support Core and Supervisors' Training (2019)

ACERT (Adverse Childhood E.xperiences Response Team) Training (2019)
2019 Best Practices Conference on Student Behavioral Health (2019)

Know & Tell e-Course, identifying and reporting abuse and neglect (2019)
Trauma-Informed Care & the Pyramid Model, Wellness; Taking Care ofYourself (2019)

Skill Building for Trauma Informed Childcare Practices (2018)
Growing Up ACES: Supporting children ages 0-8 and families experiencing adversity (2018)

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention Training, Certified (2017)

Students' Behavioral Health. New Hampshire School Administrators Association Conference (2019)
Principals' Academy, Drummond & Woodsum Attorneys at Law, (2018)

Pyramid fvlodel Coach, Certified Trainer, Teaching Pyramid Observation Tool; Prevent, Teach and Reinforce Appropriate
Behavior, New Hampshire Department of Education/ CSEFEL (2017, 2018)
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Grants

(2019) Couch Family Foundation, MA, $23,000.00 to support a collaboration between the SRVRTC and preschool

whereby students in the Building and Trades program construct playground materials for preschool.

(2018) Hannaford Bros, ME, $750.00 to support nutrition curriculum, including gardening, food groups, portion sizes

and healthy choices.

(2018) jack and Dorothy Byrnes Foundation, NH, $5,000.00 to enhance playground accessibility & safety.

(2017) jack and Dorothy Byrnes Foundation, NH, $13,500,00 to create a sensory room for use by preschool, and other

district programs, to calm the senses and adjust energy levels to improve focus, mood and behavior.

(2015) Community Wellness Mini-Grant, New London Hospital, NH $2,500.00 to purchase commercial equipment for

use in preparing healthy snacks for children as part of a new course. Health Safety and Nutrition, which will be

required by New Hampshire Child Care Licensing. Locally grown produce will be the focus of food and nutrition
education for children based on daily snacks that will be prepared by students and teachers.

(2012) Project Learning Tree & Eastern New Mexico University College of Education grant award $2,000.00 to

develop a science/nutrition curriculum with materials, in collaboration with students, and make it available

throughout New Mexico

(2011) Daniel's Fund grant award $8,469.00 to renovate lab school bathrooms

(Spring 2010) ENMU internal grant award $700.00 to enhance distance learning

(2009) New Mexico Department of Health, competitive grant award $5,000.00 to develop a preschool health and

wellness curriculum

(2008) ENMU internal competitive grant award $2,925.00 research/teaching/learning

(2008) ENMU internal competitive grant award $1,000.00 student success

(2007-2008) Florida Department of Education (FLDOE) competitive grant award $264,039.00 for Educator

Preparation Institute (EPI) expansion

(2006-2007) FLDOE grant award $86,261.00 for EPI continuation

(2006-2007) FLDOE competitive grant award $268,650.00 for EPI expansion

(2005-2006) FLDOE grant award $54,261.00 for EPI continuation

(2005-2006) FLDOE competitive grant award $154,151.00 for EPI start up

Publications

Edwards, 0. & Greata J. (2012) "Administration of Preschool Programs" in A Handbook of Early Childhood Education.

(pp.175-186). New York, NY; Nova

Edwards, D. & Greata J. (2012) "Preschool Curriculum" in A Handbook of Early Childhood Education, (pp.154-174). New

York, NY: Nova

Edwards, D. Vic & Tory: a big book for preschool children featuring ENMU's greyhound mascots. (Spring 2010). Written for

use by ENMU's Marketing Department

Edwards, D, & Ricci G. "Best Practices in Teacher Certification Programs." SACS online journal, premier edition. (Spring

2008).

Edwards, 0. "Testing the Limits; The impact of Education Reform on Massachusetts Early Childhood Teacher Preparatory

Programs in Public Schools of Higher Education." Doctoral Dissertation, University of Massachusetts Boston. (September
2004).

Edwards, D, "Public Factors That Contribute to School Readiness." Early Childhood Research & Practice. (Fall 1999) V. 1, N.
2. (http;//ecrp.uiuc.edu/vln2/edwards.html).

Edwards, D. "Sharing the Wealth of Knowledge; Turning Early Childhood Continuing Education Units Into Teaching Tools."

Exchange. Newsletter of Title i. V.l, N. 2 (Winter 1996).



Melony Lawlor Williams, MA, LCMHC

Summary

•  Highly skilled licensed clinician with 9 years of experience working with children, adults
and families.

•  Experienced treating children and families in multiple setting including residential
treatment, outpatient and home-based.

•  Passionate about interventions focused on prevention and early inteivention strategies.

Certification

Licensed Clinician Mental Health Counselor (NH), # 650

Employment History

10/2005 - Present Clinical Supervisor
TLC Family Resource Center, Ciaremont. NH
Provide home based services to pregnant women and families with young children. Focus of
home visits is attachment, education about fetal and child development, parenting education and
connection to community resources. Utilize videotaping as an intervention to improve
attachment and co-facilitate Mother's Journal group monthly for agency clients and members of
the community. Trained in Child Parent Psychotherapy by Dr. Joy Osofsky and Dr. Patricia Van
Horn and facilitate CPP with four families at present, two families being seen for services in
their homes. Participate in weekly CPP team supervision with a group of experienced and
talented clinicians from the local mental health agency and Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical
Center.

3/04- 12/03 Program Coordinator/Clinical Coordinator
Harbour House, Springfield, VT -
Coordinated this six bed stabilization unit for children six to sixteen years old who were
experiencing mental health crises. Focused on short term interventions as length of stay was 7-
10 days. Completed diagnostic evaluations and facilitated individual, group and family therapy
sessions as clinically indicated. Case management was a key element in this position and 1
conducted team meetings on a regular basis, working closely with local mental health agencies
as well as Department of Children and Families. 1 was also responsible for hiring and
supervision of employees.

6/02-12/03 Art Therapist/ Child and Family Therapist
Namaqita Center. Loveiand, CO
Created the art therapy program at this residential treatment facility for emotionally disturbed
children ages three through twelve. Facilitated individual and group art therapy sessions, while
also super\'ising graduate level interns from a local university. As a child and family therapist I
worked with a caseload of five children in the residence and their families and also gained
experience working with outpatient clients from the community. Additionally, I provided
training on sexualized behavior in children to the center's employees after being trained in this



curriculum.

8/01- 6/02 Acute Treatment Unit Clinician
I

North Range Behavioral Health, Greeley, CO
Conducted individual and group therapy sessions with mentally ill adults at this short-term
inpatient psychiatric center. Completed intake assessments and treatment plans, conducted case
management services and attended daily consultations with the psychiatrist to assess patients"
medication needs. Also created and facilitated art therapy group interventions aimed at meeting
the needs of the population in attendance at the center, which continually shifted.

5/01- 9/03 HcART Talks Program Coordinator
Colorado Heritage Camps. Denver, CO
Assisted in the development of age appropriate therapeutic an interventions for
transracially/transculturally adopted children and created a manual about this work. Also
implemented these interventions with over 500 transracially/transculturally adopted children per
summer at culture camps. Part of this position included speaking with parents about the art
sessions as well as d iscussions about hand ling adoption issues effectively and empathically.

8/00-4/01 Family Therapist
Youth and Family Sendees, Skowhegan, ME
Facilitated intensive home-based therapy sessions for thirteen week intervals with families at risk
of losing a child to out of home placement, working with a co-therapist throughout the treatment
process. Also provided case management services during treatment and upon discharge. Utilized
creative arts interventions when appropriate and beneficial for the clients.

1/98-9/01 Toddler Teacher

The Elm Tree, Boulder, CO

Implemented developmentally appropriate activities foreleven children ages 18 months to three
years old. Created positive relationships with parents that enabled open communication about
successes and challenges of their children. Joined the National Association for Education of
Young Children and attended annual conferences to gain up to date information about
developments in the field. ^

Education

2000 M.A. Transpersonal Counseling Psychology/ Art Therapy
Naropa University, Boulder, CO

1996 B.A., Art Therapy
Mercyhurst College, Erie, PA

Professional Presentations/Publications

Williams, M. (2010). Child parent psychotherapy at good beginnings: The Sunapee/ Kearsarge
League of Women Voters Annual Meeting: Claremont, NH.

Gassett, S., Jameson, K, Williams, M & Van Bremen, J. (2010). Two interventions to promote
attachment: Videotaping and mothers journal: New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental
Health Conference: Lincolrf, NH.



Gasset, S, Williams, M & Van Bremen, J. (2009). Mothers joumaling manual. Ciaremont, NH:
Good Beginnings of Sullivan County.

Lawlor, M. (2003). The heart talks manual; A guide to utilizing art therapy techniques with
transracially/transculturally adopted children. Denver, CO: Colorado Heritage Camps, Inc.

Farrelly Hansen, M. & Cavvlor, M. (2003). "Art therapy support groups fortransculturally and/
or transracially adopted children" InD. Betts (Ed.), Creative arts therapies approaches in
adoption and foster care:^Contemporary strategies for working with individuals and families.
Springfield, IL: Charles C. Thomas.

Lawlor, M. (2001). Broadening therapeutic boundaries to bring art home: Home based art
therapy: American Art Therapy Association Conference: Albuquerque, NM.

Lawlor, M. (2000). Art and meditation in the passageway: A student's intemship experience:
American Art Therapy Association: St. Louis, MO.



RENE COUITT

OBJ liCTIVIZ

BXPIERIENCE

To obtain a position in the social ser\'iccs fieici where I can utilize my skills
and training as a support system for children and families. 1 am a reliable
and efficient individual who enjoys working with children and their
families.

2007-Present TLC Family Resource Center Claremont, NH

Intake Coordinator

m Manage and respond to all referrals received by the agency.

■ Collect, manage and report on agency data, documentation & statistics.

■ Provide training and support to parent educators.

1999-2007 Good Beginnings of Sullivan Count\' Claremont, NI-1

Parent EdncatorlAssistant Program Director
m Case Manager and Parent Educator for 50 families annually.

■ Program management in absence of E.xecutive Director.

1997-1999 Spurwink School Newport, NH

Case Manager-

■ Devise and implement treatment plans & goals for students &: families.

■ Provide therapeutic intervention for children and families.

■ Coordinate scr\'ices for children with schools and community agencies.

Vallev Regional Hospital Claremont, NH1995-1997

Case Manager
m Conduct assessments and plan treatment goals for at-risk adolescents.

■ Provide home visits including crisis management as needed.

■ Participate in inter-agency collaboration with DCYF and mental health
providers

1993-1995 Milestones Children's Center Newport, NH

I'eac/jer

•  Managed daily routine of classroom for children ages three to five.

■  Collaborated with preschool special education team.

•  Implemented and directed newly established summer program.

EDUCATION

1989-1983 Quinnipiac College
■ B.A., Psychology'.

■ Graduated Cum Laude.

New Haven, CT

CERTIFICATIONS

CPR, First Aid and SOLVE.



ERIN A. KELLY

SUMMARY

Enthusiastic, personable and dedicated professional with 10+ years experience in supporting and
advocatingfor clients with a wide range of skills and goals. Proven track record in dependability,
communication and oiganizationalskills. Ability to multi-task, prioritize andanalyzetoobtainbcst
possible outcomes.

SKILLS

Active listening
Reading Comprehension
Service Orientation

Familiar with confidentialityproeedures
Critical Thinking
Writing
Excellent Time Management Skills
Judgement and Decision Making
Coordination

Problem Sensitivity
Organizational skills,
Excellent Communication skills

Ability to analyzcsituationsfrom multiple vantage points
Very versed in experience with the public, from varied socio-economic classes

Recent CPR and First Aid Certification

Life long leamer- have a trended countless conferences, seminars, and panel as well as collaboration
cffortswith otherarea organizations.

WORK EXPERIENCE

April 2016 - Present
TLC Family Resource Center
Parent Educator

Active listenmg
•  Assist clients in mcctingawide range ofgoals
•  Trained as a Healthy Families America home visitor- to promote child well-being and prevent the

abuse and neglect of our nation's children through home visiting services.
•  Trained in Growing Great Kids evidence-based curriculum for building strong attachment bonds,

supporting their child's development, meeting their basic care needs, and developmental assessments.
•  Build and sustain community partnerships to systematically engage overburdened families prena tally

oral birth. Enhance family functioning by reducing risk and building protective factors. Promote
healthychildhood growth and development through GGK curriculum, Ages & Stages developmental
screenings and assistance getting to Well Child Checks.

•  Work closely with RN and supervisor to provide quality services to families in Sullivan andGraflon
counties.

January 2007 - April 2016
Southwestern Community Services - Head Start

Family Advocate
•  Assist families in goal setting, findingavailablcresources, cducationalopportunities,referrals to

outside agencies
•  Familiarity with social service agencies in the area
•  100%success ralcin program wide federal reviews
•  Maintainclients' records from application to graduation from the program
•  Manageclicnt database



•  Compliance with Offtcc of Head Stai1 initiatives, policies and procedures.

Summer 2008 & 2009

West CentralBehavioralHealth

Behavioral Support
&

Summer 2004 & 2005

Hea Ith Care and Rehabilitation Services of Southeastern Vermont
BehavioralSupport

•  Assisted children with their therapeutic goals asoutlined by their treatment plan
•  Provide support, role modeling, andhelp identifyingstrengths
•  Offcradvicein overcomingchallcngcs and support growing self-confidence
•  Implemented daily activities including group ad confidence building exercises for youth at risk

Summer to Fall 2006
Connecticut Valley Home Care and Hospice
Companion &Homcmaker

•  Assist the elderly anddisablcd with household chores,errands
•  Acted as companion and friend to help maintain their safety and lifestyle

Summer 2004

Upwey Farms
Milker

•  Daily milking upwardsofOOhead
•  Light farm chores

2003-2006

Griswald Library, Green Mountain College
Librarian/Archival Assistant

Cataloging, circulation of materials, archiving, and interlibmry loans

EDUCATION

2003-2006 Green Mountain College Poultney, Vermont
Sociology/Anthivpology

B.A.

•  Cumulative CPA 3.6

2007 -Present

•  Professional development documentation, training certificates in a wide variety of topics available
upon request.

I

AWARDS

Magna Cum Laude

•  Sociology/Anthropology Senior Award
President's List: 2 Semesters

•  Dean's List: 2 Semesters

EXTRACURRICULAR/VOLUNTEER WORK
Poultney PartnersMentoringClub 2004-2006

•  Kiwanis Club of Clarcmont,membcr2008-2011
•  ClarcmontCarcsgift giving program 2007 - present

RELATED EXPERIENCE AND COURSE WORK



Karen W. Jameson, iV!.Ed,RN

Education:

University of Maine, Orono, ME
Bachelor of Science in Animal, Veterinary and Aquatic Sciences Mayl991

New Hampshire Community Technical College, Claremont, NH
Associate degree in nursing May 2001

Plymouth Stale Univei-sity, NH
M.Ed/in Health Education-May 2009

Professional

Experience: TLC Family Resource Center
(9/02- present)
Registered Nurse/Lactation Counselor/Home Visiting Coord. : Function as a member of a
dynamic team providing comprehensive health and parenting support to pregnant women,
children and families. Provides health education and encouragement to ensure the best
possible outcomes for infant and mother. Network with other social sendee agencies.

Valley Regional Hospital,Claremont,NH 03743
(6/01-12/02)
Registered Nurse: Assessed, diagnosed, planned, implemented and evaluated
health care strategies for patients in a fast-paced medical and surgical unit.

Planned Parenthood of Northern New England, West Lebanon, NH 03784
(9/94-5/03)
Health care Assistant/ Registered Nurse: Performed a variety of med ical, clerical,
and administrative functions in a busy health care facility. Responsible for client
safety, education and advocacy.

Dartmouth College, Biology Department, Hanover, NH 03755
(1/93-1/94)

Laboratory technician: Directly responsible for the efficient operation of a cell
biology research lab. Supervised and trained several undergraduate students,
ordered and inventoried supplies, performed various scientific assays. Assisted in
grant application process.

Avian farms International, WaterWIle, ME 04989

(12/91-7/92)

Barn Manager: Independently supervised three employees in the care of 4,000
genetic research chickens. Responsible for bam safety, flock health, record
keeping, egg production and egg hatchability. Member of company safety
committee.



Kristina Smith

Education/Training

2013 Bachelor of Science Growing Great Kids Prenatal to 36 Months
Major; Child Development Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening & Support
Colby Sawyer College. New London, NH Strengthening Families Framework

Experience

Parent Educator. March 2019 - Current

TLC Family Resource Center, Claremont, NH
=> Provide strength based and relationship focused services to families, including care coordination
=> Implement home visits to promote healthy family relationships and child development
=> Teach and model Growing Great Kids curriculum
=;• Help families assess their strengths and concerns
=> Assist families in developing goals and action steps around the Five Protective Factors
=> Support families in accessing community resources
=> Actively contribute to the Parent Support Team
=> Engage in ongoing professional development and community outreach activities

Lead Teacher Infant Room. August 2015 - September 2018
Children's Center (CCUV), Lebanon. NH

=> Develop Lesson Plans
=> Assess children's needs and development

=> Ensure the safety of all children
=> Follow licensing regulations

=> Maintain open communication with parents

Afterschool Site Supervisor. October 2014 - April 2015
Kids after School Time (KAST), Hanover. NH

=> Supervise staffand children
=3- Plan (Daily schedule and activities)
=> Ensure the safety of all children
=> Communicate with parents and staff

Volunteer Experience

Spring 2013. Social Policy Class
Shared oversight and fundraising responsibilities to host an inclusive community event for families with and
without special needs.

2011-2012. CHAD. Lebanon, NH

Shared responsibilities in assisting with fundraising activities and helped provide support at the fundraising sites.
Worked with the children to create activities and design a fair.

2006-2009. Amateur Athletic Union Basketball Team. Lake Sunapee Region
Served as the Assistant Head Coach. Coached 20 children ages 13-15-years-old. Created/led drills and practices.
Shared oversight and responsibilities with the coach and parents in scheduling tournaments.



BRENDA L. FOLEY

SKILLS & EXPERIENCE as acquired and demonstrated through trainings, education, and life/work history.
• Strong ability to communicate effectively with diverse populations •Interpersonal relationship building and
conflict resolution^Ability to adapt to difficult situations^Detail oriented •Capable problem solver^Good
organizational skills^Efficient computer abilities^Effective time and projeet managements Leadership skillss

EDUCATION

Granite State Colleee. Claremont, NH

•  Bachelor of Science degree in Health & Human Services.
•  Graduation: December 2006. Summa Cum Laude
•  Recipient of Granite State College's 2006-2007 Merit Scholarship Award.

Andover College. Portland, ME

•  Associate in Applied Science degree. Medical Assisting major/Human Ser\'ices minor.
•  Graduation: May 2002. GPA 4.0
•  Recipient of Andover College's President Cup Award 2002.

EMPLOYMENT

Resident Ser\'ices Coordinator. POAH Communities at Sugar River Mills Claremont, NH (5/13-4/15)
•  Develop and implement supportive service programming in collaboration with residents, site staff and

management and local community service providers.
•  Identify, assess and coordinate the delivery of services with ser\'iee providers and contractors
•  Maintain all necessary information and reports in a confidential manner following the regulatory guidance

provided by HUD.
Economic Independence / Direct Services Coordinator. TPN Claremont, NH (12/03-6/05; 12/09-5/13)
•  Developed, coordinated and supervised the EIP, a grant funded program designed to promote and assist

victim/survivors of domestic abuse, sexual assault, and stalking with whatever s/he may identify in order
to reach self sufficiency and economic independence.

•  Educated and trained community and businesses of trauma informed services.
•  Coordinated and supervised agency D.S. stafTand services including 24-hour crisis and support line,

individual peer support counseling; group facilitation; outreach services, social services, legal, medical,
law enforcement, and court advocacy and mediation, transportation; shelter and safe home placement; and
referrals and follow up.

•  Established and maintained collaborative working relationships with community providers including
police, courts, attorneys, clergy, and medical mental health and social service providers.

•  Recruited, trained, and retained 24-hour volunteer task force.
Independent Services Coordinator. Self-employed Contraetor, Claremont, NH (12/09-present)

•  Provide services as described below for two individuals who with the agreement and consent of their
guardians requested 1 continue as their case manager by contracting independently with Pathways.

Family Services Coordinator. PathWays of the River Valley, Claremont, NH (12/06-12/09)
•  Provided comprehensive case management social role valorization, and advocacy for persons with

developmental disabilities and /or traumatic brain injury, ensuring the preservation of civil rights and
those rights to treatment and services as set forth in NH RSA 171-A.

•  Facilitated planning meetings, individual budgets, legal processes; and acted as a liaison between the
individual, community, state agencies, and service providers.

COMMUNITY SERVICE & VOLUNTEERJSM
•  Notary Public. State of New Hampshire, Commission expires February 2, 2016
•  Crisis Intervention Volunteer Advocate. TPN Sullivan County 2005-2009, 2013-present
•  Team Leader: Steooin Up to End Violence annual walk. TPN 2007-present



Dr. Diane Edwards

Professional Development

Program Development

Staff Supervision

Compliance/Licensing

Areas of Expertise

Teacher Education

Research/Projects

Project Management/Administration

Course Instruction Development

Grant Proposals

Financial Management

Industry Networking

Teaching Advisement

Key Skills Assessment

Leadership - Direct and manage teams to successfully achieve organizational goals and foster collaboration.

Professional Experience

2017- presentClaremont School District, Claremont, NH

Director of Preschool

■  Direct and supervise 1 special education coordinator, 3 early childhood special educations, 8 paraprofessionals, 5
support service providers, and 1 administrative assistant

■  Develop program handbooks and brochures for families and staff, develop program marketing materials.
•  Implement and support best practices for service delivery, staffing, and professional development
■  Report to the Director of Special Education for developing and monitoring preschool's services and growth.
•  Steer and coordinate grant projects, including identifying, applying and documenting outcomes.
■  Steer and coordinate curriculum selection and implementation according to the program's action plan, district

and state requirements.
•  Contribute to district-level discussions to align screening tools and assessments utilized in preschool with

kindergarten (Brigance and ASQ-2SE), and data collection to assess the impact of preschool.
■  Collaborate with community partners for community outreach, including student teachers, weekly programing,

monthly newsletters and annual report
•  Facilitate professional development, conduct weekly staff meetings, attend administrative team meetings,

supervise teachers on Alt 4 plans, participate in leadership team meetings and present to the school board as
needed.

Colby-Sawyer College, New London, NH 2013 - 2017
Director, Teacher Education & Windy Hill Laboratory School
•  Directed and supervised 8 teachers and twenty-four student workers and substitute teachers per semester and

manage a wide scope of financial responsibilities.
Coordinated licensing operations and ensure compliance with the state's licensing and accreditation standards.
Steered and coordinated all research and projects, as well as related documentation.
Compile Title 11 reports for the teacher education program and supervise program compliance.
Placed and mentored teacher-education candidates.

Recommend students for teacher certification.

Taught a variety of courses aligned with certification standards, and model best practices.

Colby-Sawyer College, New London, NH 2013 - 2017
Associate Professor

■  Developed and instructed educational courses, "Exceptional Students," "Literacy Education," "Foundations of
Education," "Introduction to Early Childhood Education," Atypical Development and Behavior I," Student
Teaching," "Health Safety and Nutrition for Young Children," "Language and Creative Arts Birth-S," and "Early
Childhood Internships," "Integrated Practicum I and II," and "Student Teaching Internship."

■  Key participant in the review process and curriculum conversion for student's major and minor coursework.
■  Collaborated with social sciences and education faculty.
•  Advised students in the early childhood development program.
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■  Represented the institution on State early childhood committees, collaborate with 2-year institutions to develop
program to program articulation agreements, and collaborate with community partners for service-learning
projects.

•  Created child development talking points/career paths for admissions, provide tours and participate in
recruitment activities.

■  Networked with local and regional agencies to develop partnerships for internship placements.

Eastern New Mexico University, Portales, NM 2008 - 2012
Director, Child Development Laboratory School
■  Directed 2 master teachers, sixteen student workers and substitute teachers per semester, while managing

financial responsibilities, such as budget, billing, payroll and monthly food claims compilation.
■  Coordinated licensing operations, and ensured compliance with the state's licensing and standards, as well as the

compliance for the kitchen guidelines, state food program requirements and high-quality rating standards.
■  Led and coordinated all research and projects, and managed child and parent administration.

Eastern New Mexico University, Portales, NM 2008 - 2012
Associate Professor with Tenure

•  Garnered subject matter expertise on key educational courses for early childhood education, including "Practicum
in Early Childhood Education," "Quality Early Education for All" (completely online), "Health, Safety and
Nutrition," (completely online), "Curriculum Development and Implementation I," "Curriculum Development and
Implementation II," (hybrid), and "Family and Community Collaboration (hybrid).

■  Developed teacher license guide to assist early childhood education students, and coached licensure candidates.
■  Converted traditional courses to online versions, resulting in a significant increase in attendance, and created

other online courses to prepare students for competency exams.

Lake Sumter Community College, Leesburc, PL 2005 - 2008
Senior Manager, Educator Preparation Institute, Teacher Certification Program
■  Developed a competency-based certification program for students with four-year college degrees seeking career

changes, as well as for students seeking a K-12 teaching position, including online professional development for
practicing teachers seeking recertification. "

o  Accomplished through a contract attained from grant funding.
•  Awarded with the president's "Innovation" award for successful program development and expansion.
•  Collaborated with the Dean of Arts and Sciences to develop an infrastructure for new programs, to create job

descriptions, and oversee the faculty and budget and write grants.
■  Obtained training related to mandates and certification, and alternative course delivery options.
•  Networked with various departments to ensure optimal service delivery to students.

Lake Sumter Community College, Leesburc, FL 2004 - 2008
Faculty/Manager, Early Childhood Education
•  Developed associate science and applied science degree programs in early childhood education with specialty

options in childcare management and pre-school curriculum.
■  Conceptualized and instructed courses, while managing and promoting new programs to childcare providers.
•  Liaised with adjunct ECE faculty and collaborated with children's community organizations.

■  Trained childcare providers and networked and assisted with developing articulation agreements and credit

Salem State College, Salem, MA 2001 - 2004
Director, Advancing the Field of Early Care & Education
■  Led a three-year project, contracted by the MA Department of Education, focused on advancing the educational

level of practitioners (PK-3) who did not complete their education.
o  Developed and managed a variety of services in collaboration with college administration and

faculty, community agencies and state regulatoiy agencies.
■  Advised students with a variety of learning needs, oversaw the budget, published a bi-monthly online newsletter,

and reported program activities at state-wide conferences.
•  Wrote grant proposals, researched new course development, scripted and produced a video demonstrating the

history and success of the program, and assisted with meeting accreditation requirements.
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National Coalition for Educational & Cultural Programs, Stoneham, MA 1991 - 2004
Founder/President
■  As a non-profit agency, earned recognition as a professional development provider, an agency that granted early

childhood continuing education units and a provider of scholarships.
•  Developed numerous courses, including instructor teacher education, recruitment and training, grant writing,

long range business planning, fiscal development, and establishing business partners.
•  Networked within the community to market services, spearheaded the collaboration with Reading Rainbow,

resulting in co-sponsorship for a TV program, "Words that Cook! Parenting with Children's Books."
■  Created and provided professional training and mentoring for staff, focused on consensus building and conflict

resolution, and established a series of distant education early childhood courses, "Preschool Curriculum,"
"Behavior Management," "Creating Learning Environments," "Supervision and Staff Development," "Time
Management and Goal Setting," and "Children with Special Needs."

Salem State College, North Shore Community College, Danvers, MA 1989 - 2004
Visiting Lecturer

•  Instructed graduate and undergraduate-level courses on a continuous basis, utilizing administrative and
educational technology during traditional semesters and intensive sessions.

Education & Training

Students' Behavioral Health, New Hampshire School Administrators Association Conference (2019)
Principals' Academy, Drummond & Woodsum Attorneys At Law, (2018)

Pyramid Model Coach, Certified Trainer, Teaching Pyramid Observation Tool, New Hampshire Department of Education/
CSEFEL{2Q17, 2018)

Infant/Toddler Development Specialist Certificate, University of Central Florida, Orlando, PL (2007)
Doctor of Education, Leadership in Higher Education Administration,

University of Massachusetts, Boston, MA (2004)
Master of Arts, Education, Lesley University, Cambridge, MA (1987)

Bachelor of Arts, English, Merrimack College, North Andover, MA (1981)

Grants

New Hampshire

(Spring 2019) Couch Family Foundation, MA, $23,000.00 to support a collaboration between the SRVRTC and
preschool whereby students in the Building and Trades program construct playground materials for preschool and
preschool teachers describe the benefits of the play materials to children's development in video clips to be aired on
Claremont TV- application in process.

(Fall 2018) Hannaford Bros, ME, $750.00 to support nutrition curriculum, including gardening, food groups, portion
sizes and healthy choices.

(Spring 2018) jack and Dorothy Byrnes Foundation, NH, $5,000.00 to enhance playground accessibility & safety.
(Fall 2017) jack and Dorothy Byrnes Foundation, NH, $13,500.00 to create a sensory room for use by preschool, and
other district programs, to calm the senses and adjust energy levels to improve focus, mood and behavior.
(Summer 2015) Community Wellness Mini-Grant, New London Hospital, NH $2,500.00 to purchase commercial
equipment for use in preparing healthy snacks for children as part of a new course. Health Safety and Nutrition, which
will be required by NH Child Care Licensing. Locally grown produce will be the focus of food and nutrition education
for children based on daily snacks that will be prepared by students and teachers.

New Mexico

(Spring 2012) Project Learning Tree & ENMU College of Education grant award $2,000.00 to develop a
science/nutrition curriculum with materials, in collaboration with students, and make it available throughout NM
(Spring 2011) Daniel's Fund grant award $8,469.00 to renovate lab school bathrooms
(Spring 2010) ENMU internal grant award $700.00 to enhance distance learning
(Fall 2009) New Mexico Department of Health, competitive grant award $5,000.00 to develop a preschool health and
wellness curriculum
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(Fail 2008) ENMU internal competitive grant award $2,925.00 research/teaching/learning
(Fall 2008) ENMU internal competitive grant award $1,000.00 student success

Florida

(7/07-6/08) Florida Department of Education (FLDOE) competitive grant award $264,039.00 for Educator
Preparation Institute (EPl) expansion

(7/06-6/07) FLDOE grant award $86,261.00 for EPl continuation
(7/06-6/07) FLDOE competitive grant award $268,650.00 for EPl expansion

(7/05-6/06) FLDOE grant award $54,261.00 for EPl continuation

(7/05-6/06) FLDOE competitive grant award $154,151.00 for EPl startup

Publications

Edwards, D. & Greata J. (2012) Administration of Preschool Programs in A Handbook of Early Childhood Education, (pp.175-

1*86). New York, NY: Nova

Edwards, D. & Greata J. (2012) Preschool Curriculum In A Handbook of Early Childhood Education, (pp.154-174). New York,

NY; Nova

(Spring 2010). "Vic & Tory" a big book for preschool children featuring ENMU's greyhound mascots. Written for use by

ENMU's Marketing Department.

(Spring 2008). "Best Practices In Teacher Certification Programs" accepted for publication In SACS online journal, premier
edition.

(September 2004). "Testing the Limits: The Impact of Education Reform on Massachusetts Early Childhood Teacher
Preparatory Programs In Public Schools of Higher Education." Doctoral Dissertation, University of Massachusetts Boston.

(Fall 1999). "Public Factors That Contribute to School Readiness," Early Childhood Research & Practice. V. 1, N. 2.
(http://ecrp.uluc.edu/vln2/edwards.html).

(Winter 1996). "Sharing the Wealth of Knowledge: Turning early childhood continuing education units Into teaching

tools." Exchange. Newsletter of Title I. V.l, N. 2.



Melony Lawlor Williams, MA, LCMHC

Summary

•  Highly skilled licensed clinician with 18 years of experience working with children, adults
and families.

•  Experienced treating children and families in multiple setting including residential
treatment, outpatient and home-based.

•  Passionate about interventions focused on prevention and early intervention strategies.

Certification

Licensed Clinician Mental Health Counselor (NH), # 650

Employment Hi.ston'

10/2005 • Present Clinical Superyisor/Parcnt Educator/ Therapist
TLC Family Resource Center/Good Beginnings. Claremont. NH
Provide home based services to pregnant women and families with young children. Focus of
home visits is attachment, education about fetal and child development, parenting education and
connection to community re.sources. Utilize videotaping as an intervention to improve
attachment . Trained in Child Parent Psychotherapy by Dr. Joy Osofsky and Dr. Patricia Van
Horn and facilitate home and office based therapy with agency clients. Trained by ALIVE! To
implement the Miss Kendra curriculum and have facilitated Miss Kendra programming in 4
kindergarten classrooms for one year. Have provided individual and group clinical supervision to
staff of five.

3/04- 12/03 Program Coordinator/Clinical Coordinator
Harbour House. Springfield. VT
Coordinated this six bed stabilization unit for children six to sixteen years old who were
experiencing mental health crises. Focused on short term interventions as length of stay was 7-
10 days. Completed diagnostic evaluations and facilitated individual, group and family therapy
sessions as clinically indicated. Case management was a key element in this position and I
conducted team meetings on a regular basis, working closely with local mental health agencies
as well as Department of Children and Families. I was also responsible for hiring and
supervision of employees.

6/02-12/03 ' Art Therapist/ Child and Family Therapist
Namacfua Center. Loveland. CO
Created the art therapy program at this residential treatment facility for emotionally disturbed
children ages three through twelve. Facilitated individual and group art therapy sessions, while
also supervising graduate level interns from a local university. As a child and family therapist I
worked with a caseload of five children in the residence and their families and also gained
experience working with outpatient clients from the community. Provided training on sexualized
behavior in children to the center's employees after being trained in this curriculum.

8/01- 6/02 Acute Treatment Unit Clinician

North Range Behavioral Health, Greeley. CO
Conducted individual and group therapy sessions with mentally ill adults at this short-term



inpalienl psychiatric center. Completed Intake assessments and treatment plans, conducted case
management services and attended daily consultations with the psychiatrist to assess patients'
medication needs. Also created and facilitated art therapy group interventions aimed at meeting
the needs of the population in attendance at the center, which continually shifted.

5/01- 9/03 HcART Talks Program Coordinator
Colorado Heritage Camps, Denver, CO
Assisted in the development of age appropriate therapeutic art interventions for
transracially/transculturally adopted children and created a manual about this work. Also
implemented these interventions with over 500 transracially/transculturally adopted children per
summer at culture camps. Part of this position included speaking with parents about the art
sessions as well as discussions about handling adoption issues effectively and empathically.

8/00- 4/01 Family Therapist
Youth and Family Ser\'ices. Skowliegan. ME
Facilitated intensive home-based therapy sessions for thirteen week intervals with families at risk
of losing a child to out of home placement, working with a co-therapist throughout the treatment
process. Also provided ca.sc management services during treatment and upon discharge. Utilized
creative arts interventions when appropriate and beneficial for the clients.

1/98- 9/01 Toddler Teacher

The Elm Tree. Boulder. CO

Implemented developmentally appropriate activities for eleven children ages 18 months to three
years old. Created positive relationships with parents that enabled open communication about
successes and challenges of their children. Joined the National Association for Education of
Young Children and attended annual conferences to gain up to date information about
developments in the field.

Education

2000 M.A. Transpersonal Counseling Psychology/ Art Therapy
Naropa University, Boulder, CO

1996 B.A., Art Therapy
Mercyhurst College, Erie, PA

Professional Presentations/Publications

Williams, M. (2016). Using the Rocking Chair Project with Healthy Families America
Participants to Increase Attachment: Prevent Child Abuse America National Conference:
Cincinnati, OH.

Williams, M. (2010). Child parent psychotherapy at good beginnings: The Sunapee/ Kearsarge
League of Women Voters Annual Meeting: Claremont, NH.

Gassett, S., Jameson, K, Williams, M & Van Bremen, J. (2010). Two interventions to promote
attachment: Videotaping and mother's Journal: New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental
Health Conference: Lincoln, NH.



Gassel, S, Williams, M & Van Bremen, J. (2009). Mother's journaling manual. Claremonl, NH:
Good Beginnings of Sullivan County.

Lawlor, M. (2003). The heart talks manual: A guide to utilizing art therapy techniques with
transracially/transculturally adopted children. Denver, CO: Colorado Heritage Camps, Inc.

Farrelly Hansen, M. & Lawlor, M. (2003). "Art therapy support groups for transcullurally and/
or iransracially adopted children" In D. Betts (Ed.), Creative arts therapies approaches in
adoption and foster care: Contemporary strategies for working with individuals and families.
Springfield, IL: Charles C. Thomas.

Lawlor, M. (2001). Broadening therapeutic boundaries to bring art home: Home based art
therapy: American Art Therapy Association Conference: Albuquerque, NM.

Lawlor, M. (2000). Art and meditation in the passageway: A student's internship experience:
American Art Therapy Association: St. Louis, MO.



RENE COUITT

EXPERIENCE

2007-Prcsent Good Beginnings of Sullivan Counr\- Clarcmont, NH
P/-o^. Mgr. I Pamily Assessment Workerj Intake Coordinator
m Manage and respond to all referrals received by the agenq*.

■ Collect, manage and report on agency data, documentation & statistics.
■ Provide training and support to patent educators.

1999-2007 Good Beginnings of Sullivan Count}' Claremont, NH
Parent Cducator!Assistant Program Director
m Case Manager and Parent Educator for 50 families annually.

■ Program management in absence of E.xecutive Director.

1997-1999 Spunvink School Newport, NH
Case Manager-

■ Devise and implement treatment plans & goals for students & families.
■ Provide therapeutic inter\-ention for children and families.

■ Coordinate scr\-ices for children with schools and communit}- agencies.

1995-1997 Valley Regional Hospital Claremont, Ni-I
Case Manager
m Conduct assessments and plan treatment goals for at-risk adolescents.

■ Provide home visits including crisis management as needed.

■ Participate in inter-agency collaboration with DC^'F and mental health
providers

1993-1995 Milestones Children's Center Newport, NH

Teacher

•  Managed daily routine of classroom for children ages three to five.
■  Collaborated with preschool special education team.

■  Implemented and directed newly established summer program.

EDUCATION

1989-1983 Quinnipiac College
■ B.A., Psycholog}'.

■ Graduated Cum Laude.

New Haven, CT

CERTIFICATIONS

CPR, First Aid and SOLVE.



ERIN A. KELLY

SUMMARY

Enthusiastic, personable and dedicated proresslaial with 10+ years experience in supporting and
advocating for clients with a wide range of skills and goals. Proven track record in dependability,
communication and organizational skills. Ability to multi-task, prioritize and analyze to obtain best
possible outcomes.

SKILLS

Active listening
Reading Comprehension
Service Orientation

Familitir with confidentiality procedures
Critical Thinking
Writing
Excellent Time Management Skills
Judgement and Decision Making
Coordination

Problem Sensitivity
Organizational skills.
Excellent Communication skills

Ability to analyze situations from multiple vantage points
Very versed in experience with the public, from varied socio-economic classes
Recent CPR and First Aid Certification

Life long learner- have attended countless conferences, seminars, and panel as well as collaboration
efforts with other area organizations.

WORK EXPERIENCE

April 2016 ■ Present
TLC Family Resource Center
Family Assessment Worker/Family Support Specialist

Active listening
Assist clients in meeting a wide range of goals
Trained as a Healthy Families America home visitor- to promote child well-being and prevent the
abuse and neglect of our nation's children through home visiting .services.

•  Trained in Growing Great Kids evidence-based curriculum for building strong attachment bonds,
supporting their child's development, meeting their basic care needs, and developmental asse.ssments.
Build and sustain community partnerships to systematically engage overburdened families prenatally
or at birth. Enhance family functioning by reducing risk and building protective factors. Promote
healthy childhood growth and development through GGK curriculum. Ages & Stages developmental
.screenings and assistance getting to Well Child Checks.
Work closely with RN and supervisor to provide quality services to families in Sullivan and Grafion
counties.

January 2007 - April 2016
Southwestern Community Services - Head Start
Family Advocate

As.sist families in goal setting, finding available resources, educational opportunities, referrals to
outside agencies
Familiarity with social .service agencies in the area
100% success rate in program wide federal reviews
Maintain clients' records from application to graduation from the program
Manage client database
Compliance with Office of Head Start initiatives, policies and procedures.



Summer 2008 & 2009

VVesi Ceniral Behavioral Health

Behavioral Support
&

Summer 2004 & 2005

Health Care and Rehabilitation Services of Southeastern Vermont

Behavioral Support
•  Assisted children with their therapeutic goals as outlined by their treatment plan

Provide support, role modeling, and help identifying strengths
Offer advice in overcoming challenges and support growing self-confidence

•  Implemented daily activities including group ad confidence building exercises for youth at risk

Summer to Fall 2006

Connecticut Valley Home Care and Hospice
Companion & Homemaker

Assist the elderly and disabled with household chores, errands
•  Acted as companion and friend to help maintain their safety and lifestyle

Summer 2004

Upwey Farms
Milker

•  Daily milking upwards of 60 head
•  Light farm chores

2003-2006

Griswald Library, Green Mountain College
Librarian/Archival Assistant

•  Cataloging, circulation of materials, archiving, and interlibrary loans

EDUCATION

2003-2006 Green Mountain College Pouliney. Vermont
Sociology/Anthropologv

B.A.

Cumulative CPA 3.6

2007 -Present

•  Professional development documentation, training certificates in a wide variety of topics available
upon request.

AWARDS

•  Magna Cum Laude
Sociology/Anthropology Senior Award
President's List: 2 Semesters

Dean's List: 2 Semesters

EXTRACURRICULAR/VOLUNTEER WORK

•  Poultney Partners Mentoring Club 2004-2006
•  Kiwanis Club of Claremont. member 2008-2011

•  Claremont Cares gift giving program 2007 - present

RELATED EXPERIENCE AND COURSE WORK



Practicum, The Poultney Historical Society, VT March 2006
Interviewed Poultney residents regarding personal and community history
as part of Oral History Project

Ethnographic Field Studies in China Summer 2005
Yancheng China, Jiangsu Province

Adirondack Block Course: Fall 2004

In-depth historical, social, and environmental study of the Adirondacks.
Upper-level course work

Area Studies, Social Research 1 & II, Human Ecology. Criminology, Social Theory,
Senior Seminar in Behavioral Science



Karen W. Jameson, M.Ed, RN

Education:

University of Maine, Orono, ME
Bachelor of Science in Animal, Veterinary and Aquatic Sciences May 1991

New Hampshire Community Technical College, Claremont, NH
Associate degree in nursing May 2001

Plymouth Stale University, NH
M.Ed/ in Health Education - May 2009

Professional

Experience: TLC Family Resource Center(Good Beginnings of Sullivan County),
Claremont, NH 03743
(9/02- present)
Registered Nurse/Lactaiion Counselor/Home Visiting Coord.: Function as a member of a
dynamic team providing comprehensive health and parenting support to pregnant women,
children and families. Provides health education and encouragement to ensure the best
possible outcomes for infant and mother. Network with other social service agencies.

Valley Regional Hospital, Claremont, NH 03743
(6/01-12/02)
Registered Nurse: Assessed, diagnosed, planned, implemented and evaluated
health care strategies for patients in a fast-paced medical and surgical unit.

Planned Parenthood of Northern New England, West Lebanon, NH 03784
(9/94-5/03)

Health care Assistant/ Registered Nurse: Performed a variety of medical, clerical,
and administrative functions in a busy health care facility. Responsible for client
safety, education and advocacy.

Dartmouth College, Biology Department, Hanover, NH 03755
(1/93-1/94)
Laboratory technician: Directly responsible for the efficient operation of a cell
biology research lab. Supervised and trained several undergraduate students,
ordered and inventoried supplies, performed various scientific assays. Assisted in
grant application process.

Avian farms International, Watervillc, ME 04989
(12/91-7/92)
Bam Manager: Independently supervised three employees in the care of 4,000
genetic research chickens. Responsible for barn safety, flock health, record
keeping, egg production and egg hatchability. Member of company safety
committee.



Kristina Smith

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Family Support Specialist

(TLC Family Resource Center, Claremont, NH
March 2019 to Present

Lead Teacher Infant Room

Childrens Center (CCUV)-Lebanon, NH

August 201S to March 2019

Parking Facility Cashier

Hanover Parking Garage - Hanover, NH

July 2014 to December2015

Afterschool Site Supervisor

Kids After School Time(KAST) - Hanover, NH

October 2014 to April 2015

Lead Teacher

Potters House School - Hartford, VT

January 2014 to Aprll2014

Customer Service Manager (CSM)

Walmart - Lebanon, NH

2011 to 2013

Education

Bachelors in Child Development

Colby Sawyer College - New London, NH
2009 to 2013

Child Development

Wheelock College - Boston, MA

September 2009

Skills

Early Childhood, Child Care, Teacher Assistant, Child Development



Certifications/Licenses

CPR/First Aid

2018 to 2020

Additional Information

Volunteer Experience

Social Policy Class

Spring 2013

Volunteer

Lebanon, NH

= = > Shared oversight responsibilities and assist in fundraising for a non-profit fair to bring awareness

to families for children with disabilities

CHAD

2011-2012

Volunteer

Lebanon, NH

= = > Shared responsibilities in assisting with fundraising activities and helped provide support at the
fundraising sites
= = > Worked with the children to create activities and design a fair that was requested by the children

but was developmentally appropriate at the same time

Amateur Athletic Union Basketball Team

Lake Sunapee Region

Assistant Head Coach

2006-2009

= = > Coached 20 children ages thirteen to fifteen-year-old

==> Create/lead appropriate drills and practices

==> Shared oversight in responsibilities with the coach and parents in scheduling tournaments based
on schedules and practice times

Volunteer

2005-2009

= = > Provided support in helping the head coach create appropriate drills and practices and worked

one on one with the players in specialized drills such as shooting, passing, and dribbling



BRENDA L. FOLEY

SKILLS & EXPERIENCE as acquired and demonstrated through trainings, education, and life/work history.
wStrong ability to communicate effectively with diverse populalionswinterpersonal relationship building and
conflict resolutionwAbility to adapt to difficult situationswDetail orientedwCapable problem soIverttGood
organizational skillswEfficient computer abilities wEffeciive time and project management wLeadership skillsw

EDUCATION

Granite State College. Claremont, NH

•  Bachelor of Science degree in Health & Human Services.
• Graduation: December 2006. Summa Cum Laude

•  Recipient of Granite Slate College's 2006-2007 Merit Scholarship Award..
Andover College. Portland, ME

• Associate in Applied Science degree. Medical Assisting major/Human Services minor.
Graduation: May 2002. GPA 4.0
Recipient of Andover College's President Cup Award 2002.

EMPLOYMENT

Oualitv Improvement Manager. TLC Family Resource Center, Claremont, NH (8/15 - Present)

Resident Services Coordinator. POAH Communities at Sugar River Mills Claremont, NH (5/13-4/15)
•  Develop and implement supportive service programming in collaboration with residents, site staff and

management and local community service providers.
•  Identify, assess and coordinate the delivery of services with service providers and contractors
• Maintain all necessary information and reports in a confidential manner following the regulatory guidance

provided by HUD.
Economic Independence / Direct Services Coordinator. TPN Claremont, NH (12/03-6/05; 12/09-5/13)
•  Developed, coordinated and supervised the EIP, a grant funded program designed to promote and assist

victim/survivors of domestic abuse, sexual assault, and stalking with whatever s/he may identify in order
to reach self sufficiency and economic independence.

•  Educated and trained community and businesses of trauma informed services.
•  Coordinated and supervised agency D.S. staff and services including 24-hour crisis and support line,

individual peer support counseling; group facilitation; outreach services, social services, legal, medical,
law enforcement, and court advocacy and mediation, transportation; shelter and safe home placement; and
referrals and follow up.

•  Established and maintained collaborative working relationships with community providers including
police, courts, attorneys, clergy, and medical mental health and social service providers.

•  Recruited, trained, and retained 24-hour volunteer task force.
Independent Services Coordinator. Self-employed Contractor, Claremont, NH (12/09-present)
•  Provide services as described below for two individuals who with the agreement and consent of their

guardians requested I continue as their case manager by contracting independently with PathWays.
Familv Services Coordinator. PathWays of the River Valley, Claremont, NH (12/06-12/09)
•  Provided comprehensive case management social role valorization, and advocacy for persons with

developmental disabilities and /or traumatic brain injury, ensuring the preservation of civil rights and
those rights to treatment and services as set forth in NH RSA 17I-A.

•  Facilitated planning meetings, individual budgets, legal processes; and acted as a liaison between the
individual, community, state agencies, and service providers.

COMMUNITY SERVICE & VOLUNTEERISM

•  Notary Public. State of New Hampshire, Commission expires February 2, 2016
•  Crisis Intervention Volunteer Advocate. TPN Sullivan County 2005-2009, 2013-present
•  Team Leader: Steooin Up to End Violence annual walk, TPN 2007-present



TLC FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

Home Visiting Services

Kcv Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

(Fcd&General Funds)

Diane Edwards Family Support Team
Director

$68,640 26% $17,160

Melony Williaras Clinical Supervisor $59,51 1 17% $10,296

Rene Couitt Intake Coordinator/Kinship
Navigator

$57,304 10% $5,730

Erin Kelly Family Assessment Worker $27,300 100% $27,300

Karen Jameson Registered Nurse $53,383 20% $10,677

Kristina Smith Family Support Specialist $30,299 100% $30,299

Brenda Folcy Quality Improvement
Manager

$30,299 21% $6,493



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Home Visiting Services Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Home Visiting Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1")
is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 780 North Main Street,
Laconla, NH 03246.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20, 2018 (item #27E), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions. Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price ilmitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOWTHEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30,2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$419,394.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 1 Provisions Applicable to All Services, Subsection
1.5., to read:

1.5. The Contractor shall provide home visiting services In Carroll County to a minimum of 18
families per contract year.

4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, Paragraph 2.2.4.,
to read:

2.2.4. Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential components of the HFA
Model are addressed in agency policies.

5. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, by adding
Paragraph 2.2.6., to read:

2.2.6 Participate in Continuous Quality improvement Projects and collaborative efforts to serve
families within designated catchment areas. The Contractor shall:

2.2.6.1. Ensure staff are available to provide relevant data as well as key data and metrics,
as requested by the Department.

2.2.6.2. Ensure staff are available to review data, discuss performance, learn from their
peers, and identify action-steps that may improve client outcomes.

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice -r'u >
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials ̂  ̂ iT"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

6. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Subsection 3.5 to read:

3.5. Reserved.

7. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements, Sulssection 3.6, to read

3.6. Reserved.

8. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4 Reporting and Deliverable Requirements, by adding
. Subsection 4.8., to read:

4.8 The Contractor shall participate in sub-recipient monitoring activities, as coordinated by the
Department. The Contractor shall:

4.8.1 Provide fiscal documentation demonstrating that MIECHV funding is utilized
solely to support activities under this contract, as requested by the Department.

4.8.2 Ensure expenses are reasonable, allowable and allocable per 45 CFR 75.

4.8.3. Provide documentation of funding utilization and reasonable expenses to the
Department upon request.

9. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5 Work Plan, Subsection 5.2. to read:

5.2. The Contractor shall submit a Work Plan, utilizing a template as provided by the
Department, that includes, but is riot limited to:

5.2.1. Activities.

5.2.2. Performance Measures (Outcomes).

5.2.3. Action Plan for Improvement.

10. Modify Exhibit A-2 Work Plan Template by deleting It in Its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit A-
2 Performance Measures, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to read:

1. ' This Contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to supporting funding for
this project is dependent upon the criteria set forth In the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 93.870 (https:/Avww.cfda.gov), U.S. Department of Health and
Hurnan Sen/ices, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) and General
Funds from Parental Assistance Funds.

12. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement,basis for allowable costs only in
accordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-8 - Amendment #1.

13. Modify Exhibit B-3, Budget by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit B-3 -
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

14. Add Exhibit B-4 Budget - Amendment #1.

15. Add Exhibit 8-5 Budget-Amendment#1.

16. Add Exhibit B-6 Budget - Amendment #1.

17. Add Exhibit B-7 Budget - Amendment #1.

18. Add Exhibit B-8 Budget - Amendment #1.

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice ,
Amendment#! Contractor InitialsVJ^r^

SS-2019-DPHS.05-HOMEV-05-A01 Page 2 of 4 Datejg



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

AD terms and oondfttons of the Contract and prior amendnwits not inconsistent with this AmendmentSI
remain in fufl fbroe and effect This amendment shaD be effective upon the data of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set thdr hands as of the date wrrttlen below.

2k
Dat

"2:
Date 1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Senrioee

ho30
Name:

Title:

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hosploe

i

THe

Central New Hempshlra VtiA & Hoepce
Amendment #1

8S-201SOPHSO&-HOMEV-06W>1 Pags3of4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/17/20

Date , Name:
Title: Catherine Pines, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date - Name:
Title:

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice
'  Amendment#!

SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-05-A01 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

1. Performance Measures

1.1. For all measures, consider services provided during State Fiscal year 2021 (July
1, 2020- June 30, 2021) in accordance with Exhibit A. Scope of Services of this
Contract.

Performapce Measure #1 fEPDSI

HFA Best Practice Standard 7-4.D

Measure: 80% of womeii enrolled in the program received at least one Edinburgh Postnatal
Depression Scale screening by 3 months postpartum.

Goal: All post-partum women enrolled In HFA will receive this formal, validated screening for
diepression at the optimal time.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of women that received an
Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale (EPDS) screening by 3 months postpartum.

Denominator-The total number of women in the program who reached 3 months post
partum during the reporting period and were enrolled prior to 3 months after the birth of
their baby.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (New) Quarterly Reports HFA EPDS 3 months rev
[7/10/2019] Index child only

Performance Measure #2 rRetention)

HFA Best Practice Standard 3-4.A

Measure: Increase the percent of families who remain enrolled in HFA for at least 6 months
from FFY 2019 average (10/1/2018-9/30/2019) baseline.

Goal: Families stay connected and maintain involvement with HFA services.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of families that remained in HFA
services at least 6 months.

Denominator- The number of families who received a first home visit during the period
10/1/2019-9/30/2020:

Quarter 1 IO/I/2019- 12/31/2019
Quarter: 1/1/2020-3/31/2020
Quarter 3 4/1/2020 - 6/30/2020
Quarter 4 7/1/2020 - 9/30/2020.

ETO: Reports^ Vi€M>Reports (New) Quarterly Reports-^ HFA Retention
Summary (Current) (Baseline is determined by performance in the prior fiscal year.)

Cental New Hampshire VNA& Hospice Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendorlnitials,

SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-05-A01 Page 1 of 2 Date 4i^5Z)



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen'ices
Home Visiting Services

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

Performance Measure #3

HFA Best Practice Standard 6-6.B

Measure: 90% of target children with a positive screen for developmental delays (scoring
below the "cutofT' on the ASQ-3) receive services in a timely manner. Children
already receiving developmental services should not be screened.

Goal: All children served who are determined to be at risk for developmental delays, and are
not already receiving developmental services, will receive a referral for further evaluation
or services. (If ̂  family declines a referral this should be documented in the family's file
and the Family Support Specialist shall continue efforts to advocate for accessing
developmental services.)

Definition: Numerator: Number of children enrolled in home visiting who a) received
individualized developmental support from a home visitor; b) were referred to early
intervention services and received an evaluation within 45 days; OR c) were referred to
other community services who received services within 30 days (and met the conditions
specified in the denominator.)

Denominator: Total number of children enrolled in HFA with positive screens (scoring
below the cutoff) for developmental delays, measured using the ASQ-3.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ VieM> Reports (New) Quarterly Reports-^ HFA Cliild Development
Screenings (Current)

Performance Measure #4

HFA Standard 12-l.B

Measure: ^ All direct service staff receive a minimum of 75% of required weekly individual
supcr>'ision according to the HFA Standards.

Goal: Service providers receive ongoing, effective supervision so they are able to develop realistic and
effective plans to empower families.

Ekfinition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of direct service staff who received
75% of required weekly individual supervision for a minimum of 1.5 hours for flill-lime
(.75 to 1.0 FTE) and 1 hour for part-time staff (from .25 - .75 FTE).

Denominator- The number of direct service staff/home visitors employed in the HFA
Pro^am during quarter.

Data Source: ETC: Reports-^ View Reports (New)-> Quarterly Reports-^ Staff Supervision Rev [6-
22-2018]

Central New Hampshire VNA& Hospice Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendor Initials
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner. Secretary' of Stale of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify' that CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE

VNA &. HOSPICE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November

03, 1975. 1 further certify that all fees and dociiment.s required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 64108

Certificate Number: 0004902630

00.

^3^ 5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xcd

the Sea! of the State of New Hampshire,

this 21st day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Mtuk G> - ^2e/^h> hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of /If{ IkA/A /-/^zr^/ce
2. The fGllo^ng is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on /x^/?/ 2'S' . 20 /tf. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That {may list more than one person)

Is duly authorized on t>ehalf of enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
! Ni'in-,-: of C'c-i';:"C;';Aiicri/1,1.0}

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:.

Title: ^

Rev. 03/24/20



Minutes

Board of Trustees

April 25, 2018

Present: Gina Finocchiaro, Kristen Gardiner,, Mark Edelstein, David Huot, Corrlne Smith, Rebecca

Owen, Connie Turner, Lisa Dupuis, David Emberley &, Bill Johnson. Guest: Schelley Rondeau

Excused: Fredda Osman, Teresa Haley, Kevin Irish, Leo Sanfacon, Corrine Smith, Joel Arsenault Barbara

Lobdell

Gina opened the meeting with an Introduction to Schelley Rondeau, the Manager of the Pediatric
program who will be presenting an over view of the all the Pediatric programs that Central NH VNA and

Hospice offers.

Review of the Pediatric Program: Schellev presented the current program including the sick children,

the Maternal Child Health, Partners in health and Healthy Families America. Currently there are 8 sick

children on program for issues around chemotherapy, blood draws, feeding issues and drug addiction.

Schelley oversees the programs in both Laconia and Wolfeboro with assistance of a per diem RN, family
educators and MSW that runs the Partners In Health contract. The biggest issue for the communities

that they serve is transportation and housing. The Board members asked many questions around the

services and payment for such services.

Gina request to approve the previous meetings minutes M/Connie Turner, S/Mark Edelstein,
Abstained: Bill Johnson Rebecca Owen, to approve the minutes as written.

Executive Report: Lisa highlighted her written report. Service awards are scheduled for May 3 at the

Meredith Community Center. In addition, Lisa presented a Proposal for Infrared Thermography test that

was recommended by Milestone Construction. Bill Johnson commented that there are two things to

consider with the building. One is will the building be good for size and needs in the future. Two being

do we have funds to do anything with the building. The funds would be Board designated funds. After

some discussion on the testing and whether it was appropriate at this time, Gina Finocchiaro requested

a committee be developed to drive the property project. A motion to develop a Properties Committee

was made Kristen Gardiner, second by Connie Turner. The committee will be called the Properties

Committee and members of the committee at this point are Kristen Gardiner, David Huot and Mark

Edelstein. Lisa will send out an email to the Board of Trustees to see If anyone else is interested in being

on the committee. Lisa to also forward the Infrared Proposal to the committee.

Finance Committee: The finance committee meeting was cancelled as there were no financial

statements to report. With March and the close of the fiscal year, it takes longer to close. David
reported that overall the Agency had a successful year. The audit will be the week of May 21 and David
reported not anticipating any Issues. The audited flnancials will be presented at the June Board
meeting.

Development Committee: Lisa Dupuis reported that the committee meeting was cancelled due to

conflicts in committee members' calendars though Barbara Lobdell did come to Laconia so there was

discussion on the Home and Garden tour communication. The Porch Party welcoming Lisa Dupuis for

Wolfeboro is scheduled for June 21 from S-7.



New Business;

ii Agency Policy number C:l-007, Designation of Individual In Absence of Chief Executive Officer
was presented to the Board for approval. The policy states that In the absence of the CEO,
Tammi Mozler, Clinical Director, will assume the duties and responsibilities and Jennifer

Legassie, Hospice Director if Tammi is also absent. Motion was made to appoint Tammi Mozier
and Jennifer Legassie as the designated Individuals In the absence of the CEO. M/Mark
Edelstein, S/Blil Johnson. All approved, motion carried.

^ RESOLUTION: That the Krlsten Gardiner Is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter
Into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and

other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may

deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. M/Mark Edelstein, S/David Huot. Approved as
stated.

I

Next Board meeting is scheduled for May 23,2018 at 5:30 pm in the Laconia Office.

M/David Huot, S/Kristen Gardiner: to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisa Dupuis



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOfYYYY)

05/04/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDiTIONAL iNSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDiTiONAL iNSURED provisions or be endorsed,

if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the poiicy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Melcher & PrescoU Insurance

426 Main Street

Laconia NH 03246

contact Qaitiin Earle. AAi-M, AiS, ACSR

PHONE (fiOII S24-4535 FAX
lA/C. No. Exll:

AtJORESS- cearletgmeicher-prescott.com
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC »

INSURER A • Cincinnati insurance Company 10677

INSURED

Cenirai NH VNA & Hospice & Community Health

780 N Main St

Laconia NH 03246-2756

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL19101703385 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
iroc

12i£Q. VWDTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/OO/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

(MM/DO/YYYYl LIMITS
TnSr
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAklACE TO RSNTEC
PREMISES (Ba occufrencei

MEO EXP (Any one 0«f50n)

ETD 0409557 10/15/2019 10/15/2020
PERSONAL 4 AOV INJURY

GEN\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

PRO
JECTX POLICY□ !!!?; □LOC

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

1,000.000

5,000

1,000.000

3,000.000

3,000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Eaaccldenil S 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ETA 0430134 10/15/2019 10/15/2020 BODILY INJURY (Per aeddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPeraceideni)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
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Our Mission

The mission of Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice is to promote dignity, independence
and well being through the delivery of quality home health, hospice and community based
services

Our Values & Commitments

We pledge to live up to these six core values. You can count on us to keep our commitments:

•  Excellence & Integrity. We are dedicated to providing the highest quality care and
service in all that we do. We keep our word and respect confidentiality.

•  Dignity, Respect & Whole Person Care. We honor each person's dignity. We know
that each person is unique, so we individualize our approach to meet his or her needs.
We attend to the physical, emotional and oftentimes spiritual concerns of our clients with
respect and kindness. We try to be proactive, so our clients can strive for well-being and
work to prevent illness, whenever possible.

•  Family-Centered Care. We support and respect the family as the primary unit of care.
We offer information, education and alternatives to enable and empower individuals and
their families to direct their own care. We help coordinate resources and services in
order to enhance the lives of those we serve.

•  Flexibility & Responsiveness. As individual or community-wide needs change, so does
our approach or services, for we pride ourselves in being responsive, creative,
innovative and flexible.

•  Financial Responsibility. We are efficient and prudent stewards of the financial and
other resources with which we have been entrusted.

•  A Supportive Work Environment. We strive to provide a supportive work environment
for our dedicated staff. We know that by respecting and developing our own team,
together we will serve our clients well.

Our Philosophy

We are a community-based home health organization that seeks to facilitate care through
collaboration with others. We see our services as part of a continuum of care designed to meet
the changing health needs of the people of our communities. We seek to complement the
services of other care providers as much as possible and to avoid unnecessary competition or
needless duplication.

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice is a not-for-profit organization. We exist exclusively for
public service, charitable and education purposes. We provide our services to those in need of
charitable care within the financial resources that are available to us.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Finance Committee .

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice
(the Association), which comprise the balance sheets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financiai Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP); this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statement^ that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. Including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Association's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in alt material respects, the
financial position of Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, and the
results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended. In
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berryclunn.com



Board of Directors

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice
Page 2

Other Matters

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standards

As discussed in Note 1, the Association adopted new accounting guidance, Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606) and FASB ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope of the Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made and related guidance. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to these matters.

Manchester, New Hampshire
July 22, 2020



CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Balance Sheets

March 31, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Patient accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Other current assets

Total current assets

Investments and assets limited as to use

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts held by others

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities and total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2020

$  810,091
880,988

722,808

28,835
208.585

2,651,307

9,550,305

125,318

1.921.835

2019

$ 1,296,184
1,320,675

791,135

112,437

84.828

3,605,259

9,863,081

141,833

690,192

$14.248.785 $14.300.365

$  113,142 $ 134,247
376,498 349,340
20.487

510.127

48.527

532.114

13,597,643 13,609,375
140.995 158.876

13.738.638 13.768.251

$14.248.765 $14.300.365

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Statements of Operations

Years Ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other revenue and gains (losses)
Contributions

Investment income

Change in fair value of investments

Total other revenue and gains (losses)

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses and (decrease)
increase in net assets without donor restrictions

$ 8,437,798 $ 8,109,113
255,355 384,077

2.000 14.278

8.695.153 8.507.468

6,596,545 6.082,091
1,919,437 1,888,270
104.788 111.808

8.620.770 8.082.169

74.383 425.299

252,914

268,077

(607.106)

f86.11S)

362,856
257,218

198.238

818,312

$  (11.732) $ 1.243.611

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses and (decrease)
increase in net assets without donor restrictionsf $  M1.732I S 1.243.611

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Change in fair value of beneficial interest in perpetual trusts held

by others

634

(2,000)

(16.5151

902

(14,278)

Y3.6091

Change in net assets with donor restrictions (17.8811 (16.9851

Change in net assets (29,613) 1,226,626

Net assets, beginning of year 13.768.251 12.541.625

Net assets, end of year S13.738.638 $13,768,251

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Change in fair value of investments
Change in fair value of beneficial interest in perpetual

trusts held by others
(Increase) decrease in the following assets

Patient accounts receivable

Other receivables

Other current assets

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchases of investments

Net cash used by investing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
I

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$  (29,613) $ 1,226,626

104,788

607,106

16,515

68,327

83,602

(123,757)

(21,105)
27,158

(28.0401

(1,336,431)
398,696

(253.3391

(1.191.0741

(486,093)

1.296.184

111,808

(198,238)

3,609

(97.902)
(2,250)
59,293

18,186

18,125

(67.1511

704.981 1.072.106

(41,603)
115,641

(344.7401

(270.7021

801,404

494.780

$  810.091 S 1.296.184

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Central New Hampshire VNA & Hospice (the Assaciation) is a non-stock, non-profit corporation
organized in the State of New Hampshire. The Association's primary purpose is to provide home
care-, hospice and young family services in Laconia, New Hampshire and the surrounding
communities.

Basis of Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAR), which require the Association to report information
regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset classification:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management
and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Association or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets are reclasslfied from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without
donor restrictions in the statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Income Taxes

The Association is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). As
a public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax positions and concluded that
the Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

-7-



CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments \with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Association has cash deposits, including certain investments, in financial institutions, which
may exceed federal depository insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses in
such accounts. Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts.

Investments and Assets Limited As To Use

The Association reports investments at fair value, and has elected to report all gains and losses in
the excess of revenue over expenses, to simplify the presentation of these accounts in the
statements of operations, unless otherwise stipulated by the donor or State law.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
balance sheets.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The Association is the beneficiary of investment income received from trust funds held by a local
charitable foundation. One trust fund was created as an endowment by a donor, the income to be
used for staff education. A second trust fund was created as an endowment by an irrevocable
transfer of Association assets to the local foundation, the income to be used for operating
purposes. Although the intent of the trust fund is to act as an endowment, distribution of principal
may be available to the Association for capital acquisitions, loans and emergency operating cash
shortfalls.

Property and Equipment

. Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets.

-8-



CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

Patient Service Revenue

Services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and in future periods
as final settlements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have other
third-party resources, are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's published sliding
fee scale. Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients
receiving skilled and non-skilled services in their home or facility. The Association measures the
period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from admission to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to that patient, which is generally at the time of discharge.

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are paid on
a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is based on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines. As the
performance obligations for home health services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the
portion of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
prospective payment determined for the medically necessary services.

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a fee-for-
service basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate. Revenue, is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount. As the performance
obligations for hospice, services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the portion of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
predetermined aggregate capitated rate per day.

Because all of the Association's performance obligations relate to short-term periods of care, the
Association has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 606-10- 50-14 (a)
and, therefore, is not required, to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated
to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting
period.

-9-



CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. Amounts received that are designated for future
periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets are classified from net assets with donor
restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of operations. Donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met in the same year as received are reflected as net assets
without donor restrictions in the accompanying financial statements.

Newly Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In 2020, the Association adopted FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), and related guidance, which supersedes
accounting standards that previously existed under U.S. GAAR and provides a single revenue
model to address revenue recognition to be applied by all companies. Under the new standard,
which added Topic 606 to the ASC, entities recognize revenue when a customer obtains control of
promised goods or services in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU No. 2014-09 also requires
companies to disclose additional information, including the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Association elected to adopt
this ASU retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial application;
therefore, the financial statements and related notes have been presented accordingly. The
adoption had no significant impact for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.

In 2020, the Association also adopted FASB ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, which clarifies and
improves the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The
amendments in this ASU assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted
for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of ASC Topic No. 958, Not-for-
profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other accounting guidance, and
(2) distinguishing between conditional and unconditional contributions. This ASU was adopted by
the Association for the year ended March 31, 2020. Adoption of the ASU did not have a material
impact on the Association's financial reporting.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

2. Investments and Assets Limited As To Use and Beneficial Interest In Perpetual Trusts Held

by Others

Investments and assets limited as to use and beneficial interest in perpetual trusts held by others,
stated at fair value, consisted of the following:

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,167,657 $ 1,877,746

Debt instruments

U.S. Government and agency 20,603 19,833

Municipal bonds 25,419 30,399

Corporate 456,005 402,645

Mutual funds

Equity funds 3,569,017 4,252,115

Fixed income funds 3,379,103 3,538,756

International equity funds 813,489 1,062,262

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 125.318 141.833

Total investments and assets limited as to use $10,556,611 $11,325,589

These assets are comprised of the following:

2020 2019

Current assets

Investments $  880,988 $ 1,320,675

Long-term assets
Assets limited as to use

Board designated
Operating reserve 2,800,000 2,800,000

Contribute to operating budget 3,224,628 3,386,038

IT special projects 560,000 560,000

Strategic mission 950,000 950,000

Workforce development 500,000 500,000

Mission enhancement 400,000 400,000

Community initiatives 500,000 500,000

Building capital improvements / maintenance 600.000 750.000

Total board designated 9,534,628 9,846,038

Donor restricted 15.677 17.043

Total assets limited as to use 9,550,305 9,863,081

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts held by others 125.318 141.833

Total investments and assets limited as to use $ 10.556.611 $11,325,589
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy within ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three levels of
inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value;

Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3; Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The fair market value of the Association's investments are measured on a recurring basis using
level 1 inputs, with the exception of corporate and municipal bonds, which are measured using
level 2 inputs based on quoted market prices of similar assets, and the beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts held by others which is measured at level 3 inputs and determined annually based
on quoted market prices of the assets included in the trusts held by the local charitable foundation.

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at March 31. 2020

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,167,657 $ 2,167,657 $ - $ -
Debt instruments

U.S. Government and agency 20,603 20,603
Municipal bonds 25,419 - 25,419
Corporate 456.005 - 456.005 -

502,027 20,603 481,424

Mutual funds

Equity funds 3,569,017 3,569,017
Fixed income funds 3,379,103 3,379,103
International equity funds 813,489 813,489

Beneficial-interest in perpetual
trusts 125.318 - - 125.318

$10.556.611 $ 9.949.869 $ 481.424 $ 125.318
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

Fair Value Measurements at March 31. 2019

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,877,746 $ 1,877,746 $ - $ -
Debt instruments

U.S. Government and agency 19,833 19,833
Municipal bonds 30,399 - 30,399
Corporate 402.645 - 402.645 -

452.877 19,833 433,044

Mutual funds

Equity funds 4,252,115 4,252,115
Fixed income funds 3,538,756 3,538,756
International equity funds 1,062,262 1,062,262

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 141.833 - - 141.833

$11.325.589 $10.750.712 $ 433.044 $ 141.833

Investment Income and change in fair value of investments are comprised of the following:

2020 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

Investment income $ 268,077 $ 257,218

Change in fair value of investments (607.106) 198.238

Total activity without donor restrictions (339,029) 455,456

Net assets with donor restrictions

Change in fair value of beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
held by others (16.515) (3.609)

Total $ (355.544) $ 451.847
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HpSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31. 2020 and 2019

The following table sets forth a summary of the change in the fair value of the beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019:

Balance, March 31, 2018 $ 145,442

Investment income 2,051
Contributions 1,000
Distributions (5,672)
Fees (9QB)

Balance, March 31, 2019 141,833

Investment income (11,360)
Distributions (4,165)
Fees

Balance, March 31, 2020 $ 125,318

3. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2020 2019

Land $ 190,200 $ 62,000
Building and improvements 1,862,928 668,448
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 1.603.492 1.646.957

Total cost . 3,656,620 2,377,405

Less accumulated depreciation 1.734.785 1.687.213

Property and equipment, net $ 1,921,8^ $ 690,192

4. Line of Credit

The Association has a $500,000 line of credit with a local bank, expiring December 31, 2050. The
line of credit is collateralized by all corporate assets with interest at 0.75% over the Wall Street
Journal's prime rate (5.00% at March 31, 2020). There was no outstanding balance at March 31.
2020 and 2019.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

5. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue comprises as follows:

Medicare

Medicaid

Other third-party payers
Private pay

Total

2020 2019

$ 7,005,564 $ 6,669,585
172.088 180,349

1,198,539 1.208,281
61.607 50.898

$ 8.437.798 $ 8.109.113

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The Association believes that it is in
substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. However, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenue in the year that such amounts
become known.

The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Association does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through local
community support and state grants. Local community support consists of contributions and
municipal appropriations.

In assessing collectability, the Association has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach is being used as the Association has similar contracts with similar classes of patients.
The Association reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of
contracts would not differ materially from considering each contract separately. Management's
judgment to group the contracts by portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each
portfolio category. As a result, management believes aggregating contracts (which are at the
patient level) by the particular payer or group of payers results in the recognition of revenue
approximating that which would result from applying the analysis at the individual patient level.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

6. Retirement Plan

The Association maintains a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employees. The
Association contributed $114,949 and $99,726 for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

7. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows:

2020 2019

Program services
Salaries and benefits $ 5,738,014 $ 5,280,315

Program supplies 458,191 348,145

Travel 259,775 241,778

Contract services 228,461 290,240

Other operating expenses 350,439 446,960

Depreciation 91,700 98,659

Occupancy costs 132.436 113.669

Total program services 7.259.016 6.819.766

Administrative and general
Salaries and benefits 766,171 727,978

Travel 11,650 13,960

Contract services 313,953 358,802

Other operating expenses 145,630 59,567

Depreciation 13,088 13,149

Occupancy costs 18.902 15.149

Total administrative and general 1.269.394 1.188.605

Fundraising
Salaries and benefits 92.360 73.798

Total fundraising 92.360 73.798

Total S 8.620.770 $ 8.082.169

Management's estimate of cost allocations at a functional level is based on Medicare cost report
methodology.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019 /

8. Avallabllltv and Llauldltv of Financial Assets

The Association had working capital of $2,141,180 and $3,073,145 at March 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The Association had average days (based on normal expenditures) cash and
unrestricted investments on hand of 72 and 118 at March 31. 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions not financed with debt, are as follows:

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 810,091 $ 1,296,184
Investments 880,988 1,320,675

Patient accounts receivable, net 722.808 791.135

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $ 2,413,887 $ 3,407,994

The Association has board designated long-term investments that are intended to function as an
endowment that could be made available for general expenditure upon board approval. Since
these investments are currently intended for long-term investments they have not been included in
the information above. The Association has other long-term investments and assets for restricted
use, which are more fully described in Note 2, are not available for general expenditure within the
next year and are not reflected in the amount above.

The Association has a $500,000 line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as disclosed in
Note 4.

The Association manages its cash available to meet general expenditures following two guiding
principles:

•  Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability; and

•  Maintaining adequate liquid assets.

9. Concentration of Risk

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of accounts
receivable, by funding source:

2020 2019

Medicare 76 % 74 %

Other 24 26

Total 100 % 100 %

-17-



CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

Following is a summary of referrals, by source:

Lakes Region General Hospital
Other

2020 2019

18% 14%

82 86

100% 100%
Total

10. Malpractice Insurance

The Association maintains medical malpractice insurance coverage on an occurrence basis. The
Association is subject to complaints, claims, and litigation due to potential claims which arise in the
normal course of business. U.S. GAAP require the Association to accrue the ultimate cost of
malpractice claims when the incident that gives rise to claim occurs, without consideration of
insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries are presented as a separate asset. The Association
has evaluated its exposure to losses arising from potential claims and determined no such accrual
is necessary at March 31. 2020 and 2019. The Association intends to renew coverage on an
occurrence basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available in future periods.

11. Subsequent Events

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management through ̂
July 22, 2020, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to year end the Association entered into a non-binding letter of intent to affiliate with
another home health and hospice non-profit located in Concord, New Hampshire. Both entities are
performing due diligence in anticipation of entering into a definitive agreement with a planned
effective date of December 31, 2020.

Uncertainty

Subsequent to March 31, 2020, local, U.S., and world governments have encouraged self-isolation
to curtail the spread of the global pandemic, coronavirus disease (COVID-19), by mandating the
temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and imposing limitations on travel and the size
and duration of group meetings. Most sectors are experiencing disruption to business operations
and may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement, volatility In investment
returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the
duration of the pandemic, Its potential economic ramifications, and any government actions to
mitigate them. Accordingly, while management cannot quantify the financial and other impacts to
the Association as of July 22, 2020, management believes that a material impact on the
Association's financial position and results of future operations is reasonably possible.
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE VNA & HOSPICE

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2020 and 2019

The U.S. government has responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the
COVID-IQ outbreak. Legislation enacted into law on March 27, 2020, called the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), a statute to address the economic impact of the
COVID-IQ outbreak. The CARES Act, among other things, 1) authorizes emergency loans to
distressed businesses by establishing, and providing funding for, forgivable bridge loans, 2)
provides additional funding for grants and technical assistance, 3) delays due dates for employer
payroll taxes and estimated tax payments for corporations, and 4) revises provisions of the IRC,
including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business interest. Management is
evaluating the impact of the CARES Act on the Association, including its potential benefits and
limitations that may result from, among other things, additional funding to offset the cost
impact. Accordingly, the full effects of the CARES Act on the Association's financial statements
have not yet been determined.

On April 13, 2020, the Association received a loan from the U.S. Small Business Association within
the CARES Act under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) in the amount of $1,100,000. The
loan is to be used for payroll and other allowable costs authorized in the PPP rules, and
forgiveness of the loan balance is dependent upon compliance with this and other terms and
conditions of the CARES Act. Funds used for unauthorized purposes are required to be repaid.
The Association has 5 years from the date the loan was received to pay off any unforgiven funds,
and the repayment terms are monthly principal and interest payments beginning in November 2020
at an interest rate of 1 % per year.
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Helen Rautenberg Phone: SOS^'fSS-QeOS
HRautenberg@centralvnahospice.org

SUMMARY

Currently working as a Family Support Specialist with New Hampshire Home Visiting since 1998 through a
collaboration between The Wolfeboro Children's Center and Central VNA- Hospice. Strengths include
certification to teach in two Parenting Curriculums, more than 20 hours per year of continuing education,
professionalism In the areas of Information privacy, maintaining relationships with families, and personal
appearance, as well as 19 years of experience in the field.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Childcare Aide/Teacher

Wolfeboro Area Children's Center 1993-present

Family Support Specialist 1998-present
Central NH VNA-Hospice

Special Education Aide 1987-1993
AGH Associates

EDUCATION

Associate Degree in Early Childhood Education 1997-2000
College for Lifelong Learning
Rochester NH

Graduated with 4.0 GPA

SKILLS

Interpersonal skills
Teaching Skills
Communication skills

Flexible

Intuitive



Schelley Rondeau

Experience

MCH Coordinator/Clinical Manager
Central NH f^NA and Hospice
Dba VNA'Hospice ofSouthern Carrol! County and yicinity 2010-current
Responsible for program administration and coordination as well as case management
and home visiting according to MCH contract guidelines.

Home Health Nurse/Maternal Child Health Nurse 1997-current

VNA-Hospice of Southern Carroll County and
Vicinity, Inc. Wolfehoro. NH 0389^1
Responsible for primary client care for home health patients, maiemal-newbom visits,
home visiting for Good Beginnings program, Child Health Program, collaborates with
parent educator and community resources.

Responsible for Children's and adults immunization clinics

Intake Nurse 1995 -97

I'^'A-Hospice of Southern Carroll County and
Vicinity Wolfeboro.NH
Responsible for intake of new referrals, staff scheduling, case management and
supervison of staff nurses

Staff Nurse

Gorgas Army Community Hospital 1991-95
Republic of Panama

Supervision and staff nufse on a Pediatric and Orthopedic ward

Education

Bachelor of Science in Nursing 1982 -86
Vermont College Norwich, Vermont

Commander's Award for Public SeiVice- June 1995

Superior Performance Award from Gorgas Army Community Hospital 1994

Certified as Lactation Counselor ????-current

Certifed in Parents As Teachers program 2003-current

Skills ' . •



Experience with maternal and pediairic patients
Interpersonal skills
Flexible, efficient



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Helen Rautenberg Family Support Specialist $38,563 30% $11,569
Schelley Rondeau Pediatric Nurse Manager $70,399 60% $42,239



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

state Of NOW Hampshire

'Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Home Visiting Services Contract

This I" Amendment to the Home Visiting Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1")
is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and VNA at HCS. inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 312 Marlboro Street, Keene, NH, 03431.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20. 2018 (item #27E), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Coritracl as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOVy THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2022.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$607,328.

3. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 1 Provisions Applicable to All Services, Subsection
1.5., to read:

1.5. The Contractor shall provide home visiting services in Cheshire County to a minimum of 24
families per contract year.

4. -Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work. Subsection 2.2, Paragraph 2.2.4.,
to read:

2.2.4. Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential components of the HFA
Model are addressed in agency policies.

5. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work. Subsection 2.2, by adding
Paragraph 2.2.6., to read:

2.2.6 Participate In Continuous Quality Improvement Projects and collaborative efforts to serve
families within designated catchment areas. The Contractor shall;

2.2.6.1. Ensure staff are available to provide relevant data as well as key data and metrics,
as requested by the Department.

2.2.6.2. Ensure staff are available to review data, discuss performance, learn from their
peers, and identify action-steps that may Improve client outcomes.

6. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 3 Staffing Requirements. Subsection 3.5 to read:
3.5. Reserved.

7. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 3 Staffing Requirements. Subsection 3.6, to read

3.6. Reserved.

8. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 4 Reporting and Deliverable Requirements, by adding
VNAatHCS. Inc. ^ . . u- /

Amendmeni #1 Contractor J
SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-04-A01 Page 1 0(4 Date ^LkJ ̂



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Subsection 4.6.. to read:

4.8 The Contractor shall participate In sub-redpient monitoring activities, as coordinated by the
Department. The Contractor shall:

4.8.1 Provide fiscal documentation demonstrating that MIECHV funding Is utilized
solely to support activities under this contract, as requested by the Department.

4.6.2 Ensure expenses are reasonable, allowable and allocabie per 45 CPR 75.

4.8.3. Provide documentation of funding utiiization and reasonable expenses to the
Department upon request.

9. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5 Work Plan, Subsection 5.2. to read:

5.2. The Contractor shall submit a Work Plan, utilizing a template as provided by the
Department, that includes, but is not limited to:

5.2.1. Activities.

5.2.2. Performance Measures (Outcomes).

5.2.3. Action Plan for Improvement.

10. Modify Exhibit A-2 Work Plan Template by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit A-
2 Performance Measures, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. to read;

1. This Contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to supporting funding for
this project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) U 93.670 (https;//www.cfda.gov), U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) and General
Funds from Parental Assistance Funds.

12. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3. to read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for allowable costs only in
accordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-8 - Amendment #1.

13. Modify Exhibit 8-3, Budget by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit B-3 -
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

14. Add Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #1.

15. Add Exhibit B-5-Amendment #1.

16. Add Exhibit B-6 - Amendment #1.

17. Add Exhibit B-7 - Amendment #1.

18. Add Exhibit8-8-Amendment#1.

VNAatHCS. Inc.
Amendmenl #1 Contractor Initiali ̂

SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-04-A01 Page 2 of 4 Dale 2^



N0W Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #1
remain in full force and effect. This arr^endment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Dat? ' Name:

Title:

Date

VNAat HCS, inc.

m:Name:

Title: ^

VNA at HCS. Inc.

SS-2019-DPHS-05-HOMEV-04-A01

Amendment

Page 3 of 4



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/17/20

Date Name:
Title: Catherine Pines, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

VNA at HCS. Inc.
Amendment #1

SS-201 d-DPHS-05-HOMEV-04-A01 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

1. Performance Measures

1.1. For all measures, consider services provided during State Fiscal year 2021 {July
I  1, 2020- June 30, 2021) in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services of this

Contract.

Performance Mea.sure #1 (EPDSt

UFA Best Practice Standard 7-4.D

Measure: 80% of women enrolled in the program received at least one Fdinburgh Postnatal
Depression Scale screening by 3 months postpartum.

Goal: All pcsi-partum women enrolled in HFA will receive this formal, validated screening for
depression at the optimal time.

Detlnition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of women that received an

Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale (EPOS) screening by 3 months postpartum.

Deiiominator-The total number of women in the program who reached 3 months post
partum during the reporting period and were enrolled prior to 3 months after the birth of
their baby.

Data Source: ETO: Reports-^ View Reports (Ne\v)~^ Quurierlv Reports-^ HFA EPOS 3 months rev
[7/10/2019] Index child only

Performance Measure #2 (Retention)

HFA Best Practice Standard 3-4.A

Measure; increase the percent of families who remain enrolled in HFA for at least 6 months

from FFY 2019 average (10/I/2018-9/30/20I9) baseline.

Goal: Families stay connected and maintain involvement with HFA services.

Definition: Numerator- Of those in the denominator, the number of families that remained in HFA

services at least 6 months.

Denominator- The number of families who received a first home visit during the period
10/1/2019-9/30/2020:

■Quarter 1 iO/l/2019- 12/31/2019
' Quarter 2 1/1/2020-3/31/2020
Quarter 3 4/1/2020 - 6/30/2020
Quarter 4 7/1/2020 - 9/30/2020.

Data Source: ETO: Reports View Reports (New) Quarterly Reports HFA Retention
Summary (Current) (Baseline is determined by pcrfonnance in the prior llscal year.)

VNA at HCS, Inc. Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures

Performance Measure #3

HFA Best Practice Standard 6-6.B

Measure: 90% of target children with a positive screen for developmental delays (scoring
below the "cutoff on the ASQ-3) receive services in a timely manner. Children
already receiving developmental services should not be screened.

Goal; All children served who arc determined to be at risk for developmental delays, and are
not already receiving dcveiopincntai serviecs, will receive a referral for further evaluation
or services. (If a family declines a refeiTal this should be documented in the family's file
and the Family Support Specialist shall continue efforts to advocate for accessing
developmental services.)

Dcflnitioii: Numerator: Number of children enrolled in home visiting who a).received
individualized developmental support from a home visitor; b) were referred to early
intervention scr\'iccs and received an evaluation within 45 days; OR c) were referred to
other community services who received services within 30 days (and met the conditions
specified in the denominator.)

Denominator: Total number ofchildren etirolled in HFA with positive screens (scoring
below the cutolT) for developmental delays, measured using the ASQ-3.

Data Source: ETC): Reports-^ View Reports (New) Quarterly Reports-^ HFA Child Development
Screcning.s (Current)

Performance Measure #4

HFA Standard 12-1.B

Measure: All direct service staff receive a minimum of 75% of required weekly individual
supervision according to the HFA Standards.

Goal; Service providers receive ongoing, effective supervision so they are able to develop realistic and
elTective plans to empower families.

Dennition: Numerator- Of.lhose in the denominator, the number of direct service staff who received

75% of required weekly individual supervision for a minimum of 1.5 hours for full-time
(.75 to I.OFTF)and I hour for part-time slarr(rrom .25 - .75 FTE).

Denominator- The number of direct sor\icc sialT/homc visitors employed in the HFA
Program during quarter.

Data Source; ETO: Rcporls-A V^icw Reports (New)-> Quarterly Reports-^ Staff Supervision Rev [6-
22-20181

VNA at HCS, inc. Exhibit A-2 Performance Measures Vendor Initials'
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of" Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify that VNA AT HCS, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 18, 1981. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID; 67798

Certificate Number: 0004882946

iSf.

■9

d)

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Julie Greenwood ^ , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of VNA at HQS.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav 13. 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Maura McQueenev. CEO (may list more than one person)
-  (Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of VNA at HCS to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further .certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any.
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Julie E. Greenwood

Title: Chair of the Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20



HOMEHEA-02

yXCORiO'
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

NLAFOREST

DATE (MWOOfirYYY>

6/24/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policyfies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlqhts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

Berkshire Insurance Group, Inc
PO Box 4889
PIttsfleld, MA 01202

CONTACT
NAMFr

rA/aN^.Exti: (866) 636-0244 wc.no.:(413) 447-1977

INSURERISt AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICH

INSURER A PhiladelDhIa Indemnitv Insurance ComDanv 18053

INSURED

Home Healthcare Hospice & Community Services, Inc.
&VNAatHCS, Inc.
PO Box 564

Keene, NH 03431

INSURERS ATLANTIC CHARTER INSURANCE GROUP

INSURERC

INSURERD

INSURERS

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSO

SUBR
WVP POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
rMM/OD/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
IMMfDOfYYYYl UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY '

E 1 X 1 OCCUR PHPK2081408 1/4/2020 1/4/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED s  100,000

MEO EXP (Anv one oersonl
j  5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
5  1,000,000

GEIVL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE
j  3,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 JgOf 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
j  3,000,000

$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

PHPK2081411 1/4/2020 1/4/2021

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT J  1,000,000

X ANY AUTO

HEOULEO
TOS

m'm

BODILY INJURY (Per oersonl s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

a(j^ only

sc
Al BODILY INJURY (Per eeddenll s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer acodentY

s

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE $

AGGREGATE s

OED RETENTIONS $

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTV ^ ̂
ANYPROPRIETORyPARTNER/EXECUTIVE rTD

lnj
If yas, descriM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPFRATIONS below

N/A

WCA00539808 7/1/2020 7/1/2021

V PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
5  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE
J  1,000,000

E-L. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT
5  1,000,0.00

A

A

Professional Llab

Professional Liab

PHPK2081408

PHPK2081408

1/4/2020

1/4/2020

1/4/2021

1/4/2021

per claim

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarks Schadula. may tM attachad If mora apaca la raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25.(2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



I a\ Home Healthcare
Hospice ̂

i Community Services

Mission

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services

&

VNA at HCS

Our mission is to provide services which enable people to function throughout life at their

optimal level of health, well-being and independence, according to their personal beliefs and

choices.
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Home Healthcare, Hospice
and Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate (the Association), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consoiidated Financiai Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted' in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of'the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated, financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member of

©Nexia
Intprnflt-Fonal

A member of

(1)



Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate
as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets, and their
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standard

As described in Note 1, Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate adopted
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-
For-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.
Accordingly, the accounting change has been retrospectively applied to prior periods presented as if
the policy had always been used. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 6, 2020

(2)



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS.

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Patient Accounts Receivable, Less Allowance for Uncollectible

Accounts of $652,535 in 2019 and $620,128 in 2018

Other Receivables

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Line of Credit

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses
Deferred Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2019 2018

$  343,467 $  247,576

17,267 17,938

2,366,149 2,132,956

324,782 191,155
224,029 249.650

3,275.694 2,839,275

12,642,547 12,248,325

2,657,038 2,978,403

$  18.575.279 $  18.066.003

$  533,503 $  667,125

1,300,311 502,305

1,002,194 .1,114,892

543,274 622,004

3,379.282 2,906,326

14,267,831 14,205,505

928,166 954,172

15,195,997 15,159,677

S  18.575.279 $ 18.066.003

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3)



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018 ■

OPERATING REVENUE

Patient Service Revenue

Provision for Bad Debt

Net Patient Service Revenue

Other Operating Revenue
Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Operations

$  13,093,709 $

(129,445)

12,964,264

2,598,094

107,946

14,463,382

(367,378)

14,096,004

2,561,188

45,441

Total Operating Revenue 15.670,304 16,702,633

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and Related Expenses

Other Operating Expenses
Depreciation

11,958,073

4,751,034

431,929

13,428,756

5,130,498

455,303

Total Operating Expenses 17,141,036 19,014,557

OPERATING LOSS (1,470,732) (2,311,924)

OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS

ContHbutions and Fundraising Income
Investment Income, Net

Realized and Unrealized Gains on Investments

634,736

171,101

724,386

425,576

167,938

697,024

Total Other Revenue and Gains 1,530,223 1,290,538

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 59,491 (1,021,386)

Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Capital 2,835 172,287

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS $  62.326 $ (849.099)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4)



HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue of Expenses
Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Capital

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Contributions

Investment Income

Realized and Unrealized Gains on Investments

Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Operations

Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Capital

Change in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

$  59,491

2,835

$  (1,021,386)
172,287

62,326 (849,099)

12,822

.13,833 15,074

58,120 63,117

(107,946) (45,441)
(2,835) (172,287)

(26,006) (139,537)

36,320 (988,636)

15,159,677 16,148,313

$  15,195.997 $  15,159,677

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities;
Depreciation

Provision for Bad Debts

Realized and Unrealized Gains on Investments

Investment Income Restricted for Reinvestment

(Increase) Decrease in:
Investments

Patient Accounts Receivable

Other Receivables

Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses
Deferred Revenue

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

, Purchase of Investments

Proceeds from Sale of Investments

Capital Expenditures
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Line of Credit

Payments on Line of Credit
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE

Interest Paid

$ 36,320 $ (988,636)

431,929 455,303

129,445 367,378

(782,506) (760,141)

(13,833) (15,074)

671 598

(362,638) (166,864)
(133,627) 304,113

25,621 108,843

798,006 (73,615)
(112,698) -  (48,123)
(78,730) 74,730

(62,040) (741,488)

(4,235,594) (2,814,287)
4,637,711 3,152,045

(110,564) (174,237)

291,553 163,521

1,522,000 1,730,000

(1,655,622) (1,262,721)

(133,622) 467,279

95,891 (110,688)

247,576 358,264

? 343.467 $ 247.576

36.935 25.300

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(6)



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, inc. is a nonstock, nonprofit
corporation in New Hampshire whose primary purpose is to act as a holding company and
provide management services to its affiliate.

Affiliate

VNA at HCS, inc. is a nonstock, nonprofit corporation in New Hampshire whose primary
purposes are to provide home healthcare, hospice, and community services.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Home Healthcare, Hospice
and Community Services, inc. and its affiliate, VNA at HCS, Inc. (collectively, the
Association). They are related through a common board membership and common
management. Ail significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

The Association prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).

Income Taxes

The Association is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the intemai Revenue Code.
As a public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal income taxes on
income earned in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is
subject to state and federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax
positions and concluded that the Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain
tax positions that require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and iiabliities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets, revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Association and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows;

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations. Net assets without donor restrictions includes assets set aside by
the board of directors for future use.

(7)



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions, unless use of
the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and

other assets or liabilities, other than endowment and similar funds, are reported as
increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted

by explicit donor stipulation, ̂ pirations of time restrictions on net assets (i.e., the donor-
stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are
reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets as net assets
released from restrictions.

Donated services are recognized in the financial statements if the services enhance or
create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals
possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by
donation.

Contributions, including pledges receivable which are unconditional promises to give, are
recognized as revenues in the period received. Conditional promises to give are not
recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the conditions on" which they
depend are substantially met. Gifts of long-lived assets are reported as assets without donor
restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts
of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as
restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulation about how long those assets must be
maintained, expiration of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-
lived assets are placed into service. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at
their estimated fair value. Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at an
appropriate discount rate commensurate with the risks involved. Amortization of discounts is
recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if
any, on the contributions.

(8)



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses In such

accounts. Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible accounts by
analyzing the Association's past history and identification of trends for all funding sources in
the aggregate. In addition, balances in excess of 365 days are fully reserved. Management
regularly reviews revenue data in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted

are applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts.

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows as of June 30:

2019 2018

$ 620,128 $  575,388

129,445 367,378

(97,038) (322,638)

652.535 $  620.128

Balance - Beginning of Year
Provision

Write-offs

Balance - End of Year

Investments

Investments in short-term investment options are reported as current assets. Investments
held for long-term return are reported as noncurrent assets.

The Association reports investments at fair value and has elected to report all gains and
losses in the Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue of Expenses to simplify the presentation of
these amounts In the consolidated statement of operations, unless otherwise stipulated by
the donor or state law.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and
overall market volatility risks. As such. It is reasonably possible that changes in the values of
Investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations, and
statements of changes in net assets.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use includes designated assets set aside by the board of directors and
donor contributions.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Assets with an
estimated useful life of more than one year and a historical cost in excess of $5,000 are
capitalized. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and
renewals and betterments are capitalized. Provision for depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets.

Property is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the related carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on
assets to be held and used are recognized based on the excess of the assets' carrying
amount over the fair value of the asset.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents advances on episodic payments that have not yet been
earned. Revenue is recognized over the period in which treatment is provided (60 days) on
a straight-line basis.

Patient Service Revenue

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are
paid on a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is
based on the scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by
federal guidelines.

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a
fee for service basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate
annual Medicare reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate.
Revenue is recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount.

Charges for services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at
the net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers, and others, including estimated
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers.
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered and in future periods as final settlements are determined. Patients
unable to pay full charge, who do not have other third-party resources, are charged a
reduced amount based on the Association's published sliding fee scale. Reductions in full
charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Cost Allocations

The Association operates several related programs. Costs directly attributable to a program
are charged to the respective program services. Management and general costs of the
Association have been allocated between the programs on the basis of actual direct
program costs.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measure of Operations

For purposes of presentation, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major,
or central to the provision of program services are reported as revenues and expenses.
Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating gains and losses. The
consolidated statements of operations include the operating loss. Changes in net assets
without donor restrictions which are excluded from the operating loss, consistent with

industry practice, include contributions and fundraising income, investment income and
realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments.

Excess (Deftclencv) of Revenues Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations includes the excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from
the excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include
contributions of, and net assets released from donor restrictions related to, long-lived
assets.

Functional Expenses

The financial statements contain certain categories of expenses that attributable to one or
more program or supporting functions of the Association. Expenses are directly allocated to
program or support services whenever possible. Other shared expenses are allocated
based on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated
include depreciation, interest, and occupancy, which are allocated on a square footage
basis, salaries and benefits, which are allocated on a basis of estimated time and effort, and
information technology, which is allocated based on estimates of time and cost of the
specific technology utilized. See Note 8 for the natural classification detail of expenses by
function.

Reclassificatlons

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform with the current
year presentation.

Change In Accounting Principle

The Association has adopted the accounting guidance in Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, which changes
presentation and disclosure requirements for nonprofit entities to provide' more relevant
information about their resources (and the changes in those resources) to donors, granters,
creditors, and other users. These include qualitative and quantitative requirements in the
following areas: net asset classes, investment return, expenses, and liquidity. Adoption of
the new standard had no effect on the previously reported change in net assets or net
assets balance.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
I

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The
guidance requires the Association to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Association

expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from contracts with customers. Additionally, qualitative and quantitative
disclosures are required regarding customer contracts, significant judgments and changes in
judgments, and assets recognized from the costs to obtain or fulfill a contract.
Implementation of the new standard can result in changes to the reporting and disclosure of
leases. The standard will be effective for the Association for the year ending June 30, 2020.
Management is in the process of evaluating the impact on the Association.

In February 2016, FASB issued ASU 2018-02, Leases, pertaining to recording of leases.
While the standard will not be effective for the Association until the year ending June 30.
2021, the standard can be adopted as early as the year ending December 31, 2016. Early
adoption has not been exercised. Implementation of the new standard can result In changes
to the reporting and disclosure of leases. Management is in the process of evaluating the
impact on the Association.

Subsequent Events

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management
through March 6, 2020, which Is the date the consolidated financial statements were
available to be issued.

NOTE 2 INVESTMENTS AND ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Investments and assets limited as to use, stated at fair value, are as follows as of June 30:

- 2019 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 329,576 $ 106,923

U.S. Government and Corporate Bonds 3,404,633 3.335.084

Marketable Securities 5,988,449 5,656,193

Mutual Funds 2,937,156 3,168,063

Total Investments and Assets Limited as to Use $ 12.659.814 $ 12.266.263

Investments Without Donor Restrictions $ "17,267 $ 17,938

Assets Limited as to Use:

Board-Designated for Future Use 11,760,468 11,363,748

Donor-Restricted, Time of Purpose 647,848 650,346

Donor-Restricted, Perpetual in Nature 234,231 234,231

Total Assets Limited as to Use .12,642,547 12,248,325

Total Investments and Assets Limited as to Use $ 12.659.814 $ 12.266.263

(12)



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2 INVESTMENTS AND ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurement

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly
transaction between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which
requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the - use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy within ASC Topic

820 distinguishes three levels of inputs that may be utilized when measuring fajr value.

Level 1 ~ Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
that the entry has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2 - Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about
the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

All of the Association's investments were measured on a recurring basis.

The following table presents the Association's fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019

Total Investments and Assets

Limited as to Use at Fair Value

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Investments and Assets

Limited as to Use

$ 11.204.906 $ 1,125,332 $

Lev^ 1 Levd 2 Level 3 Total

Corporate Bonds • $ $  1,125,332 $ $  1,125,332

Government Bonds 2,279,301 • 2,279,301

Equity Securities 5,988,449. - ■ 5,988,449

Mutual Funds 2,937,156 ■ - 2,937.156

12,330,238

329.576

$ 12.659.814

Corporate Bonds

Government Bonds

Equity Securities

Mutuai Funds

Total Investments and Assets

Limited as to Use at Fair Value

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Investments and Assets

Limited as to Use

Level 1

2,199,378

5,656,193

3,168,063

2018

Level 2 Level 3

$  1,135,706 $

$ 11,023,634 $ 1,135,706 $

Total

$  1,135,706

2,199,378

5,656,193

3,168,063

12,159,340

■ 106,923

$ 12,266,263
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2 INVESTMENTS AND ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE (CONTINUED)

Investment income and gains for cash equivalents and investments consist of the following
as of June 30:

2019 2018

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions;

Investment Income, Net $  171,101 $ 167,938

Realized and Unrealized Gains on Investments 724,386 697,024

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions:

Investment Income 13,833 15,074

Realized and Unrealized Gains on Investments 58,120 63,117

Total Investment Income and Gains $  967.440 943.153

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following as of June 30:

Land and Improvements

Building and Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment

Total Cost

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Property and Equipment, Net

2019 2018

$  482,961 $  471,403

5,384,931 . 5,384,931

3,121,014 3,028,445

8,988,906 8,884,779

6,331,868 5,906,376

$  2.657.038 $  2.978.403

NOTE 4 LINE OF CREDIT

The Association has an unsecured $1,000,000 line of credit payable on demand with a local
bank with interest at 1% above the bank's base rate (6.50% and 6.00% at June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively). The outstanding balance was $533,503 and $667,125 at June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively. The line is subject to automatic annual renewal at the
discretion of the lender.

(14)



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 5 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

The Association has received donor-restricted contributions, which have been accounted for
as net assets with donor restrictions and are available for the following purposes at June 30:

Time or Purpose Restrictions for:
Haskell Fund for Office Rent

Operations

Meal Sites

Respite

Hospice Operations

Hospice Memorial Garden

Johnson Family Fund for Capital Expenditures
Barbara Duckett Scholarship Fund
Donated Motor Vehicles

Total

Restrictions that are Perpetual in Nature for:
Hospice
Operations

Johnson Family Fund for Capital Expenditures

Bednar Endowment Fund

Haskeil Endowment Fund

Jones Endowment Fund

Total

2019

304,618

107,789

1,337

4,089

3,208

134,641

7,009

89,486

41,758

693,935

10,000

8,623

10,202

50,000

120,570

34,836

2018

339,825

98,797

1,697

4,089

1,252

123,926

5,757

75,003

69,595

719,941

10,000

8,623

10,202

50,000

120,570

34,836

$  234.231 234,231

NOTE 6 ENDOWMENTS

The Association has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date
of the donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.
As a result of this interpretation, the Association classifies as a donor-restricted endowment
(a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent donor-restricted endowment gifts, and (c) accumulations to the donor-restricted
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at
the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted
endowment fund is classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are

appropriated for expenditure by the Association in a manner consistent with the standard of
prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

(15)



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 6 ENDOWMENTS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the UPMIFA, the Association considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

1. The duration and preservation of the fund;
2. The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
3. General economic conditions;

4. The possible effect of inflation and deflation; .
5. The expected total return from Income and the appreciation of investments;
6. Other resources of the Association;

7. The investment policies of the Association;
8. The spending policy; and
9. Funds with deficiencies.

Return Obiectlves and Risk Parameters

The investment portfolio is managed to provide for the long-term support of the Association.
Accordingly, these funds are managed with disciplined, longer-term investment objectives
and strategies designed to meet cash flow and spending requirements. Management of the
assets is designed to attain the maximum total return consistent with acceptable and agreed
upon levels of risk. The Association benchmarks its portfolio performance against a number
of commonly used indices.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Obiectlves

To satisfy Its long-term rate of return objectives, the Association relies on a total return
strategy in which investment retums are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized
and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The Association targets an asset
allocation strategy wherein assets are diversified among several asset classes. The pursuit
of maximizing total return is tempered by the need to minimize the volatility of retums and
preserve capital. As such, the Association seeks broad diversification among assets having
different characteristics with the intent to endure lower relative performance in strong

markets in exchange for greater downside protection in weak markets.

Spending Policy

The Association's spending policy Is equal to investment returns. All available investment
returns eamed on endowments are expended, or released from endowment in the year
earned.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 6 ENDOWMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following schedule details the
June 30:

changes in endowment net assets for the years ended

With Donor Restrictions

Without Donor Purpose Perpetual

Restrictions Restrictions in Nature Total

Net Assets • June 30, 2017 $ 10,828,438 $  479,136 $  234,231 $ 11,541,805

Investment Income. Net 163,146 10,945 - 174,091

Realized and Unrealized Gains on

Investments 696,259 45,731 - 741,990

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - (184,706) ■ (184,706)

Use of Board Designated Funds

for Operations (324,095) • .  - (324,095)

Change in Net Assets 535,310 (128,030) - 407,280

Net Assets • June 30, 2018 11,363,748 351,106 234,231 11,949,085

Investment Income 169,336 9,153 . 178,489

Realized and Unrealized Gains on

Investments 723.838 38,445 ■ 762,283

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - (79,584) -
(79,584)

Use of Board Designated Funds

for Operations (496,454) - - (496,454)

Change in Net Assets 396,720 (31,986) - 364,734

Net Assets - June 30, 2019 $ 11,760,468 $  319,120 $  234,231 $ 12,313,819

NOTE 7 PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

Patient service revenue is as follows as of June 3D:

Medicare

Medicaid

Other Third-Party Payers

Private Pay
Total

2019 2018

$  9.540,407 $  9,710,931

826,800 991,348

2,529,426 2,818,951

197,076 942.152

$  13,093,709 $  14.463.382
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 7 PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines,
penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The Association
believes that it is in substantial compliance with all applicable laws and' regulations.
However, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by
a material amount in the near term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and
amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are included in net patient
service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Association
does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not
reported as revenue.

The Association provided services in other health related activities, primarily to indigent
patients, at rates substantially below cost. For certain activities, services were provided
without charge. The Association estimates the costs associated with providing the other
health related activities by applying Medicare cost report methodology to determine program
costs less any net patient revenue generated by the program. The estimated costs incurred

^  in these activities amounted to $1,104,471 and $1,047,857 for the years ended June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received
through local community support and federal and state grants. Local community support
consists of contributions received directly from the public, United Way, municipal
appropriations, and investment income earned from assets limited as to use. Federal and
state grants consisted of monies received from the state of New Hampshire.

NOTE 8 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. All
operating expenses are considered to relate, either directly or indirectly, to providing these
services. The tables below present expenses by both their nature and function for the years
ended June 30:

2019

Salaries and Related Expenses
Contracted Services

Office and Occupancy
Insurance

Depreciation

Total Expenses

Home

Healthcare.

Hospice and Supporting Services

Community Management

Services Fundraising and General Total

$ 10,338,358 $  593 $  1,619,122 $ 11,958,073

1,255,855 - 1,056,333 2,312,188

1.605.346 12,959 744,891 2,363,196

12,751 - 62,899 75,650

31,748 - 400.181 431,929

$ 13,244,058 $  13,552 $ 3,883,426 $ 17,141,036
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTES FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

2018

Home

Healthcare.

Hospice and Supporting Services

Community Management

Services Fundraising ■ and General Total

Salaries and Related Expenses $ 11.037.228 $  37,647 $ 2,353,881 $ 13,428,756

Contracted Services 1.928.537 - 714,469 2,643,006

Office and Occupancy 1,783.386 12,059 607,574 2,403,019

Insurance 13.508 - 70,965 84,473

Depreciation 80.504 - 374,799 455,303

Total Expenses $ 14,843,163 $  49.706 $ 4,121,688 $ 19,014,557

NOTE 9 MALPRACTICE INSURANCE

The Association insures its malpractice risks on a claims made basis. There was one known
malpractice claim outstanding at June 30, 2019 and 2018. There were no unassorted claims
or incidents which require loss accrual at June 30, 2019 or 2018. The Association intends to
renew coverage on a claims'made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be
available.

Litigation

The Association is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. After
consultation with legal counsel, management estimates these matters will be resolved
without a material adverse effect on the Association's future financial position or results of
operations.

NOTE 10 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Association,sponsors a defined contribution plan. The retirement contributions by the
Association amounted to $144,683 and $165,184 for 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 11 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local
residents and are insured under third-party payof agreements. Following Is a summary of
accounts receivable, by funding source:

2019 2018

Medicare

Medicaid

Other Third-Party Payers

Total

66% 65%

8% 3%

26% 32%

100% 100%
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES

Third-Party Favors

A significant portion of the Association's net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under the Medicaid and the Medicare programs. There are
numerous healthcare reform proposals being considered on the federal and state levels.
The Association cannot predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted
or, if adopted and implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Association.

A significant portion of the Association's revenues are derived from services under the
Medicare program (see Note 7). Under this program, cost reports are subject to audit for a
period of three years from the date of issuance of a Notification of Provider Reimbursement
by the fiscal intermediary. It is not possible at this time to determine whether the Association
will be audited or If a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

Medicare fiscal intermediaries and other payors periodically conduct pre-payment or post-
payment medical reviews or other audits of the Association's hospice reimbursement claims.
In order to conduct these reviews, the payer requests documentation from the Association
and then reviews the documentation to determine compliance with applicable rules and
regulations, including the eligibility of patients to receive hospice benefits, the
appropriateness of the care provided to those patients, and the documentation of the care.
The Association cannot predict whether medical reviews or similar audits by federal or state
agencies or commercial payors of the Association hospice program will result in material
recoupments or denials, which could have a material adverse effect on the Association's
financial condition and results of operations.

A portion of the Association's revenues are derived from services reimbursable under the
Medicaid program (see Note 7). The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid
prospective rates are subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for
all years in which that base year's costs are utilized in calculating the prospective rate. It is
not possible at this time to determine whether the Association will be audited or if a
retroactive rate adjustment would result.

NOTE 13 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Association has the following financial.assets available within one year of the date of
the statement of financial position at June 30:

2019 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Patient Accounts Receivable, Net

Other Receivables

Total Financial Assets Available to Meet

Liquidity Needs

$  343,467 $  247,576

■  17,267 17,938

2,366.149 2,132,956

324,782 191,155

$  3,051,665 $  2,589,625
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 13 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY (CONTINUED)

None of these financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that
make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the date of the statement
of financial position.

In addition, approximately $11.8 million and $11.4 million In board designated funds at
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, could be made available to the Association upon
approval by the board of directors. The Association also has approximately $466,000 and
$333,000 in availability under the line of credit as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(21)



'■y-M

•  •' 'V'i

'. : '.n I.

m
tif-.

rr : IK ' •;Fr:,-'Sri:lCr •" •Q^r

c-.r

r
!#•">>

ti>.
•m

K.n^

^■^r

It
r:yl'■f.ii

4m Hv

iie
i>3V;

•-B

V'

.  ; J ...

;r

•■"■ - '. :.4

.'•y -ir?^

•Tt '

'i

Py'1Hr'-iy "4'47si*
i- ' rt-y< -f 2?^-: -■>-

ff-C

'S-j:

:-rA-^
mInvestment advisory,sefviceTare.otfefedithfough,GliftonLarsonAI|en.WeaUh Advisors

an SEG-reqisteT^lirivestrnent'adviso^r^llGli^nL'arsonAllenlLLRBB ti-. . -- -..
•'«.' ■ -.

!• -'in .: J

; >: V



Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services/VNA at HCS
2019/2020 Board of Directors

Chair:

Julie Greenwood

Vice-Chair:

jane Larmon

Treasurer:

Eric Home

Secretary:

Susan Abert

Dianne Bolton

Mike Chelstowski

Mary Ann Davis

Julie Green

Maureen O'Brien

Brian Reilly

Judy Sadoski

David Stinson

David Therrien

Director at Large

Betsy Cotter

Immediate Past President

Allen Mendelson

EX-OFFICIO

Maura McQueeney, CEO

HCS, VNAatHCS

312 Marlboro St.

Keene,NH 03431

352-2253x121

Updated 4/2020



Penelope R Vaine

Objective

Employment

To use my knowledge, energy and expertise to provide support and
advocacy to those who need it.

(April 2010 - Present) Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community
Services (VNA at HQS, Inc.)

Program Manager, Healthy Starts
Coordination of program, supervision and scheduling of home visits.

(March 2009- April 2010) Home Health Care Hospice and Community
Services

Social Worker Maternal Child Health Program

Responsible for a caseload of 50 children and pregnant women needing
parenting education, health care, connection to community resources
and developmental screenings. Coordinated and collaborated with other
agencies to advocate for each client. Maintained appropriate
documentation.

(May 2008 - present) The United Church of Winchester

Director of Christian Education

Responsible for designing and implementing a vibrant Christian
Education program for the Congregation.

(March 2007- present) Mobile Home Supply of New England

Owner/Manager

Self taught to manage, market, and sell supplies for retail mobile home
supply shop.

(2000-2007) The Winchester Learning Center

Executive Director

From dream to reality, organized a nonprofit community supported Child
Care, Preschool and Family Resource Program. Implemented unique.
Waldorf-inspired curriculum to meet the needs of the children and their
families. Under the direction of a Board of Directors, managed daily
operations, programming, staffing, fiscal management, fundraising and
grant writing. Developed an extensive parent education and support
network for families.

(1999-1999) Winchester Elementary School

Substitute Teacher

Provided one on one tutoring care for preschool children with special
needs. Coordinated care and educational plans with professional team.

(1993-2000) Home Child Care

Director

Created a joyful home child care program which was Licensed by the
State of NH and registered with Family Works. Provided a variety of



developmenlally appropriate activities to promote creativity, confidence
and independence. Established support network for parents. Supervised
two high school interns.

(1989-1993) Home Health Care Hospice and Community Services

Director

Responsible for managing and operating the Castle Center for Adult Day
Care. Program provided quality care and socialization for elderly and
handicapped participants. Supervised team of RN's CNA's and aides; and
dozens of volunteers. Secured funding annually from the United Way and
the NH Dept of Elderly and Adult Services.

Education (September 1980- May 1985)

Bachelor of Social Work

Wheelock College, Boston Mass

References Roberta Royce The Winchester Learning Center, Winchester, NH 03470
(603) 239-7347

Jed Butterfield 60 Colony Hill Road. Richmond, NH 03470 (603) 239-8780

Volunteer

experience

2009 - present C.A.S.T.

Co facilitator of Community and School Together, a network of
concerned citizens who desire to improve the quality of life for all
residents. The group has been meeting monthly for 14 years in the town
of Winchester.

2007 - present Town of Winchester

Participant in the Revitalization Committee which is preparing a plan to
revitalize downtown Winchester.

1994-present The United Church of Winchester

Sunday School teacher. Vacation Bible. School Co-Coordinator, Fabulous
Family Friday Organizer, Religious Education Board Chair, Tweens Leader,
Assistant Moderator, Search Team

1998-2000

Board of Directors

1996-2000

Vice Chair- Board of Trustees

Winchester Learning Center

Conant Public Library



Rebecca Landry

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Home Healthcare, Hospice, & Community Services
Keene, NH

Position: Home Visitor (January 2013 - Present)

* Community liaison for HCS programs with families and Individuals thoughout the service

area.

* Provide safe, efficient personal interaction with pregnant and parenting families while

promoting independence.

* Teach prenatal care, parenting skills, early intervention and children's health, help establish .

goals and encouraging achievement of these goals.

* Reports and documents pertinent observations, including changes in client's condition and

need, appropriately.

Monadnock Community Hospital
Peterborough, NH

Position: Reception (January 2010 - March 2012)

* Compile and record medical charts, reports, and correspondence, using typewriter or

personal computer.

* Maintain medical records, technical library and correspondence files.

* Transmit correspondence and medical records by mail, e-mail, or fax.

* Operate office equipment such as voice mail messaging systems, and use word processing,

spreadsheet, and other software applications to prepare reports, invoices, financial statements,

letters, case histories and medical records.

* Greet visitors, ascertain purpose of visit, and direct them to appropriate staff.

* Answer telephones, and direct calls to appropriate staff.

* Perform various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining an

inventory of supplies.

* Receive and route messages and documents to appropriate staff.

* Schedule and confirm patient diagnostic appointments.

Monadnock Family Services
Keene, New Hampshire

Position: Children's Intake Coordinator (June 2009 - January 2010)

■* Verify Insurance benefits, obtain, and maintain authorizations.
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* Set payment plan based on sliding fee scale.

* Perform various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining an

inventory of supplies.

* Greet visitors, ascertain purpose of visit, and direct them to appropriate staff.

* Interview patients to complete documents, case histories, and forms such as intake and

insurance forms.

* Maintain medical records, technical library and correspondence files.

*.Compile and record medical charts, reports, and correspondence, using typewriter or

personal computer.

Answer telephones, and direct calls to appropriate staff.
/•

Bard Chiropractic
Peterborough, New Hampshire

Position: Chiropractic Assistant (June 2004 - June 2009)

* Verify insurance coverage.

* Perform various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining an

Inventory of supplies.

* Greet visitors, ascertain purpose of visit, and direct them to appropriate staff.

* Assist with physiological therapy.

* Transcribe recorded messages and practitioners' diagnoses and recommendations into

patients' medical records.

* Compile and record medical charts, reports, and correspondence, using typewriter or

personal computer.

* Operate office equipment such as voice mail messaging systems, and use word processing,

spreadsheet, and other software applications to prepare reports, invoices, financial statements,

letters, case histories and medical records.

* Answer telephones, and direct calls to appropriate staff.

* Prepare correspondence and assist physicians or medical scientists with preparation of

reports, speeches, articles and conference proceedings.

* Interview patients to complete documents, case histories, and forms such as intake and
insurance forms.

* Obtain and maintain authorizations.

* Maintain medical records, technical library and correspondence files.

* Schedule and confirm patient diagnostic appointments, surgeries and medical consultations.

* Perform bookkeeping duties, such as credits and collections, preparing and sending financial

statements and bills, and keeping financial records.

* Transmit correspondence and medical records by mail, e-mail, or fax.

* Receive and route messages and documents such as laboratory results to appropriate staff.

EDUCATION

35



Conant High School
Jaffrey, New Hampshire

Diploma, June 1994

ADDITIONAL SKILLS

* Ability to work well under pressure.

* Ability to communicate well.

* Ability to multi-task.

* Great with people.
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Mary Mullen-LaValley

Objective

Acquisition of a teaching position that will render use of my talents and educational expertise as
well as provide me with the opportunity to ser\'e those in need of care and support.

Experience

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Communitj' Services 2012 - present
Healthy Starts Home Visitor
Keene, NH

Community liaison for HCS programs with families and individuals throughout the service area.
Provide safe, efiicient persona! interaction with pregnant and parenting families while promoting
independence. Teach prenatal care, parenting skills, early intervention and children's health, help
establish goals and encouraging achievement of these goals. Report and document pertinent
observations, including changes in client's condition and need, appropriately.

Monadnock Family Services, Educator/Home Visitor 2006-2012
Keene, NH

Provide education and home visiting ser\'ices to young at-risk mothers in collaboration with the
VNA at HCS Maternal Child Health Program. NH Certified education, K-5 (2009) and NH
CAD Certified Advocate/Counselor, Domestic and Sexual Abuse (2006).

Westmoreland Elementary School/Middle School, Special Ed Teacher 1999 - 2006
Westmoreland, NH

Special education tutor, K-5 and 8, as well as continued education ser\'ice contract (21 year old
student). Provided differentiated, appropriate and motivated education techniques for various
behavioral and emotional needs. Originated and implemented academic plans, individual and
whole class.

New Hampshire Technical Institute, Public Relations Facilitator 1995 - 1996
Claremont, NH

Public Relations Facilitator of Adult Education

Bessie C. Rowel! Elementary School, Kindergarten Teacher 1976 - 1978

Education

Universit)' of New Hampshire 1976
BA Elementary Education
Special education concentration

Keene State College Currently Enrolled
Masters of Education
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CONTRACTOR NAME: \^'A at HCS, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Penny Vaine Program Manager 69,432 43% 29,575

Rebecca Landry Home Visitor 27,273 89% 24,246

Mary Mullen-La Valley Lactation Consultant, TIECS 35,513 100% 35,513
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JefTrejr A. Meyers
Cotnmissloncr

Lisa M. Morris

OirecJor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301

603-Z7M501 1^0-3S2-3345 Ext. 4501
Fax:603.271-4527 TOD Access: I-500-735-2964

w^vw.dhhs.nh.gov

August 27, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
amend existing sole source agreements with four (4) of the seven (7) vendors listed (in bold) below, to
provide home visiting services to expectant women and newly parenting individuals by increasing the
total price limitation by $250,000 from $4,407,387 to $4,657,387 with no change to the contract
cornpletion dates of Septemtjer 30, 2020, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval.
100% Other Funds.

The agreements were originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 20,
2018 (Item #27E).

Vendor Name Vendor

Number

Location Current

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Modified

Budget
Amount

Community Action of
Belknap-Merrimack
Counties Inc.

177203-

B003

2 Industrial Park Drive

Concord, NH 03302-1016

$285,941 $28,115 $314,056

Community Action
Partnership of Strafford
County

177200-

B004

642 Central Avenue

Dover, NH 03820
$424,152 $68,575 $492,727

Waypoint
177166-

B002

City of Manchester,
Hlllsborough, Merrimack
and Rockingham Counties

$2,220,473 $88,965 $2,309,438

The Family Resource
Center at Gorham

162412.

B001
Grafton and Coos County $737,613 . $64,345 $801,958

TLC Family Resource
Center

170625-

8001

109 Pleasant Street

Claremont. NH 03743

$234,000 $0 $234,000

Central New Hampshire
VNA & Hospice

177244-

8002

780 North Main Street,
Laconia, NH 03246

$192,978 $0 $192,978

VNA at HCS, Inc.
177274-

8002

312 Marlboro Street
Keene. NH 03431

$312,230 $0 $312,230

Totals $4,407,387 $250,000 $4,657,387



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,'BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES, AC A HOME VISITING

Fiscal

Year

Class Title Activity
Code

Current

(Modified)
Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
An^ount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Svcs

90083200 $1,958,839 $0 $1,958,839

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Svcs

90083201 $1,958,839 $0 $1,958,839

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Svcs

90083201 $489,709 $0 $489,709

Subtotals: $4,407,387 $0 $4,407,387

05-95-92-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS

Fiscal

Year

Class Title Activity
Code

Current

(Modified)
Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 102-

500734

Contracts for

Social Svcs

92058502 $0 $0 $0

2020 102-

500734

Contracts for

Social Svcs

92058502 $0 $250,000 $250,000

2021 102-

500734

Contracts for

Social Svcs

92058502 $0 $0 $0

Subtotals: $0 $250,000 $250,000

Totals: $4,407,387 $250,000 $4,657,387

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because these Contractors are the only vendors certified to provide
the evidence based home visiting model "Healthy Families America" as approved by the Division of Public
Health Services.and federal funders. Additionally, these vendors have been providing home visiting
services in their respective counties and have developed collaborative referral networks, which can
provide new mothers and their families with additional assistance programs in their community. Home
Visiting utilizes an approved Maternal Infant Early Childhood Home Visiting model and along with
permanent partners within each community, provides an array of services to assist in family support and
strengthening services to New Hampshire citizens, statewide.

The purpose of this request is to increase capacity for community outreach in identified areas of
need. The additional funding for the four (4) Contractors supports the requiremerit set forth by the Healthy
Families America model to have staff trained in Parent Survey and Community Outreach (PSCO).
Contractor staff will provide increased, dedicated allocation of time on community outreach.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

The additional funding will allow the Department to provide services to a total of 255 households
in need through September 30. 2020. The Contractors have demonstrated their ability to provide these
services.

The services provided in these agreements improve maternal and child health, prevent child
abuse and neglect, encourage positive parenting and promote child growth and development. Home
visitation programs are an effective early-intervention strategy to improve, the health and well-being of
children, particularly if they are embedded in comprehensive community sen/ices to families at risk,
referrals and linkages to necessary services is an integral part of the Healthy Families America model.

The Contractors provide home visiting services to pregnant women and newly parenting families
with children up to the age of three (3). Nurses and family support workers visit families in their homes
to provide educational information, depression and developmental screening, and connect families, as
needed, with community services such as prenatal care, employment programs and the New Hampshire
Tobacco Helpline.

These original agreements contain language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions that
allow the Department to renew the contracts for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued
availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is not exercising renewal options at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, many of the most at risk
New Hampshire families may not receive access to resources and family support and strengmening
services necessary to raise children who are physically, socially and emotionally healthy, which can
reduce juvenile delinquency, family violence and crime.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other
Drugs Fund.

In the event that other funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to
support these agreements.

ResfJectfuIly Submitted,

Jwfrey A. Mfrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Departmenl of Health and Hnnion Seruica' Mitsion is to join communilies and families
in providing opportunities for eilucns to achieve health and independeitce.



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Lisa M. Morris

Dlrcetor

JUN11'19p„j2:5i

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH O330I
603-271-4501 l-fiOO-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

\m>v.dhhs.nh.gov

May 2. 2018

His Excellency Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
enter Into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, in an amount not to exceed
$4,407,387, to provide the provision of home visiting services to expectant women and newly parenting
individuals, July 1, 2018 upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2020.
100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Vendor Code Address Amount

Community Action of Belknap-
Merrimack Counties Inc.

177203-B003
2 Industrial Park Drive

Concord. NH 03302-1016

$285,941

Community Action Partnership of
Stratford County

177200-B004
642 Central Avenue

Dover, NH 03820
$424,152

Child and Family Services of New
Hampshire

177166-B002

City of Manchester,
Hillsborough, Merrimack

and Rocklngham Counties

$2,220,473

The Family Resource Center at
Gorham

162412-B001 Grafton and Coos County $737,613

TLC Family Resource Center 170625-B001
109 Pleasant Street

Claremont, NH 03743

$234,000

Central New Hampshire VNA &
Hospice

177244-8002
780 North Main Street,
Laconia, NH 03246

$192,978

VNA at HCS, Inc. 177274-B002
312 Marlboro Street

Keene, NH 03431

$312,230

Total: $4,407,387



Her Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
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Funds are available In the following account in State Fiscal Years 2019 and are anticipated to
be available In State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021. upon availability and continued appropriation of
funds In the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust amounts within the price limitation and
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office If needed and justified,
without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS; DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES, ACA HOME VISITING

Fiscal

Year

Class Title Activity Code Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083200 $1,958,839

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083201 $1,958,839

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083201 $489,709

ss- ̂: iis ■ ■ :■ Jifs '■ 4 Total: $4,407,387

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because these vendors are the only vendors certified to provide
the evidence based home visiting mode! "Healthy Families America" as approved by the Division of
Public Health Services and federal funders. Additionally, these vendors have been providing home
visiting services in their respective counties and have developed collaborative referral networks, which
can provide new mothers and their families with additional assistance programs available In their
community. Home Visiting utilizes an approved Maternal Infant Early Childhood Home Visiting model
along with permanent partners within each community providing an array of services to assist in family
support and strengthening services to more New Hampshire citizens, statewide. Funds will allow the
vendors to provide services to 255 households In need through September 30, 2020. The vendors
have demonstrated their ability to provide these sen/ices. |

The purpose of these agreements Is to Improve maternal and child health, prevent child abuse
and neglect, encourage positive parenting and promote child growth and development. Home
visitation programs can be an effective early-lnten/entlon strategy to Improve the health and well-being
of children, particularly if they are embedded in comprehensive community sen/Ices to families at risk.

These agreements contain language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions that allow
the Department to renew the contracts for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued
■availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council.

The vendors will provide home visiting services to pregnant women and newly, parenting
families with children up to the age of three (3). Nurses and family support workers will visit families In
their homes to provide educational Information, depression and developmental screening, and connect
families, as needed, with community services such as prenatal care, employment programs and the
New Hampshire Tobacco Helpline.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, many of the most at risk
New Hampshire families may not receive access to resources and family support and strengthening
services necessary to raise children who are physically, socially and emotionally healthy, which can
reduce juvenile delinquency, family violence and crime.

Area Served: Statewide



Her Excellency, Governor Christopher!. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
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Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. CFDA # 93.870, US Department of Health and
Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, FAIN #'s are: X10MC29490 (4/1/16
-9/30/18) X10MC31156) (9/30/17-9/29/19).

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support these agreements.

Respe^ully ̂ iDmltted,

Lisa Morris '

Director

Approved by:
Jeft(9V A. Meyer
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.


